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Key Figures

SBS consolidated as of July 2007

2007 2007
Revenues 989.3 2,710.4
Recurring EBITDA* 296.9 662.9
EBITDA 281.1 522.3
EBIT 222.1 385.3
Net financial result -79.6 . -135.5
Pre-tax loss/profit 142.4 249.8
Consolidated net loss/profit 39.5 89.4
Underlying net income** 75.4 272.8
Earnings per preferred share (EUR) 0.19 0.42
Adjusted earnings per preferred share (EUR) 0.35 1.26
Cash flow from operating activities 646.0 1,600.4
Cash flow from investing activities -432.1 -3,275.8
Free cash flow 213.9 -1,675.4
Pro forma key figures 2008 (SBS consolidated as of January 2007)

Q1-Q4

Revenues 3,237.2
Recurring EBITDA* 784.2
EBITDA 628.2

Deconsolidation of Scandinavian Pay TV division C More in December 2008 * Recurring EBITDA: EBITDA before non-recurring items ** Underlying
net income: Consolidated net result before effects of purchase price allocation amortizations of Euro 70.4 m (2007: Euro 82.8 m) and SBS impair-
ment of Euro 180.0 m in 2008 as well as a not cash flow effective fx-valuation of Euro 66.6 m. The amount of 2007 is adjusted with the FCO fine
of Euro 120 m.



>The power Of teIeViSion. SWEDEN // Kanal 5 aims to appeal to young peo-

ple in particular. Its blend of light entertainment
. . . . and series makes it one of Sweden’s most popular
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is a leading European media TV channels. Alongside another station, Kanal 9
ProSiebenSat.1 also operates Mix Megapol, the
country's fastest growing radio network.

company. We offer today's audience first-class entertain-

. . . NORWAY // TV NORGE is the second-largest com- Free TV: Q Radio: mlr;? s vouc |
ment and up-to-date information - whenever they need it, meril TV tation i Norway. Ofeing e range ® 2

of high-quality entertainment and news, TV NOR-
GE enjoys great popularity with the Norwegian TV

W h e reve r t h ey a re, audience. FEM, another ProSiebenSat.1 station in

the country, is specially attuned to the women's

audience. Another audience favorite is Radio Nor- FINLAND // In Finland, the music channel
) DENMARK // Kanal 5 offers a wide variety of en- ge, the second-largest commercial radio station in The Voice attracts young audiences. In the
www.prosiebensati.com tertainment, and appeals primarily to viewers bet- Norway. evening, TV Viisi carries hit series, feature

films and the national team's soccer mat-
ches on the same frequency. Furthermore
ProSiebenSat.1 operates six radio networks,
among others, The Voice and Iskelma.

Free Tv: JIATEY Radio: FINIE Exa

ween 15 and 50 with US series, local productions, .
blockbuster movies and live coverage of major Free TV: m m Radio:

sports events. Alongside three other TV channels
- Kanal 4, 6'eren and The Voice - ProSiebenSat.1
also owns the second-largest commercial radio sta-
tion in Denmark, Nova FM.

RADIO
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Free TV: i Radio: NEIVAen
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NETHERLANDS // SBS 6 is the Netherlands' No.
2 commercial TV channel, and primarily attracts
viewers between 20 and 49 with big entertain-
ment shows, in-house productions, series and
coverage of sports events. In addition to the TV

channels NET 5 and Veronica, ProSiebenSat.1 AUSTRIA The channels Sat.1 Osterreich,

BELGIUM // The two Belgian channels VT4 also owns the country's leading TV magazine, ProSieben Austria and kabel eins offer regi-
and vijf TV are aimed at the Flemish-speaking Veronica Magazine. onal windows alongside programming from
part of the Belgian population. VT4 combines %X T i . . their sister stations in Germany. Together
local Flemish productions with international FreeTv: (@) E Vinagee Print: g fiikigs with PULS 4, the channels make up the lea-

blockbuster movies and popular US series,
and is very successful among its core target
audience of viewers from 15 to 44.

Free TV: e 1,.\‘|Jf

ding free TV company in Austria.

Free TV: 13 = g PULS™

ROMANIA // TV Prima was one of Romania's
first commercial TV channels. Today it is
one of the country's most successful sta-
tions and broadcasts US series, adaptations
of popular TV concepts, and original local
productions. ProSiebenSat.1 also operates
two radio stations (Kiss FM and Magic FM) in
Romania and the music channel Kiss TV.

4
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)

GERMANY // Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24
make ProSiebenSat.1 the biggest commercial TV
corporation in Germany. ProSiebenSat.1 also ranks
second among online marketers, and scores espe-
cially well with users of its stations’ Web sites, as
well as such portals as Fem, Lokalisten and MyVi-

4
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Free TV: @ = g Online: G fem. ’
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SWITZERLAND // The ProSiebenSat.1Group,
with its channels Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel
eins, is the leading free TV company in Swit-
zerland. Along with commercial blocks on all
three stations, ProSiebenSat.1 also markets

numerous online platforms in Switzerland. HUNGARY TV2 is one of the largest BULGARIA In Bulgaria ProSiebenSat.1
commercial TV channels in Hungary. The 3 scores with a mixture of national and inter-
Free TV: i@ = g station's success is founded on locally produ- national pop music - on the TV screen as
ced programming, US series and Hungarian well as on the radio. Four radio networks
adaptations of successful TV concepts. TV2 . . . and the music channel The Voice attract a
offers enhanced marketing opportunities by GREECE // A mix of national and inter- broad audience in all active age groups.
incorporating alternative distribution plat- national music has made Lampsi FM the
forms, and earns high ratings among its key most popular radio station in Greece.
demographic. P Free TV: m
Free TV: 4
wv2hu Radio: M| LM B2a
v N MOLDOVA// ProSiebenSat.1 operates radio Kiss FM in Moldova.



Getting future-ready
People have always been mesmerized by pictures. Pictures
inform, entertain, provoke feelings, arouse tears. The suc-
cess of our media is founded on that magic.

2008

Television and the Internet show what brings people toge-
ther, worldwide. Pictures move people. On the following
pages, we let them speak for themselves - about an event-
ful 2008. It was a year of challenges. Challenges that we
met. And now we're ready for the next step. ProSiebenSat.1
— ready for the future!
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> 2008 Highlights

PULS )

> FEBRUARY

Austrian station PULS 4 goes
on the air nationwide with a new
24-hour schedule of full-service
programming. PULS 4 combines
international feature films, block-
buster movies and series from
Hollywood with Austrian in-house
productions of news, talk, event
and society shows for a young,
urban target audience.

> MARCH

In addition to new media, the
Group also expands its classic
Radio business in the Diversifi-
cation unit. ProSiebenSat.1 ac-
guires numerous new licenses
for Northern Europe in 2008. In
March the Group also acquires
Norwegian radio station Kanal
4. With radio stations in Nor-
way, Sweden, Finland, Denmark,
Romania, Bulgaria and Greece,
ProSiebenSat.1 ranks Number 2
among listeners in Europe.

> APRIL

In 2008 the Group closes seve-
ral deals with major Hollywood
studios, obtaining exclusive free
TV rights to a large number of US
hits. For example, in April Pro-
SiebenSat.1 renewed its contract
with the Walt Disney Company
and acquired its first video-on-de-
mand rights for many top films.

First-quarter profits are heavi-
ly affected by difficulties in the
German advertising market, due
to uncertainties about the new
sales model for advertising time,
which was introduced at the end
of 2007 in the wake of procee-
dings by Germany's anti-cartel
authority.

One of ProSiebenSat.l's three
strategic goals is to modernize
its technical infrastructure. The
outsourcing agreement with IBM
provides the foundation for buil-
ding up a European digital plat-
form.

/\)c/\

> MAY

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group ranks
second among online marke-
ters in Germany, and continues
to expand its Internet presence
in 2008. Online business is
strengthened with acquisitions
(including Fem.com) and the in-
ternational rollout of online por-
tals and the SevenGames game
platform.

L7
renseven

ENTERTAINMENT

Producing content is a core
component of our strategy. Red-
seven Entertainment enables
ProSiebenSat.1 to produce our
own ideas for light entertain-
ment programming. By founding
a separate production company
for nonfiction programming, the
Group also intends to facilitate
access to rights and make better
use of its own or acquired pro-
gram rights.



> JUNE

Axel Salzmann is ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG's new Chief Finan-
cial Officer. He succeeds Lothar
Lanz, who leaves the company in
June.

Andreas Bartl is appointed to the
Executive Board, where he is in
charge of German Free TV.

Acquiring rights to the UEFA
Champions League and the UEFA
Cup, the Group picks up the lar-
gest package of live soccer mat-
ches on German free TV. The ag-
reement covers three seasons,
from 2009 to 2012, and for the
first time also covers broadca-
sting options irrespective of plat-
form.

This summer, ProSiebenSat.1
Produktion begins building a
new playout center in Munich.
The center will handle all broad-
casting operations, and is ex-
pected to start operation during
the first quarter of 2009.

> OCTOBER

N24 goes on the air with the la-
test technology in October. Pro-
duction now uses an all-digital
system that makes N24 Europe's
most up-to-date news station.

> NOVEMBER

To handle the challenges of the co-
ming years, the Executive Board
decides to set up the TV group in
Germany newly. The keystone is
to pool Sat.1, ProSieben and ka-
bel eins in Munich. Greater cen-
tralization will create a network
with an extensive creativity pool
and make it possible to use re-
sources more efficiently.

> DECEMBER

Thomas Ebeling is appointed the
new CEO of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group. He chairs the Executive
Board. Axel Salzmann serves as
acting CEO until Ebeling takes
office in March 2009.

C More is Northern Europe’s lea-
ding brand in premium pay TV.
But it offers only limited poten-
tial for synergy through interna-
tional productions and program-
ming use. The sale of C More was
completed in December.

In 2008 the German family of
stations scores with viewers,
gaining over the competition by
increasing Group audience share
to 29.4 percent. The ProSieben-
Sat.1 stations also succeed with
viewers internationally, in spite
of the Olympics and the Europe-
an Soccer Championship.



Lots of challenges and decisions
“Germany's next Topmodel by Heidi Klum"” (2008),
Tresor TV Produktions GmbH 2008 on ProSieben ---

2008 WAS A YEAR OF CHALLENGES »>>>

Major sports events like the Olympics and the European Soccer Championships fascinated TV audiences.
In many European countries, public TV channels held the broadcasting rights. Nevertheless, the ProSie-
benSat.1 stations increased their audience shares in some cases substantially - in Germany as well as in

TV AUDIENCE SHARES IN THE 29 4 23 4
TARGET GROUP RELEVANT FOR ° °
THE ADVERTISING INDUSTRY

> Germany > Netherlands > Hungary



most of the European countries. Yet, in the German ad market ProSiebenSat.1lost notably market share.
Beside difficulties with the implementation of the new ad sales model the worsened economic conditions
in Europe also had an impact on TV ad revenues in the core market Germany.

17.6 [ 15.9 M 15.6 [ 147 = s I

> Switzerland > Belgium > Austria > Sweden > Norway > Denmark > Romania



Yes, we can!

Barack Obama during the 2008 American presidential campaign,
N24 is there ---
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FOCUS ON PERFORMANCE pany closer together. For that grammingresources,allowingour

reason, Sat.1 will be moving from family of stations to realize their
>0 Berlin to Munich in mid-2009. vast potential to the fullest. The
In the fall of 2008, ProSieben- Berlin administrative units will be
Sat.1 initiated decisive steps to At that point the big three Ger- moving to Munich as well. Additi-

optimize the setup of the German man full-service channels - Sat.l, onally, we'll be combining the two
Group. The focus was on one ProSieben and kabel eins - will marketing companies, SevenOne
thing: to enhance performance be working under a single roof. Media (TV) and SevenOne Inter-
by pooling resources and bring- Which will enrich the exchange of active (online). That way we can
ing important parts of the Com- ideas and the networking of pro- generate even more cross-media
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campaigns — campaigns that run  advertising market. With the new  new course for the future.
on several media at once — and structure for our Group in its
strengthen our position in the core market Germany, we set a

REORIENTATION IN GERMANY: > Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel eins all to be headquartered together > N24 and
central editorial department of Sat.1to remain in Berlin > SevenOne Media and SevenOne Interactive to be merged
> Administrative functions to be centralized in Munich > 225 jobs to be cut in whole German Group
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Quality has a price

“Sex and the City,” US series and film, Warner, series:

1998 to 2004 on ProSieben ---

LEEWAY FOR INVESTMENT

>

In 2007, ProSiebenSat.1 acquired
the SBS Broadcasting Group, and
became No. 2 in the European TV
market. The SBS acquisition was
financed through loans (EUR 3.6
billion). In spite of the debt, the
TV corporation still has enough

leeway for future investments.
In 2008, ProSiebenSat.1againin-
vested much more than a billion
euros in attractive TV program-
ming. In new media, we were able
to expand our portfolio by acqui-
ring ownership interests in such
online platforms as Fem.com. We
also invested in modernizing the
Company's equipment. We set up

a new playout center in Munich,
one of the most up-to-date TV
production systems in Europe.

All of which goes to show that
ProSiebenSat.1 still has enough
financing resources to invest
strategically. A further helping
point here is that we were able to
get extremely good credit terms
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for the SBS acquisition. At the
same time, of course, another
top priority is to reduce our in-
debtedness.

i

STRONG BRANDS ALL

OVER EUROPE
radio networks

million
households using TV

TV stations
leading free

countries in Europe TV brands



The future of data processing

“Minority Report,” US science fiction thriller (2002), DreamWorks
2005 on ProSieben ---
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THE TAPELESS FUTURE ARRIVED
ONTVIN 2008
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ProSiebenSat.1 set up a new playout center in Mu-
nich in 2008 - one of the most up-to-date TV pro-
duction systems in Europe.

Now our programming can play on all available

platforms - TV, online, podcast, mobile TV - without
any intermediate technical steps. New media ser-
vices are becoming more and more important for
ProSiebenSat.1 as well. With the new playout cen-

= §o _-—
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ter, we have the technical resources to meet the
challenge. With just a click of the mouse, at any
screen, our TV makers can open files, view and edit
them, add sound, and release the material. Massive
tape archives will soon be a thing of the past. Ad-
ditionally, ProSiebenSat.1 set up news station N24
on a completely new platform in 2008. Reports are
now generated entirely digitally. The TV and online

editing departments are fully intermeshed. Tape-
less TV is a reality.




> As a German stock corporation, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
has a dual management system, and therefore has a clear
separation between its managing body and its supervisory
body. The Company’s managing body is its Executive Board,
which is overseen and advised by the Supervisory Board.

In this chapter we inform you about how the two boards
work together, their compensation, changes in the member-
ship of both boards, dividends, and how the German Corpo-
rate Governance Code is implemented at ProSiebenSat.1.
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THOMAS EBELING

Management segment: Group Content
Production and Acquisitions,
Corporate, Human Resources

CEO since March 1,2009

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG faced a year of challenges in 2008. Our business was dominated
by the launch of a new ad sales model in Germany and we were tested by the beginning of
the global economic crisis. However, we met both challenges.

First, some good news:

The business performance of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is based on the success of our TV
programming. Here we did very well in almost every one of our territories, even though the
Olympics and the European Soccer Championships made competition especially difficult.
Our stations in Germany earned an audience share of almost 30 percent. Sat.1 passed an
important milepost by earning shares near the 11 percent mark. Our stations in the rest
of Europe also produced outstanding figures. For example, in the Netherlands (our most
important market after Germany) we picked up 1.5 percentage points to average a 23.4
percent audience share.

The marketing of our TV programming is the most important driver of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group's performance. After the 2007 cartel proceedings in Germany, we had to strive for
an extended period to introduce a new ad sales model. That caused us to fall short of our
goals in 2008. The good news, however, is that for some months now, we've had a solution
that complies with the cartel laws and is also acceptable to clients and agencies. Now we're
back on the market with competitive options - in 2009, we've already seen our first gains
in advertising market share.

The multimedia distribution of our content will guarantee the future viability of the ProS-
iebenSat.1 Group. Changes in media usage call for changes in media companies. Our goal
is to ensure that our content is accessible for all of our viewers - wherever and whenever
they like. In Germany, our strategy has given us a leading position among online marketers,
and made us No. 1in mobile TV and in video on demand. We are now pursuing the same
approach throughout Europe.

As Executive Board members, our most important task is to safeqguard the profitability of
the ProSiebenSat.1 Group even in an adverse economic environment. That's why with the
first signs of the economic crisis in 2008, we responded quickly but also with an eye to the
future. As the economic indicators turned downward, therefore, we were ahead of many
other market participants in taking appropriate measures to maintain our position amid
stiff competition.



AXEL SALZMANN

Management segment: Group Controlling,

Finance/ Investor Relations, Legal Affairs,
Regulatory Affairs, Administration

Member of the Executive Board

since May 2008, CFO since June 2008

2009, and probably 2010, will be years of challenges for ProSiebenSat.1 as well as for the
media industry at large. There is a great deal of uncertainty about what will happen in the
real economy, in the advertising market and in the financial markets. So, how are we pre-
paring?

First, we are strengthening the quality of our programming wherever we can. To make the
most of the Group's potential, we are setting up a new structure for all our free TV stations
in Germany. For the first time, Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel eins will be operating under one
roof. This will eliminate many of the barriers that have discouraged the development of
successful programming ideas to date. N24 will remain in Berlin as the Group's journalistic
center of competence and the most up-to-date news station in Europe. We will continue
networking our stations internationally, applying best practices and joint idea development
to create the programming highlights of the future.

We'll do an even better job of meeting our advertisers' expectations. In a new structure,
our sales company SevenOne Media will offer true 360-degree marketing, and become the
place to go for creative advertising messages on screen. We will also tap additional sources
of revenue with new, more differentiated advertising concepts.

Changes offered by new media represent an opportunity for us. We will follow our viewers
wherever they go. Under the name “TV 3.0" we'll continue to network our TV brands with
online and mobile media. All the components of our portfolio will be placed in the service of
a single idea - engaging people with fascinating content.

We can all take pride in knowing that our company - the ProSiebenSat.1 Group - is No. 2
in Europe. It has strong station brands and an outstanding position in new media. It has a

presence throughout Europe, and is a technology leader. Finally, ProSiebenSat.1 Group's
employees have the loyalty, passion and creativity to make the business a success.

Sincerely,

(B ELL, -

(CEO) (CFO)

Executive Board



The Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

(CEO) (CFO)
Management segment: Group Content Production Management segment: Group Controlling, Finance/
and Acquisitions, Corporate, Human Resources Investor Relations, Legal Affairs, Regulatory Affairs,
CEO since March 1, 2009 Administration // Member of the Executive Board

since May 2008, CFO since June 2008

(German Free TV)

Management segment: German Free TV
Member of the Executive Board since June 2008

THE FOLLOWING LEFT THE EXECUTIVE BOARD IN FISCAL 2008:

GUILLAUME DE POSCH, (CEO), Left as of December 31,2008 // LOTHAR LANZ, (CFO), Left as of June 10, 2008
PETER CHRISTMANN, Executive Board Member for Sales and Marketing, Left as of June 30, 2008



(CO0)

Management segment: Group Operations,

International Free TV, International Pay TV, Radio, Print
Member of the Executive Board since July 2007

(Sales)

Management segment: Sales & Marketing
Member of the Executive Board since September 2008

(New Media)

Management segment: New Media & Diversification,
Transaction TV, Business Development
Member of the Executive Board since August 2006

Members of the Executive Board



Report of the Supervisory Board

Once again in 2008, the Supervisory Board performed the duties incumbent upon it under
the law, the articles of incorporation, its own rules of procedure, and the German Corporate
Governance Code.

Summary of the activities of the Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board assisted the
Executive Board with advice on management, and supervised the Executive Board's con-
duct of business. In performing its supervisory duties, the Supervisory Board essentially
made use of a reporting system designed to its specifications, as well as a list it had pre-
pared of actions that cannot be taken without the prior consent of the Supervisory Board
or one of its committees.

The core of the reporting system is a monthly written report prepared by the Executive
Board. In addition to detailed figures on the business position and financial condition of the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group, the report also includes a current analysis of the early warning indi-
cators that are continuously recorded and analyzed as part of the risk management system.
The Executive Board also submitted detailed reports on current events and plans at the
regularly scheduled meetings of the Supervisory Board, as well as in the intervals between
meetings when necessary. When business events deviated from plans, the details were ex-
plained to the Supervisory Board and discussed with it. The Executive Board coordinated
the Company's strategic focus with the Supervisory Board. These reqular reports by the
Executive Board kept the Supervisory Board promptly and thoroughly informed about the
Company's condition, and ensured that it was always involved in decisions of particular im-
portance. Apart from the documentation provided to the Supervisory Board in the course
of the Executive Board's reporting activities, there was no need for the Supervisory Board
to examine the Company's books and other records during the year.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board also maintained intensive personal contact with the
Executive Board between monthly reports and Supervisory Board meetings, and was thus
kept up to date about major business events and the business picture.

All matters requiring its consent were submitted to the Supervisory Board promptly for
review. The Executive Board prepared written background materials on these matters that
summarized the necessary information for the Supervisory Board's decision-making pro-
cess. These matters were also explained to the Supervisory Board in person.

Decisions of the Supervisory Board and its committees are made at meetings attended by
the members in person, via conference calls, or - whenever necessary - by written corre-
spondence in the intervals between meetings. During the year, the Supervisory Board and
its committees made decisions outside personal meetings in a total of 25 cases.

Matters addressed by the Supervisory Board in 2008. At its meetings, the Supervisory
Board regularly and thoroughly discussed the condition of the Company with the Execu-
tive Board, and especially dealt with the development of business and finances, personnel,
investment projects, and basic matters of corporate policy and strategy. The Supervisory
Board held four regularly meetings during the year, in March, June, September and Novem-
ber. Six special meetings were held via conference call in February, June, July, November
and December.

One of the central concerns of the Supervisory Board during the year was the evolution of
the Munich public prosecutor’s investigation of a member of the Executive Board of Pro-



GOTZ MAUSER,
Chairman of the
Supervisory Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

SiebenSat.1 Media AG and certain members of the management of SevenOne Media GmbH.
This matter was addressed at the special meeting held on February 12, 2008. The investi-
gative proceedings were initiated in the aftermath of a proceeding by the German Federal
Cartel Office that ended in 2007, and were directed against responsible parties at adver-
tising time marketing companies and media agencies in Germany, as well as against the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s advertising sales company. Another key matter addressed in this
connection was the introduction of a new advertising sales model in Germany. Further em-
phases were the centralization of the Group's German free TV stations under the umbrella
of German Free TV Holding GmbH in Unterfohring, as well as the resulting relocation of Sat.1
to Unterfohring. The Supervisory Board consented to that relocation at a special meeting
on November 7, 2008.

At its regularly meeting on March 25, 2008, the Supervisory Board approved the docu-
ments of the annual financial statements for fiscal 2007, as well as the Corporate Gover-
nance Report of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board, and the Declaration of Com-
pliance for fiscal 2007. A revision of the rules of procedure raised the age limit for members
of the Supervisory Board to 70. Other matters concerning operations were also discussed
at this meeting.

In a vote conducted by correspondence, on April 3, 2008, the Supervisory Board approved the
spin-off of IT Services from the ProSiebenSat.1 Group and the outsourcing of ProSiebenSat.1
Produktion GmbH's business applications, IT systems and media systems to IBM Deutschland
GmbH. In a further vote by correspondence, Axel Salzmann was appointed to succeed Lo-
thar Lanz on the Executive Board on April 23.

A further reqular meeting of the Supervisory Board was held immediately before the an-
nual shareholders’ meeting, on June 10, 2008. Apart from various matters of operations,
this meeting resolved to establish a Compensation Committee.

Two special meetings were held via conference call in June 2008. On June 15, the Supervi-
sory Board approved the sale of the Scandinavian pay TV unit C More Group AB. On June
17, the Supervisory Board accepted Guillaume de Posch's request to resign from his position
as CEO, and the termination of his employment agreement with ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as
of December 31, 2008. It also appointed Andreas Bartl as a new member of the Executive
Board, effective immediately.

Report of the Supervisory Board



A further special meeting of the Supervisory Board via conference call was convened for
July 24. At this meeting, Klaus-Peter Schulz was appointed to succeed Peter Christmann as
the Executive Board member for Sales and Marketing, effective September 1, 2008.

Central topics at the regular meeting of the Supervisory Board on September 23 were the
current situation of SevenOne Media GmbH's contract negotiations with advertising agen-
cies, and the current status of the Munich public prosecutor's investigation, already men-
tioned above.

In a vote by correspondence, on November 12 the Supervisory Board approved the Share-
holder Incentive Plan for the Executive Board and other selected executives.

At the regular meeting on November 26, the Supervisory Board focused its deliberations on
budget planning for fiscal 2009 and on the Five-Year Plan for fiscal 2009 through 2013.

The Supervisory Board's last meeting of the financial year was convoked as a special meet-
ing via conference call for December 9. It appointed Thomas Ebeling to the Executive Board
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as CEO, effective March 1, 2009.

Because of scheduling conflicts, Supervisory Board members Johannes Huth, Thomas Krenz
and Harry Sloan were absent from more than half of the meetings of the Supervisory Board.

Report on the committees’ work. So as to conduct its work efficiently, in 2008 the Super-
visory Board relied on the assistance of three committees: the Presiding Committee, the
Audit and Finance Committee, and the Compensation Committee. At its plenary sessions
the Supervisory Board was informed about the committees’ work reqularly and in full.

The Presiding Committee is made up of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Super-
visory Board, together with four additional members. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman
of the Supervisory Board jointly chair the committee. The committee prepares for meet-
ings of the Supervisory Board, and furthermore deals with acquisitions of programming
rights and other matters of particular business significance that are subject to its consent.
The compensation of the Executive Board and the acquisition of programming rights were
important topics in 2008. The Presiding Committee met six times in 2008, and adopted
resolutions by written correspondence twice.

The Compensation Committee, established in June 2008, serves as a personnel and
nominating committee. These duties had previously been performed by the Presiding
Committee. The Compensation Committee met three times during the year, and adopted
three resolutions by written correspondence. The committee is made up of the Chairman
and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and two additional members. It is chaired by
the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.

The Audit and Finance Committee met six times in 2008, once in a special meeting. It
is concerned with matters of risk management and compliance. In accordance with Item
7.1.2 of the German Corporate Governance Code of June 2008, the Audit and Finance
Committee also discusses the semiannual and quarterly financial reports with the Exe-
cutive Board before those reports are released. It is also concerned with ensuring the
requisite independence of the independent auditor, engaging the independent auditor’s
services, identifying points of emphasis for audits, and agreeing on fees with the indepen-
dent auditor. Its consent is also required for certain management measures. The Audit
and Finance Committee has five members. Its Chairman is appointed by the Supervisory
Board, and under the rules of procedure this individual must be a member of the Super-
visory Board with experience in accounting and internal controlling.
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Conflicts of interest. At its regular meeting on September 23,2008, the Supervisory Board
discussed the process of selling Veronica Uitgeverij B.V. and Veronica Litho B.V., the print
unit in the Netherlands. Supervisory Board members Marinus Maria Petrus van Lent and
Adrianus Johannes Swartjes refrained from participating in the report on this agenda item,
since as representatives of Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. they were in the position of poten-
tial buyers. There were no other conflicts of interest during the year. The planned sale of
Veronica's print operations has been suspended because of the current difficult market
environment.

Corporate governance and Declaration of Compliance. Corporate management and over-
sight at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is guided by the principles of the German Corporate Gov-
ernance Code. In their Corporate Governance Report 71, which is published as part of this
Annual Report, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board report in detail on corporate gov-
ernance at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in accordance with Item 3.10 of the German Corporate
Governance Code. That Corporate Governance Report also includes the current Declaration
of Compliance from the Executive Board and Supervisory Board for fiscal 2008 pursuant to
Section 161 of the German Stock Corporations Act (AktG). In keeping with the recommenda-
tion of Item 5.6 of the German Corporate Governance Code, the Supervisory Board also con-
ducts reqular efficiency reviews. For fiscal 2008, this review was conducted as a self-evalu-
ation at the financial review meeting on March 26, 2009. The major points of examination
included the Supervisory Board's view of its own mission, the organization of its activities,
the independence of its members, the handling of potential conflicts of interest, and the com-
position of its committees. The Supervisory Board arrived at a positive conclusion.

Audit of the AG and Group financial statements. The 2008 financial statements of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG and the consolidated financial statements of the Group, together with
the management reports for ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the Group, were audited by the
Munich office of KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft, which issued an unqualified
audit opinion in both cases. The audit paid particular attention to the process of preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the definition of the scope of consolidation, the appli-
cation of accounting policies, the correctness of the preparation of the single-entity annual
financial statements included in the consolidated financial statements, the consolidation
of capital and particularly the finalization of the purchase price allocation of the in 2007
acquired SBS Broadcasting Group, the computation and impairment testing of goodwill and
intangible assets, computation of deferred taxes, the correctness of the preparation of the
information in the notes, a review of the correctness of the preparation of the consolidated
cash flow statement and the consolidated segment report, and the plausibility of projected
figures in the consolidated management report. As required by law, the consolidated finan-
cial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stan-
dards (IFRS). The independent auditor has confirmed that the Executive Board maintains an
efficient risk management system, as required by law.

The Supervisory Board thoroughly reviewed these documents. All documents relating to
the financial statements, as well as the KPMG audit reports, were made available to the
members of the Supervisory Board in good time. These documents were discussed in detail,
in the presence of the auditor, first within the Audit and Finance Committee and then at the
financial review meeting of the full Supervisory Board. The Supervisory Board has noted
with approval the results of the auditor’'s examination of the financial statements, and for
its own part, following its own examination, also finds no cause for objection. The Super-
visory Board approved the parent company financial statements and the consolidated finan-
cial statements prepared by the Executive Board and audited by the auditor, as well as the
management reports for both the parent company and the consolidated Group. The annual
financial statements were thereby adopted. Finally, the Supervisory Board also reviewed the
Executive Board's proposal for the allocation of profits, and concurs in that proposal.

Report of the Supervisory Board



Inits capacity as auditor of the financial statements, the Munich office of KPMG AG Wirtschafts-
prifungsgesellschaft also reviewed the report of the Executive Board on relationships with
affiliated enterprises during fiscal 2008. The auditor's examination revealed no cause for
objection. The auditor has issued the following unqualified opinion: “Based on the results of
our audit, performed in accordance with our professional duties, we confirm that

1. The factual information in the report is accurate,
2.In the legal transactions mentioned in the report, the consideration paid by the Company
was not disproportionately high, or else any disadvantage was compensated.”

The Supervisory Board's own review of the report likewise revealed no cause for objection.
The Supervisory Board therefore concurs with the results of the auditor’s review. In accor-
dance with the final results of its own examination, the Supervisory Board has no objections
to the declaration of the Executive Board at the conclusion of the report on relationships
with affiliated businesses.

Changes in Membership of the Supervisory Board. In connection with the sale of Axel
Springer AG's indirect holding in the Company to a subsidiary of Lavena Holding 4 GmbH,
which took effect on January 15, 2008, Dr. Mathias Dépfner and Christian Nienhaus re-
signed from their seats on the Supervisory Board as of that same date. The annual share-
holders’ meeting on June 10, 2008, consented to the supplemental elections to the Super-
visory Board, and elected Silke Scheiber, a director at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts Co. Ltd., and
Stefan Dziarski, a private equity professional at Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH, to the
Supervisory Board.

Reinhard Gorenflos, a partner in Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd., was appointed to the
Supervisory Board by a decision of Munich Local Court on September 5, 2008. He suc-
ceeded Heinz-Joachim Neubirger, who resigned as of that same date. Christoph Rottele,
Portfolio Director at Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH, was appointed to the Supervi-
sory Board by Munich Local Court, effective November 3, 2008. He succeeded Katrin Wehr-
Seiter, who had resigned her position as of November 2.

In October 2008, Johannes Peter Huth, a partner and Head of Europe at Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co. Ltd., was elected Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board and Co-Chairman
of the Presiding Committee by a vote conducted by correspondence. He succeeds in that
capacity Lord Clive Hollick, a partner in Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd., who resigned
those offices as of September 30, 2008 but who remains a member of the Supervisory
Board and of the Presiding Committee. Lord Clive Hollick also resigned from his seat on the
Compensation Committee as of September, and was succeeded by Mr. Huth.

Changes in Membership of the Executive Board. Lothar Lanz resigned from his position as
a member of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of the end of the annual
shareholders’' meeting on June 10, 2008. The Supervisory Board appointed Axel Salzmann
as a member of the Executive Board as of May 1, 2008. Mr. Salzmann took office as Chief
Financial Officer on June 11. Andreas Bartl was appointed to the Executive Board of ProS-
iebenSat.1 Media AG as of June 17, 2008, and assumed responsibility for the newly created
Board position for German Free TV. Klaus-Peter Schulz was appointed to the Executive
Board as of September 1, 2008. As the successor of Peter Christmann, who had resigned
from the Board as of June 30, Mr. Schulz is in charge of Sales and Marketing.

A further change in the Executive Board took place as of the end of the financial year. Effec-
tive December 31, 2008, Guillaume de Posch resigned as a member of the Executive Board
and CEO of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. Effective March 1, 2009, the Supervisory Board ap-



pointed Thomas Ebeling a member of the Executive Board and CEO. The Supervisory Board
appointed Axel Salzmann as acting CEO of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for the period from
January 1through February 28, 2009.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to thank all the employees of the

ProSiebenSat.1 Group, as well as the Executive Board, for their achievements and their
personal dedication.

Unterféhring, March 2009

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Chairman

Report of the Supervisory Board



Members of the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

Chairman

Partner, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Permira)
Member and Chairman of the Supervisory Board
since March 2007

Vice-Chairman
Partner and Head of Europe,
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (KKR)
Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007,
Vice-Chairman since October 2008

Partner, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.
Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007,
Vice-Chairman until September 2008

Investment Advisor, Permira Advisors LLP
Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007

Consultant/Company Director
Member of the Supervisory Board since May 2004

Private Equity Professional,
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH
Member of the Supervisory Board since June 2008

Director, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.
Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007

Partner, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.
Member of the Supervisory Board since September 2008

Partner, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH
Member of the Supervisory Board
since March 2007

President International, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.
Member of the Supervisory Board
since July 2007

Portfolio Director, Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH
Member of the Supervisory Board
since November 2008

Director, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd.
Member of the Supervisory Board since June 2008

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer, MGM Holdings, Inc.
Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007

CEO, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V.
Member of the Supervisory Board since July 2007

German Certified Public Accountant and Attorney at Law,
Gleiss Lutz Hootz Hirsch Partnerschaftsgesellschaft von
Rechtsanwaélten, Steuerberatern

Member of the Supervisory Board since March 2007

COMMITTEE MEMBERS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2008

PRESIDING COMMITTEE:
Go6tz Mduser (Co-Chairman), Johannes Peter Huth (Co-Chairman),
Robin Bell-Jones, Philipp Freise, Lord Clive Hollick, Christoph Réttele

AUDIT AND FINANCE COMMITTEE:
Prof. Dr. Harald Wiedmann (Chairman and Financial Expert),
GOtz Mauser, Robin Bell-Jones, Philipp Freise, Reinhard Gorenflos

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE:
Gotz Mauser (Chairman), Johannes Peter Huth, Greg Dyke, Adrianus Johannes Swartjes

>See the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information about
the composition of the Supervisory Board in 2008 and their various other appointments, p. 137.
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on Management and
Controlling of the
Company can be found
in the Group Management
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Proposed Allocation of Profits

At the annual shareholders’' meeting, the Executive Board of the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
will recommend a minimum dividend payment of EUR 0.02 per preferred share. Dividend
payment for registered shares of common stock is omitted. This is equivalent to a total
distribution of EUR 2.2 million.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance refers to the way in which a company is managed and supervised.
The German Corporate Governance Code has drawn upon nationally and internationally rec-
ognized standards for managing and overseeing companies listed on the stock exchange.
The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are staunch advo-
cates of the German Corporate Governance Code. Good, transparent corporate governance
ensures responsible management and oversight of the Company, with a focus on adding
value. It encourages confidence in the ProSiebenSat.1 Group among financial markets, busi-
ness partners and employees, as well as the public at large.

GOVERNING BODIES - MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT STRUCTURES AT
PROSIEBENSAT.1 MEDIA AG

Shareholders and annual meeting: The shareholders exercise their rights of joint admin-
istration and oversight at the annual shareholders’ meeting. Each share of common stock
confers one vote at the shareholders’ meeting. Except as mandatorily prescribed by law,
shares of preferred stock do not carry voting rights. However, under Article 19 of the Ar-
ticles of Incorporation of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, they carry preferential rights in any
distribution of profits, as well as an entitlement to a higher dividend.

Well before the date of the event, the invitation to the meeting notifies shareholders about
the various agenda items and the resolutions that the Executive Board and Supervisory
Board will be submitting for approval. The ProSiebenSat.1 Web site includes special pages
for the annual shareholders' meeting, containing the agenda as well as important informa-
tion about organizational and legal matters concerning all aspects of the meeting, such as
participation and dividends. Following the meeting, the remarks of the CEO and the results
of votes can also be downloaded from the site.

Executive Board and Supervisory Board: As a German stock corporation, ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG has a dual management system, meaning that its managing and supervisory bod-
ies are clearly separated “.. The Company’'s managing body is its Executive Board, which
is overseen and advised by the Supervisory Board. The Executive Board and Supervisory
Board work together closely for the Company's benefit. In fiscal 2008, the Executive Board
had five members initially, and later six. Under the articles of incorporation, the Supervi-
sory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has 15 members.

Good management of a company requires trusting and efficient cooperation between the
Executive Board and Supervisory Board. Here open communication is especially important.
The Executive Board informs the Supervisory Board regularly, promptly and comprehen-
sively on all relevant matters of strategy, planning, business performance, net assets and
liabilities, financial position, profit or loss, and risk management. All transactions and deci-
sions that are of fundamental importance to the Corporation are handled in close coordi-
nation with the Supervisory Board. Cooperation between these boards is governed by the
Executive Board's rules of procedure. The requirements imposed by these bylaws on the Ex-
ecutive Board conform to the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code, and

Corporate Governance Report



For further information in particular include binding provisions regarding the Executive Board's obligations to inform

on cooperation between
the Executive Board and
Supervisory Board, p. 35

and report to the Supervisory Board. The Executive Board's rules of procedure also specify
that major business transactions are subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board

Each year, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board issue a Declaration of Compliance
in which they state that the recommendations of the current version of the German Cor-
porate Governance Code have been adopted, and explain any exceptions. The compliance
officer of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is in charge of implementing the principles of corporate
governance, monitoring compliance with the requirements of law, and documenting these
processes. The officer's duties also include keeping up to date on changes in the laws, and
tracking the relevant public discussions.

TRANSPARENCY = COMMUNICATION WITH THE CAPITAL MARKET, AND REPORTING
PRINCIPLES

Fair Disclosure: We aim to strengthen confidence among shareholders and lenders, as
well as the interested public, through openness and transparency. For that reason, we
report regularly on important business developments and changes in the Company. In
general, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG provides this information simultaneously to all share-
holders, media representatives, and the interested public. In so doing, so as to take due
account of the international interest in our Company, we release this information in Eng-
lish as well as in German. To ensure fair communication and prompt disclosure both in
Germany and in other countries, the Company particularly makes use of the Internet as a
channel for communication.

All relevant corporate information is published and kept available for extended periods
at our Web site, www.prosiebensatl.com. Annual reports, interim reports, current stock
price charts, analyses and presentations are available for download there anytime. The
Corporate Governance section of the Web site offers an up-to-date overview of ProS-
iebenSat.1 Media AG's own implementation of the Corporate Governance Code, along with
an archive of the management’s Declarations of Compliance from past years and the
Company'’s articles of incorporation.

Ad hoc publicity: Four times a year, as part of the Company’s annual and quarterly finan-
cial reporting, management discusses the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's business performance,
its financial position and its current results of operations. In keeping with the require-
ments of law, all matters potentially relating to insider transactions are also publicized
in ad hoc disclosures as they occur, and are made available immediately on the Internet.
A list of all ad hoc press releases for a given year is available on the Company's Web site
in the “Annual Document"” required under Section 10 of Germany's Securities Prospectus
Act (Wertpapierprospektgesetz).

Financial calendar: A financial calendar publishes the release dates of financial reports
well in advance, along with other important dates, such as the date of the annual general
meeting. The calendar is available at the ProSiebenSat.1 Web site, and is also reproduced
in this annual report.

Reports of equity holdings and directors’ dealings disclosures: Reports of equity
holdings under Sections 21 and 25 of Germany's Securities Trading Act (WpHG) are re-
leased as soon as they are received. Current information in this connection is available at
http://www.prosiebensatl.com/investor_relations/dokument/.



Directors' dealings disclosures under Section 15a of the Securities Trading Act are also

published on the Internet immediately after receipt. During the year, management per-

sonnel and parties related to them reported to ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in compliance
with Sec.15a of the German Securities Trading Act, the following transactions in Company

stock or financial instruments relating to Company stock:

Directors' Dealings Announcement

Last name,
first name

Guillaume de Posch
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Susanne Lanz
Silke Christmann
Silke Christmann
Verena Mohaupt
Silke Christmann
Silke Christmann
Silke Christmann
Silke Christmann
Silke Christmann

Silke Christmann

Prof. Dr.
Harald Wiedmann

Patrick Tillieux
Verena Mohaupt
Verena Mohaupt
Verena Mohaupt
Gregory Dyke

Thomas Wagner

Verena Mohaupt
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux
Patrick Tillieux

Dr. Marcus Englert

Purchase/ Date/ Total amount
Reason for notice Sale Place Units Price of transaction
Own management duties Purchase March 5, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 5,000 14.14356€ 70,717.80€
Own management duties Purchase March 13, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 30,000 13.33€ 399,959.00€
Own management duties Purchase March 17, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 11,500 12.63€ 145,249€
Own management duties Purchase March 18, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 15,000 12.75€ 191,292€
Own management duties Purchase March 19, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 10,500 12.95€ 135,998€
Own management duties Purchase March 20, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 3,000 13.00€ 39,000€
Own management duties Purchase April 25, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 10,000 10.08€ 100,791.00€
Related to management Purchase April 25, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 2,000 10.05€ 20,100.00€
Related to management Purchase April 28, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 1,592 9.83€ 15,649.36€
Related to management Purchase April 28, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 908 9.85€ 8,943.80€
Related to management Purchase April 28, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 5,000 9.99€ 49,950.00€
Related to management Purchase April 30, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 884 10.00€ 8,840.00€
Related to management Purchase April 30, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 616 9.99€ 6,153.84€
Related to management Purchase June 11, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 2,600 7.55€ 19,630€
Related to management Purchase June 13, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 705 7.37€ 5,195.85€
Related to management Purchase June 13, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 595 7.38€ 4,391.10€
Related to management Purchase June 19, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 2,100 6.60€ 13,860,00€
Own management duties Purchase June 25, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 5,000 6.12€ 30,600€
Own management duties Purchase June 25, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 20,000 6.25€ 124,995€
Related to management Purchase June 27, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 6,547 6.17€ 40,394.99€
Related to management Purchase June 27, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 200 6.16€ 1,232.00€
Related to management Purchase June 27, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 1,253 6.15€ 7,705.95€
Own management duties Purchase October 7,2008, London 10,000 2.82£ 28,463.80£
Notice because of own Purchase November 17, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 7,000 1.67€ 11,800€
management duties as Other
Member of Management
Related to management Sale December 1, 2008, Xetra/Frankfurt 13,000 1.50€ 19,534.56€
Own management duties Purchase December 3, 2008, Frankfurt 20,000 1.40€ 28,000€
Own management duties Purchase December 4, 2008, Frankfurt 30,000 1.39€ 41,809.30€
Own management duties Sale December 4, 2008, Frankfurt 10,000 1.50€ 15,000€
Own management duties Sale December 10, 2008, Frankfurt 40,000 1.485€ 59,400€
Own management duties Sale December 11, 2008, Frankfurt 50,000 1.502€ 75,100€
Own management duties Purchase December 12, 2008, Frankfurt 100,000 1.4925€ 149,250€
Own management duties Purchase December 18, 2008, Frankfurt 17,000 1.44€ 24,480€

Corporate Governance Report
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Shareholdings of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board: As of December 31, 2008,
members of the Executive Board held a total of 185,000 shares of preferred stock of ProS-
iebenSat.1 Media AG, and a total of 1,530,000 options under the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
stock option plan (the Long-Term Incentive Plan), each of which options confers the right
to purchase one share of preferred stock of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. As of December 31,
2008, members of the Supervisory Board held 17,500 shares of preferred stock of ProS-
iebenSat.1 Media AG. Thus as of December 31, 2008, the combined holdings of all members
of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board did not exceed 1 percent of the outstanding
shares, nor did the holdings of any single member of either board exceed that figure

Reporting principles: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's financial reporting conforms to IFRS
(International Financial Reporting Standards). The annual financial statements of ProS-
iebenSat.1 Media AG, as the Group's parent company, are prepared under the accounting
principles of the German Commercial Code (HGB). Both sets of financial statements are
audited and certified by independent accounting and auditing firms.

COMPENSATION

The compensation report includes information about the compensation of the Executive
Board and Supervisory Board as required by the German Commercial Code (HGB), supple-
mented by the German Act on Disclosure of Executive Board Compensation (VorstOG). It
also takes account of the recommendations of the German Corporate Governance Code.

COMPENSATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

Structure of compensation of the Executive Board. In addition to their functions as direc-
tors and officers of the Company, the members of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG also have contractual relationships with the Company. The Supervisory Board
is responsible for signing the employment agreements with the members of the Executive
Board. The employment agreements between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the members of
its Executive Board have a maximum term of five years. These contracts establish the Board
members' rights and duties, including their compensation.

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG's compensation system for the members of the Executive Board
includes both fixed and variable components. It is set up in such a way that the compensa-
tion paid to each Board member is appropriate to their own area of work and responsibility,
and is also competitive with respect to the compensation paid to senior executives of other
companies in Germany and internationally. It is based on the recommendations of the Ger-
man Corporate Governance Code regarding results-based compensation, and is designed to
ensure that the Company will remain competitive, by providing appropriate incentives and
motivation for top-quality international executives. Last financial year, the compensation
paid by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to the members of its Executive Board had the following
components:

Under their employment contracts, all Executive Board members receive a fixed base
salary, paid monthly, that is determined with reference to the individual member's area
of responsibilities.

In addition to this base component, each member also receives a performance-based
variable component in the form of an annual bonus. The specific terms of this annual bo-
nus vary among the contracts of the individual board members. One portion of the bonus
is decided by the Supervisory Board, and depends on the achievement of predefined per-
formance targets composed of Group EBITDA, the Group net debt, and personal goals.

Additionally, the members of the Executive Board also participate in a stock option plan
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG (the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan), which has replaced the



stock option plan introduced in 2005. The change has no effect on outstanding stock
options from the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Thus the Company has created an ad-
ditional compensation component, focused on the Company's long-term success, so as
to cultivate shareholder value. Each stock option under the LTIP entitles the holder to
buy one share of ProSiebenSat.1 preferred stock. Stock options under LTIP 2005 (2006
Cycle) were not eligible for exercise until August 2008, assuming all other requirements
for exercise were met; stock options under LTIP 2008 cannot be exercised until July 2010
at the earliest. As of December 31, 2008, members of the Executive Board held 665,000
stock options from the 2006 Cycle and 865,000 stock options from the 2008 Cycle. No
stock options were exercised in 2008.

Furthermore, the Company has signed pension agreements with most members of the
Executive Board, under which those members are entitled to payment of a retirement pen-
sion if they reach age 60 and leave the Company’'s employ after the contractual vesting
period has elapsed.

Finally, the members of the Executive Board receive other compensation in the form of
noncash perquisites, including company cars, insurance coverage, and coverage of reloca-
tion expenses if they must relocate.

The Company has extended neither loans nor guarantees or warranties to the members
of the Executive Board. The Notes to the consolidated financial statements include further
information about the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option plan.

Individualized reporting of Executive Board compensation. A resolution of the sharehold-
ers' meeting on August 2, 2006, exempted the Company for a term of five years from the
statutory obligation to disclose the compensation of the individual members of the Execu-
tive Board in the parent-company and consolidated financial statements, on the basis of the
information specified in Section 285 No. 9 a) Sentences 5 through 9 and Section 314 (1) No.
6 a) Sentences 5 through 9 of the German Commercial Code (HGB). However, the Executive
Board and the Supervisory Board have decided to voluntarily disclose the compensation
paid by the Company to the individual members of the Executive Board last financial year.
The following table gives an individualized breakdown of this compensation.

Other compen-
Annual salary Total sation Pensions

Accrued Annual payment

Fixed 2007 bonus pension entitlement at

component  (paid 2008) Perquisites® provision™ 12/31/2008®

Guillaume de Posch 1,000.0 1,200.0 2,200.0 7.5 705.9 78.0
Patrick Tillieux 990.0 414.0 1,404.0 63.0 0 0
Axel Salzmann ® 433.3 0 433.3 4.9 143 7.5
Andreas Bartl @ 350.8 0 350.8 8.0 135 6.0
Dr. Marcus Englert 400.0 200.0 600.0 10.2 85.5 16.6
Klaus-Peter Schulz @ 200.0 0 200.0 2.6 16.6 3.2
Lothar Lanz “ 345.0 420.0 765.0 9.6 2,078.9 139.6
Peter Christmann © 325.0 600.0 925.0 42.9 364.8 58.2
Total 4,044.1 2,834.0 6,878.1 148.8 3,279.5 309.1

(1) 8-month basis / member of the Executive Board since May 2008. CFO since June 2008. (2) 7-month basis / mem-
ber of the Executive Board since June 2008. (3) 4-month basis / member of the Executive Board since September 2008.
(4) Member of the Executive Board until June 2008. (5) 6-month basis / member of the Executive Board until June 2008.
(6) Includes noncash benefits from use of company car, insurance, and relocation grants if the individual must relocate. (7)
Not including entitlements from the individual's own additional payments (as of December 31, 2008). (8) Upon retirement,
not including entitlements from the individual's own additional payments (as of December 31, 2008).

Compensation Report



COMPENSATION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
Structure of compensation of the Supervisory Board. The members of the Supervisory
Board receive a fixed compensation. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board each receive twice the amount of this fixed base figure. Members of the Supervi-
sory Board's committees are compensated with a separate meeting honorarium, payable
for participating at each committee meeting. Committee chairs receive twice the standard
meeting honorarium. The compensation of the Supervisory Board is set in the Articles of
Incorporation of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

GOtz Mauser

Johannes Peter Huth @
Robin Bell-Jones

Gregory Dyke

Stefan Dziarski @

Philipp Freise

Reinhard Gorenflos @

Lord Clive Hollick ®

Thomas Krenz

Marinus Maria Petrus van Lent
Christoph Rottele @

Silke Scheiber @

Harry Evans Sloan

Adrianus Johannes Swartjes
Prof. Dr. Harald Wiedmann
Dr. Mathias Dépfner &
Christian Nienhaus
Heinz-Joachim Neubirger ©
Katrin Wehr-Seiter @

Total

Fixed base
compensation

200.0
125.0
100.0
100.0
55.8
100.0
31.8
175.0
100.0
100.0
16.0
55.8
100.0
100.0
100.0
4.1
4.1
59.5
84.0

1,611.1

Meeting honoraria
Presiding Committee

18.0
3.0
9.0

0
0

7.5

52.5

Meeting honoraria Audit
and Finance Committee

6.0
0

9.0

7.5

15

7.5
0

49.5

Meeting honoraria Com-
pensation Committee

9.0
3.0
0

4.5

0

22.5

Total
233.0

131.0
118.0

104.5

115.0

33.3
190.0
100.0

100.0

55.8
100.0
104.5
118.0
4.1
4.1
67.0

84.0

1,735.6

(1) Lord Clive Hollick was Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board until September. He was succeeded by Johannes Peter Huth. (2) Member of the
Supervisory Board since June 2008. (3) Member of the Supervisory Board since September 2008. (4) Member of the Supervisory Board since
November 2008. (5) Member of the Supervisory Board until January 2008. (6) Member of the Supervisory Board until August 2008. (7) Member
of the Supervisory Board until November 2008.

Members of the Supervisory Board received no remuneration or other consideration for

personal services, especially consulting and mediation services, during fiscal 2008.



DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD AND SUPERVISORY
BOARD OF PROSIEBENSAT.1 MEDIA AG IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 161 OF THE
GERMAN STOCK CORPORATIONS ACT (AKTG)

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board declare that with the following exceptions,
during fiscal 2008 ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG complied, and will continue to comply, with the
recommendations of the Government Commission on the German Corporate Governance
Code in the version of June 14, 2007, and, as of its date of validity, the version of June 6,
2008:

The Executive Board of the Company has not appointed a proxy to exercise the sharehold-
ers' voting rights as directed (Item 2.3.3). There is no need for such a proxy at present
because of the current shareholder structure and the limited number of voting share-
holders.

The D&O insurance policies the Company has taken out for the Executive Board and the
Supervisory Board do not provide for a deductible (Item 3.8), since agreeing to a deduct-
ible would not materially reduce the insurance premiums. Furthermore, by virtue of their
offices, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board are already acting responsibly and
in the Company's best interest. They do not regard a deductible as an effective way of
enhancing board members' motivation or sense of responsibility.

The stock option plan first approved at the annual shareholders' meeting in May 2005,
as part of the authorization to acquire treasury stock, and most recently renewed by
resolution of the meeting of June 2008, provides only for incentive targets relating to
the trading price of the Company's stock. Additional comparison parameters relating to
corporate key figures (Item 4.2.3) were not included, since due to the particular condi-
tions of the German TV advertising market, no comparable German or foreign companies
can be identified.

Under an amendment made to the articles of incorporation by a resolution of the share-
holders' meeting on July 17, 2007, members of the Supervisory Board don’t receive a
results-based component of their compensation (Item 5.4.7). The variable component of
compensation 2007, has been replaced by a higher fixed compensation. The Company be-
lieves a fair fixed compensation is better suited to the function of the Supervisory Board,
which is to provide oversight irrespective of profit to the Company.

Subject to the exceptions stated above, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG intends in the future to
continue complying with the recommendations of the Government Commission on the Ger-
man Corporate Governance Code in the version of June 6, 2008.

March 2009

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

Declaration of Compliance



> The following Group Management Report presents the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group's business situation, major events, and the
Group's expected future development in terms of operations
and strategy.

The Group Management Report for fiscal 2008 is the first to
include the SBS Broadcasting Group, acquired in July 2007,
for the full year.
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A presence in Europe
with strong brands

- See inside cover for
more information

Business Operations and Business Conditions

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND GROUP STRUCTURE

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group - Business activities and market position. The ProSiebenSat.1
Group is one of Europe’s leading media corporations. The Group's programming offers au-
diences first-class entertainment and up-to-date information on every screen and every
platform.

Its core business is free TV, financed through advertising. With its station brands Sat.1,
ProSieben, kabel eins and N24, ProSiebenSat.1is the largest commercial TV corporation in
Germany. The Group also has strong market positions in free TV in other countries, such
as the Netherlands (Veronica, Net 5 and SBS 6), Hungary (TV 2), and Sweden (Kanal 5 and
Kanal 9). Reaching more than 78 million TV households, ProSiebenSat.1is the second-larg-
est broadcasting group in Europe. In addition to classic distribution channels like TV and
radio, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group also relies on innovative technologies and new media. On-
line digital services are among the business operations that ProSiebenSat.1 has added to its
portfolio in order to diversify its sources of income.

Markets, business activities and competitive position of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

g GERMAN-SPEAKING EUROPE

free TV company in Germany
online network in Germany
online marketer in Germany
provider of mobile TV in Germany
provider of video on demand in
Germany

NORTHERN EUROPE
free TV company in Norway
free TV company in Sweden
and Denmark

NETHERLANDS/BELGIUM
free TV company
TV print magazine

«
EUROPE

Radio network ““"
in Europe

w

(" free TV company in Hungary
=

%

free TV company in Romania

LEGAL AND ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Organizational structure - Business units and segments. In June 2007, ProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG acquired all of the SBS Broadcasting Group (SBS). As part of the first consolidation
of SBS (July 3, 2007), the segment structure of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group was revised to
better address the Group's expanded international business operations. In addition to the
Free TV in German-Speaking Europe and Free TV International segments, a Diversification
segment was set up. In simplified terms, the Group’s reporting structure looks as follows:

The four German stations (Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24) are consolidated in the
Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment. This segment also includes ProSiebenSat.1
Produktion, the Sat.1 regional companies, the marketing company SevenOne Media, and
the Group's subsidiaries in Austria (PULS 4 among them) and Switzerland.

The commercial TV stations in the Benelux countries (Netherlands, Belgium), Northern
Europe (Denmark, Finland, Norway, Sweden) and the CEE region (Bulgaria, Hungary, Ro-
mania) are consolidated in the Free TV International segment.



Compensation
Report, p. 28

Changes in scope of

consolidation, major or-

ganizational measures,
Group locations - See
p. 47 and Consolidated
Notes, p. 96

International diversification activities, such as radio and print, are reported together
with other established diversification operations (online, basic pay TV, call TV, video on
demand, licensing/merchandising) under the Diversification segment.

Strategic structure: Business units and segments of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

BUSINESS UNIT Free TV Diversification
Free TVin Free TV
SEGMENT German-Speaking International Diversification
Europe
Germany, Netherlands, Germany, Austria, Switzerland
REGION Austria, Belgium Netherlands, Belgium
Switzerland Northern Europe Northern Europe
CEE CEE

Legal structure of the Group. ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is the holding company for the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group. It is a stock corporation, and is based in Germany. Consequently
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is subject to German law, and particularly the German laws gov-
erning corporations and securities, employee co-determination, and the capital markets. It
is bound by the German Corporate Governance Code.

Management and oversight: As required by German corporate law, ProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG has a dual management system characterized by a strict separation of persons
between its managing body and its oversight body. The Company is managed by the Ex-
ecutive Board. The Supervisory Board supervises and advises the Executive Board in
the latter's management of the Company's business. For that reason, the Supervisory
Board is directly involved in all corporate decisions of major importance. The basic rules
for managing ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are set forth in its articles of incorporation. The
Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are presented
in the section entitled “The Executive Board and Supervisory Board Report,” starting on
page 14. That section also includes extensive information on how the two boards work
together, as well as their compensation in fiscal 2008. The Notes to the consolidated
financial statements, which begin on page 94, provide further information, including the
basic principles of compensation

Management and corporate structure: This European media group, headquartered in
the Munich suburb of Unterféhring, is managed centrally. As the Group's ultimate parent
company, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG manages key functions that affect multiple segments,
such as license purchases, accounting, controlling, corporate planning, human resources,
finance, investor relations, legal affairs and corporate communications. At the same time,
the individual subsidiaries in their various countries have a large degree of autonomy.
With this arrangement, decisions can be made quickly, and the subsidiaries can respond
flexibly to the needs of their target audiences and markets.

Significant direct subsidiaries of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG include German Free TV Holding
and ProSiebenSat.1 Erste und Zweite SBS Holding GmbH. German Free TV Holding GmbH,
headquartered in the Munich suburb of Unterféhring, pools the Group's companies that
conduct free TV operations in Germany, Austria and Switzerland. These companies in-
clude not only the stations Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24 in Germany, but also SAT.1
Privatrundfunk und Programmgesellschaft mbH Osterreich and SAT.1 Schweiz AG. ProS-
iebenSat.1 Erste und Zweite SBS Holding GmbH, likewise headquartered in Unterféhring,
combines the international companies of the former SBS Broadcasting Group

Business Operations and Conditions



Principal subsidiaries and equity holdings of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

SevenOne Brands
GmbH

SevenOne | SevenOne
Media«“Interactive
GmbH | GmbH

SevenOne | SevenOne
Media = Media
(Schweiz) = Austria
AG | GmbH

Puls 4
TV GmbH

Risk report, p. 70
Employment, p. 62

For definition of free
cash flow, see Cash
Flow Statement, p. 56

ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft

German Free TV P7S1 Erste P7S1Zweite | | ProSiebenSat.1 9Live ProSieben MM Merchan-

Holding SBS Holding SBS Holding Produktion Fernsehen Digital Media dising Media
GmbH GmbH GmbH GmbH GmbH GmbH Holding GmbH

Sat.1 Satelliten P7S1Broadcasting S.a.r.| Fem SevenOne Starwatch

Fernsehen Media Intermedia Music

GmbH GmbH GmbH GmbH

ProSieben SBS Broadcasting MAGIC Inter- wer-

Television Holding I B.V. net Holding weiss-was

GmbH GmbH GmbH

kabel eins

Fernsehen wetter.com

GmbH AG

N24 Gesell- lokalisten

schaft fur media

Nachrichten GmbH

und Zeitge-

schehen mbH

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT, GOALS, STRATEGY

The Executive Board manages the Company on the basis of a number of performance indi-
cators. The management system includes both financial key figures and non-financial per-
formance indicators that reflect how well the Group and its operations are doing. In addition
to internal key figures, for purposes of guidance and planning the system also regularly
consults external indicators, such as current figures on the economy. The Executive Board
furthermore guides its decisions by the corporate strategy of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group.

THE INTERNAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's internal management system has primarily the following com-
ponents:

A guidance system based on key figures

A coordinated management and planning system

Ongoing risk and chance management

Management by objectives at all levels of the Company

Monthly reporting to the Supervisory Board and regular meetings of
the Supervisory Board.

A guidance system based on key figures. The central financial figures for management are
recurring EBITDA, recurring EBITDA margin, and free cash flow. Recurring EBITDA is EBIT-
DA - earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization - after adjustment for
one-time effects. The recurring EBITDA margin is the ratio between recurring EBITDA and
revenues. These key figures make possible a meaningful assessment of operating perfor-
mance, and simplify profitability comparisons among companies internationally, since they
factor out the influence of national taxes and of depreciation and amortization. For that
reason, they are an important indicator in assessing the profitability of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group and its segments. Free cash flow shows the surplus cash generated during a period,
and can be interpreted as a financial surplus that is available to service equity and debt



See p. 41 for audience
share performance;

p. 66 for more informa-
tion on non-financial
performance indicators

Risk Report, p. 70

A further important management parameter is the ratio of net debt to recurring EBITDA
(leverage), which the ProSiebenSat.1 Group uses in long-term financial planning.

Along with purely financial parameters, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has also defined per-
formance figures that cannot be measured directly in financial terms. These particularly
include the free TV stations’ audience shares. These shares are analyzed constantly as a
part of early risk detection, and at the same time serve as performance indicators of the
stations’ programming quality and brand value in the eyes of the advertising industry. In
the Diversification unit, important parameters include the number of unique users.

A coordinated planning and management system. Planning and management are closely
interrelated. Plans are prepared on the basis of the Company's strategic and operating
goals; as already explained, Group-wide planning processes focus on recurring EBITDA,
recurring EBITDA margin, and free cash flow. Earnings plans include both long-term corpo-
rate planning and operational planning. The individual planning processes are coordinated
systematically and adopted over time. This is a matter of fundamental importance for ef-
fective management of the defined target figures, but also for the Group-wide detection of
risks and opportunities:

Five-year plan on annual basis (long-term corporate plan): Each year the ProSiebenSat.1
Group sets its long-term goals for the upcoming five-year period. The five-year plan is ad-
opted by the Executive Board and Supervisory Board; responsibility lies with Controlling
and Corporate Planning. The long-term plan particularly includes planning for volumes
and prices (revenues), programming (license purchases) and cost and capital expenditure
planning, along with the resulting calculation of free cash flow.

Annual operational planning (budgeting): The starting point for the five-year plan is the
operational plan (budget plan), which maps out the month-by-month budget for the com-
ing financial year for all Group companies and the Group as a whole. It is drawn up at the
end of each financial year.

Earnings forecasts during the year: Earnings forecasts over the course of the year
present and analyze the expected development of revenues and earnings for the year as
a whole in comparison to the budget. These reports provide an additional management
tool, since they help management take quick action to counteract any negative changes.

Reporting: Any potential risks are reported by the decentralized risk managers to the
Group Risk and Compliance Officer as part of the quarterly reporting process

Business Operations and Conditions



Positioning as a
“content powerhouse"
in Europe

Outlook, p. 79

Information on risks
and opportunities re-
sulting from changes in
environment, p. 72, and
p. 80 of Outlook

Information on stock
performance, p. 64

PROSIEBENSAT.1 GROUP STRATEGY

Our slogan, “the power of television,” clearly states both our accomplishments and our as-
pirations. ProSiebenSat.1 offers first-class entertainment and up-to-the-minute information
- whenever the consumer wants them, and wherever the consumer goes. The ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group has set itself the following strategic objectives

Strategic goal of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Q Concentration on core business in free TV / Content development:

The most important strategic goal is growth, through a focus on the Group's core line of
business: commercial television. Attractive content is the foundation of this strategy. High-
qguality programming and strong TV brands provide a further foundation for expanding the
value chain by way of geographic and cross-media diversification.

@ piversification / Expansion in new media:

By distributing our programming on all available media platforms throughout Europe, we will
strengthen our presence in the world of digital media, and at the same time tap additional
sources of revenue that do not depend on the TV advertising market. Putting content and
brands to work in multiple ways also enables the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to make substantially
more efficient use of its resources, and to realize synergies.

e Creating a leading operations platform:
The change to a technology infrastructure that is tapeless, and thus for the first time fully dig-
ital, will enable us to exploit TV content throughout Europe across all distribution channels.

BUSINESS CONDITIONS AND OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

LEGAL ENVIRONMENT

Ownership structure of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

The Lavena Holding companies, which are controlled by funds advised by Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co. L.P. (KKR) and Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Permira), are the major-
ity shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, with 88.0 percent of the Company's voting
common stock and 25.3 percent of the non-voting preferred stock. This is equivalent to
56.7 percent of the Company's share capital. The Dutch media corporation Telegraaf Media
Groep N.V. (TMG) holds 12.0 percent of the voting common stock, equivalent to 6.0 percent
of the share capital. The remaining roughly 74.7 percent of the preferred stock, equivalent
to approximately 37.3 percent of the share capital, is in free float

Changes in ownership structure during fiscal 2008. The ownership structure of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG changed as follows during the year:

Axel Springer AG relinquishes ownership interest. At the beginning of fiscal 2008, Axel
Springer AG sold its stake in ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to Lavena Holding 5 GmbH.

TMG a new shareholder. At the end of September, acting through a wholly owned sub-
sidiary, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. acquired 12.0 percent of the voting common stock of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG from Lavena Holding 5 GmbH.



Consolidated Notes,
p. 14

Shareholder structure of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of December 31,2008

Lavena Holding 4 GmbH Telegraaf Split of capital stock
(KKR/Permira) Media Groep

100% 6.0% Capital Stock
12.0% Common Stock

Lavena Holding 5 Free float*
GmbH

0.3% Preferred Stock 56.7

6.0

37.3

56.7 % Capital Stock
88.0% Common Stock 37.3% Capital Stock
25.0% Preferred Stock 74.7% Preferred Stock

M Lavena Holding 4 GmbH
M Telegraaf Media Groep
Free float*

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
*thereof treasury stock: 1.0 percent of preferred shares; respectively 0.5 percent of capital stock.
Composition of subscribed capital. The share capital of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG comes to
EUR 218,797,200, divided into 109,398,600 no-par registered shares of common stock and
109,398,600 no-par bearer shares of non-voting preferred stock. There are no shares that
carry special rights and confer control

Restrictions on transfer of stock. Under Article 5 (4) of the articles of incorporation, the
registered common shares of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock may be transferred only with
the Company's consent, which is to be decided upon by the Executive Board. The Board
must give that consent unless the transfer would establish a stake in the Company that
would exceed the bounds prescribed by media regulations. There are no consent require-
ments for transfers of the bearer shares of non-voting preferred stock.

Information under Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code and Ex-
planations under Sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the German Stock Corporations Act
The voting stock issued by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is not traded on an organized market
within the meaning of Section 2 (7) of the German Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act
(WpUG). Only bearer shares of the Company’s non-voting preferred stock are listed for
trading in the regulated Prime Standard segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. The
company must meet additional follow-up obligations to maintain this listing. The registered
shares of the voting common stock of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are not listed for trading
on any stock exchange. Therefore there is no requirement for the parent-company or con-
solidated management reports of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to provide information under
Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code, or for the Executive Board to
provide a report explaining this information, pursuant to Sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the
German Stock Corporations Act.

Report on relations with affiliated companies

In compliance with Section 312 of the German Stock Corporations Act (AktG), the Executive
Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has prepared a report on relationships with affiliated enter-
prises for fiscal 2008, which concludes with the following statement by the Executive Board:

Because Lavena Holding 5 GmbH, of Munich, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena Holding
4 GmbH, of Munich, which inits turnis a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena Holding 1 GmbH,
of Munich, which in its turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 3 S.ar.l., of Luxembourg,
which inits turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 2 S.ar.l., of Luxembourg, which in its
turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 1S.a r.l., of Luxembourg, ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG is deemed a dependent subsidiary of Lavena 1S.ar.l., and is therefore obligated under
Section 312 AktG to issue a report on the relationships between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
and Lavena 1S.ar.l. and its affiliated companies. In the year under review, ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG did not engage in any legal transactions with third parties at the direction of or
in the interest of Lavena 1S.a.r.l. or its affiliated companies. No actions subject to report-

Business Operations and Conditions



ing under Section 312 AktG were either performed or omitted. For every legal transaction
entered into between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and its subsidiaries during the year under
review, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG contractually promised appropriate compensation within
the meaning of Section 312 AktG and received performance in return for such compensation
insofar as performance was due during the year under review.

ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

Overall economic environment. The crisis in the financial markets that began in 2007 with the
collapse of the subprime mortgage market in the United States, and that peaked in Septem-
ber 2008 with the insolvency of Lehman Brothers, the fourth-largest American investment
bank, has now spread to the entire world economy. After a strong start, the economy in the
Euro zone (EZ15) cooled steadily over the rest of the year, and had lost significant momen-
tum by year's end. Because of its heavy export orientation, Germany was hit especially hard.
After a first quarter dominated by exceptional effects the economy continued to deteriorate
as the year wore on. The last three months of 2008, with a minus of more than two percent,
reflect the scope of the crisis. Preliminary results indicate that in real terms, the German
economy grew 1.3 percent overall during 2008 - significantly less than in the previous two
years. Growth was driven by gross investment and government consumption, while foreign
trade was no longer the growth driver. Although income was up and employment figures were
positive for the year, consumer spending also stagnated. High inflation - 2.6 percent on aver-
age for the year - depressed consumer sentiment. Although inflation declined significantly at
year's end, warning signals from the economy and the job market increased.

Development of the advertising market. The intensified crisis in the international financial
markets, and its repercussions for the real economy, were also reflected in the development of
TV advertising spends during 2008. In the fourth quarter, growth rates in the ProSiebenSat.1
Group's TV advertising markets in Northern, Eastern and Central Europe slowed significantly,
or even moved into negative territory. Though the fourth quarter was weak, the picture for
2008 as a whole remained positive. The performance of the Group's international TV advertis-
ing markets ranged from slight pluses in the Netherlands, Finland and Norway, to substantial
gains in Sweden and Belgium, to dynamic growth in the markets of Hungary, Romania and
Bulgaria. Only Denmark closed out the year as a whole with a minus (-4.4 percent net).

The following table summarizes the development of TV advertising markets for 2008 as
a whole and in the fourth quarter. However, it should be borne in mind that some of the
figures below are based on gross figures, and therefore give only a limited idea of what the
associated net figures will prove to be.

Development of TV advertising spending in the markets relevant to ProSiebenSat.1

2008 Change vs 2007 Q4 2008 Change vs Q4 2007
Germany 45 a1
Netherlands 0.7 -7.4
Belgium 6.4 25
Finland L7 5.9
Bulgaria 28.0 231
Austria 45 17
Switzerland 6.9 6.7

* Data sources / ex rates Germany: gross, Nielsen Media Research Netherlands: net (after discount, before agency commission),
SPOT organization, Q4 is estimated Belgium: gross, CIM MDB, North, December 08 is estimated Sweden: net, IRM / ex rate 9.24
(07)/9.41(08) SEK, Q4 is estimated Norway: net (after discounts, before agency commission), MIO-Media Agencies Organization,
representing aprox. 90% of total tv ad market / ex rate 9.741 NOK, (31.12.08) Finland: net, TNS Gallup Adex., Denmark: net, DRRB,
ex rate 7.4516 DKK, December 08 is estimated Hungary: gross, AGB Nielsen Media Resarch / ex rate 250 Romania: net, Company
info is estimated. Bulgaria: gross (before discounts), TNS TV Plan / ex rate 1.95 BGN, 30 TVs are included Austria: gross, Media
Focus Switzerland: gross, Media Focus / ex rate 1.476 CHF All figures reported to SevenOne Media, Market Intelligence, finalized
10.2.2009



In German-speaking Europe, Austria and Switzerland were able to look back on a successful
2008, despite the adverse influences of the fourth quarter. In Germany, the Group's core
market, gross TV advertising spends in 2008 were up 4.5 percent against the year before, to
EUR 9.12 billion (Q4: +4.7 percent). SevenOne Media, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's sales com-
pany for TV advertising time in Germany, encountered difficulties in winning acceptance for
the new marketing model in 2008. It was able to maintain its lead in the German TV advertis-
ing market, at 41.1 percent (2007: 43.5 percent), but lost market share. The ProSiebenSat.1
Group's gross TV advertising revenues in Germany came to EUR 3.75 billion, compared to
EUR 3.80 billion in 2007 (Q4 2008: EUR 1.20 billion, Q4 2007: EUR 1.21 billion). Net figures
for the German TV advertising market are not available yet. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group as-
sumes that the market remained stable overall, but that the Group lost market share.

Gross advertising market share in Germany

Others 10.3
Public stations 5.5

El-Cartel 6.5
SevenOne Media 41.1

IP 36.6

* Source: Nielsen Media Research

Development of the audience market. In spite of the European Soccer Championship and
the Olympics, the Group's TV stations increased their audience shares in 2008 - in some
cases substantially - both in the German-speaking countries and in the international Free
TV segment. Against the prior year, the German family of stations - Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel
eins and N24 - expanded their average audience share 0.4 percentage points, or by 1.4
percent, to 29.4 percent of the key demographic. In fact, in September 2008 the German
stations made their best monthly showing since April 2005: a 31.1 percent share. Audience
shares also performed especially well in Austria (+31 percent), Denmark (+16 percent), and
the Netherlands (+7 percent).

ProSiebenSat.1 free TV stations' audience shares by country

2008 2007
Switzerland @ 16.5
Netherlands “ 21.9

* All values refer to 24-hour audience shares. (1) Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24. All German households using TV (Ger-
many + EU), Monday-Sunday, 3:00 - 3:00 a.m., audience age 14 - 49. (2) Target demographic 12-49. ProSieben Austria, Sat.1
Osterreich, kabel eins austria and PULS 4 (from Jan. 28, 2008). (3) ProSieben, Sat.1, kabel eins, Monday-Sunday, 2:00 - 2:00
a.m., audience age 15-49. (4) Target demographic 20 - 49. (5) Target demographic 15 - 44. Romanian figures are based on the
urban population. Belgian figures refer to the region of Flanders. (6) Target demographic 12 - 44. (7) Ratings among target
demographic 15 - 50, except data for Hungary, which are based on demographic 18 - 49. (8) Target demographic 12 - 24.
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TV Highlights 2008

01// “Germany's next Topmodel - by Heidi Klum" is one of the most
successful shows on ProSieben, with audience shares of up to 30.1
percent of the key demographic.

02// The U.S. series “Medium" is a solid hit on kabel eins, with au-
dience shares as high as 9.5 percent.

03// “Vem kan sla Filip & Fredrik,” the Swedish version of “Schlag
den Raab,” is one of the most successful productions on Kanal 5,
with audience shares of up to 39.6 percent.

04// More than 3 million viewers regularly tune in to “Schlag den
Raab,"” bringing ProSieben audience shares of up to 29.2 percent.

© Paramount Network Television
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05// On Hungarian station TV2, the U.S. series “House M.D."” regu-
larly earns audience shares of more than 30 percent.

06// Romanian sitcom “Trasniti din NATO" earns average audience
shares of 9.2 percent, making it one of the most successful produc-
tions on Prima TV.

07// The first part of “The Chronicles of Narnia” was one of the most
successfull films on Sat. 1 with a market share of 27.5 percent

08// With audience shares of up to 10.0 percent, “Das Fast Food-Du-
ell" is one of the most popular in-house productions on kabel eins.

09// Coverage of the 2008 European Soccer Championship finals,
with a 46.6 audience share, was the most successful broadcast on
Belgium's VT4.

10// With a1.3 percent audience share, 2008 was the most success-
ful year in N24's history.

TV Highlights 2008
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Business Performance in 2008

EARNINGS, FINANCIAL POSITION, AND NET WORTH

OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF BUSINESS IN 2008 - MANAGEMENT'S VIEW

On the basis of pro forma figures, consolidated revenues for fiscal 2008, at EUR 3.054
billion, were down EUR 183.0 million against the previous year. Recurring EBITDA was EUR
674.5 million (2007 pro forma: EUR 784.2 million). Business performance in 2008 was
impacted by difficulties following the launch of a new sales model for the German TV ad-
vertising market - our most important single region. An additional aggravating factor was
that economic uncertainty significantly reduced advertisers’ willingness to invest during
the second half of the year, both in Germany and in the rest of Europe. The current tense
economic situation makes clear just how heavily the performance of the TV advertising
market depends on economic conditions

However, in difficult economic conditions, important entrepreneurial decisions were made
that allowed the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to achieve major goals in 2008: The German fam-
ily of stations increased its audience share significantly - in spite of vigorous competition
from the Olympics and the European Soccer Championships, as well as strict requirements
to optimize programming expenses. The expansion of the Group's online presence and the
construction of a new playout center also improved the Group's future competitive position.
Following the integration of SBS, our top priority is to improve our profitability. To place
ProSiebenSat.1 back in a position of maximum effectiveness, in 2008 we initiated extensive
steps to optimize the setup of the TV group in Germany both strategically and organization-
ally, and we adjusted our budgets early to the difficult conditions in the market

MAJOR EVENTS AND ORGANIZATIONAL MEASURES

Integration of the SBS Broadcasting Group. Integrating two corporate groups is a long-
term process. This is also true of the situation of ProSiebenSat.1 and SBS. The work of
combining various parts of the Corporation moved ahead successfully in fiscal 2008.
The integration process combines the crucial factors behind both brands' success, and is
laying the groundwork to take advantage of synergies. Both SBS and ProSiebenSat.1 are
primarily providers of free TV, while at the same time they also count on diversification.
Besides a complementary corporate profile, the integrated Group's specific organization-
al structure gives it an additional lead over its competitors, since most of its subsidiaries
are wholly owned and it can therefore make the most of openings for synergy. Synergies
in 2008 were realized especially in central corporate functions and in the joint production
of programming. A summary of major integration projects appears on page 66. Our next
steps for 2009 are described in the “Outlook” section on page 84.

Introduction of a new ad sales model for the German market. In response to a proceeding
by Germany's Federal Cartel Office, SevenOne Media GmbH, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's
TV marketing company in Germany, had to introduce a new advertising sales model. The
Federal Cartel Office proceeding was part of an industry-wide investigation of sellers of
advertising time and media agencies in Germany, and was terminated by payment of a
fine. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group had set aside an appropriate provision of EUR 120.0 million
for the fine in fiscal 2007, and payment took place in 2008.

At first the new sales model for 2008 did not meet with as much acceptance from media
agencies as had been expected. For that reason, in the first half of 2008 it was revised -
taking into account the antitrust rules - so that agencies were again granted discounts in
kind. It was not possible to halt the decline in advertising market share during the period.
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For 2009, SevenOne Media is working with a sales model that conforms to the antitrust
requirements, but at the same time makes advertising bookings attractive to media agen-
cies and other advertisers

New strategic setup of the TV group in Germany. At the end of 2008, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group adopted an extensive program for the strategic optimization of the German TV
group. The aim is to match TV operations better with the market's requirements, while at
the same time making a more efficient use of resources. One step towards that end is to
combine all the German-language TV stations into a “matrix” organization under German
Free TV Holding. Following the example of the Group’s marketing operations, which were
set up newly in June 2008, centralized units will be formed to perform certain functions
for all the stations.

Sale of pay TV company C More. In June 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 signed a contract for the
sale of C More Group AB to TV4 AB, a company that is part of Sweden’s Bonnier Group.
The sale was consummated at the end of December. C More is Northern Europe’'s leading
brand in premium pay TV. However, it offers the ProSiebenSat.1 Group only limited poten-
tial for synergy through international productions and programming uses in the pay TV
market. C More was acquired as part of the SBS acquisition, and had been consolidated
in the Diversification segment. The prior-year figures accordingly include C More on a
prorated basis from July onward. The 2008 figures consolidate its pay TV operations
until November

N24 upgrades. With news station N24's switch to an all-digital platform, the German free
TV channel has opened a new chapter in its history. Reports will now be filed on new pro-
duction equipment that makes N24 Europe’s most up-to-date news station. All reports can
be edited and released for broadcast digitally. The networking of the editing and produc-
tion systems is also a step into the future. Now it will be possible to prepare content for TV
airing, websites, and mobile services in parallel. The implementation of the new systems
and the construction of the new news studio on Potsdamer Platz in Berlin were completed
on schedule, so that N24 went on the air with the latest equipment in October 2008.

Production company Redseven Entertainment founded. ProSiebenSat.1 founded Red-
seven Entertainment GmbH in May 2008. The company is headquartered in the Munich
suburb of Unterfohring, and produces light entertainment programming for the entire
European TV group. Another emphasis at Redseven is the production of Web content.
Having its own separate production company for nonfiction programming also makes it
easier for the Group to get access to rights, while further developing its own or acquired
programming rights and building artists’ careers in cooperation with the Group's sta-
tions. Light entertainment concepts are especially well suited for interactive exploitation
on multiple platforms.

The company is consolidated into the Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment, and is
a part of the Group Content Acquisitions & Production unit. In addition to Redseven, this
unit includes Producers at Work, SevenOne International, Group Programming Acquisi-
tions, and the Group's international production and programming development efforts.

ProSiebenSat.1 Networld expands with strategic investments and international rollout.
We invested in successful Internet platforms to expand our strong position in the German
online market further in 2008. Among these investments, in April 2008 the Group ac-
quired Fem Media GmbH, of Munich, Germany, and in May it expanded its 30 percent stake
in Lokalisten Media GmbH, of Munich, Germany, to 90 percent. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group
currently ranks second among online marketers in Germany, with nearly 19 million unique
users. But the Group is also a success internationally. Among its international operations

Business Performance



in 2008, it launched versions of MyVideo, Germany's leading video community, in Swit-
zerland, Austria, Belgium, the Netherlands, Romania, and Hungary. The broader interna-
tionalization of Web services enables ProSiebenSat.1 to make the most of the potential
for synergy derived from the SBS merger by expanding the Diversification division. At the
same time, the new services reach new target audiences for the video content from our
core business in free TV, and sharpen our TV group’s digital presence.

International radio network expands. With radio stations in Norway, Sweden, Finland,
Denmark, Romania, Bulgaria and Greece, ProSiebenSat.1 ranks Number 2 among listen-
ersin Europe. The Group has expanded its radio network in Northern Europe by acquiring
additional licenses and radio stations. Among the additions, in March the Group acquired
Norwegian radio station Kanal 24. After it was renamed Radio Norge and repositioned,
the station more than doubled its audience share, and is now the country's second-larg-
est private radio station.

ProSiebenSat.1 and IBM establish first European digital platform. In April 2008,
ProSiebenSat.1 and IBM Deutschland GmbH, of Stuttgart, signed a ten-year outsourc-
ing more than agreement for more than EUR 200 million, under which IBM took over all
IT business applications, as well as IT and media systems, from ProSiebenSat.1 Produk-
tion GmbH. For that reason the sale of all of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion was not pursued
further in fiscal 2008, so that contrary to the presentation in the consolidated financial
statements as of the end of 2007, the present financial statements no longer recognize
ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion under discontinued operations.

The IBM agreement is the foundation of a modernization of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s
technical infrastructure - one of the media corporation’s three core strategic goals. In
June, ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion began setting up a new playout center in the Munich
suburb of Unterféhring. Once various test phases have been completed - including simu-
lated broadcasting operations - the playout center is expected to go on the air as sched-
uled, in the first quarter of 2009. For the long term, the Group plans to distribute all its
content in tapeless form, so that programming content can be edited simultaneously by
different employees at different sites. At the same time, that will make the content avail-
able earlier for use on a variety of platforms. The result will be substantial advantages in
time, efficiency and quality.



Summary of portfolio changes and investment projects

JANUARY - DECEMBER 2008

Free TV in German-Speaking
Europe segment

Free TV International

Diversification segment

JANUARY - DECEMBER 2007

Free TV in German-Speaking
Europe segment

Free TV International

Diversification segment

New setup of German Free TV activities under roof of German Free TV Holding initiated
N24 upgrades

Production company Redseven Entertainment founded

ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion, the Group's technological service provider,

signs IT outsourcing agreement with IBM

Broadcasting Text International (BTI) sold in July 2008

Online network strengthened through acquisitions:

Acquisition of all of Fem Media GmbH, which operates Fem.com Web portal
> Fully consolidated as of April 2008

Acquisition of another 60 percent of Lokalisten Media GmbH,
operator of Lokalisten.de Web portal
> Fully consolidated as of May 2008

Acquisition of a 25.1 percent stake in autoplenum.de in September 2008

Acquisition of a 67.6 percent majority interest in webnews.de social news portal in October
2008

Online and video-on-demand operations expanded, especially with international rollout:

MyVideo now operating in Austria, Switzerland, Belgium, Netherlands,

Hungary and Romania

SevenGames goes into Sweden, Norway, Belgium and Netherlands, also available online in
English

billiger.de launched in France

Joint venture founded as of June 1, 2008, with United Internet for Maxdome video-on-demand
portal

Radio network expanded with acquisitions:
Acquisition of TV2 Saturn AS in Norway
> Radio Norge fully consolidated as of March 2008

Foundation of Radio Nova in Denmark
> Nova FM in Denmark fully consolidated as of July 2008

9Live International expands

Contract for sale of C More Group AB (C More) signed in June 2008 and
consummated in December

Web portal Oktoberfest.de sold in December 2008

Acquisition of all of the SBS Broadcasting Group
Fully consolidated as of July 2007

ProSiebenSat.1 segment structure changes through SBS consolidation:
Initial consolidation of free TV stations in Benelux countries, Northern Europe
and CEE area, and of international diversification activities in pay TV, radio, print

Acquisition of all of PULS TV, Austria

Fully consolidated as of July 2007

Expansion of original regional station into full-service channel (PULS 4)
SAT.1 Austria fully consolidated as of February 2007

New stations launched:
SBS NET, Denmark, launched in January 2007
Kanal 9, Sweden, launched in February 2007
Free TV station FEM, Norway, launched in September 2007

Acquisitions in online operations

Acquisition of remainder of Magic Internet Holding GmbH, which runs MyVideo Web portal
> Fully consolidated as of August 2007

Majority interest in the Solute GmbH, which runs billiger.de Web portal
> Fully consolidated as of February 2007

Acquisition of wer-weiss-was GmbH (wer-weiss-was.de knowledge portal)
> Fully consolidated as of September 2007

9Live expanded:

Services internationalized: 9Live a full service provider producing interactive shows for
partner stations in other countries

Call TV station repositioned as central service provider for Group's phone-based and inter-
active applications

Digital services expand in video-on-demand and basic pay TV

Business Performance
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COMPARISON OF ACTUAL AND PROJECTED BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

Earnings outlook. In response to lower revenues in the German TV business, the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group had to revise its earnings expectations downward twice over the course of the
year.

In connection with the reporting process for the first quarter of 2008, on April 24 the
Group adopted cost-cutting measures. The cost-cutting plan called for savings of EUR 70
million against the original 2008 budget, to be achieved especially by optimizing the use
of existing programming assets

Following a good start in July and August, the revenue situation in September and the
leading indicators for October gave signs that the German free TV business would not
meet expectations in the second half of 2008. For that reason, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
again revised its earnings projection downward in an ad hoc announcement on Septem-
ber 24, 2008. Apart from ongoing repercussions from the introduction of the new sales
model for advertising time, the economic environment had deteriorated significantly to-
wards the end of the first half. Because of extraordinarily low forward visibility in the
market, the Group limited the range for its expected recurring EBITDA to between EUR
670 million and EUR 700 million (pro forma 2007: EUR 784.2 million).

Since the figures on the economy were even less bright in the fourth quarter, our earnings
projections for 2008 involved an unusually high level of uncertainty. For that reason, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group declined to reconfirm the projection for the year when the third-
quarter figures were released. Recurring EBITDA ultimately came to EUR 674.5 million,
within the bounds of the September projection. The revenue decline in the TV business was
mitigated somewhat by the cost-cutting measures initiated during the year. Cost cuts had
particularly positive effects on the earnings position in the fourth quarter of 2008. Given
the current economic picture, at the end of the year the Group initiated further measures to
cut costs, and took them into account in the budgeting for 2009. In addition, it took exten-
sive organizational steps to pool resources within the German TV group. You can find more
information in the Outlook on page 79.

Projected net financial debt. In its third-quarter report, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group assumed
that it would be able to reduce net financial debt - net debt including cash inflows from di-
vestments - to about EUR 3.4 billion by year's end. As of December 31, 2008, net financial
debt came to EUR 3.407 billion, after the cash inflows from the sale of C More. Thus the
figure met the forecast from the third-quarter report, but was still EUR 78.3 million above
the previous year'’s level. Adverse influences that are reflected here included a higher divi-
dend payout than for 2007, and the payment of the fine to the Cartel Office. Proceeds from
divestments were only partly able to compensate for these effects.
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GROUP EARNINGS

Notes on the reporting approach. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's books have included the
figures for the SBS Broadcasting Group since July 3, 2007 (legal consolidation). Thus the
figures for 2008 include SBS full-year figures for the first time. For that reason, the key
financial figures for 2008 are not directly comparable with those for 2007. The description
of earnings below is therefore preceded by a “pro forma" section that reconciles the main
revenue and earnings figures for 2007 to the new Group structure. The pro forma figures
consolidate SBS's operations for the full year as of January 2007, comparably to the ap-
proach for 2008. Pro forma figures for 2007 are also shown at the segment level. There is
no summary of multiple periods.

Key figures 2008 — 2007 pro forma consolidation

ProSiebenSat.1 (Former) SBS ProSiebenSat.1 Group (after
(not including SBS) Broadcasting Group pro forma consolidation)

2007 2007 2007
Consolidated revenues 2,163.4 1,073.8 3,237.2
Recurring EBITDA 532.6 251.6 784.2
EBITDA 394.8 233.4 628.2

Pro forma figures for 2007: Consolidation of SBS as of January 2007.

Key figures 2008 — 2007 legal consolidation

ProSiebenSat.1 (Former) SBS
(not including SBS) Broadcasting Group

ProSiebenSat.1 Group
(after consolidation)

2007 2007 2007
Consolidated revenues 2,163.4 547.0 2,710.4
Recurring EBITDA 532.6 130.3 662.9
EBITDA 394.8 1275 522.3

Pro forma figures for 2007: Consolidation of SBS as of July 2007.

On the basis of a pro forma comparison, consolidated revenues for fiscal 2008 were down 5.7
percent, to EUR 3.054 billion - a decrease of EUR 183.0 million from the 2007 pro forma figure,
primarily as a consequence of the revenue setbacks in the free TV business in Germany

Revenues by segment

2008 1,735.7 797.3 3,054.2
2007 1,907.7 786.5 3,237.2

M Free TV German-Speaking Europe segment B Free TV International segment I Diversification segment

Acceptance problems after the implementation of a new ad sales model caused a de-
crease in TV advertising revenues in Germany. The weak economy also affected adver-
tisers' booking decisions. The consequence was that external revenues in the German
Free TV segment decreased EUR 172.0 million, to EUR 1.736 billion. At year's end, the
troubled economy also affected figures in the international TV business of the former
SBS Broadcasting Group. But thanks to its good performance in the first three quarters,
the International Free TV segment showed revenue growth of EUR 10.9 million for the
year, to EUR 797.3 million.

External revenues in the Diversification unit, which combines all business operations that
are independent from TV advertising income, came to EUR 521.2 million, down EUR 21.8

Business Performance
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million from the year before. Revenues here contributed 17.1 percent of the consolidated
total (2007: 16.8 percent). Most of the decline was caused by lower call TV revenues at
9Live in Germany. Another reason was the deconsolidation of the pay TV business under
the C More brand which was sold in December 2008. However, the international radio
business remained robust. Revenues from the online business also continued to rise.

The German-speaking part of Europe is ProSiebenSat.1's most important region in terms
of revenues, at 64.8 percent of the consolidated total (2007: 66.8 percent), followed by
Northern Europe with 16.1 percent (2007: 15.4 percent) and the Netherlands/Belgium with
13.7 percent (2007:13.0 percent).

Revenues by region

CEE 5.4

Belgium, Netherlands 13.7

Germany, Austria,
Switzerland 64.8

Northern Europe 16.1

Total costs, consisting of cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses, in-
creased EUR 47.2 million, or 1.7 percent, to EUR 2.851 billion. This figure includes deprecia-
tion and amortization of EUR 351.8 million (2007:177.9 million) and non-recurring expenses
of EUR 86.1 million (2007: EUR 157.1 million)

In fiscal 2008 the ProSiebenSat.1 Group recognized an impairment charge on SBS goodwill.
The impairment had no effect on liquidity, but it increased the Group's depreciation and
amortization by a significant EUR 173.9 million, to EUR 351.8 million. Overall expenses be-
fore the extraordinary write-downs resulting from the SBS impairment were down by EUR
132.8 million, to EUR 2.671 billion (-4.7 percent).

The revenue decline was mitigated somewhat by the measures taken to cut operating costs
during the year. Recurring EBITDA - earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amor-
tization, after adjustment for non-recurring effects - was down EUR 109.6 million, or 14.0
percent, against the pro forma figure for 2007, to EUR 674.5 million; EBITDA decreased
only EUR 9.9 million, or 1.6 percent, to EUR 618.3 million. The recurring EBITDA margin was
22.1 percent (2007: 24.2 percent).

Reconciliation of recurring EBITDA**

2008 2007
Pre-tax profit/loss 186.9
Net financial result _ 263.4
Operating profit/loss 450.3
Depreciation and amortization 177.9
(including: from SBS impairment) -1-
(including: from purchase price allocations) -1-
EBITDA 628.2
Non-recurring items (net)* _ 156.0
Recurring EBITDA 784.2

* Difference of one-time expenses and non-recurring income. ** Pro forma figures without purchase price allocations.



Cost-cutting measures had particularly positive effects on operating earnings performance
in the fourth quarter of 2008. Consolidated revenues for Q4 2008 decreased EUR 112.4
million, or 11.4 percent, to EUR 876.8 million, while recurring EBITDA was down 6.0 percent
or EUR 17.7 million from the prior year level, to EUR 279.3 million. EBITDA decreased EUR
29.4 million, to EUR 251.7 million (-10.5 percent). Despite large non-recurring expenses of
EUR 47.8 million (Q4 2007: EUR 15.9 million) for the new strategic setup now in progress
within the German TV Group, overall costs before the SBS impairment were down EUR 36.4
million, or 4.7 percent, to EUR 735.8 million.

Key figures Q4 2008

Q4 2008 Q4 2007
Consolidated revenues 876.8 989.3
Total costs 735.8 772.2
(including: depreciation and amortization)* 246.4 59.0
(including: non-recurring costs) 47.8 15.9
Recurring EBITDA** 279.3 297.0
EBITDA 251.7 281.1

* Thereof SBS impairment in 2008 of EUR 180.0m ** EBITDA before non-recurring items.

With SBS consolidated as of July 2007, consolidated revenues were up EUR 343.8 million, or
12.7 percent, to EUR 3.054 billion (2007: EUR 2.710 billion). The 2008 figure includes SBS's
business for the full year, with a contribution of EUR 1.076 billion to revenues, compared to
EUR 547.0 million for the comparison period from the year before.

External revenues by segment

2008 1,735.7 797.3 3,054.2
2007* 1,907.7 403.9 2,710.4

M Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment M Free TV International segment I Diversification segment

* Consolidation of SBS as of July 2007.

Income and expenses

Other operating income showed an above-average increase of EUR 46.5 million, to EUR
63.2 million. Most of the figure came from positive non-recurring effects of EUR 29.9 mil-
lion from the sale of C More and BTI.

Like revenues, total expenses (comprising cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative
expenses) were up significantly due to the first full-year consolidation of SBS, rising EUR
509.1 million to EUR 2.851 billion. Additionally, the impairment losses of EUR 180.0 mil-
lion already mentioned above contributed further to increase costs. Total depreciation and
amortization for fiscal 2008 came to EUR 351.8 million (2007: 137.0 million for the year).

The consolidation of SBS contributed EUR 1.126 billion to total expenses, compared to EUR
511.8 million for July through December of 2007. Write-downs resulting from the SBS pur-
chase price allocation came to EUR 61.6 million, compared to EUR 75.5 million in 2007.

Consumption of programming assets (recognized in the cost of sales) decreased EUR
101.3 million, to EUR 1.247 billion. As planned, programming expenses for fiscal 2008
were lowered through cost-optimized use of existing programming assets.

Business Performance
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Personnel expenses, which are reflected in the cost of sales, selling expenses and admin-
istrative expenses, increased EUR 120.6 million to reach EUR 444.2 million. In addition
to consolidation effects, the increase in personnel expenses also particularly came from
non-recurring expenses of EUR 38.6 million. Total non-recurring effects on expenses for
fiscal 2008 came to EUR 86.1 million (2007: EUR 141.8 million). These are explained in
further detail below

Total costs

2008 2,413.1 86.1 2,851.0

2007 2,022.2 141.8 2,341.9

M Non-recurring items Depreciation and amortization, thereof SBS impairment EUR 180.0 m in 2008

Total costs breakdown

2007
Cost of sales 1,623.4
Selling expenses 3745
Administrative expenses 344.0
Total costs 2,341.9

Consolidation of SBS as of July 2007.

Non-recurring effects shown in 2008 expenses: Most non-recurring expenses for 2008
resulted from steps to concentrate the functions of the ProSiebenSat.1 holding company,
and from relocating Sat.1 from Berlin to Munich. Additionally, the outsourcing of IT process-
es and technical services also caused one-time expenses in 2008. These one-time effects
on profits were included primarily in administrative expenses. The administrative expenses
also include write-offs of EUR 4.1 million in receivables from Lehman Brothers International
(Europe) for terminated interest-rate swaps. Lehman Brothers International (Europe) ap-
plied for protection from creditors on September 15, 2008. New cover was provided for
most of the total in hedge interest-rate swaps, so that there has been no material conse-
guent change in the hedging ratio. In total one-time expenses amounted to EUR 86.1 mil-
lion.

Non-recurring effects shown in 2007 expenses: Non-recurring expenses for 2007 totaled
EUR 141.8 million, and came primarily from the Cartel Office fine. The non-recurring ex-
pense of EUR 120.0 million from the Federal Cartel Office proceedings is shown as part of
the administrative expenses for fiscal 2007.

Earnings

EBITDA, at EUR 618.3 million, was up EUR 96.0 million from the previous year's equivalent
(+18.4 percent). This figure includes EUR 56.2 million in one-time effects, compared to EUR
140.6 million for 2007. Accordingly, recurring EBITDA after adjustment for non-recurring
effects was up EUR 11.6 million, or 1.8 percent, to EUR 674.5 million. SBS’s contribution to
recurring EBITDA was EUR 229.5 million. SBS is included on a prorated basis for six months
in the comparison figures from the year before, at EUR 130.3 million. The recurring EBITDA
margin was down from 24.5 percent to 22.1 percent.
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Reconciliation of recurring EBITDA

2008 2007
Pre-tax profit/loss 249.8
Net financial result 1355
Operating profit/loss 385.3
Depreciation and amortization 137.0
(including: from SBS impairment) -/-
(including: from purchase price allocations) 82.8
EBITDA 522.3
Non-recurring items (net)* 140.6
Recurring EBITDA 662.9

* Difference of one-time expenses and non-recurring income.

The financial result was EUR -334.9 million, compared to EUR -135.5 million in fiscal 2007.
The substantial rise of this figure resulted in part from higher interest expenses due to
the financing for the SBS acquisition, as well as from more extensive draws on the revolv-
ing credit facility than in 2007. These changes increased the net interest expense by EUR
139.7 million, to EUR 255.4 million. Additionally, the financial result includes higher other
financial expenses, which rose EUR 55.3 million against fiscal 2007, to EUR 77.2 million. The
increase in other financial expenses resulted from expenses of EUR 81.7 million from items
denominated in foreign currencies, in particular due to noncash foreign currency valuation
of a portion of Term Loan B for the SBS financing that was drawn in euros in Sweden. In the
fourth quarter of 2008, the Swedish krona had devalued significantly against the euro. You
can find further information about this point in the risk report on p. 75

The changes discussed above caused the pre-tax profit to decrease EUR 318.2 million, to
minus EUR 68.4 million. In fiscal 2008, the Group incurred income taxes of EUR 57.1 mil-
lion, following the previous year's EUR 153.6 million. After deduction of the tax expense and
minority interests, the Group showed a loss of EUR 129.1 million on the year, compared to a
consolidated net profit of EUR 89.4 million for the year before. Apart from the SBS impair-
ment, the larger foreign currency valuation effects - which are likewise noncash in nature
- also affected the result for the period. The underlying net income (after minority inter-
ests) adjusted for these effects came to EUR 170.4 million, compared to EUR 272.9 million
a year earlier. Referred to underlying net income, the earnings per preferred share came to
EUR 0.79 (2007: EUR 1.26).

Reconciliation of underlying net income

2007
Net result (after minority interest) 89.4
SBS Impairment -/-
Foreign currency valuation effects -/-
Purchase price allocations (after taxes)* 63.5
Cartel fine 120.0
Underlying net income 272.9

* Amortization resulting from purchase price allocations before taxes: EUR 70.4 million (2007: EUR 82.8 million).

Business Performance
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GROUP FINANCIAL POSITION AND NET WORTH

Borrowings

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's present Group-wide financing is essentially composed of se-
cured term loans for a total of EUR 3.6 billion, with maturities in July 2014 (Term Loan B)
and July 2015 (Term Loan C). The interest rate on the term loans is variable. Additionally,
the secured syndicated facilities agreement includes a revolving credit facility (RCF) with a
facility amount limit of EUR 600 million and a term to July 2014. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group
entered into this secured syndicated facilities agreement in connection with the financing
of the SBS acquisition in July 2007. About 80 percent of the Group's term loans are hedged
by way of a variety of interest-rate swaps

1,800 1,800 600 30.5
2,000
1,500
Term Term
1,000 Loan Loan
B ©
500 Mortgage
0 RCF* loan

*Revolving credit facility

The international financial crisis has also affected the financing of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group.
Two lenders are either currently unable to meet their obligations under the facilities agree-
ment, or unable to meet them at all.

Through a subsidiary, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc. held 0.9
percent of the Term Loans B and C (equivalent to about EUR 30.9 million) and 3.8 percent
of the revolving credit facility (equivalent to EUR 22.7 million) as a lender. The Lehman
Brothers holding company applied for protection from creditors on September 15, 2008,
and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. filed its own application for protection on October
5, 2008. As of that date, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. will no longer provide funds
for new draw-downs under the RCF. However, draw-downs already outstanding on the
RCF can be rolled over in the same amount without any early repayment of the Lehman
component. Repayments of draw-downs on Lehman credit facilities under the RCF would
cause them to lapse. The loans already furnished by Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. un-
der the term loan facilities are likewise unaffected by the insolvency. Moreover, Lehman
has no right to demand, and the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has no obligation to perform, any
early redemption of Lehman’s share of the Term Loans B and C.

The Icelandic bank Glitnir banki hf. holds 1.7 percent of the revolving credit facility (equiv-
alent to EUR 10.0 million) as a lender. Glitnir was nationalized in October 2008 as a con-
sequence of the financial crisis, and will not participate in future draw-downs until further
notice. This change has no effect on outstanding draw-downs. However, repayment of
any existing draw-downs would cause them to lapse.

Taking into account the default of Lehman and Glitnir as described above, EUR 5.3 million
was no longer available for draw-downs under the revolving credit facility as of December
31, 2008. Thus the revolving credit facility that is currently available comes to EUR 594.7
million. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group can draw variably on the revolving credit facility for gen-
eral corporate purposes. Allowing for guarantee utilisations, EUR 54.1 million of the revolv-
ing credit facility was unused as of December 31, 2008 (December 31, 2007: EUR 555.8
million)
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The secured syndicated facilities agreement totaling EUR 4.2 billion, requires ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group to comply with certain financial key figures (‘financial covenants'). The ProS-
iebenSat.1 Group must maintain a specific financial ratio of consolidated net financial debt
to consolidated EBITDA, and of consolidated EBITDA to the consolidated net interest result,
each as defined in the facilities agreement. Compliance with the financial ratios is tested
guarterly for the respective previous 12-month period. Noncompliance with these figures
give rise for early termination. However, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's facilities agreement
also allows the Group to prevent impending breaches of the key figure requirements, or to
cure existing ones, by contributing equity or equity-like funds in the form of subordinated
loans (“equity cure") within certain periods. Such an addition of equity or funds equivalent
to equity is treated as an increase in consolidated EBITDA for purposes of calculating com-
pliance with the financial covenants.

In the event that ownership control of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG changes (change of con-
trol), the lenders may demand termination of the facilities agreement, and repayment of
all outstanding amounts within a certain period after the change of control takes place. In
addition, the facilities agreement includes a number of standard obligations which, subject
to extensive exceptions and among other elements, limit the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's abil-
ity to furnish other security interests in its present or future assets, to undertake further
financial liabilities, to sell assets, to acquire business operations in whole or in part, or
to furnish guarantees, declarations of indemnification, or liability declarations outside the
normal course of business. The facilities agreement also contains a number customary
default clauses. The default clauses provide that the lenders may demand immediate repay-
ment in full of all amounts outstanding under the facilities agreement if breaches of con-
tract defined in more detail under the agreement occur, and if those breaches (assuming
they are curable) are not remedied within a specified period.

Net financial debt. As of December 31, 2008, net financial debt came to EUR 3.407 billion.
This is an increase of EUR 78.3 million, or 2.4 percent, against December 31, 2007.

Net financial debt is the total of liabilities to banks as well as current securities. Financial
debt increased by EUR 460.3 million against December 31,2007, to EUR 4.040 billion. Most
of the increase in borrowings as of December 31, 2008, came from higher short-term bor-
rowings from draw-downs of EUR 497.2 million on the revolving credit facility. Cash and
cash equivalents came to EUR 632.9 million, and were thus up EUR 382.0 million from the
prior-year figure. The higher cash funds resulted in part from the proceeds from divest-
ments, especially the sale of C More

Net debt-to-recurring EBITDA ratio (leverage): The ratio of net financial debt to recur-
ring EBITDA of the Group at the end of fiscal 2008 was 5.05; in 2007, net financial debt
was 4.24 times pro forma recurring EBITDA. The higher leverage compared to the prior
year resulted in part from the slight increase in net financial debt against the prior-year
reporting date, and in part from the lower figure for recurring EBITDA compared to the
pro forma figure for 2007. The prior year's pro forma figure for recurring EBITDA in-
cludes SBS's contribution to profits for 12 months.

Leases. For property it uses at the Unterféhring site, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has leases
that qualify as finance leases under IAS 17. The properties are capitalized as part of proper-
ty, plant and equipment, and the associated leases are recognized under “other liabilities."”
The earliest expiration of these leases is scheduled for 2019, but the interest rate con-
version dates (the end of the interest rate lock-down period) may be earlier. Other leases
for smaller figures exist for a property in Berlin and for technical equipment, and likewise
gualify as finance leases under IAS 17.

Business Performance
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Off-balance-sheet financial instruments. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group had no off-balance-
sheet financial instruments during the period.

Rating of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Credit ratings represent anindependent assessment of a company'’s creditworthiness. How-
ever, the rating agencies do not rate the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's term loans. Consequently
no official ratings are available.

Principles and objectives of financial management

The tasks of financial management at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are financing for the Group,
cash management, short-term and long-term liquidity planning, and interest-rate and for-
eign currency management. Major principles applied here are diversification of the inves-
tor base, financial flexibility and stability, access to international capital markets, and a
balanced maturity profile for financing instruments. The most important goals of financial
management are to safeguard Group-wide solvency and increase financing power. This par-
ticularly includes managing financial risk. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group applies derivative fi-
nancial instruments to limit this risk. The processes of financial management are controlled
centrally. The principles, aims and processes of financial management are laid down in a
Group-wide financial guideline that is explained in more detail in the risk report on p. 75

Cash and cash equivalents, and cash flow

Cash Flow statement

Q42007*  Q1-Q42008 Q1-Q4 2007*

Consolidated loss/profit (before minority interests) 42.4 -125.5 96.2
Cash flow 474.9 1,431.5 1,410.3
Inventories 0.1 -0.5

Change in non-interest-bearing
receivables and other assets

-34.3

Change in non-interest-bearing liabilities 227.5

Change in working capital 190.1

646.0 1,352.4 1,600.4
-432.1 -3,275.8
202.7

-1,675.4

Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Free cash flow

1,862.7

Change in cash and cash equivalents 87.1 382.0 187.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of reporting period 163.7 250.8 63.5

Cash and cash equivalents of continued operation
250.8 632.9 250.8

at end of period
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's cash flow statement shows the origin and use of cash flows. It

Cash flow from financing activities

* Consolidation of SBS as of July 2007.

distinguishes among cash flows from operating activities, cash flows from investing activities
and cash flows from financing activities. The cash flow from operating activities is derived
indirectly from the Group's result for the period. The cash and cash equivalents indicated in
the cash flow statement are the same as the cash and cash equivalents shown in the balance
sheet as of the reporting date.

Changes in working capital (non-interest-bearing receivables less non-interest-bearing li-
abilities), and thus tied-up capital, came to EUR -79.1 million as of December 31, 2008 (EUR
+190.1 million as of December 31, 2007). The payment of the cartel fine of EUR 120.0 million
in fiscal 2008 is reflected in the line item for change in non-interest-bearing liabilities. Cash
generated by operating activities in 2008 came to EUR 1.352 billion, a decrease of EUR
248.0 million from the operating cash flow in 2007 that results — in addition to the changes
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of the working capital - from the consolidated net loss for the year. A total of EUR 1.150 bil-
lion was used in investing activities during the period. The prior-year figure in the amount
of EUR 3.276 billion contains payments related to the SBS acquisition 7. The free cash
flow was EUR 202.7 million compared to EUR -1.675 billion in the previous year’s reporting
period. Financing activities generated cash of EUR 179.4 million, most of which came from
the draw-downs of EUR 497.2 million on the revolving credit facility. However, cash was
used during 2008 for the buy-back of Company stock (EUR 15.1 million) and for the dividend
payment (EUR 269.9 million). Financing activities generated cash of EUR 1.863 billion the
year before. The large cash flow from financing activities for 2007 was dominated by the
financing for the SBS transaction.

The above changes led to a net increase of EUR 382.0 million in cash and cash equivalents
compared to December 31, 2007. The Group thus had cash funds of EUR 632.9 million as of
December 31, 2008.

13525 .
1,500
1,250
1,000
750 179.4 632.9
500 el
250.8 -1,149.8
250 mmm el
Cash & cash Cash flow from Cash flow from Cash flow from Cash & cash
equivalents operating activities investing activities financing activities equivalents
12/31/2007 12/31/2008

Investments and divestments
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group invested EUR 1.150 billion in 2008 (2007: EUR 3.276 billion).

Acquisitions and capital expenditures: Most of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's investing ac-
tivity is in capital expenditures for programming assets. In fiscal 2008, the Company
invested a total of EUR 1.397 billion in purchases of programming rights, compared to
EUR1.177 billion a year earlier. Of this figure, EUR 958.3 million was for German-speaking
Europe (2007: EUR 955.7 million). In the figures for 2007 SBS is included on a prorated
basis as of July.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group invested EUR 106.5 million for the period in property, plant and
equipment (2007: EUR 41.5 million). Important investment projects included setting up a
new playout center and upgrades at N24.

Acquisitions made additions to the scope of consolidation with an impact of EUR 39.8 mil-
lion on the cash flow from investing activities, compared to EUR 2.027 billion for January
through December 2007. In the current year, cash was used for such acquisitions as a full
ownership interest in the Fem.com Internet platform and a further interest in Lokalisten.
de. The large figure for cash used in the prior year was dominated by payments relating to
the SBS acquisition, including the net purchase price payment of some EUR 2.1 billion.

Divestments. As part of its refocusing on core competences, in fiscal 2008 the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group sold the C More pay TV unit and BTI, an international provider of TV subtitling.
These transactions yielded disposals from the scope of consolidation with an impact of
EUR 298.6 million on cash flow from investing activities (2007: EUR 4.3 million)

Business Performance
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Total assets came to EUR 5.930 billion, and thus were down EUR 69.0 million against De-
cember 31, 2007. The consolidated balance sheet showed no material structural changes
from the year before.

Balance-sheet ratio

100
thereof: noncurrent 81 thereof: noncurrent ra
80 programming assets liabilities
77.0 81.1
60 1,149.2 917.1 3,523.2 3,577.3
68.9 66.6
40 thereof: current thereof: current
programming assets liabilities
20
23.0 230.8  400.6 18.9 23.0 516.7 2.2 15.7
12/31/2008 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2007
ASSETS LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ™ EQUITY

Noncurrent assets Current Assets M Shareholders” equity M Noncurrent liabilities B Current liabilities

Non-current and current assets. The principal reason for the reduction in total assets
was the decrease of EUR 536.4 million in intangible assets, to EUR 3.004 billion. These are
recognized under non-current assets, and include the fair-valued intangible assets of SBS,
including licenses and brands, as well as goodwill of EUR 2.363 billion capitalized in the
initial consolidation of SBS as of December 31, 2007. Under IAS 36, goodwill must be tested
regularly for impairment. During 2008, an impairment charge of EUR 180.0 million was
taken on SBS goodwill. Additionally, the sale of the Scandinavian pay TV unit C More, and
the sale of BTI, also reduced intangible assets against the prior-year reporting date

By contrast, cash funds increased by a substantial EUR 382.0 million, to EUR 632.9 million.
Programming assets, representing 23.3 percent of total assets (2007: 22.0 percent), also
increased, and are among the Group's most important asset items. The increase in pro-
gramming assets came from higher non-current programming assets (EUR +232.0 million).
Together, current and non-current programming assets came to EUR 1.380 billion, up EUR
62.3 million from the prior-year figure.

Shareholders’ equity 7. On the equity and liabilities side, equity decreased EUR 583.4
million, to EUR 479.0 million. The equity ratio was 8.1 percent, compared to 17.7 percent at
December 31, 2007. Apart from the negative consolidated net result, the equity base was
also decreased by the evaluation of P&L-neutral cash flow hedge valuation effects of EUR
97.0 million, by the share buy-back for EUR 15.1 million and by the dividend payment, which
was larger than the year before. EUR 269.9 million was used for dividend payments in fiscal
2008 (2007: EUR 192.5 million)

Long-term and short-term liabilities. Total long-term and the term liabilities increased EUR
514.4 million, to EUR 5.451 billion. The primary reason was the draw-down of EUR 497.2 mil-
lion on the revolving credit facility. Short-term loans and borrowings consequently increased
EUR 514.5 million, to EUR 516.7 million. Furthermore other long-term financial liabilities saw
additions of EUR 132.4 million, to EUR 331.8 million, largely as a consequence of valuation
effects of the hedge accounting. By contrast, liabilities for long-term loans and borrowings
decreased. The EUR 54.1 million decrease in long-term loans and borrowings, to EUR 3.523
billion (December 31, 2007: EUR 3.577 billion) resulted from changes in exchange rates.

The largest increase in provisions as of December 31, 2008, resulted from short-term
provisions, which increased EUR 32.6 million against the prior-year reporting date to EUR
98.8 million. Provisions are recognized in fiscal 2008 primarily as part of the planned
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program to set up the German TV group newly. By contrast, tax provisions, which are
also included among short-term provisions, decreased by EUR 32.1 million as of the 2008
reporting date, to EUR 79.5 million. The result is a net decrease of EUR 5.3 million in long-
term and short-term provisions, to EUR 179.5 million.

Other short-term liabilities decreased EUR 130.6 million against the prior-year reporting
date, to EUR 239.0 million. The high figure for other short-term liabilities as of December
31, 2007, consisted primarily of payment obligations of EUR 120.0 million resulting from
the Federal Cartel Office proceedings. The payments were made in two installments of
EUR 60.0 million each, in January and July of 2008.

Segment Report

Notes about segment reporting. The previous year's figures for the Free TV International
and Diversification segments include SBS operations to date only on a prorated basis for six
months (legal consolidation). For that reason, pro forma figures have been developed for
2007 - in other words, SBS's activities are consolidated for the full year from January 2007
onward, and are thus comparable to 2008.

As part of the initial consolidation of SBS as of July 3, 2007, the former segment struc-
ture of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group was adapted to the new Group structure by assigning
the acquired free TV stations in Northern and Eastern Europe, the Netherlands, and Bel-
gium, to the newly created Free TV International segment. The former Transaction TV
and Other Diversification segments were combined with the diversification operations
brought in with SBS to form the Diversification segment.

FREE TV IN GERMAN-SPEAKING EUROPE SEGMENT

External revenues of the Free TV segment in Germany, Austria and Switzerland for fiscal
2008 came to EUR 1.736 billion, down EUR 172.0 million from the prior-year figure. This is
equivalent to a revenue decrease of 9.0 percent from the prior year, the consequence of
lower advertising revenues in Germany .

Revenues in the German TV business decreased because of difficulties with acceptance
following the market launch of the new ad sales model. In addition, the deterioration of
the overall economic picture as of mid-year, accelerating toward year's end, had an im-
pact on the German advertising industry’s willingness to invest, and thus on our business
figures. The discount model was revised over the course of the year, but most advertisers
had already planned out their budgets for the full year during the first half. So although
audience shares 71 were high and the German free TV stations got off to a good start in
the second half, they saw further revenue decreases over the remainder of the year

Advertising revenues in Switzerland were up slightly. TV advertising revenues were up
in Austria as well. This growth particularly resulted from an increase in audience shares
and an expansion of the technical reach of the Group's Austrian TV stations. Additionally,
the expansion of the free TV station PULS 4, acquired in mid-2007, also helped revenue
performance.

Part of the decline in revenues in the German market was compensated by savings on op-
erating costs: The segment’s recurring EBITDA (EBITDA adjusted for non-recurring effects)
was down EUR 78.8 million, to EUR 406.6 million (-16.2 percent), EBITDA was down EUR
18.2 million against the prior year, to EUR 329.2 million (-5.2 percent). This figure includes
EUR 77.4 million in non-recurring effects, compared to EUR 138.1 million the year before.
Among the sources of non-recurring expenses in 2008 were the outsourcing of IT services

Segment Report



from ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion, measures to set up sales operations newly, and the reloca-

tion of Sat.1. The large non-recurring effects for 2007 resulted primarily from the EUR120.0

million antitrust fine.

Key figures for the Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment
OIMeYPINE]  Q1-Q4 2007 04 2008 Q4 2007

External revenues 1,735.7 1,907.7 522.1 595.1
Recurring EBITDA 406.6 485.4 191.3 205.8
EBITDA 329.2 347.3 147.6 192.2

FREE TV INTERNATIONAL SEGMENT

The general uncertainty in the economy also had an impact on the advertising revenues of
the Free TV International segment. TV advertising revenues were down in Q4 2008 in the
Netherlands and Belgium particularly, as well as Denmark and Norway. But for the year as
a whole, the segment’s revenues were up slightly, by EUR 10.9 million or 1.4 percent, to EUR
797.3 million. Apart from an increase in advertising revenues in the first three quarters of
the year, the revenue growth also resulted from higher distribution revenues. The positive
contribution of new free TV stations also improved revenue performance. The free TV sta-
tion Kanal 9 was launched in Sweden in February of 2007, and FEM in Norway went on the
air that September.

Recurring EBITDA was EUR 193.5 million, down EUR 18.5 million, or 8.7 percent, from the
pro forma figure for the year before. Part of the decrease in earnings came from startup
costs for new stations, and from higher costs for programming and marketing to expand the
international family of stations. Conversely, EBITDA increased 11.5 percent, to reach EUR
215.0 million. The prior-year figure of EUR 192.9 million includes non-recurring expenses for
the integration of ProSiebenSat.1 and SBS. For fiscal 2008, positive non-recurring effects
came from the sale of C More and BTI.

Pro forma: SBS consolidated as of January 2007

(O)EOZIIE]  Q1-Q4 2007

External revenues 786.5
Recurring EBITDA 211.9
EBITDA 192.9
Legal: SBS consolidated as of July 2007

(JEOYPIE]  Q1-Q4 2007 Q4 2008 Q4 2007
External revenues 797.3 403.9 232.2 246.6
Recurring EBITDA 193.5 112.0 70.7 76.7
EBITDA 215.0 109.3 88.5 75.1

DIVERSIFICATION SEGMENT

Pro forma consolidation of SBS since January 2007. The Diversification segment'’s exter-
nal revenues in fiscal 2008 were EUR 521.2 million. Thus revenues here were down 4.0 per-
cent from the comparable pro forma figure of EUR 543.0 million for the previous year. Most
of the revenue decrease resulted from lower revenues at 9Live in its core business, call TV
in Germany. The December 2008 sale of C More also reduced revenues. Revenues from
the pay TV business C More are prorated until November in the 2008 figures, at EUR 132.0
million (2007: EUR 146.0 million). However, revenues were up substantially in international
radio operations. The growth drivers included Radio Norge, a station the Group acquired at
the beginning of the year. The most important revenue driver in the German-speaking mar-
ket was the online business. The increase here came in part from organic revenue growth,



and in part from the positive impact of the initial consolidation of acquired online portals.
The drivers for organic growth were established online platforms like MyVideo and the on-
line gaming operations. Additional positive impetus came from the successful expansion of
the Starwatch Music label.

EBITDA for fiscal 2008 came to EUR 74.4 million, and was thus down 15.5 percent from the
pro forma figure of EUR 88.1 million. The segment’s recurring EBITDA decreased by a com-
parable amount; at EUR 73.9 million it was down EUR 13.1 million, or 15.0 percent, from the
comparable pro forma figure. Apart from revenue decreases, higher costs also contributed
to reduce earnings. Costs rose primarily because of the expanded business operations in
radio and online, and the expansion of 9Live's international programming.

Pro forma: SBS consolidated as of January 2007

Q1-Q4 2008* Q1-Q4 2007
External revenues 521.2 543.0
Recurring EBITDA 73.9 87.0
EBITDA 74.4 88.1

Legal consolidation of SBS since July 2007. On the basis of the legal consolidation, the Di-
versification segment’s revenues were up 30.7 percent from the previous year's EUR 398.8
million, to EUR 521.2 million. The substantial revenue increase results from the first full-
year consolidation of SBS, which contributed revenues of EUR 278.2 million. The figures for
2007 include SBS on a prorated basis from July onward, with a share of EUR 143.1 million.
Profitability also enjoyed positive effects from the full-year consolidation of SBS. Recurring
EBITDA was up EUR 8.3 million, to EUR 73.9 million (+12.7 percent), and EBITDA improved
EUR 8.6 million, to EUR 74.4 million (+13.1 percent). SBS's contribution to recurring EBITDA
was EUR 35.8 million (July-December 2007: EUR 18.4 million).

Legal: SBS consolidated as of July 2007

OINOY PN  Q1-Q4 2007 Q4 2008* Q4 2007

External revenues 521.2 398.8 122.5 147.6
Recurring EBITDA 65.6 18.1 143
EBITDA 65.8 16.4 137

* Deconsolidation of CMore in December 2008.

Segment Report
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Employees

Key figures on employment. The average number of full-time-equivalent positions at the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group increased by 995 in fiscal 2008, to 5,847. Most of the increase in
employees on an average full-time equivalent basis derives from the effects of the first con-
solidation of SBS as of July 3, 2007. In terms of figures as of the year-end reporting date,
the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had 5,798 employees throughout Europe in 2008, compared to
5,930 as of December 31, 2007

In Germany, Austria and Switzerland, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had an average of 3,126
employees, compared to 3,110 in fiscal 2007. Efficiency enhancement programs at the
Sat.1 regional companies and ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion yielded staff reductions in the
German-speaking countries, but new hires at 9Live International and Redseven Enter-
tainment, as well as the first full-year consolidation of free TV station PULS 4 and various
online portals, caused average full-time-equivalent positions to increase.

We do not present comparison figures for staff turnover and average time with the com-
pany for the integrated Group, since SBS is consolidated only on a prorated basis for six
months of the comparison period, 2007. Staff turnover at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group by
itself was 12.97 percent in fiscal 2008 (2007: 11.17 percent), and the average time that
permanently employed staff stayed with the Company was 5.5 years (2007: 5.2 years).

Goal-directed management structures through “management by objectives. The employ-
ees and managers of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are supervised on the basis of “management
by objectives.” To this end, a goal agreement system known as “TOP Ziele" was developed.
This system fixes the overriding corporate objectives for employees and managers and
brakes them down systematically to every division, department and individual employee.
The formulation, agreement and monitoring of annual objectives ensures that all employ-
ees are actively involved in implementing the strategic goals of the Group. By this means,
goal-directed conduct is instilled throughout the Group and resources are allocated in the
most efficient way possible. The TOP objectives system is tied to a special, performance-
driven bonus model. This incentive system assures performance-driven compensation on
the basis of objective measurement criteria because the amount of the bonus depends on
the individual goal achievement. The participation in the company's success is determined
with reference to the company's overall success, which is measured on the basis of the
recurring EBITDA margin

In addition to strategic and financial objectives, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has also defined
values that guide the work of every employee and embody the corporate culture of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 7ZI. By means of shared goals and values, as well as specific guidelines, we seek
to ensure that employees and managers conduct themselves in a lawful manner, both in
their dealings with each other and with the public, and work together effectively. Based on
a corporate mission statement, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has formulated a Code of Conduct
that sets out the company’s management guidelines and core values. In consideration of
the applicable laws and regulations, as well as social and ethical norms, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group has also formulated company-specific principles of journalistic independence and
youth protection and guidelines upholding the separation of advertising and programming
content

Grooming young media talents - Continuing education in the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. In
Germany, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group offers many opportunities to launch a career. The voca-
tional training of young people is a vital strateqgic priority for the TV Group. Every year, the
TV company provides vocational training to about 130 apprentices, interns and trainees. In
the process, the company also prepares the next generation of employees by acquainting



them with the Group's strategic objectives and corporate culture. In the business adminis-
tration program, which lasts two and a half years, the career entrants are introduced to all
areas of the media company. The vocational training program culminates in a degree from
the International Chamber of Commerce. ProSiebenSat.1 also offers editorial traineeship in
the areas of TV, Multimedia and PR. Trainees can begin their careers in a number of areas,
such as Marketing or Personnel Management.

ProSiebenSat.1 is currently in the process of redesigning its dual vocational training pro-
grams in the area of Media Technology. Due to the convergence of broadcast and IT tech-
nology and other trends in the media industry, careers such as “Audiovisual Media Design-
er” and “Media and Information Services Specialist” have changed dramatically in the last
few years. These vocational training programs are being overhauled in order to provide the
best career preparation to the next generation of media professionals.

PROFI100 — Manager development program expanded. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group launched
its own manager development program, “PROFI," back in 2004. Under this program, all man-
agers in Germany have since participated in an ongoing, centralized qualifications-building
process. In 2008, the new module “PROFI 100" was added to the program. PROFI 100 is
designed to guide new managers through the first 100 days in their new post. In this phase,
the Employee Development department provides individualized coaching to new managers,
among other measures, as needed.

PROject — Managing projects successfully. In 2008, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group developed
and adopted uniform project management standards under the name of “PROject.” As a
handbook for implementing projects in the Group, the “PROject Guidelines" provide practi-
cal assistance to all project managers. Training courses and internal coaching sessions by
specially trained project managers provide additional support to employees in their daily
project work. By this means, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group intends to further professionalize
project processes and results while also lowering its costs.

Work and family — Day care center expanded. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group actively helps its
employees balance their work and family lives. The company opened a day care center at
its Unterféhring location in 2002 and began expanding the day care center in 2008. The
company plans to double the number of available spots. A family-friendly corporate culture
is a vital prerequisite for satisfied and motivated employees. Also, parents who work at
ProSiebenSat.1 benefit from the flexibility of flex-time work schedules.

Employees



The ProSiebenSat.1 Share

Stock price performance. Ongoing turbulence from the spreading crisis in the financial
markets, together with the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's difficulties in the German TV advertising
market, brought prices for the ProSiebenSat.1 share down in 2008. ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG issued two profit warnings during the year. By September 24, after the second ad hoc
announcement, the stock had lost about 78 percent against its prior-year value, and closed
at EUR 5.19. Another factor that burdened the stock price was the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's
leverage situation. The stock hit a new low of EUR 1.26 on December 5. It was able to book a
slight recovery until the end of the year. On December 30, 2008, the last trading day of the
period, ProSiebenSat.1 stock closed at EUR 2.40, down 85.6 percent against the beginning
of the year. In 2008 a total of 313,776,656 shares of the stock were traded over the Xetra
trading system (2007:180,638,874), equivalent to an average trading volume of 1,235,341
shares per day (2007: 716,820 shares).

M ProSiebenSat.1 M Euro Stoxx Media B MDAX DAX
Basis: Xetra closing quotes, An index of 100 = January 2, 2008; Source: Reuters

The ProSiebenSat.1 share: Price performance

01/02 — 12/31/2008

XETRA high close (EUR) 16.62
XETRA low close (EUR) 1.26
XETRA close (EUR) 2.40
XETRA trading volume (average per day) (units) 1,235,341

Share buy-back. From March 7 to April 3, 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG bought back
1,127,500 shares of its own preferred stock, equivalent to about 1.0 percent of the pre-
ferred shares, or 0.5 percent of the Company's share capital. The stock was purchased
at an average price of EUR 13.36 per share. The repurchased stock is intended primarily
to service stock options under the Long-Term Incentive Plan. Ownership of this own stock
brings ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG no entitlements. Under Sec. 71b of the German Stock Cor-
porations Act, treasury stock held directly or indirectly by the Company is not entitled to
collect dividends.



Period Shares purchased Total value in EUR m

3/7 - 3/31/08 934,003 12.3
4/1 - 4/3/08 93,497 2.8
Total 1,127,500 15.1

IR activities - Relations with investors and the capital market (financial capital). Once
again in fiscal 2008, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group kept analysts, investors and private share-
holders promptly and fully informed about the company's business performance. The Ex-
ecutive Board and the Investor Relations team answered institutional investors' questions
at roadshows in London, Frankfurt, New York and Boston. The Company also appeared at
the industry’'s most important investor conferences and held many one-on-one meetings in
Unterféhring. It kept the market informed of quarterly results and current Company events
in additional conference calls.

At the end of the year, approximately 25 brokerage firms and banks published research
reports on ProSiebenSat.1 stock.

Analysts” recommendations

Bank Broker Date Reccomendation
Cheuvreux December 11, 2008 underperform
UBS December 10, 2008 neutral
Berenberg Bank December 8, 2008 buy
Landesbank BW December 3, 2008 sell

Sal Oppenheim November 11, 2008 neutral
Dresdner Kleinwort November 10, 2008 hold

DZ Bank November 10, 2008 buy

UniCredit November 7, 2008 sell

NATIXIS Securities November 7, 2008 sell

Société Générale November 7, 2008 buy

JP Morgan November 7, 2008 overweight
Nomura (Lehman) November 7, 2008 neutral

Credit Suisse November 7, 2008 neutral
Merrill Lynch November 6, 2008 neutral
Citigroup November 6, 2008 hold / high risk
Exane BNP Paribas November 6, 2008 underperform
Deutsche Bank November 6, 2008 sell

Bankhaus Lampe November 6, 2008 hold
Commerzbank November 6, 2008 reduce
Kepler October 30, 2008 hold

Morgan Stanley October 01, 2008 equalweight
Goldman Sachs September 28, 2008 neutral
Equinet September 24, 2008 buy

Main First June 18, 2008 neutral

Shareholders’ meeting for fiscal 2007. The annual meeting of the shareholders of Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Media AG for fiscal 2007 was held in Munich on June 10, 2008. About 200
shareholders attended, representing 64 percent of the share capital. All motions by man-
agement for decisions requiring shareholder consent were carried unanimously. Among
other resolutions, the shareholders approved the proposed dividend payment and the sup-
plementary nominees for election to the Supervisory Board.

The dividend was paid out on June 11, 2008, the day after the annual shareholders’ meet-
ing. For fiscal 2007, the shareholders received a dividend of EUR 1.23 per share of com-
mon stock and EUR 1.25 per share of preferred stock.

ProSiebenSat.1 Share
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Non-Financial Performance Indicators

Our off-balance-sheet assets are also critical to our success and hold great potential for
our strategic competitive position. Important non-financial performance indicators are de-
scribed below. You can find information about employees, and about relationships with
investors and the capital markets, on pages 62 to 65

PROCESS CAPITAL (AND ORGANIZATIONAL ADVANTAGES)

All of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's free TV stations - as well as most of the companies in the
Diversification unit - are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. That means ProSieben-
Sat.1is Europe’s only true TV “family.” This opens up competitive advantages for us at the
operations level:

As a fully integrated corporation, ProSiebenSat.1 can implement innovations faster, and
thus achieve greater success. Additionally, sharing resources makes it possible to save
on costs -whether in co-productions like the Scandinavian talent show “So You Think
You Can Dance,” or in back-to-back productions that use the same studio and the same
set for different national versions of a program. Shows produced under the back-to-back
system include “Popstars” (Germany, Netherlands), “Nothing but the Truth” (Romania,
Hungary), “ldentity” (Norway, Sweden, Denmark), and “The Next Uri Geller” (Germany,
Netherlands). In addition, the free TV stations’ complementary programming - especially
in Germany - and the broad range of their target audiences favor an efficient use of re-
sources.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's diversified media portfolio means first and foremost a
broader diversification of risk, and thus less dependence on individual revenue models
and national markets. But the Group's presence across a broad part of Europe also lowers
the barriers to market entry for purposes of geographical diversification - as is evident,
for example, from the success of the SevenGames gaming platform, which originated in
Germany but is now also doing well in Belgium, the Netherlands, Norway and Sweden.

Thanks to the way the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is organized, the Company also has the ad-
vantages not just of multiple reuses of much of its content, but also of sharing materials
used on the air. For example, the German trailer materials for “The Next Uri Geller" were
also used in Belgium and the Netherlands. Prima TV in Romania adopted ProSieben'’s
redesign campaign. The image trailer specially produced for “Indiana Jones and the King-
dom of the Crystal Skull” aired in both Hungary and the Benelux countries.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group conducts extensive market research in every area in which it
does business and in every area where it foresees the potential for growth. However, mar-
ket research activities do not fit the definition of research and development under IAS 38.8,
and therefore these figures are omitted from the management report.

MARKET RESEARCH

The Group's corporate research unit operates as a part of advertising sales company Sev-
enOne Media, and conducts studies and analyses of all matters that come within the radar
range of a modern audiovisual media corporation. These include media use, advertising im-
pact, trends in the advertising market, performance projections for the economy and the
advertising market, and the quantitative and qualitative assessment of individual program-
ming concepts. The results of its research provide the basis for important decision-making
processes in every unit of the Group.



Research is organized into four units:

> Market Research: The Market Research department focuses on the advertising market
and all research topics relating to marketing, such as market structures or industry trends,
as well as studies of advertising impact, new media and cross-media uses.

> Media Planning & Services: The Media Planning & Services unit supports and advises sales
operations by developing media strategies, analyzing campaigns, efficiency, competition
and target audiences, and producing special analyses on questions of strategy in the TV
and advertising market.

> Program Research: The Program Research unit concentrates on the audience, and pro-
vides all the GfK analyses relating primarily to programming, as well as all kinds of studies
for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group and especially for the stations Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins
and N24. Its core tasks include strategic consulting on programming.

> Development: Developing new programming ideas is the foundation of ProSiebenSat.1's
core business in free TV. Development includes detecting national and international TV
trends at an early stage and putting them to work for the various stations in their various
markets, in ways appropriate for the target audience. That's why the Group has a separate
unit that continuously casts its net worldwide for ideas and materials suitable to be adapt-
ed for light entertainment, magazine shows, series and films. Additionally, each station has
its own creative teams that develop their own ideas for TV programming, and thus main-
tain the foundations for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's success in the television business. In
2008 ProSiebenSat.1 founded Redseven Entertainment, a separate production subsidiary
that develops and produces TV programs for the Group's German and international sta-
tions. ProSiebenSat.1 also works with outside production companies and producers, who
ensure that the Group has a supply of programming ideas and new developments.

SUPPLIER CAPITAL

Attractive programming is an indispensable prerequisite for the ProSiebenSat.1 stations’
success with viewers. That's why the Group maintains its own network of close ties with
domestic and international film studios, as well as film and TV producers. ProSiebenSat.1
has long-term contracts with virtually every major Hollywood studio, including Sony, Par-
amount, CBS, Disney, Warner, MGM, Lucasfilm, Dreamworks and local producers such as
Constantin, Tobis and Kinowelt. It also works closely with outside magazine-show and light
entertainment producers in each of its markets, whose creative potential guarantees that
the TV group will have a constant supply of new programming.

Rights agreements for the German TV market. Germany is the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s
largest TV market, and the one that generates the most revenues. At the beginning of
2008, under a contract with Sony Pictures Television International, the Company obtained
the exclusive German free TV rights to such attractive blockbusters as “The Da Vinci Code,”
with Tom Hanks, “Spider-Man 3,” with Tobey Maquire, and “The Pursuit of Happiness,” with
Will Smith.

Under an output deal with Paramount Pictures, ProSiebenSat.1 acquired the free TV rights
to such blockbusters as “Star Trek,” “Transformers 2," and “Watchmen.” The TV corporation
also extended its existing master license agreement with Constantin Film Verleih GmbH. The
output agreement covers the free TV rights to all domestic and international productions
and co-productions for 2009 in which Constantin Film AG holds rights of use. The agree-
ment covers rights to such films as “Freche Madchen II,” “Jerry Cotton,” and “Bushido.”

Non-Financial Performance Indicators



In the nonfiction line, in 2008 ProSiebenSat.1 acquired one of the most attractive European
packages of sports rights for the German TV market. An agreement with UEFA brought the
Group 17 top Champions League matches and 29 matches of the UEFA Cup. The exclusive
free TV rights are available for three seasons, from 2009 to 2011/2012. ProSiebenSat.1 also
holds mobile TV and Internet broadcast rights.

Rights agreements for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's international TV markets. In 2008,
contracts that ProSiebenSat.1 signed with Disney covered countries like the Netherlands
(including “Pirates of the Caribbean 3,” “Finding Nemo," “Cars"), Sweden, Norway and Den-
mark (“Pirates of the Caribbean” 2 and 3, “Flightplan"). Sony and ProSiebenSat.1 signed
agreements for the Netherlands (including "“Click,” “Spider-Man 3") and Hungary (including
“The Da Vinci Code,” "Spider-Man 3"). ProSiebenSat.1 also tied down free TV rights from
Hollywood studio Spyglass for the Netherlands, Belgium, Hungary and Romania.

CUSTOMER CAPITAL

Advertising clients: Sales subsidiaries SevenOne Media and SevenOne Interactive are ser-
vice providers and partners for more than 250 agencies and more than 900 advertisers in
TV alone. They both have the same goal: tailor-made communications solutions that give
advertising clients a competitive advantage in their markets. The Group's broad portfolio
and its extensive service and monitoring capabilities ensure long-term client loyalty and
make it easier to attract new business.

Audiences: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group offers its viewers an extensive information service.
The audience services department logged more than 180,000 contacts in 2008.

The focus was on information and ratings of current programming, or information about
content aired previously (product discussions, tips on cultural events and leisure activities,
background songs, etc.). Every contact is processed individually within two business days,
in part using an up-to-date Wiki database on the intranet.

Comments and suggestions also help optimize programming. Their quality and quantity is
analyzed, and reports are forwarded to programming executives every two weeks. On top
of that, the services provide numerous special analyses requested directly by executives
from the editorial departments.

Contacts by station in 2008

65,000 13,000 600 12,000

65,000 21,000 5,000 400

Sat.1 ProSieben kabel eins N24 P7S1Welt sat.1comedy kabel eins classic maxdome

Type of inquiry in 2008 in percent

Schedule questions (broadcast dates, repeats, copies,
programming requests, etc.)

Subject matter suggestions
Autographs / fan mail
Positive / negative critiques of individual programs

Products and services seenon TV

New media / diversification

Questions about applying to be a
contestant (casting shows,
miscellaneous light entertainment)

Reception and technology

Miscellaneous



SOCIAL REPUTATION

As one of Europe’s largest TV providers, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is well aware of its spe-
cial social responsibility. To ensure truly independent reporting, it has established compre-
hensive guidelines on journalistic independence. It has also mandated maintaining a clear
distinction between advertising and programming, with special attention to the ban on sur-
reptitious advertising. Protecting young people in the media also plays a key role: a total
of nine independent representatives make sure that programming on Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel
eins and N24 is appropriate for youngsters and complies with the laws.

ProSiebenSat.1 highlights its social commitment in the “Red Nose Day" charity fundraising
event and the nationwide “start social” award. As a German co-founder and main sponsor
of “start social,” ProSiebenSat.1 also encourages volunteer projects by way of a focused
knowledge transfer from business. More than 300 initiatives submitted applicationsin 2008,
and 100 ideas received know-how support from professional coaches and experts. The best
seven were awarded EUR 5,000 by the program'’s patron, Chancellor Angela Merkel.

Social Responsibility of the ProSiebenSat. 1 Group

Social commitment in “Red Nose Day" and “start social e.V."”
Guidelines to safeguard journalists' independence
Guidelines on separating advertising from program content
Extensive measures to protect young people

Sustainable data protection

Events after the Reporting Date

Thomas Ebeling becomes CEO of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. Thomas Ebeling assumed the
responsibilities of CEO at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of March 1, 2009. He was most re-
cently CEO of Novartis Consumer Health and a member of Novartis management. He was
appointed the new CEO at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG early in December of 2008. Guillaume
de Poschresigned as CEO on his own initiative as of December 31,2008. CFO Axel Salzmann
filled in as acting CEO until Thomas Ebeling took office.

From the end of fiscal 2008 to March 10, 2009, the date when this report was released
for publication and forwarded to the Supervisory Board, no events occurred that are of
particular significance for the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group or ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

Subsequent Events
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Risk Report

OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF THE GROUP'S RISK SITUATION

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's overall risk situation is analyzed and managed Group-wide
through the risk management system. As of the date of the preparation of this management
report, the Executive Board views the overall risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group as
limited. We currently view the deterioration of the general economic situation in Europe as
our primary risk.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management system. Expansion, particularly in international markets, as well as the
complexity and dynamism of our business, intrinsically exposes the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
to a number of risk factors. Our experience in the TV advertising market, together with
our international know-how in the media sector 7, provides a solid foundation for mak-
ing the most of growth opportunities and for assessing risks promptly and reliably. Clear
organizational structures are another requirement for handling risk property. Uniform
guidelines ensure a methodical approach, and are indispensable for standardized detection
and Group-wide management of risks. Unambiguous allocation of tasks and responsibilities
makes it possible to take steps promptly to counteract risks as they arise. For that reason,
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has established an inclusive risk management system for itself
and its Group companies. The risk management system is tailored to the special circum-
stances of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group, and is based on the principle of including every seg-
ment and every subsidiary in the process. In simplified terms, the Group-wide risk manage-
ment system looks as follows

Decentralized risk managers at the various corporate units are responsible for detecting
and reporting risks. The risk managers are supported by two departments, Controlling &
Corporate Planning and Legal Affairs. The Group Risk and Compliance Officer is respon-
sible for regular quarterly reporting to the Executive Board, as well as any additional
reports as needed.

The functioning and suitability of the risk management system are reqularly reviewed by
the Internal Audit unit. Its review is based on the risk management manual, which sum-
marizes both the Company's own principles and the requirements of law for handling risk.
Additionally, the risk management system is an integral part of the audit of the annual
financial statements. It complies with the requirements of law.



Risk management process. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's risk management process follows
the coordinated steps outlined below:

Risk management process

Risk identification & classification
-
<
Risk
management | Risk assessment

Risk monitoring

W

Risk identification and risk classification: Risk identification and classification is founded
on risk management workshops that are held at least once a year for each subsidiary or
division, at dates close to the planning process. The risks identified in the workshop are
allocated to defined risk categories so as to permit a logical aggregation and crystalliza-
tion of individual risks. Risk identification is consequently subject to constantly chang-
ing conditions, in an ongoing updating process, and is incorporated in the quarterly risk
reporting process.

Risk assessment: Risk assessment evaluates the probability of risks and their potential
impact on the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s operating and strategic business performance and
planning. Risk assessment also includes analyzing causes and interactions with other
risks. In addition to quantitative methods, some of which are based on early warning
indicators, risks are also assessed using qualitative approaches.

Risk management and risk monitoring: Early warning indicators have been defined for
all measurable and material categories of risk. These early warning indicators primarily
cover the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's performance in terms of audience share and advertis-
ing market share, the profitability and appeal of the program inventory, human resources
development, and the evolution of liquidity. The management in charge initiate suitable
measures to counter each identified risk that is deemed to need mitigation. These mea-
sures are documented and monitored as a part of the reporting system. The Executive
Board discusses and adopts appropriate risk control measures, and reports to the Audit
and Finance Committee of the Supervisory Board. When new opportunities or risks arise,
or individual indicators change significantly, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board
are notified at once, irrespective of the quarterly reporting intervals.

Group-wide risk management system evolves as SBS integration proceeds. As the pro-
cess of integrating SBS advances, further measures have been taken to adapt the risk man-
agement system to fit the Group's international position. To support risk management, a
software has been developed to help detect risks Group-wide and monitor their develop-
ment. In fiscal 2007, risk categories were expanded, and a reporting system was introduced
with six categories: External Risks, Content, Technology Risks, Sales, Organizational and
Financial Risks, and Compliance.

Risk Report
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OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT

Opportunities are potential positive deviations from planned results. Opportunities for the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group derive primarily from corporate strategy. Monitoring opportunities
is just as much a part of the Group's management system as risk management is. For this
purpose, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group closely scrutinizes market scenarios and developments in
the international competitive environment, and also gives great attention to critical internal
factors for success, such as cost drivers and non-financial performance indicators. The prin-
cipal opportunities for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are discussed in the Report of Anticipated
Developments on p. 82

RISK SITUATION: EVOLUTION OF INDIVIDUAL RISKS

Factors that were of material importance in the past fiscal year, or that might have adverse
effects on the Group's earnings, financial position and net worth, are presented below with
the corresponding assessment for the individual risk categories:

Evolution of individual risks

Change 2007/2008

A -> -> S A ->

A Increasing risk S Decreasing risk  =» Risk unchanged

General economic risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's business operations depend to a large
degree on overall economic conditions, and especially on developments in the markets
where our advertising clients operate. A general weakening of the economy, especially in
the core market in Germany, could have a material effect on the earnings position in our
core business of commercial television, and thus on the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's business
performance. At the moment we cannot rule out the possibility that adverse repercussions
from economic conditions might also affect our own Company, directly or indirectly. We
analyse economic developments expected in the near future on pages 79.

Sector risks - Advertising market. Given the current extraordinarily low visibility in the
advertising market, investigating and assessing the orders situation is an important part of
risk management. Total orders are analyzed on the basis of new bookings, and advertising
revenues for the year are extrapolated. This ongoing analysis also studies the position of
competitors and developments in the economy as a whole and the advertising industry in
particular. Monthly reports to the Executive Board compare and analyze current and pro-
jected values in comparison with the figures from the year before.

Sector risks — TV usage. Lower TV consumption could have a material impact on our oper-
ating performance in our core business of free TV. However, at present the Group believes
that the risk of a substantial change in TV usage pattern is rather low. There has been
no sign so far of “cannibalization” - meaning migration of audiences to alternative media.
What one finds instead is an additive use of such media as TV and the Internet. The quality
and availability of content is a crucial success factor in the use of alternative media. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group further reduces its dependence on the TV market by diversifying its
business activities, and at the same time extends the reach of its programming content and
strong TV brands



2.1 Acquisition of licensed programming. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group acquires many of its
feature films, TV films and series as licensed programming from third parties, with a strong
focus on major US studios. In addition to the general price risk, therefore, the Group is also
exposed to the risk of potential price increases due to the ongoing success of US series.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group can keep price risks relatively low because of its strong position
as a licensee. The Group's negotiating position with major studios and independents is fur-
ther supported by stable business relationships founded on many years of cooperation and
long-standing contractual arrangements, and by the Group's European position as one of
the largest, most important licensees in the international TV market.

2.2 In-house productions and commissioned productions. In-house productions and com-
missioned productions represent an important percentage of programming. The tendency
toward concentration among producers has increasingly exposed the Group to a price risk
in this regard. Additionally, because reference figures are sometimes unavailable, the pros-
pects for the success of in-house and commissioned productions tend to be less certain than
in the case of purchased licenses.

ProSiebenSat.1 constantly conducts programming and market research, so that it can assess
productions’ prospects for success as reliably as possible. A broad supplier base, with a list
of core suppliers as short as possible, further helps to mitigate risk potential.

Producing content is a core component of our corporate strategy. Founding the Redseven
Entertainment production company in 2008 - a wholly owned subsidiary of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG - has positioned the Group even better to exploit its own or acquired programming
rights, and to develop them further on a cross-platform basis.

2.3 Programming inventory. The success of a programming policy depends on the program-
ming content’s appeal and profitability. An important early warning indicator in this con-
nection is the total return on programming inventory. As a rule, programming contracts are
signed several years ahead of the broadcast date. Programming rights are capitalized in the
amount of their contracted purchase price. To reduce inventory risk, the revenue potential
of broadcasting rights under contract undergoes regular review. In addition, to ensure that
the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has the largest possible number of attractive, successful films, as
a part of risk reporting the number of highlight films acquired by the Group is set in relation
to the total number of theatrical film highlights for the same year.

3.1 Broadcasting equipment and studio operations. A studio and broadcasting equipment
failure could cause substantial disruption of business operations. An infrastructure that no
longer meets the current needs of the market or current security requirements could also
prevent us from achieving our business goals. For that reason, the broadcasting process and
all material components of studio equipment at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are protected with
backup systems.

The construction of a new playout center in Munich in 2008 laid the cornerstone for the
Group's implementation of an innovative technical platform. Entirely tapeless working pro-
cedures and a new infrastructure ensure technological competitiveness by making it pos-
sible to exploit all content via all media, early and in parallel, while at the same time improv-
ing process quality.

3.2 IT risks. The increasing complexity of the Group’s systems means that IT security risks
may have serious consequences for business processes. These include failures of systems,

Risk Report
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applications, or the network, but also data integrity and data confidentiality. IT security risks
are mitigated by regular investments in hardware and software, by using firewall systems
and virus scanners, and by establishing various access authorizations and controls. The IT
unit has multiple computer centers at separate locations, which take over one another's
tasks automatically in the event of a failure, without losing either time or data. The IT secu-
rity strategy is updated regularly.

Audience share / TV ratings. Ratings of the free TV stations, and especially audience share
among the key demographic, are among the most important early warning indicators. A
structural reduction in ratings might have financial consequences for ProSiebenSat.1. But
the Group continues to view this risk as rather improbable

Sales. Immediately following the conclusion of the penalty proceedings by the German Fed-
eral Cartel Office in 2007, the Group's advertising sales company in Germany, SevenOne
Media, presented a new discount and fee model. The revised discount model was not as
well received by agencies and advertising clients as had been expected, so that it had to be
revised during 2008. Based on discussions with advertisers and on the current order levels,
the Group believes there is rather little risk that the market will remain reluctant to accept
the revised model.

Convergence. The steadily growing availability of alternative media entails a risk that adver-
tisers might turn away from conventional television. For that reason, ProSiebenSat.1 is mov-
ing vigorously to diversify its media services, and increasingly counts on the potential of new
media in addition to its core business in TV. One part of this strategy has been the merger of
SevenOne Media (TV) and SevenOne Interactive (Online). By combining its marketing subsid-
iaries for TV and online services, ProSiebenSat.1 can respond better to the market's require-
ments, and can offer clients cross-media advertising concepts.

Relocation of Sat.1. As part of a strategic reorientation, the decision was made at the end of
2008 to concentrate stations Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and 9Live at the Munich site. The
relocation of Sat.1 (except for its central editorial department) from Berlin to Unterféhring
will be completed by mid-2009. The Group expects mid- and long-term advantages from an
improved use of programming resources and creative potential. However, for the short term
risks are presented by logistics, human resources, and the integration of processes at the
shared site in Unterfdhring.

IT outsourcing. In 2008 the ProSiebenSat.1 Group signed a long-term outsourcing agree-
ment with IBM. IBM, a leader in IT services, will take over and expand all IT business applica-
tions and the IT and media systems of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion. Over the next few years,
it will set up a broadcast integration center and standardize processes and business applica-
tions. The aim of outsourcing IT is to position ProSiebenSat.1 more efficiently and more flex-
ibly in the European media and entertainment market, while at the same time cutting costs.
ProSiebenSat.1 incurs risks here, however, because of the resulting greater dependency on
an external service provider and because of the associated need to adjust processes. The
transformation of existing processes and the clear allocation of duties and responsibilities
are continuously monitored by a governance board, which additionally serves as an interface
between the Group companies and IBM.

5.1 Personnel risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's success depends significantly on the abili-
ties and dedication of its employees. Personnel risks arise primarily in recruiting and de-
veloping staff, and in the turnover of employees in key positions. The Group limits these
risks in part by a strategic management development program that builds on the corporate
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mission statement and the management guidelines that have been derived from it. Addition-
ally, performance-based and results-based incentive systems give concrete form to higher-
order corporate objectives, and bring them down to the level of specific goals for segments,
departments and individual employees. These goals are pursued through goal agreement
meetings, site meetings, and goal achievement meetings

The Group has also launched initiatives to introduce a code of conduct that will apply
throughout the corporation. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group Code of Compliance ensures that
the Group's business activities are in line with internationally recognized standards, as well
as local laws and regulations.

5.2 Financial risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks
through its business operations. These risks are managed centrally as a part of financial risk
management. Apart from ensuring solvency, the aim of financial risk management is to op-
timize the Group's financial result. The principles, duties and responsibilities of financial risk
management are governed by the internal corporate financial guidelines of the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group. Financial risk management is founded on strategies that have been defined
in close cooperation with the Executive Board. These include not only the Group Financial
Guideline, but other guidelines for structuring the Group’s internal financing, borrowings,
and requirements to be met by external business partners for finance and treasury transac-
tions (counterparty guidelines). Any derivative financial instruments that may be employed
serve solely to hedge existing risk positions, not for active trading purposes

In the context of the current crisis on the international financial markets and the difficult
overall economic conditions in Europe the financial risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group has increased in general:

Finance risk: By finance risk, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group refers to having adequate fund-
ing available and accessible, whether through equity or through borrowings. In this con-
nection, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group monitors the situation on money markets and capital
markets. The availability of funds depends in part on compliance with particular require-
ments known as “financial covenants.” Given the current difficult financial environment,
the financial risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has increased, also with regard to
the adherence of financial covenants. Compliance with these ratios is monitored on an
ongoing basis, also prospective on the basis of budgets. On basis of the current budgets,
the company does not expect any violation of the financial covenants. Further informa-
tion on financial covenants can be found in the chapter “Borrowings” on page 54.

The Group currently has a EUR 4.2 billion syndicated facilities agreements that extends
to mid-2014/15, so that it currently has no refinancing needs. The syndicated facilities are
composed of two loans totaling EUR 3.6 billion (Term Loan B and C), as well as a revolving
credit facility with a facility amount of EUR 600.0 million, which can be drawn upon vari-
ably for general operating purposes.

Currency risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's foreign currency risks from transactions
(transaction risks) arise primarily from the fact that it acquires a significant portion of
its programming rights from production studios in the United States. Thus the Group is
exposed to risks from fluctuations in the exchange rate between the euro and the dollar,
but also fluctuations in non-euro Group currencies against the dollar. To hedge currency
risks, the Group enters into forward exchange transactions and currency options.

There are no hedges for exchange rate changes to the euro for Group companies whose
functional currency is not the euro, but is translated to euros in the preparation of the con-
solidated financial statements (foreign currency translation).

Risk Report
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Exchange rate fluctuations that result when “non-euro” Group companies assume borrow-
ings denominated in euro, and the consequent impact on profits at those companies, are
likewise not hedged if these liabilities are expected to be retired with euro funds provided
by Group parent companies, rather than out of the operating (non-euro) cash flows of the
companies themselves. These are shown in the Group's income statement under “Other
Financial Expenses” Z1. Such fluctuations had an effect of -40.6 million.

Interest rate risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is exposed to interest rate risks through its
loan agreements. To mitigate risk, ProSiebenSat.1 has hedged about 80 percent of its vari-
able-interest financial liabilities through interest rate hedges. These interest rate hedges
are used to compensate for uncertain, variable-rate interest payments on borrowings
by replacing those payments with fixed-rate interest payments. Known as “interest rate
swaps,” they qualify as cash flow hedges that are covered by hedge accounting under IAS
39.88. The remaining variable interest rate risk results not only from the unhedged por-
tion of the term loans, but also from any draw-downs the Group may make on its revolving
credit facility. As of December 31, 2008, EUR 497.2 million had been drawn from this facil-
ity. An interest rate risk in the sense of a change in market value is of no relevance here,
since ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG's financial liabilities are reported at cost, and thus any
change in market value will have no effect on the balance sheet.

Liquidity risks: Liquidity risk - meaning the risk of being unable to meet payment obliga-
tions because of a shortage of available cash funds - is managed through a central cash
management system. The most important early warning indicator in this connection is
the expected liquidity headroom, which is calculated on the basis of available and project-
ed cash, taking the seasonal nature of the business into account. The Executive Board of
the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG assesses the liquidity of the company as good and assumes
that the liquidity headroom will suffice in the coming years as well

Contingency risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group, as a media corporation that operates
throughout Europe in multiple relationships with international partners in the financial
industry, must rely on fully functional markets for money, capital and derivatives. How-
ever, the international financial crisis has lent new importance to monitoring contingency
risks. To mitigate the risk of default on transactions involving financial instruments, the
Group engages in finance and treasury transactions only if the external counterparties
meet the strict credit standing requirements established in the counterparty guidelines.
Furthermore, the risk of concentration is mitigated by diversifying finance and treasury
transactions among multiple qualified counterparties.

A detailed description of hedging instruments, valuations and sensitivity analyses, as well
as other information about financial risk management, is provided in the Notes to the Finan-
cial Statements on page 120.

6.1 General compliance. Corporate governance risks arise from potential violations of statu-
tory reporting obligations and from insufficient transparency in corporate management and
corporate communications. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group limits these risks with a Group-wide
compliance structure. The program includes training employees in antitrust matters, as well
as internal oversight and sanctioning mechanisms to prevent any violations of the antitrust
laws from the outset.

6.2 Antitrust law
Risk of third-party lawsuits: Germany's Federal Cartel Office concluded its proceedings
against SevenOne Media in 2007, in return for payment of a fine. In November 2008,
RTL2 and its marketing company, El Cartel, filed suit in Disseldorf Regional Court against



SevenOne Media and the ProSiebenSat.1 broadcasting companies. The current suit seeks
a declaratory judgment and information, not specific damages; its aim instead is to estab-
lish an obligation in principle to pay damages. There can be no certainity that additional
third parties will not attempt to bring action against SevenOne Media in the aftermath of
these proceedings. A successful suit against the ProSiebenSat.1 Group or one of its sub-
sidiaries might have a material impact on the Group's financial and earnings situation.

Market investigation in Hungary: The general market investigation by the Hungarian
competition authorities, already mentioned in the 2007 risk report, had not been com-
pleted yet as of the end of 2008. The investigation concentrates on three aspects: televi-
sion advertising, the sale of television programming, and purchases of film and sports
rights. It is not directed against ProSiebenSat.1 Group companies. However, the Hungar-
ian competition authority could expand the investigation, and thus might affect the busi-
ness of the Group's Hungarian free TV station TV2.

6.3 Media law / Broadcasting licenses

Regional windows: The Saarland Media Act requires state-wide programming windows
to be incorporated at least into the two private nationwide television channels with the
greatest technical reach, and these windows must be financed by the broadcasters of
the nationwide channels. ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG respectively Sat.1 have brought legal
action against the obligation to provide Saarland programming windows, and have pre-
vailed on procedural grounds. There has been no decision on the merits of the matter so
far. Saarland is expected to submit a new requlation and to maintain its demand. As the
proceedings are still pending, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is taking an active role in this so-
cial, media-policy and legal controversy, to combat these restrictions. The financing that
would have to be provided by Sat.1 or ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for a new regional window
is estimated at roughly EUR 5 million per year.

There is a further risk that in German states which hitherto have had no requirements for
programming windows, demands for similar arrangements might also follow. In these discus-
sions as well, the Company is taking an active part to counteract an expansion of further
regional TV requirements.

Requlatory risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is particularly exposed to risks connected
with more stringent requlatory requirements, for example regarding advertising, forms
of advertising, broadcasting licenses and games. Any unforeseen changes in the legal and
regulatory conditions might have a material impact on individual business activities. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group actively monitors all relevant developments, and maintains constant
contact with the regulatory authorities so as to ensure that its interests are taken into ac-
count to the best possible degree.

6.4 Distribution. For the Company's stations, lasting success in the advertising market de-
pends most significantly on high audience reach. Apart from programming appeal, this reach
depends especially on the technical distribution of the TV stations over as many distribution
channels as possible. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's stations have high technical reaches. For
this purpose, the Group has signed long-term distribution and cooperation agreements with
satellite operators, broadband network operators, and, for distribution on mobile terminals,
telecommunications firms.

The changeover from analog to digital broadcasting will further multiply the capacity avail-
able for carrying the Group's television programming and other services. Signing long-term
distribution agreements has ensured that the reach of the Group's stations will still be as-
sured as the transition from the analog to the digital age advances. For that reason, the
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ProSiebenSat.1 Group is confident that its stations will continue to be distributed nation-
wide in both analog and digital format.

6.5 Other risks.
Tax risks: ProSiebenSat.1 Group may be exposed to an abstract income tax risk in con-
junction with a pending investigation by the Munich State Prosecutor’s Office | against
certain private individuals. Depending on the outcome of that investigation, certain past
operating expenses might be reclassified retroactively as non-deductible.

Rights of use in new media: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is currently in negotiations with
various copyright holders about the use of their rights on the Group's platforms, espe-
cially in new media (online). The negotiations primarily concern the rights of (online) use
for music held by various rights licensing companies. The fragmentation of rights of use is
making it increasingly difficult to reach consensus with all involved, and is thus impeding
a practical, quick solution to the matter. This situation could adversely affect the develop-
ment of the new media business.

Call TV Netherlands: The Netherlands public prosecutor’s office and local tax authorities
are investigating a Group subsidiary for a suspected breach of the Dutch laws on gaming.
The investigation focuses primarily on whether and to what extent call TV and similar
business operations, such as televoting, can be considered illegal gambling. Violations of
the relevant laws could be penalized with confiscation of the sales revenues generated
by the targeted business operations. The call TV programs were suspended in November
2007. The outcome of the pending proceedings cannot be foreseen reliably. Court deci-
sions or settlements might have material adverse effects on the Group's financial and
earnings situation. No provision had been set aside as of the reporting date.
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Outlook

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's business success depends to a large degree on developments
in the TV advertising market, especially the TV advertising market in Germany. Because
clients’ budgeting approach is very short-term, and also because the advertising industry
is extraordinarily vulnerable to cyclical fluctuations in the economy, any projection for the
TV advertising market is inherently uncertain. The unforeseeable consequences of the in-
tensifying crisis in the international financial markets and in real economies serve to impair
visibility still further. Economic risks are identified as part of the Group-wide risk detection
system, and are taken into account in the budgeting process, so far as possible. On the
other hand, where our assumptions and estimates prove to be too conservative, they give
rise to opportunities

The expectations discussed below for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's business in 2009 and
2010 are based on current assessments of economic developments in our most important
markets. Our projections here are based primarily on the following assumptions:

Our revised ad sales model will be accepted in the German market.

The German TV advertising market will slow down in 2009; the recession will also affect
our international TV markets.

In hard economic times, the advertising industry increasingly relies on time-tested media,
so that in relative terms, the standing of TV advertising should rise.

Internet advertising will also increase in the coming year, while print and radio will par-
ticularly suffer from the downswing.

OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF EXPECTED GROUP PERFORMANCE

- MANAGEMENT'S VIEW

We will have a very challenging year again in 2009, since we expect the markets for TV ad-
vertising in Europe to decline. With our new advertising time sales model for 2009, we are
well positioned to face the challenges of the coming months. But to return to a highly com-
petitive position in the TV advertising market, and to strengthen our competitive position
in Europe for the long term, we must do more than capitalize on our advantages regarding
audiences in the next few months - we must respond to the adverse economic environment
with ongoing proactive cost management and improved organizational structures. By pool-
ing our TV operations in Germany, we are focusing our attention on an environment that is
considerably more challenging than it has been in past years. We will lastingly strengthen
the competitive position of our family of stations, and at the same time make our company
even more efficient. Our most important task will be to systematically implement the steps
we initiated to improve efficiency during 2008.

Get future-ready » Our most important targets for 2009

We will achieve our financial goals.

We will capitalize on our strong performance with audiences to recover shares of the Ger-
man TV advertising market, thanks to our revised marketing model.

We will improve our cost structure.

We will invest in attractive programming and optimize our content output.

We will make the most of the growth potential offered by digital developments and our
international portfolio, and strengthen our Diversification unit.

We will strategically refocus the TV group in Germany, and network our activities even
more fully, both in Germany and in the rest of Europe.

Outlook



FUTURE ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

The worldwide economic crisis has intensified significantly further since the US-American
investment bank Lehman Brothers filed for protection from creditors in September 2008.
Obstacles are posed not just by turbulence in the financial market and poorer loan market
conditions, but companies’ less optimistic earnings outlooks. The International Monetary
Fund (IMF) estimates that the world economy will grow only half a percent in 2009. With ap-
propriate political support, a recovery in 2010 seems possible, but all forecasts carry a very
significant degree of uncertainty. There is a constant risk of downward corrections.

After an especially weak fourth quarter, the outlook for the Euro zone (15 countries)
in 2009 is extremely guarded. At present, the IMF projects a 2.0 percent decline. The
European Commission is expecting -1.9 percent. All the European economies have been
affected by the global economic crisis, although to varying degrees. The outlook is espe-
cially gloomy for Ireland and the Baltic states, but Germany, the United Kingdom, France,
Italy and Spain must also expect serious setbacks. Only a few countries are expected to
show a positive balance for the year - and with significant drop-offs even in those cases.
Romania and Bulgaria are among those countries. The outlook for the development of
consumer spending tends to be somewhat better.

As an country heavily depend on exports, Germany will also suffer more severely from
the consequences of the global economic crisis in 2009. In its annual economic report, the
German government projects that the worldwide economic crisis will cause gross domes-
tic product to shrink 2.25 percent in real terms in 2009. Especially significant declines are
expected among the growth engines from the past few years - capital goods and exports.
However, positive impetus is expected from consumption - both government and private.
This expectation is based on rising government spending and higher private household
income. The critical factor for consumer spending will be how seriously the economic
crisis impacts the job market. The annual financial report currently expects a rather mod-
erate rise in unemployment, to 8.4 percent by the end of 2009 (2008: 7.8 percent). In all,
the current year will be one of the most difficult in the economic history of the Federal
Republic.

Development of the advertising market in ProSiebenSat.1's main markets. The projected
performance of gross domestic product largely parallels the expected trend in the adver-
tising markets. For countries with vigorous economic growth, above-average growth in ad-
vertising spends is expected - especially if the expansion is strongly driven by consumer
spending. Based on current economic forecasts, which expect Germany's economy to feel
the impact more than average because of the country’s strong orientation to exports, we
must currently expect a negative TV advertising market in 2009. ZenithOptimedia expects
TV advertising spends in Germany to decrease 3.5 percent in 2009. ZenithOptimedia has
also lowered its projections for some of the other markets where the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
operates. However, because of the current situation in the financial market, these projec-
tions must be considered quite uncertain.
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OPPORTUNITY REPORT

Digital evolution poses great challenges for media companies. But for a content provider
like the ProSiebenSat.1 Group, it most of all offers substantial growth opportunities, since
attractive content is the crucial factor for success in competing for audiences:

Opportunities from the development of the business environment and performance op-
portunities. Despite the wide variety of available media, television continues to exercise
an unbroken attraction. The German example proves that television is the most popular
leisure pursuit, and reaches nearly three-quarters of the population every day. Viewing
time among the key demographic for private television - audiences between the ages of
14 and 49 - remained stable at a high level in 2008 compared to 2007: the figure for both
years was 178 minutes a day. And it even rose among another important target audience:
heads of households between 14 and 49 watched TV for 229 minutes a day in 2007, and
231 minutes in 2008. Viewing time even increased three minutes a day for the Internet-
friendly audience between 14 and 29 (2007: 133 minutes/day; 2008: 136 minutes/day).
Accordingly, the Internet is by no means taking viewers away from television. The two
media are not cannibalizing one another - they complement each other.

Our greatest opportunity in the German TV advertising market - the most important single
region for our revenue performance - is to capitalize on our strong audience share to re-
store our share of the German TV advertising market.

Opportunities in corporate strategy. Our most important strategic goal will remain to
strengthen our core business in free TV and to focus on attractive programming content.
Integrating SBS expanded our portfolio of brands significantly and opened up interest-
ing new growth opportunities for our company. As Europe’s only fully integrated family
of broadcasters, we can make optimum use of synergies in such areas as programming
development. And we can also profit from economies of scale. Economies of scale will
especially result from multi-station production of programming content. Apart from ad-
ditional opportunities for multiple uses of content, the SBS merger gives us possibilities
for broader geographic diversification.

One important factor for future competitiveness will be to position the Group for the
digital world by adapting TV concepts to people's changing media use habits. Another will
be a balanced revenue mix - meaning an optimum level of independence from individual
economic cycles and sources of revenue. For that reason, besides focusing clearly on our
core business in commercial television, we will continue diversifying our revenue model
by using digital media to extend our TV brands and by expanding our portfolio interna-
tionally. ProSiebenSat.1is setting an important milestone for growth in the digital age by
upgrading N24 to become Europe's most up-to-date news station. By building a new play-
out center in Munich and setting up a shared, tapeless pool of materials, ProSiebenSat.1
is setting new standards, while at the same time systematically making use of openings to
enhance efficiency by centralizing different processes.
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Given the current turbulence in the financial markets and its unforeseeable impact on the
European economy, any projections about the TV advertising market carry unusually high
levels of uncertainty. For that reason, a multi-year forecast for financial key figures is im-
possible at the moment.

Projected revenue and earnings performance. Assuming that the general economic slump
will continue, expectations for the individual segments in fiscal 2009 are as follows::

Free TV in German-Speaking Europe segment: We aim to win back advertising market
share in 2009 in an overall weak market to compensate at least partly the economic slow-
down. One indication that supports this expectation is the positive outcome of our annual
discussions with our advertisers which show that we once again have a competitive mar-
keting model. In addition, our successes with audiences, relative to the performance of
the TV advertising market, should also have positive effects on the advertising industry’s
investments.

Free TV International segment: Our international TV advertising markets also showed
distinct signs of slackening in the fourth quarter of 2008. We expect negative growth
rates in the international TV business in 2009.

Diversification segment: We expect the Diversification segment to grow further in the
online and radio business in particular, especially thanks to the effects of consolidation
and new acquisitions. Mainly because of the deconsolidation of C More in December
2008, revenues in 2009 will be below prior year's level.

In the background of the difficult market environment, keeping costs as low as possible is
an important prerequisite of our profitability. For that reason, although our cost manage-
ment is already rigorous, we have adopted extensive cost cutting measures in our budget
for 2009. Allin all, operating costs should be about EUR 100 million less than in fiscal 2008.
Especially by the setup of the German TV stations under German Free TV Holding, and by
pooling German sales operations, we expect to make more efficient use of resources and
cut operating costs significantly in fiscal 2009 ZI. Additionally, we are making every effort
to derive maximum benefit from the synergies that result from the integration of SBS. Both
of these factors will have a positive effect on recurring EBITDA.

Outlook
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Nevertheless we cannot exclude that our earnings performance will be impacted given the
difficult economic conditions. In case of a recovery of the advertising markets, our strength-
ened measures to improve efficiency should help us to increase our operative earnings (re-
curring EBITDA) in 2010.

Projects for the integration of SBS in fiscal 2009

PROJECTS MEASURES

v

Content Co-productions and back-to-back productions
Internal development of concepts for uses in individual and multiple territories

Expansion of our catalogue of programming concepts

v oV

Sales > Expansion of multinational services and new business activities

New Media > Ongoing focus on international projects for synergy and innovations in
online, video on demand, mobile, licensing and music operations

Operations > Optimized operating procedures at playout centers and

Group-wide applications
Intensified exchange of trailer materials

~

Supporting Functions

~

Introduction of efficient procurement structures and processes for Germany
Development of a strategic purchasing function for the entire Group

v

Expected financial position and future investments. Following the acquisition of SBS, re-
ducing financial debt and lowering our leverage will be a high priority in the years to come.
The lower dividend proposed by the Executive Board for fiscal 2008 takes due account of
this goal

Despite its outstanding debt, the Group has enough leeway to implement the investments
required to its operative and strategic goals, and to take advantage of opportunities for
acquisitions as they present themselves. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group plans to invest signifi-
cantly in tangible and intangible assets again in 2009, and most of this investment will
again go to programming. Besides expanding our programming operations, another fun-
damental component in our strategy is our online portals. These portals make a significant
contribution toward building audience loyalty, and are an important lever in extending our
TV brands. At the same time, with the use of digital platforms the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
offers specific added value for viewers and advertisers, because these platforms serve
people's changing media usage habits, and offer opportunities for 360-degree commu-
nication. For that reason, the Group will invest further in expanding its online activities in
2009. The portals we have acquired in the past few years will be tied in even more closely
with our family of stations, and all video content from Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel eins will be
gradually packaged up to be offered on the Internet. In this connection, ProSiebenSat.1 will
also significantly expand its range of online video services.

Divestments are another part of our strategy for optimizing our portfolio by focusing more
sharply on our core competences. In other words, we will invest in strengthening busi-
nesses that have high growth potential, and dispose operations that offer little potential
for synergy in terms of networking with our free TV activities. In this connection, early in
2009 ProSiebenSat.1signed an agreement to sell the Billiger.de online portal. The sale was
consummated in February.

The Group's future focus. Amid a difficult market environment, we have begun an integra-
tion process that has significantly strengthened our market position in Europe. The merger
with SBS has made ProSiebenSat.1 a multinational media corporation with a broadly diversi-
fied portfolio. Now, in Germany, our largest and most important market, we are in the pro-
cess of setting our course for the future. For that reason, toward the end of 2008 we began
steps to pool operations in our German Free TV and Sales units:



The stations Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel eins will be part of a matrix organization, and
multi-station departments will be established for such tasks as scheduling, production
management, controlling and communications. The stations are to be brought together
under one roof in Munich by June 2009. The plans for the organizational improvement
include relocating Sat.1 from Berlin to the Group's headquarters in Munich. The Sat.1 cen-
tral editorial department will not be moving to Munich; in tandem with N24 it will provide
the Group's journalistic center of competence in Berlin.

All of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's holding-company functions in Germany will be head-
quartered in Munich.

Because of the rising demand for integrated advertising campaign concepts, the sales
companies SevenOne Media GmbH (TV) and SevenOne Interactive GmbH (online) will be
combined.

These changes will entail staff reductions of 225 jobs in Germany. The new setup of our
companies in Germany will enable us to make more efficient use of our resources. At the
same time, we will be better able to meet the market's needs thanks to a closer intermeshing
of know-how and creativity. The process is to be completed by June 30, 2009 at the latest.

Outlook



Programming Outlook 2009

>> In 2009, ProSiebenSat.1 will again offer viewers a broad range of TV programming, with up-to-date informa-
tion, exciting films and series, and major events. This coming fall, for example, the legendary Sat.1 soccer show
“ran" will be returning to the screen in Germany. Additionally, in the super election year 2009, Sat.1 will be show-
ing “Wahlarena,” with Sabine Christiansen and Stefan Aust. ProSieben will continue to count on blockbuster films,
U.S. series and successfull shows like “Germany's next Topmodel - by Heidi Klum" or “Beat the Star"” with Stefan
Raab. Austrian station PULS 4 will also be scoring with its own version, “Austria’s next Topmodel.” Another high-
light in 2009, both nationally and internationally, will be the exciting action-fun show “WipeOut."” “WipeOut" will
airin 2009 on ProSieben in Germany, and as a pan-Scandinavian co-production in Sweden, Norway and Denmark.
For a short preview of these and other highlights from ProSiebenSat.1's international TV schedule, see below:

aramount Pictures

01// May is “Star Trek” month at kabel eins. Apart from films, repeat
episodes, and documentaries, the German station will also air a show
on all aspects of the beloved science fiction adventure series.

02// The new series “Verborgen Gebreken,” which airs in 2009 on
Dutch station NET 5, is set in the world of real estate.

03// Denmark's Kanal 4 will show the lifestyle documentary “Baro-
nessen flytter ind” in 2009, with Danish Baroness Caroline Fleming.

04// Austrian station PULS 4 already found “Austria’s next Topmo-
del” in February - and earned audience shares of up to 13 percent in
the process.




© Warner Bros

05// The exciting show event “WipeOut" debuts in 2009 on ProSie-
ben, as well as on TV NORGE in Norway and Kanal 5 in Sweden and
Denmark, through a Scandinavian co-production.

06// On the Norwegian dating show “Age of Love,” which starts on
TV NORGE in March, a bachelor looks for the right woman to share
his life.

07// ProSieben will launch the new U.S. mystery series “Fringe”
in March.

08// Since January 2009, Sat.1 has been showing a new round of
the improv comedy “Schillerstrasse” with Jiirgen Vogel as the new
tenant - and has been earning audience shares of up to 17.7 percent.

09// ProSieben will air the second installment of the “Pirates of
the Caribbean" saga during the year.

10// International hit show “Hole in the Wall" debuted in January
on Prima TV in Romania, under the title “Vedete-n Figuri,” and ear-
ned audience shares of up to 19.7 percent.

Programming Outlook 2009



> The Consolidated Financial Statements of ProSiebenSat.
Group have been prepared in accordance with International Fi-
nancial Reporting Standards (IFRS). They also take account of
all additional requirements under the German Commercial
Code (HGB).

The independent auditors have examined the Consolidated
Financial Statements and the Group Management Report, as
well as the single-entity Financial Statements and Manage-
ment Report of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and have given them
an unqgualified audit opinion. The single-entity financial state-
ments of ProSiebenSat.l Media AG have been prepared in
accordance with the German Commercial Code, and have been
published separately from the Consolidated Financial State-
ments at www.prosiebensatl.com
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Consolidated Income Statement of ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Change
2008 2007* Change in %
1. Revenues 71 2,710,421 343,820 13%
2. Cost of sales [8,17] -1,867,272 -1,623,380 243,892 15%
3. Gross profit 1,186,969 1,087,041 99,928 9%
4. Selling expenses [9, 171 -374,486 75,366 20%
5. Administrative expenses [10, 171 -344,013 189,842 550
6. Other operating income [11] 63,230 16,743 46,487 278%
7. Operating profit 385,285 118,793 31%
8. Income from equity interests in associated companies 592 1,914 -1,322 -69%
9. Other financial result 121 208 3,141 -1510%
10. Other interest and similar income 28,009 -9,017 -32%
11. Interest and similar expenses -143,751 130,677 91%
12, Net interest result [13] -115,742 -139,694 121%
13, Other finance result 141 21,881 55,273 -253%
14. Financial income -135,501 -199,430 -147%
15, Loss/profit before taxes 249,784 318,223 -127%
16.  Income taxes 1151 -153,572 -96,521 -63%
17.  Consolidated loss/profit for the year 96,212 221,702 -230%

I

Attributable to [
Equity holders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 89,445 -218,586 -244%
Minority interests 6,767 3,116 -46%

I

I

Basic and diluted earnings per share of common stock according m
to IAS 33# 16l 0.40 -1.00 -250%

Basic and diluted earnings per share of preferred stock accor- -
ding to IAS 33% nel 8 0.42 -1.00 -238%

* ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH was presented as ,,Discontinued Operations” in 2007. As the sale is no longer pursued, figures for 2007 were
adjusted.

**based on net profit of EUR -129.1 million for the period (comparable period: EUR 89.4 million); underlying number of common and
preferred shares: 217,918 thousand (comparable period: 218,797 thousand)



Consolidated Balance Sheet of ProSiebenSat.1 Group - Assets

12/31/2008 12/31/2007* Change

A. Non-current assets

l. Intangible assets [18] 3,004,010 3,540,371 -536,361

1. Property, plant and equipment [19] 248,945 267,869 -18,924

1. Investments accounted at equity method [20] 6,868 4,583 2,285

V. Non-current financial assets [20] 58,272 70,508 -12,236

V. Programming assets [21] 1,149,157 917,110 232,047

VI.  Accounts receivable and other non-current assets [23] 7,591 14,091 -6,500

VIl.  Deferred taxes [15] 91,528 50,708 40,820

4,566,371 4,865,240 -298,869

B. Current assets

l. Programming assets [21] 230,815 400,575 -169,760

1. Inventories [22] B8 4,849 688

1. Current financial assets [23] 211 264 -53

IV.  Assets for current tax 59,911 34,109 25,802

V. Accounts receivable and other current assets [23] 434,153 442,962 -8,809

VI.  Cash and cash equivalents [24] 632,871 250,847 382,024
1,363,498 1,133,606 229,892
Total assets 5,929,869 5,998,846 -68,977

Consolidated Balance Sheet of ProSiebenSat.1 Group - Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

12/31/2008 12/31/2007* Change

A. Shareholders’ equity [25] _
. Subscribed capital 218,797 -1-
IR Capital reserves 546,987 152
1. Group equity generated 342,646 -399,040
IV.  Treasury shares -/- -15,105
V. Accumulated other Group equity -56,539 -177,551

Subscribed capital and reserves attributable to equity holders of -
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 460,347 1,051,891 -591,544
VI. Minority interests 10,435 8,141
1,062,326 -583,403

B. Non-current liabilities _
. Long-term loans and borrowings [28] 3,577,297 54,145
I} Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits [26] 4,344 2,617
Il Other provisions 1271 6,964 5716
IV.  Non-current financial liabilities [28] 199,440 132,301
V. Other liabilities [29] -1- 25,116
VL.  Deferred taxes [15] 207,272 -10,607
3,995,317 89,656

C. Current liabilities _
I Short-term loans and borrowings [28] 2,196 514,467
Il Other provisions [271 177,819 439
Il Current financial liabilities [28] 391,625 40,418
IV.  Other liabilities [29] 360,563 -130,554
941,203 424,770
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 5,998,846 -68,977

* ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH was presented as ,Held for Sale” as of December 31, 2007. As the sale is no longer pursued, figures for
December 31, 2007 were adjusted.



Consolidated Cash-Flow statement of ProSiebenSat.1 Group*

Consolidated loss/profit of the year [before minority interests]
Depreciation, amortization and impairment/write-up of non-current and current assets
Consumption/write-ups of programming assets

Change in tax provisions [incl. change in deferred taxes]
Change in other provisions

Result from equity accounting and other noncash relevant changes within financial assets
Result from sale of fixed assets

Unrealised currency effects

Other noncash income / expenses

Cash-Flow

Change in inventories

Change in non-interest-bearing receivables and other assets
Change in non-interest-bearing liabilities

Cash-Flow from operating activities

Proceeds from disposals of non-current assets

Expenditures for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
Expenditures for purchase of financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of programming assets

Expenditures for purchase of programming assets

Effects of changes in the scope of consolidation [acquistions]
Effects of changes in the scope of consolidation [disposals]
Other changes in equity

Cash-Flow from investing activities

Free Cash-Flow

Paid dividends

Reduction of interest-bearing liabilities

Allocation of interest-bearing liabilities

Purchase of own shares

Cash-Flow from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents**

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period

The Cash-Flow includes the following receipts and payments in accordance with IAS 7
Cash-Flow from income taxes
Cash-Flow from interest expenses

Cash-Flow from interest income

2008

354,779
1,224,120
-84,075

1,210
-44,532

-688
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2007

96,212

137,041
1,127,152
5,733
31,150
867

452
21,467
-9,779

1,410,295

-543
-36,861
227,473

1,600,364

4,042
-41,462
-5,129
9,110
-1,176,684
-2,026,681
4,264
-43,227
-3,275,767

-1,675,403

-192,542
-1,485,395
3,540,647
-/-
1,862,710

187,307

63,540

250,847

-148,114
-106,728
8,195

* Please find the notes to the cash flow statement under note 30. ** includes changes in cash and cash equivalents due to currency effects of

EUR -4,609 thousand [2007: EUR -5,886 thousand]



Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of ProSiebenSat.1 Group in 2007

Subscribed Capital Group Accumulated other Group Minority Sharehol-
capital reserves equity equity interests ders’ equity
generated
Foreign Valuation
currency from cash
translation flow hedges
adjustment and interest
rate swaps
December 31, 2006 218,797 584,537 445,743 -458 -9,144 1,049 1,240,524
Dividends paid -/- -1/- -192,542 -/- -/- -/- -192,542
Changes in the scope of consolidation -/- -/- -/- -/- -/- 2,649 2,649
Stock option plan -/- -9,779 -/- -/- -/- -/- -9,779
Liabilities to owners of preferred shares in
accordance with IAS 32 -/ - -27,771 -/ - -/- -/- -/- -27,771
Statement of recognized income and
expense -/ - -/- -/ - -15,615 -31,322 -30 -46,967
Consolidated profit of the year -/- -/ - 89,445 -/- -/- 6,767 96,212
December 31, 2007 218,797 546,987 342,646 -16,073 -40,466 10,435 1,062,326

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of ProSiebenSat.1 Group in 2008

Subscribed Capital Group Treasury Accumulated other Group Minority Sharehol-
capital reserves equity shares equity interests ders’ equity
generated
Foreign Valuation
currency from cash
translation flow hedges
adjustment and interest
rate swaps
December 31, 2007 218,797 546,987 342,646 -1- -16,073 -40,466 10,435 1,062,326
Dividends paid -/- -/- -269,899 -/- -/- -/- -5,583 -275,482
Changes in the scope of
consolidation -1 - -1 - -1- -1 - -1- -1 - 10,018 10,018
Stock option plan -/- 152 -/ - -/- -/- -/- -/- 152
Purchase of own shares -/- -/- -/ - -15,105 -1- -1- -1 - -15,105
Statement of recognized
income and expense -/ - -/ - -/- -/ - -80,502 -97,049 55 -177,496

Consolidated loss
of the year -/- -1- -129,141 -/- -1- -/- 3,651 -125,490

December 31, 2008 218,797 547,139 -56,394 -15,105 -96,575 | -137,515 18,576 478,923

Statement of recognized income and expenses*

2007
Consolidated profit/loss of the year 96,212
Cash flow hedges -40,568
Deferred taxes from cash flow hedges 9,246
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment -15,615
Minority interests -30
Total income and expenses recognized in equity -46,967
Total income and expenses for the period 49,245
attributable to:
Shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG 42,508
Minorities 6,737

* Statement of recognized income and expenses is an integral part of the notes



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH IFRS

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1
Group for the financial year 2008 have been prepared
in accordance with the International Financial Report-
ing Standards (IFRS) of the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as adopted by the European
Union at the reporting date, December 31, 2008, as
well as the supplemental provisions of German com-
mercial law under Sec. 315a (1) of the German Commer-
cial Code. In addition to the IFRS reporting standards,
IFRSs also include the International Accounting Stan-
dards (IAS) and the Interpretations of the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
and the former Standing Interpretations Committee
(SIC). The German rules that are to be followed by pub-
licly traded companies in addition to IFRS are set forth
in Sec. 315a of the German Commercial Code.

On the basis of the recommendations of the Govern-
ment Commission on the German Corporate Gov-
ernance Code and the applicable terms of law under
Sec. 161 of the Stock Corporation Act, in March 2009
the Executive Board and Supervisory Board issued a
Declaration of Compliance, which has been made per-
manently available to shareholders on the Internet at
www.prosiebensatl.com.

The Group management report complies with the re-
quirements of Sec. 315 (1) and (2) of the German Com-
mercial Code, as well as with those for a Financial
Review under IAS 1. It also includes the Risk Report re-
quired under Sec. 315 of the German Commercial Code.

The financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Group in-
cludes consolidated income statement, consolidated
balance sheet, the statement of changes in equity,
consolidated cash flow statement, and the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. Income statement is
presented using the cost of sales method.

The consolidated financial statements have been pre-
pared under the historical cost convention except in
respect of certain financial assets and derivative finan-
cial instruments which are shown at fair value.

To provide a clearer and more meaningful picture, cer-
tain items have been combined in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet and consolidated income statement, while
specific explanations by item are provided in the notes.
Unless specifically indicated otherwise, all amounts are
in thousands of euros (EUR k).

Principles and methods of consolidation

The single-entity financial statements of both German
and foreign consolidated companies are incorporated
into the consolidated financial statements of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group using uniform accounting policies. Where
options within accounting policies have been exercised,
the details on this have been given in the notes.

The recognition, measurement and disclosure policies
as well as the explanations and information regarding
the consolidated financial statements under IFRS for
the financial year 2008 are substantially based on the
same accounting policies as the consolidated financial
statements for 2007, except for those accounting stan-
dards whose application has been mandatory since
January 1, 2008, and any accounting standards that
have been revised.

A change in measurement policies has been made in
respect to foreign currency translation. In the previ-
ous year, the balance sheet of the consolidated single-
entity financial statements in foreign currencies were
translated at the pertinent bid rates or offered rates,
as the case may be, as of the reporting date. However,
translation in the financial statements as of December
31, 2008, was carried out for the first time at the mid-
rate as of the reporting date. The difference between
these rates being immaterial, the resulting effects were
not clarified exactly.

A further change in accounting policies appears with
respect to “Discontinued operations” and “Assets and
liabilities held for sale”. For the time being, the sale
of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH is no longer being
pursued. Consequently, contrary to the presentation in
the consolidated financial statements of the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group as of December 31, 2007, this subsidiary is
no longer presented as a discontinued operation. The
values from the company’s income statement and bal-
ance sheet have been reclassified and included in the
corresponding line items within the continuing opera-
tions. The reclassification had no material impact on
current profits or losses, or those of previous periods.



The consolidated financial statements for December 31,
2007, included the following for “Assets and liabilities
held for sale":

ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH

12/31/2007
ASSETS
Groups of assets as held for sale
I. Intangible assets 5,648
1. Property, plant and equipment 22,934
lll. Non-current financial assets 35
IV. Inventories 171
V. Receivables and other current assets 2,076
VI. Cash and cash equivalents 21
VII. Deferred tax assets 108
30,993
””””””””””””””””””””””””” 12/31/2007
LIABILITIES
Groups of liabilities held for sale
I.  Provisions 300
1. Other liabilities 11,837
Ill. Deferred tax liabilities 245
12,382

The following values were shown as discontinued op-
erations in the consolidated financial statements as of
December 31, 2007:

ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH

2007
1. Revenues 7,888
2. Cost of sales -4,591
3. Gross profit 3,297
4. Administrative expenses -2,296
5. Operating profit 1,001
6. Profit before taxes 1,001
7. Income taxes -876
8. Profit for the year 125

In addition, the Group has made a change in the presen-
tation of liabilities between financial and other liabili-
ties. Financial liabilities now include only those liabilities
under which the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has a contractual
obligation to settle with the other party in cash or other
financial assets. The figures for the prior year have been
revised accordingly. See Notes [28] and [29] for further
information on these items of the balance sheet.

Recently implemented accounting standards

IFRS 8 [,Operating Segments'] was issued by the
IASB in November 2006 and was applied early by the

ProSiebenSat.1 Group, It requires companies to report
financial and descriptive information regarding their
reportable segments. IFRS 8 converts segment report-
ing from the “risk and reward"” approach under |IAS 14
to the “management” approach. Application of IFRS 8
is mandatory for the financial periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2009. In connection with the acquisi-
tion of the SBS Broadcasting Group, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group decided to apply the standard early during the
previous year, beginning with quarterly report for the
guarter that ended on September 30, 2007. For more
information about segment reporting, see Note [33].

The IASB released a new expanded version of interpre-
tation IFRIC 11 [,IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions'] in 2007. IFRIC 11 provides guidance on
how to recognize Group-wide share-based payments in
the single-entity financial statements (and sub-group
consolidated financial statements) of the entities con-
cerned, and how to classify share-based payments in
which an entity does not grant its own equity instru-
ments but buys them from third parties instead, or in
which the shareholders of the entity arrange for settle-
ment. Application of IFRIC 11 is mandatory for financial
periods beginning on or after March 1, 2007. The adop-
tion of the interpretation is not expected to have an im-
pact on ProSiebenSat.1 Group's financial statements.

The interpretations IFRIC 12 [,Service Concession Ar-
rangements’] and IFRIC 14 [,The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction’] were issued by IFRIC in November
2006 and June 2007 respectively. Application of these
interpretations is manadatory for financial periods be-
ginning on or after January 1, 2008. The adoption of
the interpretations is not expected to have an impact on
ProSiebenSat.1 Group's financial statements.

Recently published IFRS that are not yet mandatory
and have not been applied early

In September 2007, the IASB published an amended ver-
sion of IAS 1 [,Presentation of Financial Statements
‘(revised 2007)]. The revision is intended to enhance
users' ability to analyze and compare annual financial
statements. IAS 1 governs the principles of the presen-
tation and structure of the financial statements. It also
includes minimum requirements for the content of the fi-
nancial statements. The new standard is to be applied for
financial periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009.
It is allowed to be applied early. Since the amendment to
IAS 1 relates to disclosure requirements, it doesn’'t have
an effect on ProSiebenSat.1 Group's results of operations
or financial position.



In January 2008, the IASB published the amended stan-
dards of IFRS 3 [,Business Combinations' (revised 2008)]
and IAS 27 [,Consolidated and Separate Financial State-
ment’ (revised 2008)1.

IFRS 3 (2008) provides new rules for applying the ac-
quisition method in business combinations. Significant
changes relate to the measurement of “non-controlling
interests” (minority interests), the recognition of step
acquisitions, and the treatment of contingent consid-
eration and incidental costs. Under the new version,
non-controlling interests may be measured either at
fair value (“full goodwill method"), or at the fair value
of the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
identifiable net assets. In step acquisitions, interests
held prior to the date on which control is obtained must
be remeasured at fair value as of that date, and any ad-
justments must be recognized in profit or loss. Future
changes to contingent consideration shown as a liability
as of the date of acquisition must be recognized in profit
or loss. Incidental costs associated with the acquisition
must be expensed as of the date when they arise.

Material changes in IAS 27 (2008) relate to the rec-
ognition of transactions that do not result in a change
of control, and those in which a loss of control occurs.
Transactions that do not result in a change of control
are recognized directly in equity, with no gain or loss.
Retained ownership interests are to be fair valued at
the date when control is lost. In the case of non-con-
trolling interests, negative balances may be recognized
- in other words, the entity must attribute their share
of total comprehensive income to the non-controlling
interests without limitation.

The revised standards are mandatory for financial pe-
riods beginning on or after July 1, 2009. IFRS 3 (2008)
may be applied early for transactions in financial peri-
ods beginning on or after June 30, 2007. Entities that
exercise this option must disclose that fact, and must
apply revised standard IAS 27 (2008) at the same time.
The same applies in the converse case, i.e., if the op-
tion under IAS 27 (2008) is exercised, application of
IFRS 3 (2008) is also mandatory. ProSiebenSat.1 Group
is currently analyzing the effects of the amendments to
Group's financial statements.

In January 2008, the IASB adopted the revised version
of IFRS 2 [,Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations' (revised 2008)]. The addition un-
equivocally lays down that vesting conditions are ser-
vice conditions and performance conditions only. Other
features of a share-based payment are not vesting con-
ditions. At the same time, the addition makes clear that

an entity must recognize cancellations by parties other
than the entity itself in the same way as cancellations
by the entity itself. Companies must apply the amended
version retroactively for financial periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2009. It may be applied earlier. The
adoption of the amendment of IFRS 2 is not expected to
have a material impact on ProSiebenSat.1 Group's finan-
cial statements.

In March 2007, the IASB adopted a revised version of
IAS 23 [,Borrowing Costs' (revised 2007)]. Under
the amended rules of 1AS 23, borrowing costs that can
be directly attributed to the acquisition, construction
or production of “qualifying assets” must be capital-
ized. Under the previous version of IAS 23, capitaliza-
tion of these borrowing costs was optional. The former
“"benchmark method,” which permitted such borrowing
costs to be expensed, has been eliminated in the revised
version of IAS 23. The new standard is to be applied for
financial periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009.
It may be applied early, and in that case must be re-
ported accordingly in the notes to the financial state-
ments. The adoption of the amendment of IAS 23 is not
expected to have a material impact on ProSiebenSat.1
Group's financial statements.

IFRIC 13 [,Customer Loyalty Programs'] was adopted
by IFRIC in June 2007. It deals with the recognition of
certain kinds of customer loyalty programs, and makes
clear which regulations of IAS 18 [,Revenue’] should be
applied to them, and how liabilities in the form of cus-
tomer bonus entitlements under these customer loyal-
ty programs should be recognized. The interpretation
is applicable for financial periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2008. It may be applied earlier. ProSiebenSat.1
Group is currently analyzing the effects of the amend-
ments to Group's financial statements.

The number of subsidiaries included in the consoli-
dated financial statements changed as follows in the
financial year 2008:

Domestic  Foreign
Market  Market Total
Included at 12/31/2007 46 130 176
Newly founded/consolidated companies 7 7 14
Merged/deconsolidated companies -3 -25 -28

Included at 12/31/2008

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG directly or indirectly holds a
majority of voting rights in these companies. Fifteen
(prior year: 15) associated companies and three joint
ventures in terms of IAS 31 are consolidated using the
equity method.



All consolidated companies prepared their annual fi-
nancial statements as of December 31, 2008.

Affiliated companies are listed on pages 133 through
136, along with the specific percentage of their capital
held by the ProSiebenSat.1 Group.

Acquisition of Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS (for-
merly TV2 Saturn AS)

Effective March 1, 2008, SBS Radio Norge AS acquired
100 percent of Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS (former-
ly TV2 Saturn AS), headquartered in Oslo, Norway. The
total purchase price for the acquired ownership inter-
est was EUR 10,004 thousand. For the same amount, in
return, SBS Belgium N.V. sold 23.0 percent of its stake
in SBS Radio Norge AS to the former owner of Radiosta-
sjonen Radio Norge AS. Thus the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
now owns 77.0 percent of SBS Radio Norge AS. The sell-
ing agreement includes put and call option for the sold
23.0 percent stake exercisable from 2010 onward.

Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS was fully consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of ProSieben-
Sat.1Group for the first time as of March 1, 2008. Radio-
stasjonen Radio AS operates a radio station in Norway.

The company had revenues of EUR 5,756 thousand dur-
ing the period for which it has been consolidated; the
net loss for the same period was EUR 4,275 thousand.

Acquisition of Fem Media GmbH

(formerly Feeem Media GmbH)

By a purchase agreement dated April 17, 2008, Sev-
enOne Intermedia GmbH, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of ProSiebenSat.1 Group, acquired 100 per-
cent of Fem Media GmbH. The purchase price for the
acquired interest was EUR 5,630 thousand, which is to
be paid in four installments through 2011. The first in-
stallment of EUR 1,000 thousand was paid until Decem-
ber 31,2008. The purchase agreement also includes an
earn-out clause with a term of 36 months that runs until
April 30, 2011. The achievement of the goal under that
clause is depending on certain profit targets. Since the
company is still building up its business operations at
present, noreliable estimate of whether the targets will
be achieved is possible as of the reporting date. Hence
only the minimum purchase price indicated above was
recognized as of December 31, 2008.

The company was fully consolidated into the consoli-
dated financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
for the first time in April 2008.

Fem Media GmbH s currently settingup an Internet-based
women's network and portal at www.fem.com, which is
to provide an overview of issues specific to women.

During the time for which it has been consolidated, the
company had revenues of EUR 119 thousand; the net
loss for 2008 was EUR 1,002 thousand, of which EUR
921 thousand applies to the period for which the com-
pany was consolidated.

Acquisition of a further stake in Lokalisten Media
GmbH

On May 15,2008, SevenOne Intermedia GmbH increased
its stake in subsidiary Lokalisten Media GmbH, formerly
consolidated at equity, from 29.8 percent to 90.0 per-
cent, and at the same time entered into a put and call
option for the remaining 10.0 percent, exercisable on
July 31, 2009, and April 30, 2011. The total purchase
price for the additional ownership interest was EUR
19,545 thousand. Of this figure, EUR 15,525 thousand
went to increase the stake to 90.0 percent, and EUR
4,020 thousand will go for the additional 10.0 percent
under the put and call option. The additional purchase
price resulting from the put and call option depends on
achieving certain profit targets, and has been measured
using the best estimate as of the reporting date.

Lokalisten Media GmbH operates in Internet and mo-
bile-phone supported online communities, especially at
the domain www.lokalisten.de.

Lokalisten Media GmbH and its subsidiaries had revenues
of EUR 3,350 thousand for the financial year 2008; the
net loss for the same period was EUR 773 thousand, of
which EUR 488 thousand applies to the period for which
the company was consolidated.

Founding of the Maxdome GmbH & Co. KG joint venture
In June 2008, SevenSenses GmbH contributed its
video-on-demand business to a 50-50 joint venture
with 1&1 Internet AG, a company of the United Internet
Group.

Maxdome is the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's video-on-de-
mand portal, and allows users to download feature
films, series, comedies, cartoons, documentaries and
sports via DSL straight to their PC, or to their television
by way of a special Set-Top Box.

In the transaction, SevenSenses GmbH contributed as-
sets with carrying amounts of EUR 570 thousand, and
that were fair valued at EUR 9,068 thousand. Here a
contribution profit of 50.0 percent, or EUR 4,249 thou-
sand, was realized. The investment value of Maxdome



GmbH & Co, KG as of the date of first time consolidation
in the consolidated financial statements of ProSieben-
Sat,1 Group is EUR 4,887 thousand. Maxdome GmbH
& Co, KG is accounted as a joint venture under IAS 31,
using the equity method in the consolidated financial
statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Group.

Founding of Radio Nova A/S (formerly Radio 2 A/S)

Effective July 1, 2008, SBS Broadcast Danmark A/S and
TV2 Radio A/S founded Radio 2 A/S (now Radio Nova A/
S), headquartered in Copenhagen, Denmark. TV2 Radio
A/S contributed the radio license, and SBS Broadcast
Danmark A/S contributed equivalent financing of EUR
6,705 thousand. SBS Broadcast Danmark A/S holds
80.0 percent and TV2 Radio A/S rest of the new com-

pany.

Acquisition of Autoplenum GmbH

(first-time consolidation at equity)

By a purchase agreement dated August 21, 2008, Sev-
enOne Intermedia GmbH acquired 25.1 percent of Au-
toplenum GmbH for a purchase price of EUR 760 thou-
sand. A put and call option was also entered into, under
which SevenOne Intermedia GmbH can increase its
equity interest to 50.1 percent in the first step and on
future periods to 100 percent. These options have not
been exercised to date.

Since that time, Autoplenum has been accounted using
the equity method in the consolidated financial state-
ments.

Acquisition of Best Webnews GmbH

SevenOne Intermedia GmbH acquired the company by
a purchase and transfer agreement dated August 22,
2008. The purchase price amounted to EUR 868 thou-
sand, The purchase agreement came effective on Octo-
ber 8, 2008. The company's share capital at the acqui-
sition date was EUR 69 thousand, and was increased to
EUR 113 thousand by a shareholder resolution as of Oc-
tober 10, 2008. This capital increase was carried out by
issuing new shares. The smaller of the two new owner-
ship interests, in the amount of EUR 8 thousand, was is-
sued to SevenOne Intermedia GmbH. The larger, at EUR
37 thousand, is held by Holtzbrink Ventures GmbH, of
Munich. Thus SevenOne Intermedia GmbH's stake in the
capital has amounted to 67.64 percent since the capital
increase of October 10, 2008. The company generated
revenues of EUR 17 thousand in 2008; the loss for the
year was EUR 170 thousand.

Founding of ProSiebenSat.1 Berlin Produktion GmbH
The company was formed as of December 17, 2008, and
its founding process was still in progress as of the re-

porting date. The share capital of the entity is EUR 25
thousand, and the founding shareholder is ProSieben-
Sat.1 Produktion GmbH i.F. The purpose of the company
is to produce audiovisual productions and provide relat-
ed services, particularly in TV and multimedia produc-
tions and design, to develop and implement communi-
cation solutions; furthermore to provide and develop all
broadcasting and information technology services, and
to conduct technical execution of broadcasting opera-
tions for the programming of broadcasters approved
under the broadcasting laws, together with the associ-
ated Content-Management.

Fair value reconciliation

The assets and liabilities of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
reflect the acquisition of the additional acquired compa-
nies, as discussed above, at the following total values:

Step up Fair value
Goodwill -1- 24,092 24,092
Intangible assets 9,850 6,243 16,093
Non-current assets 1,042 -/- 1,042
Current assets 2,503 -/- 2,503
Provisions and liabilities including
deferred tax liabilities -3,437 -1,810 -5,247
Total 38,483
Purchase price 35,894
Carrying amount of equity 2,636
Minority interests -47
Total 38,483

Deconsolidation of Broadcast Text International AB
(BTI)

On August 13,2008, SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. sold
all of its stake in Broadcast Text International AB, of
Stockholm, Sweden, together with all its subsidiaries.
The gain from the deconsolidation amounted to EUR
3,768 thousand, and was included as a non-recurring
item under operating income. The gain is net of trans-
action costs.

Broadcast Text International AB has not been classi-
fied as a discontinued operation in the financial state-
ments, since the IFRS criteria for that classification are
not met.

The company was sold because its business model
does not fall within the Group's core competences. It



is Europe's largest provider of subtitling for television,
videos, theatrical films and DVDs, and is included in the
Free TV International segment. The profit on deconsoli-
dation and the proceeds from the sale are as follows:

Deconsolidation effect of BTI

Goodwill 8,221
Intangible assets 188
Property, plant and equipment 213
Other non-current assets 280
Receivables and other current assets 6,660
Other liabilities -2,987
Net assets disposed of 12,575
Cumulative exchange loss -138
Transaction costs 2,149
Net gain on disposal 3,768
Consideration received in cash 18,354
Cash disposed of -3,204
Net cash inflow on sale

15,150

Deconsolidation of the C More Group

OnJune 15,2008, Kanal 5 Holding AB, in Sweden, signed
a purchase agreement with TV4 AB, part of Sweden's
Bonnier Group, for the sale of the Scandinavian pay TV
unit C More. The purchase agreement came effective as
of December 2, 2008. The selling price for the C More
Group, including all ownership interests held by C More,
came to SEK 3,293,235 thousand which was translated
at the closing date with a spot rate of 10.294 SEK [EUR
319,918 thousand].

The profit on deconsolidation and the proceeds from
the sale are as follows:

Deconsolidation effect of C More Group

Goodwill 135,543
Intangible assets 54,479
Programming assets 52,317
Property, plant and equipment 1,238
Receivables and other current assets 81,202
Other liabilities -69,591
Net assets disposed of 255,188
Transaction costs -30,943
Other effects 4,809
Net gain on disposal 21,190
Consideration received in cash 319,918

Thereof:

Purchase price 302,512

Compensation payment 17,406
Cash disposed of -36,235
Net cash inflow on sale 283,683

Finalization of purchase price allocation for the SBS
Broadcasting Group

In the finalization of the purchase price allocation (“step
up)" for the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group,
an adjustment of EUR 4,738 thousand to goodwill of
EUR 2,363,200 thousand as of December 31, 2007 was
made resulting to goodwill amounting to EUR 2,367,938
thousand as of 30 June, 2008. In addition, a reallocation
of goodwill amounting to EUR 57,299 thousand from
cash generating unit (CGU) Radio to Free TV CEE was
required.

The consolidation of the SBS Broadcasting Group par-
ticularly affects the comparability of the 2008 results
with those from the year before. While the SBS group's
results are fully consolidated for the financial year un-
der review, the figures for the year before include SBS
only on a pro-rated basis (initial consolidation in July
2007). The same applies for the interest expenses for fi-
nancing the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group.

In accordance with IFRS 3 [,Business Combinations'] all
business combinations are accounted for using the pur-
chase method in which the acquisition cost of a subsid-
iary is offset against the fair value of that subsidiary's
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities as of the date
of its acquisition. Any excess of the acquisition cost over
the net fair value of the acquired entity is capitalized
under goodwill. In accordance with IAS 36, goodwill is
no longer under scheduled amortizations. Instead, the
goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units (CGUs)
that are expected to benefit from synergies through the
business combination.

If a negative difference is found to arise from a busi-
ness combination, the fair values of the acquiree's as-
sets and liabilities are reassessed. Any negative differ-
ence remaining after the reassessment is recognized in
profit and loss.

Where interests held in Group companies have already
been amortized in these companies’ individual financial
statements, such amounts are recaptured in the con-
solidated financial statements.

Interests held in companies over whose business policies
the Group has significant influence (associated compa-
nies at equity) are measured using the equity method
under IAS 28 [,Investments in Associates']. Equity inter-
ests held in associated companies are reported at a fig-
ure equivalent to the proportion of the adjusted equity
held in each such company. There is no price quoted on
any active market for the companies measured using



the equity method. The differences between the acquisi-
tion cost and the equity interest acquired are treated as
within the purchase method.

Receivables, provisions, liabilities, expenses and income
between consolidated companies, as well as the profits
incorporated, are eliminated in the consolidation. Where
individual companies recognise write-downs or write-
offs on intra-Group receivables, such changes have been
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements of
ProSiebenSat.1 Group.

Annual financial statements in foreign currency are
translated in accordance with IAS 21 [,The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'] on the basis of
the functional currency, using a modified reporting
date method. As these companies operate autono-
mously in financial, economic and organizational terms,
the functional currencies are generally identical to the
companies’ national currency. Accordingly, equity and
investments at equity are converted at historical rates
of exchange, while other asset and liability items are
converted at the closing rate as of the date of the bal-
ance sheet. In the income statement, expenses and in-
come are translated at the average rate for the year.
Any currency translation differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements in foreign
currencies are recognized in accumulated other equity
with no net effect on profit or loss.

The financial statements of the individual Group com-
panies report both receivables and payables in foreign
currencies using the rate as of the reporting date. Any
foreign exchange gains or losses as of the reporting
date are recognized in the income statement.

Expense of EUR 81,714 thousand resulting from foreign
exchange translation differences (vs. EUR 11,948 thou-
sand the year before) was recognized in the income
statement for the year under review. The majority of
the foreign exchange translation differences are con-
nected with the foreign subsidiaries of the SBS Broad-
casting Group.

The following exchange rates were used in foreign cur-
rency translation within the Group:

Spot rate Average rate

12/31/2008 12/31/2007 2008 2007

Swiss Franc 1.66 1.65
Swedish Krona 9.44 m 9.25
Norwegian Krone 7.96 8.02
Danish Krone 7.46 7.45
United States Dollar 1.47 1.37
grit. ound steriing [T 0.73 0.68
Hungarian Forint 253.73 251.32
Romanian Leu | 400 3.60 3.34
Bulgarian Lev 1.96 1.96 1.96

Recognition of revenues

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's revenues are mainly adver-
tising revenues derived from the sale of advertising time
on television. Advertising revenues are net of volume
discounts, agency commissions, cash discounts and val-
ue-added tax. Other revenues besides advertising rev-
enues derive from cooperative media agreements and
call revenues from transaction television, revenues from
pay TV activities, revenues from the sale of print prod-
ucts, revenues from the sale of radio advertising, rev-
enues from the marketing of rights and other merchan-
dising services, revenues from the sale of Club articles,
revenues from new media services (such as teletext,
Internet, mobile telephony and added-value telephone
services), and revenues from the sale of programming
rights and ancillary programming rights.

Revenues are recognized when the principal risks and
opportunities associated with ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, the amount of the revenue can
be determined reliably, an economic benefit from the
sale is sufficiently probable, the costs associated with
the sale can be determined reliably, and the selling com-
pany neither has the authority to decide the disposition
of the sold items such as would normally be associated
with ownership, nor has any lasting power of disposition
over the items. Specifically, advertising revenues from
both television and radio are considered realized when
advertising spots are broadcasted. Revenues from pay
TV activities and from the sale of print products are con-
sidered realized when the service is provided. Revenues
from the sale of merchandising licenses are realized at
the agreed guarantee amount as of the inception of the
license for the customer. Revenues from the sale of pro-
gramming assets and ancillary programming rights are
considered realized when the license term for the pur-
chaser of the programming has begun and broadcast-
ready materials have been delivered to the purchaser.



Revenues from barter transactions are considered
realized when goods or services that are not of the
same kind are exchanged, and the amount of the pro-
ceeds and costs, as well as the economic benefit, can
be clearly measured. Revenues are recognized at the
market value of the received bartered item or service,
and may be adjusted with an additional cash payment.
Barter transactions at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are
primarily trade-off transactions relating to the sale of
advertising time.

Recognition of income and expenses

Other operating income is normally recognized when a
service has been performed, the amount of the income
can be determined reliably, and it is sufficiently prob-
able that the economic benefit will flow to the Group.
Operating expenses are recognized at the time when
the service is utilized or when the expense is otherwise
incurred. Interest is recognized as an expense for the
period.

Impairment of assets

In accordance with IAS 36 [,Impairment of Assets'], a
company must assess at each reporting date whether
there is indication that an asset may be impaired. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated. Whether or not there is any
indication of impairment, each year a company must
also review for impairment any intangible assets with
an indefinite useful life, any intangible asset not yet
available for use, and goodwill acquired in business
combinations. An asset has been impaired when its
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is either the fair value less selling
expenses, or the present value of future payment flows
expected from the continuing use of the asset (value in
use), whichever is higher. If the recoverable amount is
below the carrying amount, the difference represents
the impairment, which must normally be reported as an
expense in the income statement, unless it relates to a
revalued asset where the value changes are recognized
directly in equity. A company must assess at each re-
porting date whether an impairment still exists. If there
is no longer any reason for such an impairment, the
impairment loss must be reversed. The reversal can-
not result in an amount greater than the amount that
would have been reported if no impairment had been
recognized. Normally, the reversal is recognized as in-
come in the income statement, unless it relates to a
revalued asset where the value changes are recognized
directly in equity. Impairment losses for goodwill can-
not be reversed.

ProSiebenSat.1 Group tests the Group's goodwill for im-
pairment at least once a year, in compliance with the
Group's reporting policies. Deciding the recoverable
amount of a line of business to which goodwill is attrib-
uted involves management estimates. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell,
and the valueinuse. The Company normally determines
these values using methods based on discounted cash
flows. These discounted cash flows are founded on five-
year projections built on financial plans approved by
management. The cash flow projections take account
of past experience, and are based on management's
best estimates of future developments. Cash flows
beyond the planning period are extrapolated using
individual growth rates. The most important assump-
tions underlying the changes in value in use involve
estimates of growth rates, weighted average costs of
capital, and tax rates. These assumptions, as well as
the method employed, may have a material effect on
the resulting values, and ultimately on the amount of a
possible impairment of goodwill. If property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are tested for impair-
ment, determining the recoverable amount of the as-
sets likewise involves management estimates that may
have a significant influence on the resulting values and
ultimately on the amount of a potential impairment. Im-
pairment losses for goodwill cannot be reversed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are any contracts that give rise
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liabil-
ity or equity instrument of another entity. The financial
assets of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents, loan receivables and trade
accounts receivable, derivative financial instruments
with a positive market value, financial assets desig-
nated at fair value, and financial assets available for
sale. Financial liabilities particularly include liabilities
to banks, trade accounts payable, liabilities under fi-
nance leases, and derivative financial instruments with
a negative market value. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group has
no financial assets in the “held to maturity” category.

Derivative Financial instruments and Hedge Accounting
To hedge risks posed by changes in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group uses
derivative financial instruments in the form of inter-
est rate swaps, forward exchange transactions (“for-
wards") and currency options. Interest rate risks result
from liabilities carrying variable interest rates; foreign
exchange risks are incurred primarily through license
payments denominated in U.S. dollars.



Derivative financial instruments are reported at fair
value in the balance sheet, irrespective of the purpose
or intent for which the transaction was entered into.
Derivative financial instruments are recognized as of
their trading date. The fair value of interest rate swaps
is generally zero at the time of their first recognition.
Subsequently interest rate swaps are recognized in the
balance sheet at their market value, as “other assets”
or “miscellaneous liabilities.” The fair value of forwards
is likewise generally zero at the time of their first time
recognition. Subsequently, forwards are recognized
in the balance sheet at their market value as “other
assets” or “miscellaneous liabilities.” Purchased cur-
rency options are first capitalized as “other assets” at
the amount of their option premium, and subsequently
recognized at market value.

Changes in fair value are normally recognized in the in-
come statement. Cash flow hedge accounting may be
applied under certain conditions. If any hedge transac-
tion qualifies as a cash flow hedge in this sense, the por-
tion of the change in market value that is considered an
effective hedge is recognized in equity. The ineffective
portion continues to be included in the profit or loss for
the period. To hedge currency risks on future license
payments, hedge gains or losses accumulated in equity
are removed from equity at the inception of the license
- i.e., at the moment when the underlying transaction
is capitalized - and the acquisition cost is increased or
decreased accordingly.

At the inception of a hedge, IAS 39 requires compre-
hensive documentation of the hedging relationship, in-
cluding a description of such matters as the associated
risk management strategy and objectives in undertak-
ing the hedge. Wherever possible, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group gathers and manages the underlying transac-
tions and hedges in what are known as “hedge books.”
The effectiveness of the hedging relationship is mea-
sured at reqgular intervals. If a hedge relationship does
not meet, or no longer meets, the requirements of IAS
39, the cash flow hedge is derecognized. After a hedg-
ing relationship is terminated, the amounts included in
equity are always recognized in the profit or loss for the
period if the results of the underlying transactions af-
fect profit or loss.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group had no hedges designated at
fair value as of December 31, 2008.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets primarily comprise goodwill from the
acquisition of fully consolidated subsidiaries, together

with software and licenses, trademarks and patents, as
well as licenses to such assets and rights.

Under IFRS 3, goodwill and separable intangible assets
with an indefinite useful life expectancy are not to be
amortized, but instead must be reviewed at least an-
nually for impairment, which is known as the impair-
ment-only approach. A review is also performed if trig-
gering events occur that indicate the possibility of an
impairment. If the recoverable amount of the asset (the
higher of the net realisable value and the present value
of future benefits) is below the carrying amount, the
asset is written down.

Acquired assets are capitalized under IAS 38 [,Intan-
gible Assets'] if it is probable that the future economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Unless an asset has an
indefinite useful life, it is amortized, and where appli-
cable, impaired. Capitalized is also internally created
software that derives, for example, from service rela-
tionships among ProSiebenSat.1 Group affiliates and
meets the criteria of 1AS 38. This software is recog-
nized at its capitalizable cost. Based on the pattern of
usage, amortization is recognized on a straight-line ba-
sis over the following useful lives.

Purchased software and internally created software is
amortized as a rule on a straight-line basis over three
to eight years. Licenses and other intellectual property
rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over ten
years or over the term of the license agreement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost, less
depreciation based on the useful life and, if necessary,
impairments. Based on the pattern of usage, deprecia-
tion is recognized on a straight-line basis over the fol-
lowing useful lives:

Buildings on land owned by others, fixtures and renovations 3-50
Studio facilities 3-10
Technical office equipment 2-10
Office furniture and equipment 3-20

Programming assets

Programming assets comprise feature films, series,
commissioned productions, sports rights, and advance
payments made. Feature films, series and sports rights
are capitalized as of the beginning of the license term;
commissioned productions are capitalized as broad-
cast-ready programming assets as of their date of for-
mal acceptance.



Consumption of licenses and of commissioned produc-
tions intended for multiple runs begins at the start
of the first broadcast, and depends on the number of
transmissions permitted or planned, as the case may
be. Consumption resulting from transmissions is mea-
sured using a declining-balance method according to
a standardized matrix. Commissioned productions in-
tended for only one run are fully consumed as of their
broadcasting.

Impairment is applied for feature films, series, sports
rights and commissioned productions if their costs can
presumably not be covered by future revenues. The
reasons for this assumption might include changes in
the advertising environment, changing audience tastes,
media-law restrictions on the usability of films, licenses
that expire prior to broadcasting, or if a production has
been commissioned but is not pursued further. Con-
sumption resulting from transmissions and impairment
are reported as part of the cost of sales.

Programming assets are written up if impairment has
caused licensed programs or commissioned produc-
tions to be valued too low in the past, in view of their
future economic benefits. Write-ups are netted against
the cost of sales.

Receivables and other current assets

Unless receivables and other current assets are held
for trading, they are recognized at their amortized cost
as of the balance sheet date. In the valuation of receiv-
ables and other current assets, adequate allowances
have been made, on the basis of objective evidence and
values developed through experience, to cover known
risks by valuation adjustments. Individual receivables
are estimated and evaluated on the basis of the indi-
vidual client's creditworthiness, current economic de-
velopments, and an analysis of historical defaults, on a
portfolio basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax items are formed in accordance with IAS
12 [,Income Taxes'] for all temporary differences be-
tween the carrying amount of an item and its tax base,
and for consolidation measures affecting profits. Good-
will for which amortization cannot be deducted for tax
purposes is excepted. Additionally, entitlements to tax
reductions are capitalized where there is an expecta-
tion that existing tax loss carry-forwards can be used
in later years. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are cal-
culated on the basis of the tax rates that are expected
to apply according to current law at the time when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are netted against tax liabilities so
far as they are owed by and to the same tax authori-
ties, and so far as the Company is legally entitled to
offset current tax refund entitlements and tax liabili-
ties against one another.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at their cost of acquisition or
capitalizable cost of creation, as the case may be, or at
net realisable value if that value is lower.

Financial assets available for sale

Investments in equity instruments, debt instruments
and fund shares are classified as financial assets avail-
able for sale, and are recognized at fair value, if that
value can be determined reliably. Equity instruments
for which there is no price listed on an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be determined reliably, are
measured at cost. Currently there are no instruments
that have been recognized at fair value. Investments in
associated companies are reported under IAS 28 [,In-
vestments in Associates'] using the equity method, at
the share of their equity held.

Loans and receivables

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables are
measured at their amortized cost, applying the effec-
tive interest rate method, less impairment. Impairment
of trade accounts receivable is recognized in separate
allowance account. Impairment criteria have been pre-
sented under accounting policies for receivables and
other current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents include all near-liquid assets. Cash and
cash equivalents are measured at their amortized cost.

Financial liabilities

With the exception of derivative financial instruments,
financial liabilities are measured at their amortized
cost, applying the effective interest rate method. Term
loans and bond liabilities are recognized on the basis of
their nominal total, at their amortized cost less issuing
and financing costs. These costs are distributed over
the term of the liability using the effective interest rate
method. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group has no financial li-
abilities designated at fair value.

Provisions

Provisions are formed if a present obligation to third
parties has arisen as a result of a past event, if pay-
ment is probable, and if the amount of the payment can
be estimated reliably. Provisions represent uncertain li-



abilities that are recognized in an amount measured by
a best estimate.

In measuring pension provisions, obligations from di-
rect pension commitments are calculated by determin-
ing the present value of expected future payments, ad-
justed for future changes in benefits. The service cost
for those entitled to future pension benefits is derived
from the increase in the present value of a defined ben-
efit obligation that applies to the benefits provided to
beneficiaries during the reporting period.

Actuarial interest rate

Rate of salary progression 0.0%

Rate of pension progression

Pension obligations were measured using the biometric
calculation data provided in the 2005G guideline tables
prepared by Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck.

Provisions for contingent losses are recognized pri-
marily for programming assets whose license term
begins after December 31, 2008, and which current
programming analyses indicate will not generate the
originally anticipated future audience shares or rev-
enues. Individual license agreements are measured as
a function of the quality and age of the programming,
restrictions on use under media laws, and strategic
program scheduling.

Leases

IAS 17 [,Leases’'] defines a finance lease as a lease un-
der which substantially all risks and benefits deriving
from title to an asset are transferred to the lessee.
Leases that do not qualify as finance leases are consid-
ered operating leases. Under IFRS, lessees must report
finance leases, in equal amounts, as both an asset and
a liability at the inception of the lease. The amount to
be recognized is either the fair value of the leased prop-
erty, or the present value of minimum lease payments,
if the latter value is lower. “Minimum lease payment"” is
the IFRS term for the payments the lessee must make
during the life of the lease, except for expenses for
services listed in IAS 17.4. Payments made to exercise
an option to purchase at a price that is categorized as
substantially lower than the fair value of the item are
also included in the minimum lease payments. Finance
leases give rise to a depreciation expense for deprecia-
ble assets, and a financial expense for the recognized
liability. The lease payments for an operating lease are
reported as an expense in the income statement, on a
straight-line basis.

Under IFRS, a number of leases taken out by the Pro-
SiebenSat.1 Group have been classified as finance
leases. The leased assets and liabilities under these
leases are reported in the balance sheet under “prop-
erty, plant and equipment” and under “other financial
liabilities.”

Use of estimates

Preparing financial statements in accordance with
IFRS requires use of assumptions and estimates that
may have an impact on related amounts and informa-
tion that are reported. The assumptions and estimates
apply primarily to the recognition and measurement
of programming assets, intangible assets resulting
from purchase price allocations, provisions, discount-
ing of long-term low-interest loans, and the possibil-
ity of realizing future tax advantages. Both the initial
measurement and subsequent valuations of program-
ming assets are based on estimated earnings potential.
This earnings potential reflects various scenarios for
the use of programming assets (see Note [27], "Pro-
visions"). Although these estimates are made with all
due attention to current events and conditions, actual
results may deviate from these estimates. Any neces-
sary changes will be recognized, with an impact on the
income statement, at the time when further knowledge
is received.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT

2008 2007
Advertising revenues 2,289,153
Barter revenues 29,361
Other revenues 391,907
Total 2,710,421

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's revenues of EUR 3,054,241
thousand comprise was mainly driven by advertising
revenues.

Group revenues increased by EUR 343,820 thousand,
or 12.7 percent, from EUR 2,710,421 thousand in 2007
to EUR 3,054,241 thousand in the financial year 2008.

Overall, the Group's advertising revenues increased by
EUR 178,963 thousand, from EUR 2,289,153 thousand
to EUR 2,468,116 thousand. This corresponds to a gain
of 7.8 percent.

Cost of sales primarily comprises consumption of pro-
gramming assets and expenses for licenses, transmis-
sion fees and materials. The cost of sales increased by
EUR 243,892 thousand, from EUR 1,623,380 thousand
in 2007 to EUR 1,867,272 thousand in 2008. Consump-
tion of programming assets, including the consumption
from provisions for contingent losses, increased by EUR
108,208 thousand, to EUR 1,242,798 thousand in the fi-
nancial year 2008.

Selling expenses are mainly broadcasting expenses, dis-
tribution fees and advertising expenses. Selling expens-
es rose EUR 75,366 thousand against the year before,
from EUR 374,486 thousand to EUR 449,852 thousand
in the financial year 2008.

Administrative expenses include all costs of general
administration activities. These contain personnel ex-
penses, impairment losses of goodwill, IT expenses and
building management expenses. Administrative expens-
es increased from EUR 344,013 thousand in 2007 to
EUR 533,855 thousand in 2008. The increase resulted
primarily from the impairment loss of EUR 180,000
thousand recognized on goodwill.

Other operating income rose by EUR 46,487 thousand,
or 277.7 percent, from EUR 16,743 thousand in 2007
to EUR 63,230 thousand in 2008. Most of the increase
resulted from the proceeds from the sale of the C More
Group and BTl in the financial year 2008.

2007
Expenses/Income from equity interests 76
Income from other current financial assets
and loans in non-current financial assets 132
Write downs of non-current financial -1 -
assets
Total 208

The write-downs on non-current financial assets result
primarily from impairment of an ownership interest
and write-downs on fund shares.

2007

Other interest and similar income 28,009

included from hedge derivatives 13,393

Interest and similar expenses -143,751

included from hedge derivatives -2,559
Total

-115,742

The net interest expense increased to EUR -255,436
thousand in 2008, following the previous year's EUR
-115,742 thousand.

Interest expenses grew from EUR 143,751 thousand to
EUR 274,428 thousand. The rise of EUR 130,677 thou-
sand resulted substantially from EUR 225,130 thousand
for financing of the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting
Group.

The primary interest expense items pertain to interest
on loans drawn, interest for issued bonds and interest
paid on taxes and finance leases.

The largest single items under other interest and simi-
lar income were interest income of EUR 7,203 thousand
[previous year: EUR 13,393 thousand] from the termina-
tion and remeasurement of interest rate swaps as part
of the refinancing process, interest income of EUR 3,155
thousand from term deposits [previous year: EUR 4,129
thousand], and interest income of EUR 1,535 thousand
from swaps [previous year: EUR 80 thousand].



The other finance result decreased by EUR 55,273
thousand in the financial year 2008, from EUR -21,881
thousand to EUR -77,154 thousand.

The item includes expenses of EUR 81,714 thousand
[previous year: EUR 10,016 thousand] from realized for-
eign currency translation differences, and costs of EUR
7,985 thousand [previous year: EUR 11,865 thousand]
from the issue of financial liabilities. The expenses
were countered by an income of EUR 12,545 thousand
[previous year: EUR O] from hedging of the proceeds
from the sale of C More.

Income taxes include both taxes paid or owed on income

and deferred tax items.

Taxes on income comprise the following:

2007
Current income tax expenses 174,418
Deferred tax income -20,846
Total

153,572

The deferred tax income item for the financial year 2008
includes a deferred tax expense of EUR 1,925 thousand
resulting from the change in deferred taxes on loss car-
ry-forwards.

In the German corporate tax reform, the corporate in-
come tax rate was lowered from the prior year's 25.0
percent to 15.0 percent in 2008. The German reunifi-
cation surtax [“solidarity surtax"] remains unchanged
from the prior year at 5.5 percent of the corporate in-
come tax charge. Including the trade tax with an average
basis factor of 380.0 percent, the total tax rate for 2008
was 29.0 percent [prior year: 38.0 percent].

Tax rates for Group companies outside Germany vary
from 10.0 to 34.0 percent.

The anticipated tax expense can be reconciled with the
actual tax expense as follows:

2008 2007

Consolidated loss/profit before taxes 249,784
Statutory tax rate 38%
Expected tax expense 94,918
Adjustments to the expected tax expense: -
Effect of changes in statutory tax rates -1,975
Effects due to tax rate differences 879
Non-deductible interest expenses 4,318
Other non-deductible expenses 48,981
Tax-free revenues -2,227
Non taxable disposal effects 584
Impairment of goodwill -/-
Change in the realisation of deferred tax assets -1,282
Tax effects from prior years 8,256
At equity valuation 707
Other effects 413
Actual total tax expenditure 153,572
Deferred taxes relate to the following items:
2008 2007

Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Intangible assets 18,649 20,177 221,278
Property, plant and -
equipment 6,738 36,533 6,067 34,796
Non-current financial -
assets 2,870 726 2,687 117
Inventories and other
assets 10,636 10,572 15,583 5,210
Programming assets 3,810 263 13,230
Pension provisions -/- 29 246
Other provisions 10,075 1,049 8,765 1,202
Liabilities 91,183 45758 13,793
Loss carry-forwards 13,831 -/- 33,979 -/-
Netting effects -66,264 82,600  -82,600
Total 91,528 50,708 207,272

Deferredtax assetsontaxloss carry-forwards wererec-
ognized and measured on the basis of projected future
taxable income. Deferred tax assets for tax loss carry-
forwards decreased EUR 20,148 thousand against the
year before. Most of the decrease came from the utili-
zation of loss carry-forwards, and from changes in the
scope of consolidation. For 2008, a total of EUR 2,633
thousand in deferred tax assets was recognized from
loss carry-forwards.

Deferred tax assets on temporary differences and tax
loss carry-forwards are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax as-
set to be utilized. In total, no deferred tax assets were
recognized from tax loss carry-forwards amounting to
EUR 172,340 thousand [prior year: EUR 122,866 thou-



sand] or from tax credits of EUR 17,702 thousand [prior
year: EUR 5,739 thousand] as of December 31, 2008.

A deferred tax liability for planned future dividend dis-
tributions was recognized for ownership interests in
subsidiaries [outside basis differences] in accordance
with IAS 12.38. In terms of IAS 12.39, no deferred tax
items for other temporary differences were recog-
nized, since the reversal of temporary differences can
be controlled and it is not likely that the temporary dif-
ferences will be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets recognized directly in equity with
no impact on profit or loss, relate particularly to cur-
rency derivatives and interest rate swaps and amount-
ed to EUR 38,537 thousand, compared to the previous
year's deferred tax assets of EUR 9,246 thousand.

In accordance with IAS 33 [“Earnings per Share"], the
earnings per share are calculated by dividing the con-
solidated profit from continuing operations, after mi-
nority interests, by the average number of shares out-
standing during the year.

2008 2007
Consolidated net profit/loss -125,490 96,212
Less minority interests -3,651 -6,767
Consolidated net profit/loss attributable
to shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media -129,141 89,445
AG
Weighted average number of shares
outstanding vANBENAVETY 218,797,200
Share of profits attributable to
common stock -65,921 43,566
Share of profits attributable to
preferred stock -63,220 45,754
Weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding ulolReiclefclolo) 109,398,600
Weighted average number of shares of
preferred stock outstanding uoRykelislsy 109,398,600
Basic [=diluted] earnings per share of
common stock 0.40
Basic [=diluted] earnings per share of
preferred stock -0.58 0.42

The additional dividend of EUR 0.02 per preferred share
was taken into account in calculating earnings per
preferred share. The diluted earnings per share were
equivalent to the basic earnings per share. Dilution ef-
fects neither appeared in the past financial year nor in
the comparison period.

Personnel expenses
The personnel expenses included under cost of sales,
selling expenses and administrative expenses comprise:

2008 2007

Wages and salaries 280,350

[thereof expenses for the stock option plan] [5,412]
Social security contributions and expenses for -

pensions and other employee benefits 61,240 43,297

[thereof pension provisions] [2,123] [484]

Total 323,647

Personnel expenses increased by 37.2 percent against
the previous year, from EUR 323,647 thousand in 2007
to EUR 444,194 thousand in 2008. The increase for
the past financial year resulted from the first full-year
consolidation of the SBS Broadcasting Group and from
expenses relating to site relocation.

Employer contributions to the public retirement insur-
ance system increased by EUR 772 thousand, from EUR
18,266 thousand to EUR 19.038 thousand for the past
financial year.

The Group had the following average numbers of em-
ployees during the year:

2008 2007
Employees 4,528
Trainees and interns 324
Total 4,852

Part-time positions are reported as an equivalent num-
ber of full-time employees.

Depreciation, amortization and impairment

The following depreciations of intangible assets and of
property, plant and equipment are included under cost
of sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses:

2008 2007
Depreciation of intangible assets 100,373
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 36,402
Impairment of intangible assets 199
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 34
Total 137,008

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of intan-
gible non-current assets and of property, plant and
equipment went up from EUR 137,008 thousand for
the previous period to EUR 351,822 thousand for the
period under review. This represents an increase of EUR
214,814 thousand, or 156.8 percent. The increase result-
ed primarily from the impairment loss of EUR 180,000
thousand recognized on goodwill.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE

SHEET
Licenses, trademarks
and patents, as well
as licenses to such Advances paid on

assets and rights Goodwill intangible assets Total
]
Initial inventory 1/1/2007 110,206 354,166 3,005
Exchange rate differences -7,832 -15,940 -/-
Changes in the scope of consolidation 945,082 2,392,751 -1-
Additions 14,281 -1- 2,419 lllllﬁﬂﬂ
Reclassifications 1,949 -1- 1,934 llllll!ﬁ
Disposals 981 -1- 416 lllllﬂﬁﬁ
Final inventory 12/31/2007 / Initial inventory 1/1/2008 1,062,705 2,730,977 3,074 _
Exchange rate differences -37,311 -110,371 -/- _
Changes in the scope of consolidation -54,168 -112,824 -/- _
Additions 42,678 438 8,585
Reclassifications 1,918 -3,363 1,474
Disposals 10,384 6,595 322
Final inventory 12/31/2008 1,005,438 2,498,262 9,863 _
I
Initial inventory 1/1/2007 54,510 85,310 -
Exchange rate differences -2,828 -/- -/- _
Changes in the scope of consolidation 22,916 -3,135 -/- _
Additions*) 100,572 -1- -1-
Reclassifications 18 -/- -/-
Disposals 978 -/- -/- 978
Final inventory 12/31/2007 / Initial inventory 1/1/2008 174,210 82,175 -
Exchange rate differences -1,327 -/ - -/-
Changes in the scope of consolidation -13,698 -1,044 -/-
Additions*) 98,277 180,000 -1-
Reclassifications 372 -369 -1-
Disposals 9,112 -69 -1- lIIIIIII
Final inventory 12/31/2008 248,722 260,831 -
]
Carrying amount 12/31/2008 756,716 2,237,431 9,863
Carrying amount 12/31/2007 888,495 2,648,802 3,074

*) Of this amount impairment of EUR 118 thousand [2007 EUR 0] is included in cost of sales, EUR 1,000 thousand [2007 EUR 0] in selling expenses and
180,883 thousand Euro [2007 EUR 199 thousand] in administrative expenses.



Intangible assets comprise software, intellectual prop-
erty rights, brands and trademarks, customer relation-
ships, broadcasting licenses, goodwill and advance pay-
ments made on intangible assets. The depreciation on
these are shown in the income statement as part of cost
of sales, selling expenses and administrative expenses.
For purposes of testing impairment, goodwill, as well
as brands, trademarks and other rights with indefini-
tive useful lives, are allocated to cash-generating units
(CGUs). The following table shows the goodwill and
brands or trademarks of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group that
are allocated to CGUs:

12/31/2008 12/31/2007
Brands /
Cash-generating unit Brands / Trademarks Goodwill Trademarks Goodwill
Free-TV Netherlands/Belgium 171.6 _ 1716 654.6
Free-TV Nordic 1314 457.0 144.8 555.9
Total Segment Free-TV International 328.7 1,252.0 339.1 1,472.0
Other Media 375.0 17.4 353.4
Total Segment Diversification 552.4 717 744.0

At least once a year, ProSiebenSat.1reviews goodwill for
impairment in conformity with the approach described
in Note [Accounting Policies]. The recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined by calculating its value in use on
the basis of estimated future cash flows derived from
future projections. The projections are based on a fi-
nancial planning horizon of five years. To determine the
value to be added for the terminal value (value to be
added from the financial year 2014 onward), sustained
cash flows with a CGU-specific growth rate from -2.5
percent to 1.5 percent are assumed. The growth rate re-
flects the long-term expectation for each CGU. The dis-
count rates are calculated on the basis of the weighted
rate of the cost of capital for the Group, taking into ac-
count specific characteristics to the CGUs in question.
The resulting after-tax discounting factors were from
7.7 to 9.7 percent and before-tax factors respectively
from 10.6 to 11.6 percent in financial year 2008, and
from 7.0 to 9.8 percent in 2007. The Company deter-
mines the plausibility of the calculated values in use
on the basis of sensitivity analyses. For a discussion of
fundamentals regarding the estimation uncertainties
associated with these impairment tests, see Note 6 [Ac-
counting Policies].

The impairment tests showed that the carryingamounts
of the Free TV BLX and Free TV CEE CGUs were higher
than their current values in use. For that reason, impair-
ments of EUR 86.0 million were taken on the goodwill
of the Free TV BLX CGU, and EUR 94.0 million on the
goodwill of the Free TV CEE CGU. These impairments
are recognized in the administrative expenses.

Based on the impairment test in accordance with Note 6
[Accounting Policies] for brands with an indefinite use-
ful life, an impairment of EUR 1 million was recognized
for a brand acquired. The impairment is included within
selling expenses.

Thevalue of intangible assets decreased by EUR 536,361
thousand, from EUR 3,540,371 thousand on December
31, 2007, to EUR 3,004,010 thousand on December 31,
2008. Most of the decrease resulted from the sale of
C More Group AB, larger foreign currency translation
effects, and EUR 180,000 thousand impairment loss on
goodwill.



Other equip- Advances paid

Buildings Technical ment, office on property,
on land owned equipment and furniture and plant and

by others machinery equipment equipment Total

]

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 306,355 144,129 62,287 784
Exchange rate differences -378 -2,195 -155 -/- -2,728
Changes in the scope of consolidation 25,025 126,099 15,730 -/-
Additions 856 18,236 5,057 618
Reclassifications 50 2,479 2,170 301
Disposals 1,768 7,253 2,462 142
Final inventory 12/31/2007 / Initial inventory 1/1/2008 330,140 281,495 78,287 959
Exchange rate differences -333 -2,249 -362 -1 -2,945
Changes in the scope of consolidation -149 -8,446 -644 2 -9,237
Additions 11,347 31,085 5,413 10,906
Reclassifications 535 41,340 1,258 -416
Disposals 4,695 56,090 2,301 858
Final inventory 12/31/2008 335,775 244,455 81,651 10,592
I

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 109,290 122,069 53,550 -1-
Exchange rate differences -82 -1,443 -108 -/- -1,633
Changes in the scope of consolidation 9,803 92,241 12,208 -/-
Additions 10,389 22,602 3,478 -1-
Reclassifications -/- -9 46 -/-
Disposals 1,783 7,134 2,105 -/-
Final inventory 12/31/2007 / Initial inventory 1/1/2008 127,617 228,326 67,069 -1-
Exchange rate differences -56 -2,692 -395 -/-
Changes in the scope of consolidation -180 -7,5622 -843 -/-
Additions 43,309 25,316 4,920 -1-
Write-up -/- -51 -/- -/- -51
Reclassifications -425 914 -511 -/- -22
Disposals 4,280 54,989 1,999 -
Final inventory 12/31/2008 165,985 189,302 68,241 -/- 423,528
I

Carrying amount 12/31/2008 169,790 55,153 13,410 10,592
Carrying amount 12/31/2007 202,523 53,160 11,218 959

interest rates) may be earlier. The real estate leases

The value of property, plant and equipment decreased
from EUR 267,869 thousand on December 31, 2007, to
EUR 248,945 thousand as of December 31, 2008. Most
of the reduction of EUR 18,924 thousand results from
lower capital expenditures on this category of assets, in
comparison to the according depreciation.

Property, plant and equipment includes leased real
estate for a value of EUR 120,737 thousand (vs. EUR
119,965 thousand) which qualify as finance leases under
IAS 17, and are therefore reported as assets of which the
Group has beneficial ownership. The underlying leases
primarily cover land and buildings at the Unterféhring
site, and are for terms of 22 years each. The earliest
expiration is scheduled for 2019, but the interest rate
conversion points (the end of the lock-down period for

were signed on prevailing market terms. Other leases
exist for a property in Berlin and for technical equip-
ment, and likewise qualify as finance leases in terms of
IAS 17.

The interest expense on the above finance leases in
financial year 2008 amounted to EUR 6,377 thousand
(vs. EUR 6,436 thousand) and the associated deprecia-
tion was EUR 3,199 thousand (vs. EUR 2,232 thousand).



The minimum lease payments comprise
the following:

Total
12/31/2008

Remaining term
1 year or less

Remaining term
from 2 to 5 years

Remaining term
over 5 years

Total
12/31/2007

121,413
57,204

64,209

Total

[

=
=
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59,480
5,186
3,367

~

1,865
2,674

14,166
69,267

,

’

Minimum lease payments 12,842 48,657 69,318
Share of interest ref. to minimum lease payments 6,408 21,496 21,659
Present value of minimum lease payments 6,434 27,162 47,659

Additionally, long-term lease obligations of EUR 37,352

thousand exist which under the repayment plan will not

be paid until the year 2019 or 2023 respectively.

The following table of financial assets includes both

“investments accounted for using the equity method"

and the “non-current financial assets,” which are shown

separately in the balance sheet.

Interests Other
in Group Investments equity Loans to Investment Other
pani in iate interests associates securities loans

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 88 12,523 264 -1 - 2,738 1,910

Changes in the scope of consolidation 40 -4,404 64,144 -300 -/- -/-

Additions -/ - 1,304 342 300 3,192 48

Disposals -/- 2,085 -/- -/- 272 1,010

Final inventory 12/31/2007 / Initial

inventory 1/1/2008 128 7,338 64,750 -/ - 5,658 948

Exchange rate differences -/- 5 66 -/- -/- -/-

Changes in the scope of consolidation -24 1,889 -/- -/- -/- -/-

Additions -1 - -1- 341 -1 - 2,301 32

Reclassifications -40 40 -1- -/- -- -1/-

Disposals -/- 1,211 12,670 -/- 275 10

Final inventory 12/31/2008 64 8,061 52,487 -1- 7,684 970

Initial inventory 1/1/2007 -1- 3,199 80 -/ - 1 895

Changes in the scope of consolidation -/- -444 -/- -/- -/- -/-

Additions -1 - -1 - -1- -1 - -1 - -/-

Disposals -/- -/- -/- -/- -/- -/-

Final inventory 12/31/2007 /

Initial inventory 1/1/2008 -/- 2,755 80 -/- 1 895

Changes in the scope of consolidation -/- -2,562 -/- -/- -/- -/-

Additions -/ - 1,000 341 -/ - 1,616 -/ -

Disposals -/- -/- -/- -/- -/- -/-

Final inventory 12/31/2008 -- 1,193 421 -/ - 1,617 895

Carrying amount 12/31/2008 64 6,868 52,066 -/- 6,067 75

Carrying amount 12/31/2007 128 4,583 64,670 -/- 5,657 53
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Please see the carrying amounts of financial assets
in accordance with IFRS 7 categories from Note [32].
Please note that interests in subsidiaries and associ-
ates are not in the scope of IFRS 7 and therefore have
not been presented in any of the categories.

The associated companies appear in the list of affili-
ated companies on pages 133 through 136.

The carrying amounts of investments in associated
companies recognized at equity and joint ventures
comprise the following:

12/31/2008 12/31/2007
maxdome GmbH & Co, KG -/ -
Autoplenum GmbH -/-
TV 10 Holdings LLC 638
Poolside Reise GmbH 434 -1 -
Privatfernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG 208
VG Media Gesellschaft zur Verwertung der Urheber- und Leistungs- schutzrechte von Medienunternehmen mbH 189
LOVESEARCH DP AB 154
Osterjons Reklamradio AB 106
Big Brother Kommanditbolag 65
Privatfernsehen in Bayern Verwaltungs-GmbH 28
Radio Silkeborg af 1997 A/S 148
lokalisten media GmbH _ 2,937
IP Multimedia (Switzerland) AG Iz 14
Other associated companies 96
Total 4,583
The following is a summary of the Group's current and
non-current programming assets:

Advance

Free-TV rights Pay-TV rights payments Total
Carrying amount 1/1/2007 816,889 8,799 230,629 1,056,317
Changes in the scope of consolidation 212,363 16,021 -/- 228,384
Additions 1,034,275 76,014 66,396 1,176,685
Disposals 5,833 1,759 1,519 9,111
Reclassifications 149,585 521 -150,106 -1-
Consumption* 1,084,798 49,792 -/- 1,134,590
Carrying amount 12/31/2007 / 1/1/2008 1,122,481 49,804 145,400 1,317,685
thereof non-current Programming assets 917,110
thereof current Programming assets 400,575
Exchange rate differences 4,664 3,293 -2,940 5,017
Changes in the scope of consolidation -/- -52,317 -/- -52,317
Additions 1,170,133 101,007 125,866 1,397,005
Disposals 14,287 -/ - 30,334 44,621
Reclassifications 91,873 -24,445 -67,428 --
Consumption* 1,174,431 68,367 -/- 1,242,798
Carrying amount 12/31/2008 1,200,433 8,975 170,564 1,379,972
thereof non-current Programming assets 1,149,157
thereof current Programming assets 230,815

*includes additons to provisions for contingent losses

Programming assets as of December 31, 2008, amount-
ed to EUR 1,379,972 thousand which corresponds
to an increase of EUR 62,287 thousand (2007: EUR
1,317,685 thousand). The programming assets include
EUR 248,916 thousand for the SBS Broadcasting Group
(prior year: EUR 252,777 thousand). Investments in pro-
gramming assets increased by EUR 225,337 thousand,

from EUR 1,176,685 thousand in 2007 to EUR 1,397,005
thousand in the financial year 2008. During the year,
unscheduled consumption of programming assets, in-
cluding allocations to provisions for contingent losses,
amounted to EUR 58,612 thousand (vs. EUR 72,347
thousand) for the Group.



12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Raw materials and supplies 242 198
Unfinished goods and merchandise 863 -/-
Finished goods and merchandise 4,651
Total 4,849

Inventories consist primarily of licenses for games and
commercial goods at subsidiary MM MerchandisingMe-
dia Holding GmbH.

Non-current receivables and other non-current assets
comprise the following:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Trade accounts receivable - 611
Receivables from entities in which the
Group has a significant interest 63
Other assets 13,417
Total 14,091

The current receivables and other current assets shown
in the balance sheet comprise the following:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Trade accounts receivable 358,281
Receivables from Group companies
o/-
Receivables from entities in which the
Group has a significant interest 17,964
Other assets 66,717
Total 442,962

Please see the carrying amounts of receivables in ac-
cordance with IFRS 7 categories from note [32].

The following table shows the changes in write-downs
of current and non-current receivables:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007

Write-downs at the beginning of the year 20,130
Additions from first-time consolidation 5,622
Additions 5,956
Release -1,851
Consumption -/-
Discounting effects -14
Exchange rate differences -/-
Write-backs -992
Write-downs at the end of the year 28,851

Theoretical interest income from accrued interest on
payments expected to be received in the future is dis-
closed only if interest has been accrued in determin-
ing impairment write-downs on financial assets. It is
assumed that most of the expected cash flows will be
realized within one year, and therefore interest was not
accrued in determining the impairment write-downs,
because of its minor effect.

As of December 31, 2008 gross trade accounts receiv-
able for the Group had the following aging structure:

12/31/2008

I

Amounts not due at the reporting date
Amounts due in the following periods
Less than 3 months
Between 3 and 6 months
Between 6 and 9 months
Between 9 and 12 months
Over 12 months

Total

Non-current and current other assets comprise the fol-
lowing:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Prepaid expenses 30,781
Finance costs 8,357
Security deposits 2,247
Derivatives --
Other 38,749
Total 80,134
[thereof non-current] [13,417]
[thereof current] [66,717]

The “Other” item in the above table essentially consists
of prepaid expenses and miscellaneous tax receivables.

Current financial assets, at EUR 211 thousand, comprise
primarily securities.



Please see the carrying amounts of other assets in ac-
cordance with IFRS 7 categories from Note [33]. From
the items presented above, deposits, derivatives and
securities are financial assets in terms of IFRS and have
been included in the categories.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
cash in bank deposits with a maturity of three months
or less.

Shareholders' equity decreased by EUR 583,403 thou-
sand, or 54.9 percent, from EUR 1,062,326 thousand at
the beginning of the financial year to EUR 478,923 thou-
sand at year's end. Most of the decrease was caused by
a dividend payment of EUR 269,899 thousand, by an
impairment loss of EUR 180,000 thousand on goodwill,
and by the recognition of negative fair values for hedg-
ing derivatives in accumulated other equity. Addition-
ally, 1,127,500 shares of preferred stock were bought
back during the year, which reduced equity by a further
EUR 15,105 thousand.

At year's end, the subscribed capital of the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group amounted to EUR 218,797,200. This capital
is divided into 109,398,600 registered shares of com-
mon stock with no par value, and 109,398,600 nonvot-
ing bearer shares of preferred stock with no par value,
each share representing a notional value of EUR 1.00
of the share capital. Thus, as of December 31, 2008,
the number of shares outstanding was 218,797,200, of
which the Company itself held 1,127,500.

Capital reserves amounted to EUR 547,139 thousand,
compared to EUR 546,987 thousand on December 31,
2007. The EUR 152 thousand increase resulted from
the issue of stock options in 2008.

The Group equity generated amountingto EUR -56,394
thousand [vs. EUR 342,646 thousand] includes the
profit carried forward before the dividend distribution
[EUR 342,646 thousand] and the net loss for the pe-
riod [EUR -129,141 thousand] less the dividend paid out
during the year amounting to EUR 269,899 thousand.

The accumulated other Group equity of the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group, in the amount of EUR -234,090 thousand
[vs. EUR -56,539 thousand] results from the measure-
ment of financial instruments with no impact on profit
or loss, and from currency translation differences for
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The
measurement of financial instruments with no im-
pact on profit or loss pertains to currency hedges in

the amount of EUR 9,358 thousand [vs. EUR -23,002
thousand the year before] and interest rate hedges in
the amount of EUR 146,873 thousand [vs. EUR -17,464
thousand], including the associated deferred taxes.

Allocation of profits

Last financial year, under the decision of the share-
holders’ meeting as of June 10, 2008, a dividend of
EUR 269,899 thousand was paid out to the holders
of preferred and common stock, out of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG's 2007 distributable net profit of EUR
3,105,743 thousand. This represents a payout of EUR
1.25 per bearer share of preferred stock, and EUR 1.23
per registered share of common stock.

In accordance with the German Stock Corporation Act,
the dividend payable to shareholders depends on the
distributable net profit shown in the annual financial
statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG under the
German Commercial Code. The Executive Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG will propose that the distrib-
utable net profit of EUR 1,899,901 thousand for 2008
should be allocated as follows:

2 165,422.00

Distribution of a dividend of EUR 0.02 per
preferred share

Distribution of a dividend of EUR 0.00 per
common share

Balance to be carried forward to the next
accounting period

1,897,735,235.51

1,899,900,657.51

Distributable net profit

Authorized Capital

By a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting on June
16, 2003, the Executive Board was authorized, subject
to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase
the Company's capital stock on one or more occasions
on or before June 15, 2008, by a total amount of not
more than EUR 97,243,200.00, by issuing new regis-
tered shares of common stock and new bearer shares
of preferred stock in return for cash contributions, in
the same proportion as existed between the two cat-
egories of stock at the time of the new issue in ques-
tion. The new shares have the profit commission rights
from the beginning of the financial year in which they
were issued. After exercising this capital authorization
in the capital increase registered on April 6, 2004, the
Executive Board was still authorized to increase the
Company's capital stock on one or more occasions on
or before June 15, 2008, subject to approval by the
Supervisory Board, by a total of not more than EUR
72,932,400.00, in return for cash contributions, by is-
suing new stock in accordance with the above share-
holder resolution.



In order to meet the needs of the Company and the cap-
ital market flexibly in the future as well, the Executive
Board was authorized by a unanimous resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG on
May 7, 2004, after the suspension of the former autho-
rized capital, to increase the Company's share capital
on one or more occasions on or before May 6, 2009,
subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, by
not more than EUR 97,243,200.00, in return for contri-
butions in cash and/or in kind, by issuing not more than
97,243,200 no-par shares of stock. The new shares
have the profit commission rights from the beginning
of the financial year in which they are issued.This au-
thorization also includes the authorization to issue new
preferred shares that take precedence over or have the
same priority as previously issued preferred shares in
the distribution of profits or the Company's assets.

Treasury shares

At the Shareholders’ Meeting of May 13, 2005, the
shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG authorized the
Company for the first time to buy back its own stock.
The Company was authorized to acquire its own com-
mon and/or preferred stock on or before November 12,
2006, up to a notional value of 10 percent of the Compa-
ny's share capital at the time of the authorization. This
authorization for the Company to acquire its own stock
was replaced by a new authorization at the sharehold-
ers' meeting on July 17, 2007. The Company was autho-
rized to acquire its own common and/or preferred stock
on or before January 16, 2009, up to a total notional
value of 10 percent of the Company's share capital at the
time of the authorization. The Company exercised this
authorization up to December 31, 2008, and acquired a
total of 1,127,500 shares of preferred stock.

The authorization for the Company to acquire its own
stock was replaced by a new authorization at the share-
holders' meeting on June 10, 2008. The Company is au-
thorized to acquire its own common and/or preferred
stock on or before December 9, 2009, up to a total no-
tional value of 10 percent of the Company's share capi-
tal at the time of the authorization. The June 10 autho-
rization may be exercised by the Executive Board for
any legal purpose, especially in pursuit of the objectives
stated in the authorization resolution itself.

Minority interests

Minority interests include third-party holdings in the
equity to be consolidated in the course of capital con-
solidation, together with the profits and losses to which
those third parties are entitled. These interests are held
primarily in the following companies:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
wer-weiss-was GmbH 3,080
Sat.1 Privatrundfunk-und Programmge- -
sellschaft m.b.H. 2,731 2,534
Sat.1 Switzerland AG 2,255
solute GmbH © 866
Wetter Fernsehen-Meteos GmbH 6 798
wetter.com AG 344
Producers at work GmbH 7 307
PS Event GmbH 1 239
best webnews GmbH -l-
SBS Radio Norge AS -
MTM SBS Televizi6 Részvényt. -1-
SBS Radio A/S -1-
Radio Nova A/S 7 /
Radio Daltid SBS AB 0 /

w
(=]
-

Miracle Sound Oy

S.C. Canet Radio SRL 7 /
Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS /
Other companies 12
Total 10,435

The minority interests for entities acquired in the acqui-
sition of SBS Broadcasting Group were eliminated from
the equity as a part of the first time consolidation. Con-
sequently there are no comparable figures for the pre-
vious year. Additionally, further minority interests have
been recognized because of additional acquisitions in
the financial year 2008. For further information on the-
se transactions, please refer to Note [3].

Information about capital management

The primary capital management tools used in the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group are capital arrangements, divi-
dend payments to the shareholders, share buy-backs,
and external financing.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's capital management pur-
sues the goal of safequarding the Company's survival
for the long term, and of generating a fair return for
its equity holders. In this regard, due account is taken
of changes in economic conditions and risks resulting
from the underlying business operations. It is also im-
portant to the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to safequard its
unrestricted access to various borrowing options in the
capital market, and its ability to manage its financial li-
abilities.

As part of active management of borrowings, particular
attention is given to managing leverage, measured as
the ratio of net financial debt to recurring EBITDA, as
well as needs for capital and liquidity, and to matching
the timing of refinancing measures. The ProSiebenSat.1



Group currently has long-term corporate financing un-
der contracts that run until mid-2014 and mid-2015.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's capital structure as of the
balance sheet date was as follows:

12/31/2008 12/31/2007

Equity (Group) 478,923 1,062,326
Share from total capital 8.1% 17.7%
Non-current financial liabilities 3,523,152 3,577,297
Current financial liabilities 516,663 2,196
Financial liabilities total 4,039,815 3,579,493
Share from total capital 68.1% 59.7%
Total capital 5,929,869 5,998,846

The consolidated shareholders' equity of the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group under IFRS decreased 54.9 percent during
the year. Most of this decrease resulted from the divi-
dend payment of EUR 269.9 million in June 2008, and
from the recognition of negative fair values for interest
rate derivatives under “other comprehensive income,”
as required under IFRS. Additionally, in 2008 the ProS-
iebenSat.1 Group bought back 1,127,500 shares of its
own preferred stock, thus reducing the consolidated
equity by EUR 15.1 million. The stock buy-back serves
to meet future obligations under the stock option plan
for selected members of management of the ProSieben-
Sat.l Group. In addition, the consolidated loss of the
period amounting to EUR 125,490 thousand decreased
the equity. This includes the goodwill impairment of EUR
180,000 thousand.

The reduction in the percentage of equity relative to to-
tal capital results in part from the absolute reduction in
consolidated equity, but also from draws of EUR 497.2
million from the revolving credit facility (compared to
cash of EUR 632.9 million). These draws are recognized
under short-term financial liabilities.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is striving to improve its
financial profile. For this purpose, the Group has initi-
ated further measures to improve profitability, among
other steps. A significantly reduced dividend for 2008
will be proposed to the shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG.

No capital arrangements were carried out during the fi-
nancial year 2008. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group and its fi-
nancial liabilities are not officially rated by international
rating agencies.

12/31/2008 12/31/2007

Provisions for benefits obligations

6,961 4,344

Pension provisions were formed for obligations to pro-
vide future benefits for active and former members of
the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and
their survivors.

In calculating pension expenses, ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG considers the expected service cost and the ac-
crued interest on the pension obligation. The change
in the present value of the future benefits is calculated
as follows:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Present value of the obligation 1/1/ 2,574
Service cost 717 738
Interest cost 274 115
Actuarial gains (-) losses (+) 917
Pension payments m -/-
Present value at 12/31/ 4,344
Unrecognized past service cost -/-
Unrecognized actuarial losses -/-
Present value at 12/31/2008 4,344

The interest expense for pension obligations is report-
ed as part of the net interest expense. Actuarial gains
and losses result from a change in the quantity struc-
ture and an adjustment of the calculation interest rate.
They were recognized immediately in the income state-
ment in the year of their occurrence. The measurement
date for the present value of obligations is December
31. The parameters and assumptions indicated in Note
[6], ,Accounting policies’, were used for this purpose.

These parameters will also apply over the course of the
year for measuring the interest expense and service
cost for the current year.

The expected contribution expenses for defined-ben-
efit pension plans in 2009 are EUR 627 thousand. Pen-
sion payments of EUR 80 thousand were made in the
financial year 2008. Pension payments of EUR 323
thousand are expected in 2009.



Additions

from the first Deconso-
Exchange rate time conso- Consump- Reclassifi- lidation
1/1/2008 differences lidation Increase tion Release cation effects 12/31/2008
Tax provisions 111,617 158 6 94,695 113,072 13,750 -138 28 79,488
Provisions for
contingent losses 24,903 -/- -/- 23,247 19,003 487 -/- -/- 28,660
Other miscellaneous
provisions 48,263 21 58 50,245 21,505 3,664 -78 1,982 71,358
Total 184,783 179 64 168,187 153,580 17,901 -216 2,010 179,506
thereof current
provisions 177,819 178,258
thereof non-current
provisions 6,964 1,248
Provisions decreased a total of EUR 5,277 thousand,
from EUR 184,783 thousand on December 31, 2007, to
EUR 179,506 thousand on December 31, 2008.
Provisions for contingent losses are formed almost ex-
clusively for programming assets whose license term
begins after December 31,2008, and which current pro-
gramming analyses indicate will not generate the origi-
nally anticipated future audience shares or revenues.
Provisions comprise long-term provisions of EUR 1,248
thousand (vs. EUR 6,964 thousand), almost all of which
are set aside for contingent losses, and short-term provi-
sions of EUR 178,258 thousand (vs. 177,819 thousand).
Other miscellaneous provisions comprise the following:
Exchange Additions from Deconso-
rate dif- the first time Reclassi- lidation
1/1/2008 ferences consolidation Increase Consumption Release fication effects 12/31/2008
Provisions for
business operations 12,978 -/- -/- 11,570 13,161 425 367 401 10,928
Provisions for
litigation costs 1,073 24 -/- 1,626 598 588 724 -/- 2,261
Other miscellaneous
provisions 34,212 -3 58 37,050 7,747 2,649 41,171 1,581 58,169
Total 48,263 21 58 50,246 21,506 3,662 -80 1,982 71,358

The “other miscellaneous provisions"” particularly in-

clude provisions for interest on future tax payments.



Liabilities to banks

Total loans and borrowings

Total current/non-current

Trade accounts payable

Liabilities from finance leases

Liabilities from hedge derivatives

Liabilities from independent hedging instruments
Liabilities to holders of preferred stock

Accrued interests

Liabilities to entities in which the Group has a significant interest
Total financial liabilities

Total current/non-current

Total

(amounts secured by real estate charges)

Liabilities to banks

Total loans and borrowings

Total current/non-current

Trade accounts payable

Liabilities from finance leases

Liabilities from hedge derivatives

Liabilities from independent hedging instruments
Liabilities to holders of preferred stock

Accrued interests

Liabilities to entities in which the Group has a significant interest
Total financial liabilities

Total current/non-current

Total

(amounts secured by real estate charges)

The carrying amounts of financial liabilities according
to IFRS 7 categories are disclosed in Note [33].

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings comprise all interest-bearing li-
abilities not included under finance lease liabilities. As
of December 31, 2008, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had
loans and borrowings totaling EUR 4,039,815 thousand.
Of this figure, EUR 516,663 thousand was short-term
liabilities with terms of less than one year, and EUR
3,523,152 thousand was long-term liabilities. The princi-
pal components of financial liabilities are as follows:

EUR 4.2 billion syndicated credit facility
The loan agreement covers a number of term loans
totaling EUR 1.8 billion, with an original term of seven

Remaining Remaining Remaining
term1year term1to5 termover5 Total
or less years years 12/31/2008
516,663 2,975 3,520,177
516,663 2,975 3,520,177
516,663 -/- 3,523,152
386,958 3,247 -1 -
6,071 27,596 85,013
10,510 68,932 118,309
2,669 962 -/ -
-1- -/- 27,771
23,472 -1 - -1 -
2,363 -1 - -1 -
432,043 100,738 231,093
432,043 -/- 331,831
948,706 103,713 3,751,270
”””””” Remaining  Remaining  Remaining
termiyear term1to5 termover5 Total
or less years years 12/31/2007
2,196 7967 3569330
2,196 7,967 3,569,330
2,196 -1- 3,577,297
341,146 31,602 1
3,521 16,440 94,639
13,510 24,899 4,088
8,892 -/ - -1-
-/ - -/ - 27,771
22,948 -/ - -/ -
1,608 -/- -/-
391,625 72,941 126,499
391,625 -1- 199,440
393,821 80,908 3,695,829

years (Term Loan B) and loans for a total of another
EUR 1.8 billion with an original term of eight years (Term
Loan C). Term Loan B matures on July 3, 2014, and Term
Loan C on July 3, 2015. The agreement also includes a
new revolving credit facility with a term of seven years
and a total limit of EUR 600 million. It may be drawn in
variable amounts. The new loan agreement was made
with an international banking syndicate and institution-
al investors. A portion of the loans can also be drawn
in currencies other than the euro. As of December 31,
2008, loans had been drawn in Swedish Krona for the
equivalent of approximately EUR 246 million.

Under the loan agreement, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
has pledged as security equity interests in various sub-
sidiaries categorized as significant. A number of compa-



nies also furnished guarantees to the lenders. The loan
agreement furthermore includes the usual undertakings,
which in turn are qualified or mitigated with exceptions.
The loan agreement additionally includes the customary
grounds for termination by the lender, which apply to
breaches of contract not otherwise covered by more de-
tailed provisions of the contract. In the event that con-
trol of the Company changes through an acquisition of a
majority interest, each lender independently may termi-
nate its participation in the loan within a specified term
and demand repayment of outstanding amounts. Among
its other provisions, the contract also obligates the Com-
pany to maintain a certain ratio between consolidated
net debt and consolidated EBITDA, as well as between
consolidated EBITDA and the consolidated net interest
expense (each as defined under the contract).

The international financial crisis has also affected the
financing of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. Two lenders are
either currently unable to meet their obligations under
the loan agreement, or unable to meet them at all.

Through a subsidiary, Lehman Commercial Paper
Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc. held 0.9 percent of the se-
cured term loans (equivalent to about EUR 29.6 mil-
lion) and 3.8 percent of the revolving credit facility
(RCF) (equivalent to EUR 22.7 million) as a lender. The
Lehman Brothers holding company applied for pro-
tection from creditors on September 15, 2008, and
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. filed its own applica-
tion for protection on October 5,2008. As of that date,
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. will no longer provide
funds for new drafts under the RCF. However, exist-
ing drafts on the RCF can be renewed for the same
amount without any early repayment of the Lehman
component. Retirements of drafts on Lehman credit
facilities under the RCF would cause them to lapse.
The loans already furnished by Lehman Commercial
Paper Inc. under the term loan facilities are likewise
unaffected by the insolvency. Moreover, Lehman has
no right to demand, and the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
has no obligation to perform, any early redemption of
Lehman's share of the secured term loans.

The Icelandic bank Glitnir banki hf. holds 1.7 percent
of the revolving credit facility (equivalent to EUR 10.0
million) as a lender. Glitnir was nationalized in Octo-
ber as a consequence of the financial crisis, and will
not participate in future drafts until further notice.
This change has no effect on outstanding drafts. How-
ever, retirement of any existing drafts would cause
them to lapse.

Taking Lehman and Glitnir into account, EUR 5.3 million
was no longer available for drafts under the revolving
credit facility as of December 31, 2008. Thus the revolv-
ing line of credit that is currently available comes to
EUR 594.7 million. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group can draw
variably on the revolving lines of credit for general op-
erating purposes. Allowing for draws under guarantees
of EUR 43.4 million EUR 54.1 million of the revolving
credit facility was unused as of December 31, 2008 (De-
cember 31, 2007: EUR 555.8 million).

Sat.1 mortgage loans

Obligations to banks furthermore include an annuity
loan taken out by Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH as
well as by Sat.1 Grundstiicksverwaltungs GmbH & Co.
KG., using mortgage liens as collateral. The term of
the loans run longest to July 2021. Liabilities of EUR
30.5 million under this loan existed as of December 31,
2008.

Miscellaneous liabilities break down as follows:

12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Liabilities for cartel office fine 120,000
Received prepayments 48,445
Value added tax liabilities 53,546
Liabilities from fees and toward
employees 22,418
Liabilities for Gema / GVL 16,454
Vacation payment accruals 15,621
Liabilities for other taxes 11,712
Accruals for social security payments 2,570
Other 78,798
Total 369,563
thereof non-current --
thereof current 369,563




ADDITIONAL NOTES

The Group's cash flow statement is prepared in accor-
dance with IAS 7 [,Cash Flow Statements']. It shows how
cash and cash equivalents have changed as a result of
cash inflows and outflows during the year, distinguish-
ing between cash flow for operating activities, cash flow
for investing activities and cash flow for financing ac-
tivities. The cash flow statement appears on page 92.

The funds covered by the cash flow statement include
all cash and cash equivalents from the balance sheet
with terms of not more than three months. The chang-
es in cash and equivalents include EUR -4,609 thou-
sand for the current financial year as a consequence
of changes in foreign exchange rates (vs. EUR -5,886
thousand for the previous year).

At December 31, 2008 the German entities had guar-
antees of EUR 6,805 thousand for external liabilities.
Thereof EUR 2,268 thousand relate to financial period
2009. Furthermore, foreign companies had a total of
EUR 3,463 thousand in contingent liabilities under is-
sued guarantees.

Remaining Remaining Remaining
term1 year term2to termover5
or less 5 years years Total
Programming 931,308 1,463,056 160,003 PASRENLY
assets
Leasing and
long-term rental
commitments 23,476 58,363 37,846 119,685
Royalties 87,593 169,472 70,055 327,120
Other
liabilities 113,159 138,728 84,592 336,479
Total 1,155,536 1,829,619 352,496 EREIMINE

Other financial liabilities exist in addition to provisions,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. These derive from
contractual agreements entered into before December
31,2008, and pertain to payment obligations due on or
after January 1, 2009. The agreements have remaining
terms up to 15 years.

Royalties include financial obligations for satellite rent-
al, obligations under contracts for terrestrial transmis-
sion facilities, and cable feed charges.

Leasing and long-term rental obligations under operat-
ing leases essentially comprise obligations under leases
for motor vehicles, along with rent obligations under
building leases.

Other liabilities essentially comprise GEMA payments
and fees for news services and other services.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group's operations and financing
needs expose it to various financial risks. Fluctuation
of interest rates and foreign exchange rates may affect
the Group's assets and liabilities, financial position, and
profit or loss. The acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting
Group in 2007 has significantly changed the Corpo-
ration's risk structure. Interest rate risks in particular
have risen. Financial risks are managed and monitored
centrally as a part of financial risk management. For the
Group's German-speaking regions, the principles, du-
ties and responsibilities of financial risk management
are governed by the Group's internal corporate finan-
cial guidelines. One of the primary tasks for 2008 was
to fully integrate the SBS Broadcasting Group into the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group's financial risk management sys-
tem, and to incorporate it into Group-wide regulations.
The objective of financial risk management is to cush-
ion the adverse effects that fluctuations in financial risk
factors may have on the Company's assets and liabili-
ties, financial position and profit or loss. The derivative
financial instruments employed for this purpose serve
solely to hedge existing risk positions, not for specula-
tion. Risk positions are assessed regularly, and existing
risks are quantified using sensitivity analyses. Currency
risks are based on an assumed appreciation of 10 per-
cent in the value of the U.S. dollar. The ProSiebenSat.1
Group's interest rate risk is calculated by increasing the
relevant interest rates by one percentage point. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group does not believe it is exposed to
any material concentrations of risk.

Currency risks

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group signs a substantial number
of its license agreements with production studios in
the United States. As arule, the Group generally meets
its financial obligations deriving from these program-
ming rights purchases in U.S. dollars. Consequently
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the euro
and the dollar may adversely affect the ProSieben-
Sat.l1 Group’'s financial position and profit or loss.
Receivables and liabilities in other foreign currencies
were not considered because of their low volumes (app.
0.5 percent).

To hedge against fluctuations in exchange rates, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group enters into forward exchange
contracts (“forwards") and currency options.



2009

USD k

Currency forwards 297,221
[thereof cash-flow hedges] 233,117
Currency options 9,500
[thereof cash-flow hedges] 7,500

Forwards are unconditional contractual agreements to
exchange two currencies. The total par value, exchange
rate and maturity date are specified when the contract
is entered into. As of December 31, 2008, ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG had forwards worth a par value of USD
938 million in its portfolio. As of the same date, it had
options for the purchase of dollars covering a total
nominal value of USD 39 million. As the purchaser of
a currency option, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has the
right, but not the obligation, to buy U.S. dollars for eu-
ros in return for paying an option premium. As with a
forward, in a currency option the total par value, ex-
change rate and maturity date are also laid down at the
time the contract is made. Market values for forwards
are measured using the discounted cash flow method.
Market values for currency options are measured using
the Black and Scholes option pricing formula. Differ-
ences may arise where other methods are used. Mea-
surement was based on market figures (mid-rates) on
December 31, 2008. Because of the crisis in the finan-
cial markets and market uncertainty, other fair values
may be realizable on the market. However, there is no
intent to square positions, since the transactions are
for hedging purposes.

Most license payments on a hedged dollar-denominated
license agreement, together with the associated hedg-
ing instruments, are gathered and managed in what
are known as “hedge books" if the hedging relation-
ship qualifies as a hedge under IAS 39.88 and hedge
accounting can be applied. As of December 31, 2008,
there were 15 hedge books covering a total of USD 1,151
million in pending license payments. Equity as of De-
cember 31, 2008, included EUR 13.2 million for hedge
accounting. In 2008, EUR 13.7 million was removed
from equity and applied directly to the purchase cost of
the underlying license agreement. The average hedge
ratio varies from one defined hedge book to another.
As arule the hedge ratio is between 60 percent and 80
percent. A separate hedging strategy is developed for
each portfolio on the basis of current market assess-
ments and the overall risk position. The hedge books
are constantly monitored under a system of limits, and
any applicable open positions are closed to stop poten-

Nominal

Year of maturity amount Market value
as of as of

2010-2013 from 2014 12/31/2008 12/31/2008
USD k USD k USD k EUR k

603,894 37,000 938,115 11,600
556,570 37,000 826,687 13,100

29,000 -/- 38,500 2,106

29,000 -/- 36,500 2,084

tial losses or take advantage of a favorable change in
exchange rates. No hedge accounting was applied for a
certain portion of the foreign currency exposure in U.S.
dollars. In these cases, liabilities for pending license
payments came to USD 505 million at December 31,
2008. The average hedge ratio at December 31, 2008,
was 59 percent.

Risk positionsin U.S. dollars are assessed reqgularly, and
existing risks are quantified using sensitivity analyses.
The next table shows the impact of a ten percent ap-
preciation in the value of the U.S. dollar on the equiva-
lent value in euros for future payments in dollars.

The following table shows the change in the impact of
the exchange rate for the U.S. dollar on cash flows in
dollars in economic terms, and is therefore not an ac-
counting analysis, which we would consider unrepre-
sentative because of the structure of our business.

as of as of
12/31/2008 12/31/2007
Gross foreign currency exposure in U.S. dollars  EEMGIsRey#y -1,405,917
thereof Mikro Hedge -1,150,863 -973,439
thereof Makro Hedge -505,009 -432,478
Currency hedges 981,415 817,025
thereof Mikro Hedge 863,187 697,592
thereof Makro Hedge 113,428 118,932
thereof Makro Hedge bank deposits 500
Net exposure -588,892
Hedge ratio 58%
Spot rate 1.3976 1.3396
USD increase by 10% 1.2705 1.2178
Change in future payments resulting
from a10% rise in the U.S. dollar -48,258 -43,960



As of its acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group now includes companies located
outside the euro currency area. Since the Group's func-
tional currency is euro, the financial statements of these
companies are converted to euros for purposes of the
consolidated financial statements. The ProSiebenSat.1
Group fundamentally views its holdings in these compa-
nies as a long-term investment, and therefore does not
hedge the associated foreign currency translation risk.

Interest rate risks

Through its financial obligations, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group is exposed to an interest rate risk. The acquisition
of the SBS Broadcasting Group was financed entirely
through a new loan agreement. The loan agreement
covers a number of term loans totaling EUR 1.8 billion,
with a term of seven years (Term Loan B) and loans for
a total of another EUR 1.8 billion with a term of eight
years (Term Loan C). Through these variable-interest fi-
nancial obligations, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is exposed
to an increased interest rate risk. For that reason, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group has hedged 78 percent of this li-
ability with interest-rate swaps. In interest rate swaps,
variable-rate interest payments are exchanged for
fixed-rate interest payments. Uncertain, variable-rate
interest payments on the borrowings described above
are compensated and replaced with fixed-rate interest
payments. Market values for interest rate swaps are
measured using the discounted cash flow method. Dif-
ferences may arise where other methods are used. Be-
cause of the crisis in the financial markets and market
uncertainty, other fair values may be realizable on the
market. However, there is no intent to square positions,
since the transactions are for hedging purposes. The in-
terest rate swaps have a total value of EUR 2.8 billion,
with an average fixed rate of 4.574 percent. The swaps
have remaining terms of approximately 3.5 years for a
total of EUR 1.2 billion and 5.5 years for a total of EUR
1.6 billion. [These transactions contributed a positive net
balance of EUR 2.2 million to the net interest result.] The
interest rate swaps qualify as cash flow hedges that are
covered by hedge accounting under IAS 39.88. As of De-
cember 31,2008, the swaps had a negative market value
of EUR 186.9 million. Of this amount, EUR 2.5 million is
recognized as an interest expense because of the inef-
fectiveness of the hedges. The remainder of EUR 184.4
million is recognized in equity. Because of the terms of
the interest rate swaps (fixed interest against 3-month
EURIBOR), the interest rate curve for swap rates quoted
against the 3-month EURIBOR was used to value the
transactions.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group had also entered into an inter-
est rate swap with Lehman Brothers International Eu-

rope. Because of the counterparty's insolvency, this in-
terest rate swap no longer qualified as a cash flow hedge
under the terms of IAS 39.88 as of September 2008.
Until that time, accumulated measurement losses of
EUR 1.6 million were recognized in equity. This amount
is reclassified to the consolidated income statement
proportionately over the term, in each case at the ma-
turity of the interest payment on the originally hedged
borrowing. The interest rate swap was terminated under
the terms of the ISDA agreement, because of insolvency.
At the date of termination, the interest rate swap had a
positive market value of EUR 4.1 million, which was car-
ried as a receivable from Lehman. This receivable was
written off completely.

The remaining variable interest rate risk results not
only from the unhedged portion of the term loan, but
also from any draws the Group may take on its revolv-
ing credit facility. As of December 31, 2008, EUR 497.2
million had been drawn on this credit facility. An interest
rate risk in the sense of a change in market value is of no
relevance here, since the ProSiebenSat.1 Group's finan-
cial liabilities are reported at cost, and thus any change in
market value will have no effect on the balance sheet.

The interest rate risk position is assessed regularly, and
existing risks are quantified using sensitivity analyses.
The next table shows the effects of a one percentage-
point increase in the relevant interest rates.

The following table shows the change in the impact of
the one percentage-point increase in economic terms,
and is therefore not an accounting analysis, which we
would consider unrepresentative because of the struc-
ture of our business.

Type of as of as of
interest  12/31/2008  12/31/2007
Deposits with banks variable 632,871 250,826
Liabilities to banks variable [EZNe[oRAYd -3,543,742
Bonds fixed -1-
Construction financing fixed -30,523 -35,042
Gross exposure variable |[ERRYHVER -3,292,916
fixed -30,523 -35,042
Interest rate hedges vR:o[oolef0) 3,000,000
Net exposure variable -576,421 -292,916
Hedge ratio 91%
Annual potential loss from
increase of 100 basis points
(1 percentage point) in short
term interest rates* -5,764 -2,929

* Because of the short positions, scenario assumes an increase of 100
basis points in interest rates



The Sat.1 construction loan comprises multiple term ex-
pirations. The next interest rate lock-in, covering a total
of EUR 8.9 million, ends on November 30, 2009.

Credit risks

In any transaction, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group incurs
a risk that the opposite party may become insolvent.
To minimize that risk, the ProSiebenSat.l1 Group has
endeavored to enter into financial transactions and
derivative transactions only with parties with good to
first-class credit ratings. The carrying amount of finan-
cial assets recorded in the financial statements, which
is net of impairment losses, represents the ProSieben-
Sat.1 Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The
Group does not have any significant credit risk expo-
sure concentrations to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties. As of the reporting date, there
are no significant agreements reducing the maximum
credit risk exposure.

The market value of all derivative financial instruments
having a positive market value was EUR 27.6 million as
of December 31, 2008. The largest share of these de-
rivatives with a positive market value, at EUR 5.6 million,
was entered into with a single partner, which has a credit
rating of Aa2 (long term) from the Moody's rating agen-
cy. Concerning trade receivables and other financial as-
sets that are neither impaired nor past due, there were
no indications as of the reporting date, that defaults in
payment obligations will occur. For further information
regarding the aging analysis and allowances of trade ac-
counts receivables, see Note [23].

Liquidity risks

As part of its liquidity management, the ProSiebenSat.1
Group ensures that adequate cash and cash equiva-
lents are available at all times, in spite of the indus-

Items presented in the consolidated balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables

Financial assets designated at fair value* Non-current financial assets
Financial assets held for trading
Financial assets available for sale** Non-current financial assets

Hedge derivatives

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized costs***  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held for trading Financial liabilities

Hedge derivatives Financial liabilities

Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets

Accounts receivable and other assets

try's sharp seasonal fluctuations in revenues. One of
the integral parts of the loan agreement to finance the
acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group was a re-
volving credit facility with a term of seven years and
a total credit line of EUR 600 million. At present two
lenders, Lehman Brothers Inc. (through its subsidiary,
Lehman Commercial Paper Inc.) and the Icelandic bank
Glitnir banki hf, are no longer able to meet their con-
tractual obligations. As of December 31,2008, Lehman
and Glitnir were no longer available for drafts under
the revolving credit facility for a total of EUR 5.3 mil-
lion. Thus the revolving line of credit that is currently
available comes to EUR 594.7 million. As of December
31,2008, drafts of EUR 497.2 million had been taken on
the revolving credit facility. Allowing for draws under
guarantees, EUR 54.1 million of the revolving credit fa-
cility was unused as of December 31, 2008 (December
31, 2007: EUR 555.8 million). Moreover, as of Decem-
ber 31, 2008, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group had total cash
and cash equivalents of EUR 632.9 million (December
31, 2007: EUR 250.8 million). Thus as of December 31,
2008, the Group had a total of EUR 687.2 million in
cash funds and unused credit facilities (December 31,
2007: EUR 806.6 million).

Basically, the credit risks for ProSiebenSat.1 Group arise
from the risk of bad debt losses. Due to the first-class
creditworthiness of our debtors, in the past there have
been no material bad debt losses. Therefore, the ProS-
iebenSat.1 Group does not consider the risk of a default
to be material.

Information on the carrying amount and market value
of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amounts of
all categories of financial assets and liabilities of the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group:

12/31/2008

12/31/2007

Fair  Carrying
Value amount Value amount
250,847 250,847

379,543 379,543

5,649 5,649

64 64

-1- 64,992

.- .-

636,103 701,095

4,119,169 4,119,169

8,892 8,892

42,497 42,497

4,170,558 4,170,558

*Includes only securities. **Includes financial assets available for sale, which fair value cannot be reliably determined by ProSiebenSat.1 Group and
that are valued at costs. ***Includes liabilities to banks and finance lease liabilities. ProSiebenSat.1 Group assumes that the EUR 4.2 billion credits
guote below the notional amount. However, these quotations can not be used as reliable reference in order to derive at a fair value. Therefore, the fair
values are calculated by discounting expected future cash-flows according to the method used for other financial liabilities.



The market value of cash and cash equivalents, of trade
accounts receivable and payable, of short-term financial
receivables and liabilities, and of revolving credit facili-
ties and other financing debt is approximately equiva-
lent to their carrying amount. A particular reason for
this is the short terms of these instruments.

The market value of listed bonds is based on price
quotes as of the reporting date. The market value of

liabilities to banks and other long-term financing debt,
liabilities from finance leases, and other financial liabili-
ties is determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at the interest rates applicable for similar
financial debt with comparable terms to maturity.

The net gains and losses on financial instruments are
shown below.

From From Net gain (loss)
At dereco- currency
fair value Impairment gnition translation 2008 2007
Financial assets available for sale -/- -1,957 -/ - -/- -1,957 -1,111
Financial assets designated at fair value 36 -/- -/ - -/- 36 68
Loans and receivables -/ - -7,370 -/- -2,263 -9,633 -4,105
Financial liabilities at amortized cost -/- -/ - -/- -60,112 -60,112 1,932
Financial assets and liabilities held for trading 25,502 -/- -/ - -1,885 23,617 -15,043

The impairment loss taken in the category of financial
assets available for sale is for impairments of assets for
pension plans.

The net gains or losses under loans and receivables
include measurement changes, reversals of previous
write-downs and effects from changes in exchange
rates at foreign subsidiaries of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group.

The foreign currency effects on financial liabilities at
amortized cost occur primarily at the foreign subsidiar-
ies of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. The increase resulted
from the weakening of functional currencies of foreign
Group entities.

The net gains or losses under financial assets and liabili-
ties held for trading consist of changes in the market
value of derivative financial instruments for which no
hedge accounting was applied, together with currency
effects.

The net gains or losses concerning financial instruments
are shown under the other financial result, except for
write-downs that are included under selling expenses.

Explanatory notes regarding segment reporting

In accordance with IFRS 8 [,Operating Segments'], cer-
tain figures in financial statements must be presented
separately by business segments and geographical seg-
ments. The basis of segmentation is to be the company’s
own internal reporting, which permits a reliable assess-
ment of the group’s risks and earnings. Segmentation is
intended to provide transparency as to the profitability
and prospects for success of the group’s individual ac-

tivities. Consistently with its internal management prac-
tices, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group adopts business seg-
ments as the basis for its primary segment reporting.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group subdivides its operations into
two business units, Free TV and Diversification. The
Free TV unit in turn is subdivided into two segments,
Free TV in German-Speaking region and Free TV Inter-
national.

The Free TV in German-Speaking region segment es-
sentially comprises the Group's four channels Sat.1,
ProSieben, kabel eins and N24, as well as the Sat.1 re-
gional companies, the marketing company SevenOne
Media, and the Group's subsidiaries in Austria and Swit-
zerland. The Free TV International segment includes
advertising-financed TV channels in Netherlands, Bel-
gium, Denmark, Finland, Norway, Sweden, Romania,
Bulgaria and Hungary. The Diversification segment
pools all subsidiaries that do not generate their income
directly from classic TV advertising revenues; their ac-
tivities include Pay TV, Call TV, Multimedia, Merchan-
dising and Radio operations, as well as related Print
products.

Segment information
Segmentinformation normally applies the same account-
ing policies as the consolidated financial statements.

Recurring EBITDA stands for EBITDA adjusted with the
exceptional one-time effects.

Segment assets comprise all assets used for operat-
ing activities. These include both intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment, as well as current assets
less income tax receivables, deferred tax assets, current



securities, and cash and cash equivalents. Addition-
ally receivables from affiliated companies are included
which are not netted with payables respectively.

Segment investments relate to intangible assets in-
cluding purchased goodwill, and to property, plant and
equipment. Interest income and interest expenses in-
clude all interest-bearing transactions in the Group.
Internal interest income and interest expenses are
eliminated in the reconciliation column. Depreciation,

sets allocated to each segment, except for amortiza-
tion of financial investments and current securities.
Amortizations and impairments have been presented
separately. Noncash expenses largely comprise con-
sumption of programming assets, allocations to provi-
sions, expenses for the valuation of option premiums,
and write-downs of receivables. Noncash income con-
sists primarily of the release of provisions. Intra-seg-
ment receivables, provisions, income and expenses,
and profits are eliminated in the reconciliations.

amortization and impairment apply to the segment as-

Segment reporting of ProSiebenSat.1 Group 2008

Total consolidated

Segment Total financial
Free-TV Diversification =~ Segments Transitions statements 2008
Segment Free- Segment -
TV German-  Free-TV In- Total
speaking  ternational Free-TV
Revenues 1,787,936 806,809 2,504,745 532,723 3,127,468 73,227
External revenues 1,735,700 797,341 2,533,041 521,200 3,054,241 -1-
Internal revenues 52,236 9,468 61,704 11,523 73,227 73,227
Recurring EBITDA 406,560 193,467 600,027 73949 673,976 572
Interest income 15,784 8,018 23,802 6,232 30,034 11,042
Interest expense 176,437 103,371 279,808 5389 285107  -10,769
Depreciation and amortization 32,769 56,586 89,355 50,082 139,437 -165 139,272
Impairment 31,373 180,000 211,373 1178 212,551 -1- 212,551
Noncash expenses 933,638 363203 1,296,841 115856 1,412,697 -358 _
Noncash income 1,006 2,023 3,029 1,120 4,149 -1-
Segment assets 1,088,158 2,566,610 4,554,768 1,044,067 5598835 331,034 _
Segment investments 52,022 22,227 74,249 33635 107,884 164
Income from associated companies 2,013 17 2,030 -1,438 592 -/- 592
Interests in associated companies 236 778 1,014 5,854 6,868 -/-
Segment reporting of ProSiebenSat.1 Group 2007
Total consolidated
Segment Total financial
Free-TV Diversification =~ Segments Transitions statements 2007
Segment Free- Segment -
TV German-  Free-TV In- Total
speaking  ternational Free-TV
Revenues 1,971,377 406,067 2,377,444 405631 2,783,075 72,654 _
External revenues 1,007,733 403,805 2,311,628 308793 2,710,421 S 27042
Internal revenues 63,644 2,172 65,816 6,838 72,654 72,654
Recurring EBITDA 485,401 112,023 597,424 65628 663,052 -118
Interest income 7,615 25,973 33,588 12,882 46,470 -18,461
Interest expense 97,395 56,339 153,734 8,406 162,140 -18,389
Depreciation and amortization 30,641 70,126 100,767 36,113 136,880 -105 _
Impairment 34 206 240 -7 233 -/-
Noncash expenses 987,700 170,391 1,158,091 54,387 1,212,478 -1,391
Noncash income 1,378 3,780 5,158 1,652 6,810 -/-
Segment assets 1895433 2,447,755 4,343,188 1,499,269 5842457 156,389
Segment investments 22,099 11,423 33,522 7,923 41,445 -/-
Income from associated companies 1,691 1,160 2,851 -937 1,914 -/-
Interests in associated companies 250 939 1,189 3,394 4,583 -




The reconciliation between the segment report and the
consolidated values is shown below:

Reconciliations to the segment reporting of ProSiebenSat.1 Group

2008 2007

I

.
Revenues of reported segments 2,783,075
Intercompany elimination of income and expenses -72,654
Group revenues 2,710,421

I

.
Recurring EBITDA of reported segments _ 663,052
Not allocable to segments -/-
Elimination of intercompany profit and loss -/-
Debt consolidation -118
Total group 662,934
Non Recurring result -140,641
Financial result -135,501
Depreciation 136,775
Impairment -233
Profit before tax 249,784

I

.
Interest income of reported segments 46,470
Intercompany elimination of income and expenses _ -18,461
Interest income _ 28,009

I

.
Interest expense of reported segments 162,140
Intercompany elimination of income and expenses -18,389
Interest expense 143,751
Depreciation and amortization of reported segments 136,880
Elimination of intercompany profit and loss -105
Depreciation and amortization 136,775

.

.
Noncash expenses of reported segments 1,212,478
Elimination of intercompany profit and loss m -558
Intercompany elimination of income and expenses -817
Consolidation bookings, not allocable to segments -16
Noncash expenses 1,211,087

.

.
Assets of reported segments 5,842,457
Financial assets 75,091
Deferred taxes 50,708
Cash [ 633082 251,111
Tax receivables 34,109
Consolidation bookings, not allocable to segments _ 10,525
Elimination of intercompany profit and loss -/-
Debt consolidation -265,155
Group Assets 5,998,846

I

.
Investments of reported segments 41,445
Elimination of intercompany profit and loss _ -/-
Segment investments 41,445



Entity-wide disclosures of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are
provided below. Here distinctions are made among the
German-speaking region (Germany, Austria, Switzer-
land), “"B/NL" (the Netherlands and Belgium), Nordic
(Denmark, Finland, Norway, Sweden), and CEE (Bulgar-
ia, Greece, Romania, Hungary).

Entity-wide disclosures for ProSiebenSat.1 Group

German Speaking
1,978,687
1,938,269

External revenues

Non-current segment assets

Entity-wide disclosures for ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Total in
consolidated
financial state-
ments

B/NL
418,933
1,171,883

CEE
165,924
450,348

12/31/2008

3,054,241

Nordic
490,697
841,613

German Speaking
2,163,396
1,915,778

External revenues

Non-current segment assets

In 2008, 62 percent of consolidated external revenues
(EUR 1.791 billion) were generated in Germany, 11 per-
cent (EUR 331.8 million) in the Netherlands (region
Benelux), and 9 percent (EUR 286.7 million) in Sweden
(region Nordic). By comparison, in 2007 76 percent
(EUR 2.053 billion) of consolidated external revenues
were generated in Germany, 7 percent (EUR 176.3 mil-
lion) in the Netherlands, and 6 percent (EUR 158.4 mil-
lion) in Sweden.

More than 10 percent of consolidated revenues were
generated with each of two clients in the financial year
2008 (Client A 2008: EUR 407.7 million, 2007: EUR
427.8 million; Client B 2008: EUR 304.3 million, 2007:
EUR 302.2 million). These revenues are allocated in
various proportions to the Free TV in German-Speaking
Europe and Diversification segments.

As of December 31, 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG had
two stock option plans. The 2005 Long-Term Incen-
tive Plan (LTIP 2005) was introduced by consent of the
shareholders' meeting of May 13, 2005, and the 2008
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP 2008) was introduced
by consent of the shareholders’ meeting of June 10,
2008.

Number of options

As of December 31, 2008, total of 1,127,500 stock op-
tions were still outstanding under LTIP 2005, all of
which had been issued in 2006. No further options will
be issued under LTIP 2005. The options issued in 2005

Total in

consolidated

financial state-

ments

B/NL

217,906
1,106,283

CEE
78,938
637,356

12/31/2007

Nordic
250,181
1,065,814

2,710,421
4,725,231

were called in by the Company in 2007 by paying out
the cash value of the option.

A total of up to another 4,400,000 options are per-
mitted to be issued under LTIP 2008. Of this total,
1,941,250 had been issued up to December 31, 2008.

Authorized beneficiaries

The stock options are intended exclusively for purchase
by members of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG, senior members of other managements, and
other selected executives of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
and its dependent Group companies. The individual
beneficiaries and the number of stock options to be
granted to them are decided by the Executive Board
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, subject to the consent of
the Supervisory Board, or - where the Executive Board
members themselves are concerned - by the Supervi-
sory Board.

Issue periods

The stock options for LTIP 2008 may be issued in one
or more annual portions. Options must be issued dur-
ing the first three months of a calendar year and/or
during the period between the annual meeting of the
Company's shareholders and the end of the calendar
year. Stock options under LTIP 2008 could be issued
for the first time in 2008 and cannot be issued later
than 2009.



Exercise periods

Stock options may be exercised only when a vesting pe-
riod has elapsed at the time of exercise. This vesting pe-
riod is to commence on January 1t of the year in which
the pertinent stock options are issued. The vesting pe-
riod has already expired for the options issued under
LTIP 2005. For stock options issued under LTIP 2008,
the vesting period for one-fifth of the options issued to
a given beneficiary will expire at the end of each full
year after January 1t of the year in which the options
were issued. Furthermore, the statutory lock-up period
of two years from the grant date of the options must
have expired at the time of exercise.

If unexercised, stock options issued under LTIP 2005
will expire without compensation six years after the
January 15t of the year in which they were issued, and
those under LTIP 2008 will expire without compensa-
tion seven years after January 1t of the year in which
they were issued.

Strike price

Each stock option carries the right to purchase one
preferred share of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock in
return for payment of a “strike price.” The strike price
is the volume weighted average closing auction price of
ProSiebenSat.1 preferred stock in trading on the XETRA
system over the last 30 days of trading on the Frank-
furt Stock Exchange prior to January 1t of the year in
which the stock options were issued. As an exception
from this rule, the strike price for options issued in
2008 under LTIP 2008 is EUR 16.00.

In the event that the volume weighted average closing
auction price of ProSiebenSat.1 preferred stock in trad-
ing on the XETRA system over the last 30 days of trad-
ing on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange prior to the exer-
cise date exceeds the strike price by more than 200
percent, the strike price for the options concerned is to
be increased by the amount in excess of 200 percent.
In addition, to protect option holders in the event of
changes in the Company's share capital, dividend dis-
tributions, and other measures that may dilute the op-
tions’ value, the strike price may be adjusted accord-
ingly.

Incentive target

As anincentive target, stock option plans are to specify
that the stock’'s trading price at the time of exercise
of the options must exceed the strike price by at least
30 percent. As an exception from this rule, the incen-
tive target for the options issued under LTIP 2008 will
be achieved when the stock's trading price is at least
22.40 Euro at the time of exercise of the options.

The following table provides all necessary information
about the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option plan:

SOP 2006 SOP 2008
Stock options granted in 2008 -/- 1,941,250
Strike price 13.99 16.00
Absolute threshold 18.19 22.40
Maximum exercise gain 27.98 32.00
End of vesting period * 08/02/2008  12/31/2008
Outstanding stock options at the
beginning of the year 1,127,500 -/-
Options exercised -/- n.a**
Options expired / forfeited -/- -/-

including: expired prior to end of
vesting period -/ - -/ -

including: expired because perfor- Exercise period Still
mance targets were not met still running investing
period
including: expired after end of Exercise period Still
vesting period still running investing
period
Outstanding stock options at
the end of the year 1,127,500 1,941,250
Exercisable stock options to
the end of the year 1,127,500 n.a**

* SOP 2008: Earliest end of vesting period for the first fifth of issued
options. Each additional fifth is one year later. ** Not yet exercisable.

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG uses the binomial model of
Cox/Ross/Rubinstein (1979) to calculate the actuarial
values of stock options. The expected volatility is cal-
culated from historical volatilities over periods of from
one to six years. The expected volatility of 50 percent
is generally consistent with the capital markets' own
estimates at the issue date of LTIP 2008. The implicit
volatilities from negotiated warrants for ProSiebenSat.1
stock were used to check the plausibility of the expected
volatility. Other factors taken into account in calculat-
ing the value of options are the value of the underlying
instruments, the strike price, the exercise threshold, the
maximum exercise gain, suboptimal premature exercise,
the dividend yield, the basis interest rate, the exercise
windows, the contractual time periods, the graduated
vesting periods, and turnover among beneficiaries.

The expense for the financial year 2008 came to EUR
138 thousand (vs. EUR 5,412 thousand), and is included
under personnel expenses.

The members of the Executive Board and Supervisory
Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are listed on pages
137 through 138 of this report. Details of the system of
compensation for members of the Executive Board and
the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are
explained below.



In addition to their functions as directors and officers
of the Company, the members of the Executive Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG also have contractual relation-
ships with the Company. The Supervisory Board is re-
sponsible for making the employment agreements with
the members of the Executive Board. The employment
agreements between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the
members of its Executive Board have a maximum term
of five years. These contracts establish the Board mem-
bers’ rights and duties, including their compensation.

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG's compensation system for
the members of the Executive Board includes both fixed
and variable components. It is set up in such a way that
the compensation paid to each Board member is appro-
priate to their own area of work and responsibility, and
is also competitive compared to the compensation paid
to senior executives of other national or international
companies. It is based on the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code regarding results-
based compensation, and is designed to ensure that the
Company will remain competitive, by providing appro-
priate incentives and motivation for top-quality interna-
tional executives. Last financial year, the compensation
paid by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to the members of its
Executive Board had the following components:

Under their employment contracts, all Executive
Board members receive a fixed base salary, paid
monthly, that is determined with reference to the in-
dividual member's area of responsibilities.

In addition to this base component, each member also
receives a performance-based variable component
in the form of an annual bonus. The specific terms
of this annual bonus vary among the contracts of the
individual board members. One portion of the bonus
is decided by the Supervisory Board, and depends
on the achievement of predefined performance tar-
gets composed of Group EBITDA, the net debt of the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group, and personal goals.

Additionally, the members of the Executive Board
participate in a ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option
plan (the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan), which has
replaced the stock option plan introduced in 2005.
The change has no effect on outstanding stock op-
tions from the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Thus
the Company has created an additional compensa-
tion component, focused on the Company's long-
term success, so as to encourage shareholders’
value. As of December 31, 2008, current members
of the Executive Board held 665,000 stock options
from the 2006 Cycle and 865,000 stock options

from the 2008 Cycle. Each stock option carries the
right to purchase one share of preferred stock.

Furthermore, the Company has signed pension agree-
ments with most members of the Executive Board,
under which those members are entitled to payment
of a retirement pension if they reach age 60 and
leave the Company's employ after the contractual
vesting period has elapsed.

Finally, the members of the Executive Board receive
other compensation in the form of noncash benefits,
including company cars, insurance coverage, and
coverage of relocation expenses if they must relo-
cate.

The Company has extended neither loans nor guar-
anties or warranties to the members of the Executive
Board.

Compensation paid to active members of the Executive
Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG came to EUR 6,878
thousand in 2008 (vs. EUR 5,983 thousand in 2007).
These figures include both a variable component of EUR
2,834 thousand (vs. EUR 2,765 thousand) and benefits
of EUR 149 thousand (vs. EUR 33 thousand).

Executive Board members who left the company during
the financial year 2008 received EUR 325 thousand in
compensation after their departure, as well as sever-
ance pay of EUR 1,700 thousand.

In past financial years, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG set
aside pension provisions totaling EUR 1,221 thousand
(prior year: EUR 4,344 thousand) for pension commit-
ments to active members of the Executive Board. The
pension provisions for former members of the Execu-
tive Board came to EUR 5,739 thousand as of Decem-
ber 31, 2008. The accrued pension entitlement as of
December 31, 2008, was EUR 111 thousand per year for
active members of the board, and EUR 198 thousand
per year for former members. Payments of EUR 80
thousand were made to former members of the Execu-
tive Board in the financial year 2008 (previous year:
EUR 0). Funds have been endowed to safequard these
pension provisions.

Members of the Executive Board received EUR O thou-
sand for buy-backs of stock options (vs. EUR 8,999
thousand). The fair value at the grant date of the options
was EUR 144 thousand for the 865,000 options issued
in 2008, and EUR 3,997 thousand for the 665,000 op-
tions issued in 2006.



Payments to management, except for pension entitle-
ments, are all payable within short terms.

A resolution by the shareholders’ meeting of August 2,
2006, released the Company from the statutory obliga-
tion to disclose the individual compensation of Executive
Board members in the consolidated financial statements
for a period of five years. However, this resolution of the
shareholders' meeting poses no obstacle to the volun-
tary disclosure of individual Board members' compen-
sation otherwise. The Executive Board and Supervisory
Board have decided to exercise this option of voluntary
disclosure in the compensation report for 2008, which
is included in the Corporate Governance Report of the
Executive Board and Supervisory Board. That report
therefore states figures for the compensation paid to
individual members of the Company's Executive Board
for the past financial year.

Expenses for the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG came to EUR 1,747 thousand in the year un-
der review (previous year: EUR 1,666 thousand). The
members of the Supervisory Board receive a fixed com-
pensation. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Su-
pervisory Board each receive twice the amount of this
fixed base figure. Members of the Supervisory Board's
committees are compensated with a separate meeting
honorarium, payable for participating at each committee
meeting. Committee chairs receive twice the standard
meeting honorarium. The compensation of the Supervi-
sory Board is laid down in the articles of incorporation of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

The compensation paid individually to current and for-
mer members of the Supervisory Board is as follows:

Current Members of the Supervisory Board

Compensation

Bell-Jones, Robin 118
Dyke, Greg 107
Dziarski, Stefan 56
Freise, Philipp 115
Gorenflos, Reinhard 33
Hollick, Lord Clive 190
Huth, Johannes 131
Krenz, Thomas 100
Mduser, Gétz 239
Rottele, Christoph 18
Scheiber, Silke 56
Sloan, Harry 100
Swartjes, Adrianus Johannes 105
van Lent, Marinus Maria Petrus 100
Wiedmann, Prof. Dr. Harald 119

Former members of the Supervisory Board

Compensation

Dopfner, Dr. Mathias 4
Neubirger, Heinz-Joachim 67
Nienhaus, Christian 4
Wehr-Seiter, Katrin 85

Members of the Supervisory Board received no remu-
neration or other consideration for personal services,
especially consulting and mediation services, during
2008. Altogether, the current members of the Execu-
tive Board and Supervisory Board held 202,500 shares
of preferred stock in ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of De-
cember 31, 2008. This is equivalent to 0.1 percent of
the company's share capital.

Apart from the subsidiaries included in the consoli-
dated financial statements, in the course of its normal
business operations ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG conducts
transactions directly or indirectly with affiliated un-
consolidated companies and associated companies. In
ordinary business activities, all transactions with com-
panies not included in the scope of consolidation were
conducted on prevailing market terms and conditions,
such as are also customary with third parties unrelated
to the Group. All related parties under IAS 24 [,Related
Party Disclosures'] that are controlled by ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG, or over which the Group may exercise
a significant influence, are listed among the sharehold-
ings on pages 133 through 136, along with the percent-
age interest held.

Effective September 1, 2007, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG
signed a services management agreement for business
services with Lavena Holding 1 GmbH, Lavena Hold-
ing 4 GmbH, and Lavena Holding 5 GmbH jointly. The
agreed compensation is consistent with the prevailing
market terms for comparable services. The total for the
financial year 2008 was EUR 300 thousand; as of De-
cember, 31, 2008, the receivable ofProSiebenSat.1 Me-
dia AG was EUR 89 thousand. Lavena Holding 1 GmbH
through Lavena Holding 4 GmbH are indirect majority
shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and Lavena
Holding 5 GmbH is the direct majority shareholder of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

During the financial year 2008, the wife of former Ex-
ecutive Board member Peter Christmann provided ser-
vices to various companies in the ProSiebenSat.1 Group
for a charge of EUR 160 thousand (prior year: EUR 155
thousand). These were training and coaching services
for on-air personalities. As of December 31,2008, there
was no amount outstanding for these services.



Harry Evans Sloan is a member of the Supervisory
Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and the Chairman
of the Board of Directors and CEO of Metro-Gold-
wyn-Mayer Holdings, Inc. (MGM). A number of license
agreements were signed between MGM Holdings Inc.
and ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG during the period, in the
normal course of business. The agreements are consis-
tent with prevailing market terms. The total for 2008
was EUR 27,649 thousand; as of December, 31, 2008,
ProSiebenSat.1's liability was EUR 287 thousand.

Go6tz Mauser is a member of the Supervisory Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and among other positions
is also a co-owner of ADT Telefonservice GmbH & Co.
KG. A service agreement exists in the normal course
of business between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and ADT
Telefonservice GmbH & Co. KG. The contract is consis-
tent with prevailing market terms. The total for the fi-
nancial year 2008 was EUR 104 thousand; as of Decem-
ber, 31, 2008, the receivable of ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG was EUR 17 thousand.

There were no other reportable transactions with re-
lated parties under IAS 24 in 2008.

Employer contributions to the public pension insur-
ance system for members of the Executive Board of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, top management of other
Group companies, and other members of executive
management, totaled EUR 100 thousand for 2008 (pri-
or year: EUR 96 thousand).

Under Sec. 15a of the German Securities Trading Act
(WpHG) and Item 6.6 of the German Corporate Gov-
ernance Code, the members of the Executive Board
and Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.l1 Media AG
are required to report securities transactions relat-
ing to ProSiebenSat.1 stock. They are furthermore
required to report securities transactions by family
members. In 2008, a total of 32 transactions were
reported to ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in which mem-
bers of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board
and their family members acquired a total of 319,000
shares of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and sold a total
of EUR 113,000 shares of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.
In compliance with Sec. 15a of the Securities Trading
Act, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG reported each of these
transactions immediately on its Internet site [www.
prosiebensatl.com].

Transactions with the key management personnel in
German and foreign subsidiaries of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group, or with companies managed by these persons,
came to EUR 1.8 million in 2008. These transactions re-

lated to legal and consulting services, and were based
on arm's-length terms. The balance as of December
31, 2008 of these transactions amounted to EUR 106
thousand. Furthermore, guarantees amounting to EUR
651thousand exist at the reporting date.

Joint ventures and associated companies

As of December 31, 2008, receivables from joint ven-
tures and associated companies came to EUR 21,488
thousand (vs. EUR 17,372 thousand). Liabilities of EUR
2,363 thousand (vs. EUR 317 thousand) have been rec-
ognized.

The amounts outstanding from joint ventures and as-
sociated companies are not secured with collateral and
are paid in cash. No material guarantees were either
provided or received in this regard. There were no
write-downs in connection with these relationships.

The immediate parent company of the Group of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is Lavena Holding 5 GmbH.
The ultimate parent company of the ProSiebenSat.1
Group is Lavena1S.ar.l., of Luxembourg. ProSieben-
Sat.1 AG is included in the consolidated financial
statements of Lavena S.a r.l., of Luxembourg.

Disclosures of all such ownership interests have been
duly published by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG in compli-
ance with Section 26 (1) of the Securities Trading Act,
and can be viewed at the Company's Web site in the An-
nual Document required under Section 10 of that Act.

The professional fees for the services of the Group's in-
dependent auditor, KPMG, totaled EUR 2,652 thousand
for the financial year 2008. The figure for 2007 was
EUR 2,639 thousand. Of the total, EUR 1,544 thousand
was for audit fees (vs. EUR 1,070 thousand in 2007),
EUR 556 thousand was for audit-related fees (vs. EUR
373 thousand), EUR 10 thousand was for tax consulting
services (vs. EUR 51 thousand), and EUR 542 thousand
was for other fees (vs. EUR 1,145 thousand).



Effective January 20, 2009, SBS Radio AB acquired
100 percent of the radio business of Stampen Group in
Sweden. In the transaction Stampen Group contributed
their equity interest in a holding company Produktion-
saktiebolaget Goteborg Ett in exchange for a 20 per-
cent stake in SBS Radio AB. Produktionsaktiebolaget
Goéteborg Ett AB will be fully consolidated into the fi-
nancial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Group for the
first time as of January 20, 2009.

Thomas Ebeling took over the responsibilities as CEO
at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of March 1, 2009.

Release date for publication
The Supervisory Board will release the consolidated fi-
nancial statements for publication on March 26, 2009.

March 10, 2009

The Executive Board



ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2008

Company Location Country Interest % ;I:
1  ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft Unterfohring Germany
2 O9Live Fernsehen GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
3  O9Live International GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 2
4 Agency Atlantic EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 157
5  Agency Vitosha EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 157
6  Aktuelt Nyheter AS Oslo Norway 100 150
7 Amerom Television Ltd. New York USA 100 103
8  Anonimi Radiofoniki Etairia Lampsi A.E. (Lampsi Radio Company S.A.) Athens Greece 100 107
9  ArtMerchandising & Media AG Unterfohring Germany 100 47
10 AT FunB.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 16
11 best webnews GmbH Cologne Germany 67.64 135
12 Broadcast Norge AS Oslo Norway 100 100
13 Carthage I B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 ne
14 CBO Media B.V. (formerly Brainstation B.V.) Amsterdam Netherlands 100 16
15 Cutting Edge Production AS Oslo Norway 100 121
16 easy 107,5 Stockholm AB Stockholm Sweden 100 122
17 E-FM Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 19
18 EBS International N.V. Zaventem Belgium 99.94 103
19 Euradio i Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 123
20 European Broadcasting System S.ar.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 103
21 European Radio Investments Limited London Great Britain 100 107
22 Evroark EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 157
23 Face your Brand! GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 7
24  Fem Media GmbH Munich Germany 100 135
25 Fria Media | Blekinge AB Karlskrona Sweden 100 19
26 Fria Radiobolaget i Boras AB Boras Sweden 100 19
27 German Free TV Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany 100 1
28 Hellas Radio Service Ltd. Athens Greece 100 103
29 ICS SBS Broadcasting S.R.L. (formerly: .M. Radio Contract S.R.L.) Chisinau Moldova 100 132
30 INTERAKTIV-FICTION Miisorkészitd és Filmgydrté Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 31
31 INTERAKTIV Televizids Miisorkészitd Kft. Budapest Hungary 100 103
32 kabel eins Fernsehen GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 27
33 Kanal 5 AB Stockholm Sweden 100 34
34 Kanal 5 Holding AB Stockholm Sweden 100 104
35 Kanal 5 Limited London Great Britain 100 107
36 Kiss FM DOO Belgrad Serbia 49 103
37 Kommunikationsanpartsselskabet af 2/4 1990 Arthus C Denmark 100 84
38 lokalisten media GmbH Munich Germany 90 135
39 MAGIC Internet Holding GmbH Berlin Germany 100 135
40 MAGIC Internet GmbH Berlin Germany 100 39
41 Meteos TV Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany 100 162
42 Miracle Sound Oy Helsinki Finland 51 58
43 Miracle Sound Oulu Oy Oulu Finland 100 42
44 Miracel Sound Tampere Oy Helsinki Finland 51 58
45 Mix Megapol.se AB Stockholm Sweden 100 19
46 MM MerchandisingMedia GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 9
47 MM MerchandisingMedia Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany 100 1
48 MTM Produkcié Misorgyarté és Filmforgalmazé Kft. Budapest Hungary 96.667 103
49 MTM-SBS Televizié Zrt. Budapest Hungary 81.51 103
50 MyVideo Broadband S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 39



ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2008

Company Location Country Interest % ;41::
51 N24 Gesellschaft fur Nachrichten und Zeitgeschehen mbH Unterfohring Germany 100 27
52 Niknet EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 157
53 P7S1Broadcasting S.ar.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 80 54
54 P7S1Erste SBS Holding GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
55 P7S1 Creative Productions Holding GmbH

(formerly: ProSiebenSat.1 Siebte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH) Unterfohring Germany 100 1
56 P7S1Zweite SBS Holding GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
57 Producers at work GmbH Potsdam Germany 67 1
58 Pro Radio Oy Helsinki Finland 100 100
59 ProSiebenSat.1 Applications GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
60 ProSieben Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100 137
61 ProSieben Digital Media GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
62 ProSieben Television GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 27
63 ProSieben (Switzerland) AG Kisnacht Switzerland 100 139
64 ProSiebenSat.1 Erste Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
65 ProSiebenSat.1 Achte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
66 ProSiebenSat.1 Neunte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH

(future name: Maz & More GmbH) Unterfohring Germany 100 51
67 ProSiebenSat.1 Berlin Produktion GmbH

(still in formation process at 12/31/2008) Berlin Germany 100 68
68 ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
69 ProSiebenSat.1 Welt GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
70 PS Event GmbH Cologne Germany 67 1
71 PSH Entertainment GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
72 Puls 4 TV GmbH Vienna Austria 100 137
73 Puls 4 TV GmbH & Co. KG Vienna Austria 100 137
74 Radio Nova A/S (formerly Radio 2 A/S) Copenhagen Denmark 80 102
75 Radio City AB Stockholm Sweden 100 122
76 Radio Daltid SBS AB Stockholm Sweden 51 1o
77 Radio Express EAD Sofia Bulgaria 100 5
78 Radio HIT FM Melodicum AB Vaxjo Sweden 100 19
79 Radio Match AB Jonkdping Norway 100 19
80 Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS (formerly: TV2 Saturn AS) Oslo Norway 100 121
81 Radio Stella AB Helsingborg Sweden 100 19
82 Radio Veselina EAD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 103
83 Radio Zita Radiohonikes Epichiriseis Anonimi Etairia Salonika Greece 100 93
84 Radioreklame A/S Arhus C. Denmark 95.2 120
85 Radio VLR A/S Taastrup Denmark 100 120
86 Redseven Entertainment GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 55
87 Reklamradio-FMK AB Kalmar Sweden 100 19
88 RIS Vinyl Skane AB Stockholm Sweden 100 123
89 Ritmo Plovdiv EOOD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 157
90 Rockklassiker Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden 100 88
91 Romanian Broadcasting Corporation Limited London Great Britain 100 107
92 Salonika Radio Investments Holding S.A. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 103
93 Salonika Radio Investments S.ar.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 92
94 Sat.1Bayern GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 151
95 Sat.1 Grundstiicksverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG Unterfohring Germany 100 98
96 Sat.1 Norddeutschland GmbH Hannover Germany 100 98
97 SAT. Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H Vienna Austria 51 98
98 Sat.1Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH Berlin Germany 100 27
99 Sat.1Schweiz AG Zirich Switzerland 50 98

100 SBS Belgium N.V. Zaventem Belgium 99.97 103



ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2008

Company Location Country Interest % :1’::
101 SBS Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 116
102 SBS Broadcast Danmark A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 100
103 SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 106
104 SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. the Netherlands svensk Filial Stockholm Sweden 100 103
105 SBS Broadcasting Holding | B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 53
106 SBS Broadcasting Holding Il B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 105
107 SBS Broadcasting (UK) Limited London Great Britain 100 103
108 SBS Broadcasting Networks Limited London Great Britain 100 107
109 SBS Broadcasting (Sweden) AB Stockholm Sweden 100 103
110 SBS Danish Television Limited London Great Britain 100 107
111 SBS European Pay TV Services S.ar.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg 100 103
112 SBS Finance B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 103
113 SBS Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 58
114 SBS Interactive AB (under Liquidation) Stockholm Sweden 100 104
115 SBS Magyarorszdgi Befektetési Kft. Budapest Hungary 98.34 103
116 SBS Nederland B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 103
117 SBS Productions B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 101
118 SBS Publishing & Licensing B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 101
119 SBS Radio AB Stockholm Sweden 100 123
120 SBS Radio A/S Copenhagen Denmark 100 102
121 SBS Radio Norge AS Oslo Norway 77 100
122 SBS Radio Sweden AB Stockholm Sweden 100 123
123 SBS Radio Sweden Holding AB Stockholm Sweden 100 104
124 SBS Records Aps Copenhagen Denmark 100 120
125 SBS Services B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 16
126 SBS Services (UK) London Great Britain 100 103
127 SBSTV A/S Skovlunde Denmark 100 102
128 Scandinavian Broadcasting System (Jersey) Ltd. Jersey  Channelislands 100 101
129 S.C. Canet Radio SRL Bucharest Romania 20 132
130 S.C. Media Group Services International S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 95 132
131 S.C. Prime Time Productions S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 99 132
132 S.C. SBS Broadcasting Media S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 84.38 21
133 SevenOne Brands GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
134 SevenOne Interactive GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 133
135 SevenOne Intermedia GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 61
136 SevenOne International GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
137 SevenOne Media Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100 133
138 SevenOne Media GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 133
139 SevenOne Media (Switzerland) AG Kisnacht Switzerland 100 133
140 SevenPictures Film GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
141 SevenSenses GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
142 Seven Scores Musikverlag GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
143 solute GmbH Karlsruhe Germany 74.8 135
144 Starwatch Music GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 47
145 Stichting Administratiekantoor Melida (in liquidation) Amsterdam Netherlands 100 53
146 Svensk Radiopartner Radio City AB Karlstad Sweden 100 19
147 Teledirekt Vermarktungsgesellschaft fir Fernsehempfang mbH Unterfohring Germany 100 1
148 Turun Ensitorppa Oy Helsinki Finland 100 58
149 TV5 Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 58

150 TV Norge AS Oslo Norway 100 12



ProSiebenSat.1 Group as of December 31, 2008

Company Location Country Share % ;::
151 tv-weiB-blau Rundfunkprogrammanbieter GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 98
152 V8 Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 101
153 Veronica Broadcasting VOF Amsterdam Netherlands 99 152
154 Veronica Litho B.V. Hilversum Netherlands 100 101
155 Veronica Uitgeverij B.V. Hilversum Netherlands 100 101
156 Vinyl AB Stockholm Sweden 100 123
157 Vitosha FM EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 103
158 VT4 Limited London Great Britain 100 103
159 VT4 Marketing & Sales N.V. Zaventem Belgium 99.96 158
160 VT4 Network N.V. Zaventem Belgium 99.2 158
161 wer-weiss-was GmbH Hamburg Germany 74.8 135
162 wetter.com AG Singen Germany 73 135
163 Wetter Fernsehen - Meteos GmbH Singen Germany 100 4
164 Anadolu Televizyon Ve Radyo Yayincilik Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi Istanbul Turkey 98 125
165 Balkans Media Investments EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 157
166 maxdome Verwaltungs GmbH Unterfohring Germany 100 141
167 Merchandising Prague spo.sr o. Prague Czech Republic 100 47
168 Autoplenum GmbH Munich Germany 25.1 135
169 Big Brother AB Stockholm Sweden 50 104
170 Big Brother Kommanditbolag Stockholm Sweden 49 33
171 IP Multimedia (Switzerland) AG Kisnacht Switzerland 23 139
172 maxdome GmbH & Co. KG Unterfohring Germany 50 141
173 LOVESEARCH DP AB Stockholm Sweden 95.09 33
174 Osterjdns Reklamradio AB Visby Sweden 40 19
175 Poolside Reise GmbH Munich Germany 40 135
176 Privatfernsehen in Bayern Verwaltungs-GmbH Munich Germany 49.9 151
177 Privatfernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG Munich Germany 49.9 151
178 Radiobokningen i Vastmanland Handelsbolag Véasterds Sweden 20 19
179 Radio Silkeborg af 1997 A/S Silkeborg Denmark 34 84
180 TV10B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 180
181 TV10 Holdings LLC Wilmington USA 50 101
182 Veronica/Jetix Text VOF Amsterdam Netherlands 50 152
183 VG Media Gesellschaft zur Verwertung der Urheber- und

Leistungsschutzrechte von Medienunternehmen mbH Berlin Germany 50 1
184 AFK Aus- und Fortbildungs GmbH fir elektronische Medien Munich Germany 12 1
185 Berliner Pool TV Produktionsgesellschaft mbH Berlin Germany 50 51
186 Deutscher Fernsehpreis GmbH Cologne Germany 25 1

187 ZeniMax Media Inc. Rockville USA 8.03 103



Members of the Executive Board

CEO since March 1, 2009
Management department: Group Content, Production and Acquisitions
Human Resources and Corporate

CEO until December 31,2008

Management department: Group Content Production and
Acquisitions, Corporate, Human Resources

CFO since June 11, 2008
Member of the Executive Board since May 1, 2008

Management department: Group Controlling, Finance /
Investor Relations, Legal Affairs, Regulatory Affairs, Administration

CFO until June 10, 2008
Member of the Executive Board until June 10, 2008
Management department: Group Controlling, Finance / Investor Rela-
tions, Legal Affairs, Human Resources, Regulatory Affairs, Administra-
tion
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Siltronic AG (Member of the Supervisory Board until April 2008)

Member of the Executive Board since June 17, 2008
Management department: German Free TV

Member of the Executive Board until June 30, 2008
Management department: Sales & Marketing

Member of the Executive Board since August 1, 2006
Management department: New Media & Diversification, Transaction TV,
Business Development

Member of the Executive Board since September 1, 2008
Management department: Sales & Marketing

[e{e]0)
Member of the Executive Board since July 1, 2007

Management department: Group Operations, International Free TV,
International Pay TV, Radio, Print

Members of the Supervisory Board

Chairman (since March 2007)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Partner)

Vice-Chairman
(since October 2008, Member of the Supervisory Board since March
2007)

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner and Head of Europe)
Mandate:

A.T.U. Auto-Teile Unger Holding GmbH, Germany (non-executive)

Rally Lux Holding One S.a r.l., Luxembourg (executive)

Rally Lux Holding Two S.a r.l., Luxembourg (executive)

KION Holding 1 GmbH, Germany (non-executive)

KKR & Co. Limited, UK (executive)

KKR & Co. SAS, France (executive)

NXP BV, Netherlands (non-executive)

(Vice-Chairman from March 2007 until September 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner)
Mandate:

Diageo PLC (non-executive)

Honeywell Inc. (non-executive)

The Nielsen Co. (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Permira Advisors LLP, London (Investment Advisor)

Mandate:
ALL3Media Holdings Ltd., UK (non-executive)

(from December 2001 until January 2008)
Axel Springer AG (CEO)
Mandate:
dpa Deutsche Presse Agentur GmbH (non-executive)
Leipziger Verlags- und Druckereigesellschaft mbH & Co. KG
(non-executive)
B.Z. Ullstein GmbH (non-executive)
Axel Springer Digital TV GmbH (non-executive)
Time Warner Inc. (non-executive)
Brilliant 310 GmbH (executive)

(since May 2004)
Company Director
Mandate:
World Film Collective (non-executive)
UK Film Council (non-executive)
Brentford FC (Lionel Road) Limited (non-executive)
Brentfort Football Club (non-executive)
Ducks Walk Management Company Ltd. (non-executive)
Sunshine Holdings & Ltd. (non-executive)
Powder Creek Limited (non-executive)
DGCC Limited (non-executive)
Vine Leisure Ltd. (non-executive)
Vine Development Limited (non-executive)

(since June 2008)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH
(Private Equity Professional)



(since March 2007)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Director)
Mandate:
Demag Holdings S.a r.l. (non-executive)
A.T.U. GmbH (non-executive)
DSD GmbH (non-executive)

(since September 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner)

Mandate:
A.T.U. GmbH & Co. KG (non-executive)
Pages Jaunes SA (non-executive)
DSD GmbH (non-executive)
Van Gansewinkel BV (non-executive)
Blacksmith SA (non-executive)
Demag Holdings S.a r.l. (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Partner)

(from July 2007 until September 2008)

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Private Equity Professional)

(from May 2004 until January 2008)
WAZ Mediengruppe (CEO)
Mandate:

WAZ Mediengruppe (executive)

(since July 2007)
Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (President)
Mandate:

Telegraaf Media International B.V. (executive)

(since November 2008)

Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Portfolio Director)

(since June 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Director)

Mandate:
Torkett SA (non-executive)

KKR International Flooring 1 S.a r.l. (non-executive)
KKR International Flooring 2 S.a r.I. (non-executive)

A.T.U. GmbH (non-executive)
KION Group GmbH (non-executive)
KION Holding 1 GmbH (non-executive)

(since March 2007)

MGM Holdings Inc. (Chairman of the Board and CEO)

Mandate:
MGM Holdings Inc. (executive)
ZeniMax Media Inc. (non-executive)

(since July 2007)
Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (CEO)
Mandate:

Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (executive)

(from July 2007 until November 2008)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Principal)

Mandate:
Hugo Boss AG (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Gleiss Lutz Hootz Hirsch Partnergesellschaft von Rechtsanwaélten und
Steuerberatern (Auditor/Attorney)

Mandate:
Berenberg Bank (non-executive)
Wincor Nixdorf AG (non-executive)
Praktiker Baumadrkte (non-executive)
Prime Office AG (non-executive)
Merz GmbH & Co. KG (non-executive)



RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the Group, and the management report of the Group includes
a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal opportunities and risks associated with
the expected development of the Group.

Unterféhring, March 10, 2009

(CEO) (CFO)
(e~ ‘@r‘gc/@e;
(CO0) (German Free TV)

A ety i

(New Media) (Sales)



AUDITOR'S REPORT

We have granted the unqualified auditor’s report as follows:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by ProSiebenSat.1 Media
Aktiengesellschaft, Unterféhring, comprising the balance sheet, the income statement,
statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, together with the group management report for the business year
from January 1to December 31, 2008. The preparation of the consolidated financial state-
ments and the group management report in accordance with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU,
and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 3153, para. 1HGB
are the responsibility of the parent company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 317
HGB and German generally accepted standards for the audit of financial statements pro-
mulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW; Institute of Public Auditors in Germa-
ny). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements
materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of op-
erations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework and in the group management report are detected with reasonable
assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment
of the Group and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the
determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal
control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements and the group management report are examined primarily on a test basis within
the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual financial statements
of those entities included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be included in
consolidation, the accounting and consolidation principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as an evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements and group management report. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements
comply with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, the additional requirements of German commer-
cial law pursuant to § 3154, para.1HGB, and give a true and fair view of the net assets, finan-
cial position and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these requirements.
The group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and
as a whole provides an appropriate view of the Group's position and appropriately presents
the opportunities and risks of future development.

Munich, March 13, 2009
KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft

Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

[ 72’/‘

Auditor Auditor
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Forward-looking statements. This report contains forward-looking statements regarding
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. Such statements may be identified
by the use of such terms as “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “assumes," “pursues the goal,”
and similar wording. Various factors, many of which are outside the control of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG, could affect the Company’'s business activities, success, business strategy
and results. Forward-looking statements are not historical facts, and therefore incorporate
known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that might cause actual
results to differ from expectations. These forward-looking statements are based on current
plans, goals, estimates and projections, and take account of knowledge only up to and includ-
ing the date of preparation of this report. Given these risks, uncertainties and other impor-
tant factors, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG undertakes no obligation, and has no intent, to revise
such forward-looking statements or update them to reflect future events and developments.
Although every effort has been made to ensure that the provided information and facts are
correct, and that the opinions and expectations reflected here are reasonable, ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG assumes no liability and offers no warranty as to the completeness, correct-
ness, adequacy and/or accuracy of any information or opinions contained herein.
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Financial calendar
March 4, 2009  Press conference / IR conference on preliminary figures for 2008
March 30,2009 2008 Annual Report
May 14,2009  Quarterly Report for Q12009
June 4,2009 2009 Annual Shareholders’' Meeting
August 6, 2009 Semiannual Report for H1 2009

November 5, 2009 Quarterly Report for Q3 2009
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Management Report of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for Fiscal 2008

Business Operations and Business Conditions
1.1 Overall assessment of fiscal 2008

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s business performance in 2008 was impacted by difficulties following
the launch of a new sales model for the German TV advertising market — our most important single
region. An additional aggravating factor was that economic uncertainty significantly reduced
advertisers’ willingness to invest during the second half of the year, both in Germany and in the
rest of Europe. The current tense economic situation is making it clear just how heavily the
performance of the TV advertising market depends on economic conditions. The business
performance of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG was significantly affected by revenue losses in the
German TV business.

However, in difficult economic conditions, important entrepreneurial decisions were made that
allowed the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to achieve major goals in 2008: The German family of stations
increased its audience share significantly — in spite of vigorous competition from the Olympics and
the European Soccer Championships, as well as strict requirements to optimize programming
expenses. The expansion of the Group’s online presence and the construction of a new playout
center improved the Group’s future competitive position. Following the integration of SBS, our top
priority is to improve our profitability. To place ProSiebenSat.1 back in a position of maximum
effectiveness, in 2008 we initiated extensive steps to optimize the setup of the TV group in
Germany both strategically and organizationally, and we adjusted our budgets early to the difficult
conditions in the market.

1.2 Legal and organizational structure of the Company
1.2.1 A brief portrait of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

Business activities and market position. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is one of Europe’s leading
media corporations. The Group’s programming offers audiences first-class entertainment and up-
to-date information on every screen and every platform. Its core business is free TV, financed
through advertising. With its station brands Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24, ProSiebenSat.1
is the largest commercial TV corporation in Germany. The Group also has strong market positions
in free TV in other countries, such as the Netherlands (Veronica, Net 5 and SBS 6), Hungary (TV
2), and Sweden (Kanal 5 and Kanal 9). Reaching more than 78 million households using TV,
ProSiebenSat.1 is the second largest broadcasting group in Europe. In addition to classic
distribution channels like TV and radio, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group also relies on innovative
technologies and new media. Online digital services are among the business operations that
ProSiebenSat.1 has added to its portfolio in order to diversify its sources of income.

1.2.2 Explanatory remarks about ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is the holding company for the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. It is a stock
corporation in Aktiengesellschaft form, and is domiciled in Germany. Consequently ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG is subject to German law, and particularly the German laws governing corporations and
securities, employee co-determination, and the capital markets. It is bound by the German
Corporate Governance Code.
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e Management and oversight: As required by German corporate law, ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG has a dual management system characterized by a strict separation of persons
between its managing body and its oversight body. The Company is managed by the
Executive Board. The Supervisory Board supervises and advises the Executive Board in
the latter's management of the Company’s business. For that reason, the Supervisory
Board is directly involved in all corporate decisions of major importance. The basic rules for
managing ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are set forth in its articles of incorporation.

e Management and corporate structure: This European media group, headquartered in
the Munich suburb of Unterféhring, is managed centrally. As the Group’s ultimate parent
company, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG manages key functions that affect multiple segments,
such as license purchases, accounting, controlling, corporate planning, human resources,
finance, investor relations, legal affairs and corporate communications. At the same time,
the individual subsidiaries in their various countries have a large degree of autonomy. With
this arrangement, decisions can be made quickly, and the subsidiaries can respond flexibly
to the needs of their target audiences and markets.

Significant direct subsidiaries of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG include German Free TV
Holding and ProSiebenSat.1 Erste und Zweite SBS Holding GmbH. German Free TV
Holding GmbH, headquartered in the Munich suburb of Unterféhring, pools the Group’s
companies that conduct free TV operations in Germany, Austria and Switzerland. These
companies include not only the stations Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24 in Germany,
but also SAT.1 Privatrundfunk und Programmgesellschaft mbH Osterreich and SAT.1
Schweiz AG. ProSiebenSat.l Erste und Zweite SBS Holding GmbH, likewise
headquartered in Unterféhring, combines the international companies of the former SBS
Broadcasting Group.

1.2.3 Material events in fiscal 2008

Changes in the membership of the Executive Board. Lothar Lanz resigned from his position as
a member of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of the end of the annual
shareholders’ meeting on June 10, 2008. The Supervisory Board appointed Axel Salzmann as a
member of the Executive Board as of May 1, 2008. Mr. Salzmann took office as Chief Financial
Officer on June 11. Andreas Bartl was appointed to the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG as of June 17, 2008, and assumed responsibility for the newly created Board position for
German Free TV. Klaus-Peter Schulz was appointed to the Executive Board as of September 1,
2008. As the successor of Peter Christmann, who had resigned from the Board as of June 30
2008, Mr. Schulz is in charge of Sales and Marketing.

A further change in the Executive Board took place as of the end of the fiscal year. Effective
December 31, 2008, Guillaume de Posch resigned as a member of the Executive Board and CEO
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. Effective March 1, 2009, the Supervisory Board appointed Thomas
Ebeling a member of the Executive Board and CEO. The Supervisory Board appointed Axel
Salzmann as acting CEO of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for the period from January 1 through
February 28, 2009.



Material organizational changes

New strategic setup of the TV group in Germany. At the end of 2008, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group adopted an extensive program for optimizing the setup of the TV
group in Germany. The aim is to match TV operations better with the market's
requirements, while at the same time making a more effi cient use of resources. One step
toward that end is to combine all the German-language TV stations into a “matrix”
organization under German Free TV Holding. Following the example of the Group’s
marketing operations, which were set up newly in June 2008, centralized units will be
formed to perform certain functions for all the stations. Further information can be found in
the outlook.

ProSiebenSat.1 and IBM establish first European digital platform. In April 2008,
ProSiebenSat.1 and IBM Deutschland GmbH, of Stuttgart, signed a ten-year outsourcing
agreement for more than EUR 200 million, under which IBM took over all IT business
applications, as well as IT and media systems, from ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH.
For that reason the sale of all of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH was not pursued
further in fiscal 2008.

The IBM agreement is the foundation for a modernization of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s
technical infrastructure — one of the media corporation’s three core strategic goals. In June,
ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion began setting up a new playout center in the Munich suburb of
Unterféhring. Once various test phases have been completed — including simulated
broadcasting operations — the playout center is expected to go on the air as scheduled, in
the first quarter of 2009. For the long term, the Group plans to distribute all its video
content in tapeless form, so that programming content can be edited simultaneously by
different employees at different sites. At the same time, that will make the content available
earlier for use on a variety of platforms. The result will be substantial advantages in time,
efficiency and quality.

N24 upgrades. With news station N24’s switch to an all-digital platform, the German free
TV channel has opened a new chapter in its history. Reports will now befiled on new
production equipment that makes N24 Europe’s most up-to-date news station. All reports
can be edited and released for broadcast digitally. The networking of the editing and
production systems is also a step into the future. Now it will be possible to prepare content
for TV airing, websites, and mobile services in parallel. The implementation of the new
systems and the construction of the new news studio on Potsdamer Platz in Berlin were
completed on schedule, so that N24 went on the air with the latest equipment in October
2008.

Production company Redseven Entertainment founded. ProSiebenSat.1 founded
Redseven Entertainment GmbH in May 2008. The company is headquartered in the
Munich suburb of Unterféhring, and produces light entertainment programming for the
entire European TV group. Another emphasis at Redseven is the production of Web
content. Having its own separate production company for nonfiction programming also
makes it easier for the Group to get access to rights, while further developing its own or
acquired programming rights and building artists’ careers in cooperation with the Group’s
stations. Light entertainment concepts are especially well suited for interactive exploitation
on multiple platforms.



1.2.4 The internal management system

The Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG manages the Company on the basis of a
number of key performance indicators. The management system includes both financial key figures
and non-financial performance indicators that reflect how well the Group and its operations are
doing. In addition to internal key figures, for purposes of guidance and planning the system also
regularly consults external indicators, such as current figures on the economy. The Executive
Board furthermore guides its decisions by the corporate strategy of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group.

Corporate management, goals, strategy
The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s internal management system has primarily the following components:

e A guidance system based on key figures

e A coordinated management and planning system

e Ongoing risk and chance management

e Management by objectives at all levels of the Company

e Monthly reporting to the Supervisory Board and regular meetings of the Supervisory Board.

A guidance system based on key figures. The central financial figures for management are
recurring EBITDA, recurring EBITDA margin, and free cash flow. Recurring EBITDA is EBITDA —
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization — after adjustment for one-time
effects. The recurring EBITDA margin is the ratio between recurring EBITDA and revenues. These
key figures make possible a meaningful assessment of operating performance, and simplify
profitability comparisons among companies internationally, since they factor out the influence of
national taxes and of depreciation and amortization. For that reason, they are an important
indicator in assessing the profitability of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group and its segments. Free cash
flow shows the surplus cash generated during a period, and can be interpreted as a financial
surplus that is available to service equity and debt. A further important management parameter is
the ratio of net debt to recurring EBITDA (leverage), which the ProSiebenSat.1 Group uses in long-
term financial planning.

Along with purely financial parameters, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has also defined performance
figures that cannot be measured directly in financial terms. These particularly include the free TV
stations’ audience shares. These shares are analyzed constantly as a part of early risk detection,
and at the same time serve as performance indicators of the stations’ programming quality and
brand value in the eyes of the advertising industry. In the Diversification unit, important parameters
include the number of unique users.

A coordinated planning and management system. Planning and management are closely
interrelated. Plans are prepared on the basis of the Company’s strategic and operating goals; as
already explained, Group-wide planning processes focus on recurring EBITDA, recurring EBITDA
margin, and free cash flow. Earnings plans include both long-term corporate planning and
operational planning. The individual planning processes are coordinated systematically and
adopted over time. This is a matter of fundamental importance for effective management of the
defined target figures, but also for the Group-wide detection of risks and opportunities:



e Five-year plan on annual basis (long-term corporate plan). Each year the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group sets its long-term goals for the upcoming five-year period. The five-
year plan is adopted by the Executive Board and Supervisory Board; responsibility lies with
Controlling and Corporate Planning. The long-term plan particularly includes planning for
volumes and prices (revenues), programming (license purchases) and cost and capital
expenditure planning, along with the resulting calculation of free cash flow.

e Annual operational planning (budgeting): The starting point for the five-year plan is the
operational plan (budget plan), which maps out the month-by-month budget for the coming
fiscal year for all Group companies and the Group as a whole. It is drawn up at the end of
each fiscal year.

e Earnings forecasts during the year: Earnings forecasts over the course of the year
present and analyze the expected development of revenues and earnings for the year as a
whole in comparison to the budget. These reports provide an additional management tool,
since they help management take quick action to counteract any negative changes.

e Reporting: Any potential risks are reported by the decentralized risk managers to the
Group Risk and Compliance Officer as part of the quarterly reporting process.

ProSiebenSat.1 Group Strategy
Our slogan, “the power of television,” clearly states both our accomplishments and our aspirations.
ProSiebenSat.1 offers first-class entertainment and up-to-the-minute information — whenever the
consumer wants them, and wherever the consumer goes. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group has set itself
the following strategic objectives:

1. Concentration on core business in free TV / Content development: The most
important strategic goal is growth, through a focus on the Group’s core line of business:
commercial television. Attractive content is the foundation of this strategy. Highquality
programming and strong TV brands provide a further foundation for expanding the value
chain by way of geographic and cross-media diversification.

2. Diversification / Expansion in new media: By distributing our programming on all
available media platforms throughout Europe, we will strengthen our presence in the world
of digital media, and at the same time tap additional sources of revenue that do not depend
on the TV advertising market. Putting content and brands to work in multiple ways also
enables the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to make substantially more efficient use of its
resources, and to realize synergies.

3. Creating a leading operations platform: The change to a technology infrastructure
that is tapeless, and thus for the first time fully digital, will enable us to exploit TV content
throughout Europe across all distribution channels.

1.2.5 Prinziples of compensation of the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board

Compensation of the Executive Board

Structure of compensation of the Executive Board. In addition to their functions as directors
and officers of the Company, the members of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG



also have contractual relationships with the Company. The Supervisory Board is responsible for
signing the employment agreements with the members of the Executive Board. The employment
agreements between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and the members of its Executive Board have a
maximum term of five years. These contracts establish the Board members’ rights and duties,
including their compensation.

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG's compensation system for the members of the Executive Board
includes both fixed and variable components. It is set up in such a way that the compensation paid
to each Board member is appropriate to their own area of work and responsibility, and is also
competitive with respect to the compensation paid to senior executives of other companies in
Germany and internationally. It is based on the recommendations of the German Corporate
Governance Code regarding results-based compensation, and is designed to ensure that the
Company will remain competitive, by providing appropriate incentives and motivation for top-quality
international executives. Last fiscal year, the compensation paid by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to
the members of its Executive Board had the following components:

e Under their employment contracts, all Executive Board members receive a fixed base
salary, paid monthly, that is determined with reference to the individual member’s area of
responsibilities.

e In addition to this base component, each member also receives a performance-based
variable component in the form of an annual bonus. The specific terms of this annual
bonus vary among the contracts of the individual board members. One portion of the
bonus is decided by the Supervisory Board, and depends on the achievement of
predefined performance targets composed of Group EBITDA, the Group net debt, and
personal goals.

e Additionally, the members of the Executive Board also participate in a stock option plan of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG (the 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan), which has replaced the
stock option plan introduced in 2005. The change has no effect on outstanding stock
options from the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. Thus the Company has created an
additional compensation component, focused on the Company’s long-term success, so as
to cultivate shareholder value. Each stock option under the LTIP entitles the holder to buy
one share of ProSiebenSat.1 preferred stock. Stock options under LTIP 2005 (2006 Cycle)
were not eligible for exercise until August 2008, assuming all other requirements for
exercise were met; stock options under LTIP 2008 cannot be exercised until July 2010 at
the earliest. As of December 31, 2008, members of the Executive Board held 665,000
stock options from the 2006 Cycle and 865,000 stock options from the 2008 Cycle. No
stock options were exercised in 2008.

e Furthermore, the Company has signed pension agreements with most members of the
Executive Board, under which those members are entitled to payment of a retirement
pension if they reach age 60 and leave the Company’s employ after the contractual vesting
period has elapsed.

e Finally, the members of the Executive Board receive other compensation in the form of
noncash perquisites, including company cars, insurance coverage, and coverage of
relocation expenses if they must relocate.



The Company has extended neither loans nor guaranties or warranties to the members of the
Executive Board. The Notes to the consolidated financial statements include further information
about the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock option plan.

Individualized reporting of Executive Board compensation. A resolution of the shareholders’
meeting on August 2, 2006, exempted the Company for a term of five years from the statutory
obligation to disclose the compensation of the individual members of the Executive Board in the
parent-company and consolidated financial statements, on the basis of the information specified in
Section 285 No. 9 a) Sentences 5 through 9 and Section 314 (1) No. 6 a) Sentences 5 through 9 of
the German Commercial Code (HGB). However, the Executive Board and the Supervisory Board
have decided to voluntarily disclose the compensation paid by the Company to the individual
members of the Executive Board last fiscal year. The following table gives an individualized
breakdown of this compensation:

EUR k Annual salary Total Other Pensions
compensation
Fixed | Bonus Perquisites® Accrued Annual
compon pension payment
ent provision”” | entitlement ©

Guillaume de Posch 1,000.0 | 1,200.0 | 2,200.0 7.5 706.0 78.0
Patrick Tillieux 990.0 414.0 1,404.0 63.0 0 0
Axel Salzmann® 433.3 0 433.3 4.9 14.0 7.0
Andreas Bartl® 350.8 0 350.8 8.0 14.0 6.0
Dr. Marcus Englert 400.0 | 200.0 600.0 10.2 145.0 17.0
Klaus-Peter Schulz® | 200.0 0 200.0 2.6 17.0 3.0
Lothar Lanz®” 345.0 | 420.0 765.0 9.6 2,079.0 140.0
Peter Christmann® 650.0 | 600.0 1,250.0 42.9 365.0 58.0
Total 4,369.1 | 2,834.0 | 7,203.1 148.8 3,340.0 309.0

(1) 8-month basis / member of the Executive Board since May 2008. CFO since June 2008. (2) 7-month basis / member of the
Executive Board since June 2008. (3) 4-month basis / member of the Executive Board since September 2008. (4) Member of
the Executive Board until June 2008. (5) 6-month basis / member of the Executive Board until June 2008. (6) Includes non-
cash benefits from use of company car, insurance, and relocation grants if the individual must relocate. (7) Not including
entitlements from the individual’'s own additional payments (as of December 31, 2008). (8) Upon retirement, not including
entitlements from the individual’'s own additional payments (as of December 31, 2008).

Furthermore severance payments in the amount of EUR 1,700 thousand were paid in fiscal 2008.
The compensation of the Members of the Executive Board of the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG was
EUR 5,983 thousand in the year before. Herein included was a variable Part in the amount of EUR
2,765 thousand as well as ancillary services in the amount of EUR 33 thousand.

Compensation of the Supervisory Board

Structure of compensation of the Supervisory Board. The members of the Supervisory Board
receive a fixed compensation. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board each
receive twice the amount of this fixed base figure. Members of the Supervisory Board’s committees
are compensated with a separate meeting honorarium, payable for participating at each committee
meeting. Committee chairs receive twice the standard meeting honorarium. The compensation of
the Supervisory Board is set in the Articles of Incorporation of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.
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Individualized reporting of Supervisory Board compensation:

EUR k Fixed base |Meeting Meeting Meeting Total
compensati | Honoraria Honoraria Honoraria
on Presiding Audit and Compensation
Committee Finance Committee
Committee
Gotz Mauser 200.0 18.0 6.0 9.0 233.0
Johannes Peter 125.0 3.0 0 3.0 131.0
Huth®
Robin Bell-Jones 100.0 9.0 9.0 0 118.0
Gregory Dyke 100.0 0 0 4.5 104.5
Stefan Dziarski” |55.8 0 0 0 55.8
Philipp Freise 100.0 7.5 7.5 0 115.0
Reinhard 31.8 0 1.5 0 33.3
Gorenflos®
Lord Clive Hollick™ [175.0 13.5 0 15 190.0
Thomas Krenz 100.0 0 0 0 100.0
Marinus Maria 100.0 0 0 0 100.0
Petrus van Lent
Christoph Réttele™ [16.0 15 0 0 17.5
Silke Scheiber® 55.8 0 0 0 55.8
Harry Evans Sloan |100.0 0 0 0 100.0
Adrianus Johannes | 100.0 0 0 4.5 104.5
Swartjes
Prof. Dr. Harald 100.0 0 18.0 0 118.0
Wiedmann
Dr. Mathias 4.1 0 0 0 4.1
Dopfner®
Christian 4.1 0 0 0 4.1
Nienhaus®
Heinz-Joachim 59.5 0 7.5 0 67.0
Neubiirger®
Katrin Wehr- 84.0 0 0 0 84.0
Seiter”
Total 1,611.1 52.5 495 225 1,735.6

(1) Lord Clive Hollick was Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board until September. He was succeeded by Johannes Peter
Huth. (2) Member of the Supervisory Board since June 2008. (3) Member of the Supervisory Board since September 2008. (4)
Member of the Supervisory Board since November 2008. (5) Member of the Supervisory Board until January 2008. (6) Member
of the Supervisory Board until August 2008. (7) Member of the Supervisory Board until November 2008.

Members of the Supervisory Board received no remuneration or other consideration for personal
services, especially consulting and mediation services, during fiscal 2008.
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1.3 Legal environment

1.3.1 Ownership structure and information about ProSiebenSat.1 stock

Ownership structure of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

The Lavena Holding companies, which are controlled by funds advised by Kohlberg Kravis Roberts
& Co. L.P. (KKR) and Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Permira), are the majority
shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, with 88.0 percent of the Company’s voting common
stock and 25.3 percent of the nonvoting preferred stock. This is equivalent to 56.7 percent of the
Company’s share capital. The Dutch media corporation Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (TMG) holds
12.0 percent of the voting common stock, equivalent to 6.0 percent of the share capital. The
remaining roughly 74.7 percent of the preferred stock, equivalent to approximately 37.3 percent of
the share capital, is in free float.

Changes in ownership structure during fiscal 2008. The ownership structure of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG changed as follows during the year:

o Axel Springer AG relinquishes ownership interest. At the beginning of fiscal 2008, Axel
Springer AG sold its stake in ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG to Lavena Holding 5 GmbH.

e TMG a new shareholder. At the end of September, acting through a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. acquired 12.0 percent of the voting common stock
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG from Lavena Holding 5 GmbH.

Shareholder structure of the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of December 31, 2008

Lavena Holding 4 GmbH Telegraaf split of capital stock
(KKR/Permira) Media Groep

1D0% 6.0% capital Stock 6.0
12.0°% Common Shock
Lavena Holding 5 Free float®
GmbH i3
0.3% preferred Stock 568.7
58.7 % Capital stock X
82.0% comman Stock 37.3% Campital Stock W Lavena Holding 4 GmibH
25.0% Freferred Stock 74 7% Prefarred Stock W Telzgraaf Media Groep
Free float*

ProSiebenSat.] Media AG
*thereol Lressury stock: 1.0 percent of preferred shares: ﬂ!:pe-:!luel'f 0.5 pErEEMMcApIIﬂI slock.

Composition of subscribed capital. The share capital of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG comes to
EUR 218,797,200, divided into 109,398,600 no-par registered shares of common stock and
109,398,600 no-par bearer shares of non-voting preferred stock. There are no shares that carry
special rights and confer control.
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Restrictions on transfer of stock. Under Article 5 (4) of the articles of incorporation, the
registered common shares of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG stock may be transferred only with the
Company’s consent, which is to be decided upon by the Executive Board. The Board must give
that consent unless the transfer would establish a stake in the Company that would exceed the
bounds prescribed by media regulations. There are no consent requirements for transfers of the
bearer shares of non-voting preferred stock.

Stock buy-back

From March 7 to April 3, 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG bought back 1,127,500 shares of its own
preferred stock, equivalent to about 1.0 percent of the preferred shares, or 0.5 percent of the
Company'’s share capital. The stock was purchased at an average price of EUR 13.36 per share.
The repurchased stock is intended primarily to service stock options under the Long Term
Incentive Plan. Ownership of this stock brings ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG no entitlements. Under
Sec. 71b of the German Stock Corporations Act, treasury stock held directly or indirectly by the
Company is not entitled to collect dividends.

1.3.2. Information under Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial Code and
Explanations under Sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the German Stock Corporations Act

The voting stock issued by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is not traded on an organized market within
the meaning of Section 2 (7) of the German Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act (WpUG). Only
bearer shares of the Company’s nonvoting preferred stock are listed for trading in the regulated
Prime Standard segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange. The company must meet additional
follow-up obligations to maintain this listing. The registered shares of the voting common stock of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are not listed for trading on any stock exchange. Therefore there is no
requirement for the parent-company or consolidated management reports of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG to provide information under Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) of the German Commercial
Code, or for the Executive Board to provide a report explaining this information, pursuant to
Sections 120 (3) and 175 (2) of the German Stock Corporations Act.

1.3.3 Report on relations with affiliated companies

In compliance with Section 312 of the German Stock Corporations Act (AktG), the Executive Board
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has prepared a report on relationships with affiliated enterprises for
fiscal 2008, which concludes with the following statement by the Executive Board:

Because Lavena Holding 5 GmbH, of Munich, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena Holding 4
GmbH, of Munich, which in its turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena Holding 1 GmbH, of
Munich, which in its turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 3 S.a r.l., of Luxembourg, which in
its turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 2 S.a r.l., of Luxembourg, which in its turn is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Lavena 1 S.a r.l., of Luxembourg, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is
deemed a dependent subsidiary of Lavena 1 S.a r.l., and is therefore obligated under Section 312
AktG to issue a report on the relationships between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and Lavena 1 S.a
r.l. and its affiliated companies.

In the year under review, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG did not engage in any legal transactions with

third parties at the direction of or in the interest of Lavena 1 S.a.r.l. or its affiliated companies. No
actions subject to reporting under Section 312 AktG were either performed or omitted.
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For every legal transaction entered into between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and its subsidiaries
during the year under review, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG contractually promised appropriate
compensation within the meaning of Section 312 AktG and received performance in return for such
compensation insofar as performance was due during the year under review.

1.4 Economic and industry environment

1.4.1 Economic environment

The crisis in the financial markets that began in 2007 with the collapse of the subprime mortgage
market in the United States, and that peaked in September 2008 with the insolvency of Lehman
Brothers, the fourth-largest American investment bank, has now spread to the entire world
economy. After a strong start, the economy in the Euro zone (EZ15) cooled steadily over the rest of
the year, and had lost significant momentum by year's end. Because of its heavy export
orientation, Germany was especially hard hit. After a first quarter dominated by exceptional effects
the economy continued to deteriorate as the year wore on. The last three months of 2008, with a
minus of more than two percent, reflect the scope of the crisis. Preliminary results indicate that in
real terms, the German economy grew 1.3 percent overall during 2008 — significantly less than in
the previous two years. Growth was driven by gross investment and government consumption,
while foreign trade was no longer the growth driver. Although income was up and employment
figures were positive for the year, consumer spending also stagnated. High inflation — 2.6 percent
on average for the year — depressed consumer sentiment. Although inflation declined significantly
at year's end, warning signals from the economy and the job market increased.

1.4.2 Industry environment

Development of the advertising market. The intensified crisis in the international financial
markets, and its repercussions for the real economy, were also reflected in the development of TV
advertising spends during 2008. In the fourth quarter, growth rates in the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s
TV advertising markets in Northern, Eastern and Central Europe slowed significantly, or even
moved into negative territory. Though the fourth quarter was weak, the picture for 2008 as a whole
remained positive. The performance of the Group’s international TV advertising markets ranged
from slight pluses in the Netherlands, Finland and Norway, to substantial gains in Sweden and
Belgium, to dynamic growth in the markets of Hungary, Romania and Bulgaria. Only Denmark
closed out the year as a whole with a minus (-4.4 percent net).

In German-speaking Europe, Austria and Switzerland were able to look back on a successful 2008,
despite the adverse influences of the fourth quarter. In Germany, the Group’s core market, gross
TV advertising spends in 2008 were up 4.5 percent against the year before, to EUR 9.12 billion
(Q4: +4.7 percent). SevenOne Media, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s sales company for TV
advertising time in Germany, encountered difficulties in winning acceptance for the new marketing
model in 2008. It was able to maintain its lead in the German TV advertising market, at 41.1
percent (2007: 43.5 percent), but lost market share. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s gross TV
advertising revenues in Germany came to EUR 3.75 billion, compared to EUR 3.80 billion in 2007
(Q4 2008: EUR 1.20 billion, Q4 2007: EUR 1.21 hillion). Net figures for the German TV advertising
market are not available yet. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group assumes that the market remained stable
overall, but that the Group lost market share.
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Development of the audience market. In spite of the European Soccer Championship and the
Olympics, the Group’s TV stations increased their audience shares in 2008 — in some cases
substantially — both in the German-speaking countries and in the international Free TV segment.
Against the prior year, the German family of stations — Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and N24 —
expanded their average audience share 0.4 percentage points, or by 1.4 percent, to 29.4 percent
of the key demographic. In fact, in September the German stations made their best monthly
showing since April 2005: a 31.1 percent share. Audience shares also performed especially well in
Austria (+31 percent), Denmark (+16 percent), and the Netherlands (+7 percent).

Business Developments: Earnings, Financial position and Net Worth in
Fiscal 2008

2.1 Revenue and earnings performance

Revenues at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG increased EUR 1.7 million, in 2008, or 30.1 percent, to
EUR 7.6 million. Most of the change came from higher revenues from the sale of ancillary
programming rights.

Other operating income showed an increase of 23.4 percent against the prior year, to EUR 116.5
million. This EUR 22.1 million increase consisted primarily of higher income from write-backs of
provisions, and income from interest rate hedges.

Operating expenses increased EUR 27.6 million, or 17.3 percent, in fiscal 2008, to EUR 187.1
million, particularly because of the increase in other operating expenses. The EUR 27.5 million
increase in other operating expenses, to EUR 115.6 million, is largely the consequence of
expenses for corporate consultants and legal counsel. In addition, the Company incurred expenses
in fiscal 2008 for the new setup of the German TV group and the associated closure of
administrative units at the Berlin site, as well as the relocation of Sat.1. The other operating
expenses also include write-offs of receivables as a result of the derecognition of interest rate
swaps with Lehman Brothers International (Europe). Lehman Brothers International (Europe)
applied for protection from creditors on September 15, 2008. New cover was provided for most of
the total in derecognized interest-rate swaps, so that there has been no consequent change worth
mentioning in the hedging ratio. However, the programming expenses and costs of materials
included in the operating expenses of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG decreased slightly against the
prior year (EUR —1.3 million).

The financial result was EUR minus 827.7 million, compared to EUR 290.4 million in fiscal 2007.
One reason for the deterioration in this figure was the EUR 729.1 million decrease in capital
investment income, to EUR 347.9 million. Revenue setbacks in the German TV advertising market
affected the earnings position of associated companies. Moreover, because of the difficult business
conditions in Europe, impairment losses were taken on the international business operations that
the ProSiebenSat.1 Group added in the SBS acquisition which led to higher expenses from loss
assumptions.

The substantial decrease in the financial result also came in part from write-downs of EUR 314.4
million on financial assets (2007: EUR 0.0 million). Negative performance in past months and the
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difficult economic environment led the Group to take impairment losses on the German group of
stations in 2008. These resulted in unscheduled write-downs of EUR 300.0 million. The write-
downs have no effect on liquidity, but did have a significant impact on the profitability of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for fiscal 2008. The net financial result was also reduced by the EUR
81.7 million increase in interest expenses, to EUR 184.5 million.

Income from ordinary business activities decreased accordingly by EUR 1,112.8 million, to
EUR 890.7 million. After deducting income tax expenses of EUR 42.7 million (2007: EUR 127.0
million) and other taxes, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG showed net loss for the year of EUR 933.4
million for 2008, compared to a profit of EUR 2.953 billion the year before. The high figure from the
previous year resulted from extraordinary profits that came from pooling German-language TV
activities together under German Free TV Holding GmbH. German Free TV Holding was created in
2007 as a parallel to the holding company for the international stations. As an intermediate holding
company, it combines the TV companies in Germany, Austria and Switzerland that were formerly
held by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG directly. The resulting valuation gain in 2007 was EUR 2,851.8
million.

2.2 Net assets and financial position

Borrowings

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s present Group-wide financing is essentially composed of secured
term loans for a total of EUR 3.6 billion, with maturities in July 2014 (Term Loan B) and July 2015
(Term Loan C). The interest rate on the term loans is variable. Additionally, the secured syndicated
facilities agreement includes a revolving credit facility (RCF) with a facility amount limit of EUR 600
million and a term to July 2014. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group entered into this secured syndicated
facilities agreement in connection with the financing of the SBS acquisition in July 2007. About 85
percent of the Group’s term loans are hedged by way of a variety of interest-rate swaps.

The international financial crisis has also affected the financing of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. Two
lenders are either currently unable to meet their obligations under the facilities agreement, or
unable to meet them at all.

e Through a subsidiary, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc. held 0.9
percent of the Term Loans B and C (equivalent to about EUR 30.9 million) and 3.8 percent
of the revolving credit facility (equivalent to EUR 22.7 million) as a lender. The Lehman
Brothers holding company applied for protection from creditors on September 15, 2008,
and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. filed its own application for protection on October 5,
2008. As of that date, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. will no longer provide funds for new
draw-downs under the RCF. However, draw-downs already outstanding on the RCF can
be rolled over in the same amount without any early repayment of the Lehman component.
Repayments of draw-downs on Lehman credit facilities under the RCF would cause them
to lapse. The loans already furnished by Lehman Commercial Paper Inc. under the term
loan facilities are likewise unaffected by the insolvency. Moreover, Lehman has no right to
demand, and the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has no obligation to perform, any early
redemption of Lehman’s share of the Term Loans B and C.
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e The Icelandic bank Glitnir banki hf. holds 1.7 percent of the revolving credit facility
(equivalent to EUR 10.0 million) as a lender. Glitnir was nationalized in October 2008 as a
consequence of the financial crisis, and will not participate in future draw-downs until
further notice. This change has no effect on outstanding draw-downs. However, repayment
of any existing draw-downs would cause them to lapse..

Taking into account the default of Lehman and Glitnir as described above, EUR 5.3 million was no
longer available for draw-downs under the revolving credit facility as of December 31, 2008. Thus
the revolving credit facility that is currently available comes to EUR 594.7 million. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group can draw variably on the revolving credit facility for general corporate
purposes. Allowing for guarantee utilisations, EUR 54.1 million of the revolving credit facility was
unused as of December 31, 2008 (December 31, 2007: EUR 555.8 million).

The secured syndicated facilities agreement totaling EUR 4.2 billion, requires ProSieben- Sat.1
Group to comply with certain financial key figures (‘financial covenants’). The ProSiebenSat.1
Group must maintain a specific financial ratio of consolidated net financial debt to consolidated
EBITDA, and of consolidated EBITDA to the consolidated net interest result, each as defined in the
facilities agreement. Compliance with the financial ratios is tested quarterly for the respective
previous 12-month period. Noncompliance with these figures give rise for early termination.
However, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s facilities agreement also allows the Group to prevent
impending breaches of the key figure requirements, or to cure existing ones, by contributing equity
or equity-like funds in the form of subordinated loans (“equity cure”) within certain periods. Such an
addition of equity or funds equivalent to equity is treated as an increase in consolidated EBITDA for
purposes of calculating compliance with the financial covenants.

In the event that ownership control of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG changes (change of control), the
lenders may demand termination of the facilities agreement, and repayment of all outstanding
amounts within a certain period after the change of control takes place.

In addition, the facilities agreement includes a number of standard obligations which, subject to
extensive exceptions and among other elements, limit the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s ability to furnish
other security interests in its present or future assets, to undertake further financial liabilities, to sell
assets, to acquire business operations in whole or in part, or to furnish guarantees, declarations of
indemnification, or liability declarations outside the normal course of business.

The facilities agreement also contains a humber customary default clauses. The default clauses
provide that the lenders may demand immediate repayment in full of all amounts outstanding under
the facilities agreement if breaches of contract defined in more detail under the agreement occure,
and if those breaches (assuming they are curable) are not remedied within a specified period.

Principles and objectives of financial management

The tasks of financial management at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are financing for the Group, cash
management, short-term and long-term liquidity planning, and interest-rate and foreign currency
management. Major principles applied here are diversification of the investor base, financial
flexibility and
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stability, access to international capital markets, and a balanced maturity profile for financing
instruments. The most important goals of financial management are to safeguard Group-wide
solvency and increase financing power. This particularly includes managing financial risk. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group applies derivative financial instruments to limit this risk. The processes of
financial management are controlled centrally. The principles, aims and processes of financial
management are laid down in a Group-wide financial guideline that is explained in more detail in
the risk report.

Cash and cash equivalents, and cash flow

The cash flow from operating activities was down EUR 243.0 million in fiscal 2008, to EUR —
38.0 million. Apart from the decrease in net income adjusted for non-cash components, payment of
the EUR 120.0 million fine in the Federal Cartel Office proceedings also reduced operating cash
flow in fiscal 2008.

Cash used in investing activities came to EUR 5.2 million. Most of the EUR 1,914.8 million in
cash used in fiscal 2007 was for payments relating to the SBS acquisition. Because substantially
less cash was used for investing activities in 2008 than in 2007, there was a free cash flow of
EUR —43.2 million, compared to EUR 1,709.9 million.

The cash flow for financing activities in fiscal 2008 was EUR 462.8 million, most of which came
from draws of EUR 497.2 million on the revolving credit facility. In addition, loans from associated
companies increased by EUR 234.0 million. In fiscal 2008, cash totaling EUR 269.9 million was
used for distributions of dividends. Of this amount, EUR 135.3 million was paid to holders of
preferred stock, and EUR 134.6 million to holders of common stock. The figure represents a payout
of EUR 1.25 per bearer share of preferred stock, and EUR 1.23 per registered share of common
stock. In fiscal 2007, cash of EUR 1,740.1 million was used for financing the SBS transaction.

At the end of the period in December 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG had cash and cash
equivalents of EUR 504.0 million, compared to EUR 84.4 million at December 31, 2007.

Net assets and capital structure

The total assets of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG increased EUR 104.8 million against December 31,
2007, or 1.5 percent, to EUR 6,920.9 million.

Impairment losses for the German TV led to a decrease of EUR 297.9 million in interests in
associated companies, which appear under financial assets, to EUR 5,722.2 million. See the Notes
to the financial statements for more information about the impairment losses. In all, the total non-
current assets decreased EUR 301.7 million against the prior year, to EUR 5,767.1 million.

However, current assets increased EUR 413.6 million against December 31, 2007, to EUR
1,119.6 million. The change was particularly the result of larger credit balances at banks, which
increased a substantial EUR 419.6 million to EUR 504.0 million. Additionally, the purchase of
treasury stock added EUR 2.5 million to securities.
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Expenses paid in advance, which decreased EUR 7.1 million to EUR 34.2 million, particularly
include bank fees from the refinancing of the acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group, which are
amortized over the term of the loan.

On the equity and liabilities side, equity decreased EUR 1,203.3 million, to EUR 2,701.4 million.
The equity base was narrowed by the decline in earnings and by the higher dividend payment than
for the year before. The equity ratio at December 31, 2008, was thus 39.0 percent (2007: 57.3
percent).

Other provisions increased EUR 9.5 million, to EUR 51.6 million, as a result of the steps taken to
set up newly the German TV group. Tax provisions, on the other hand, decreased EUR 11.3
million, to EUR 35.7 million. Total provisions came to EUR 94.4 million, compared to EUR 94.3
million on December 31, 2007.

Liabilities, at EUR 4,125.1 million, are up EUR 1,308.0 million from the previous year. The
increase particularly results from increased liabilities of EUR 795.0 million to EUR 1,439.1 million
towards affiliated companies due to high obligations from loss assumptions. Moreover higher
draws on the revolving credit facility arose compared to the year before. In this connection,
liabilities to banks grew EUR 498.8 million, to EUR 2,576.8 million.

2.3 Employees

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG had an average of 415 employees in fiscal 2008, compared to 426 the
year before. Personnel expenses increased slightly, by EUR 0.8 million or 1.8 percent, to EUR 42.3
million.

2.4 Research and Development

Because ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, as a media corporation, does not conduct research and
development activities in the narrow sense, no such information is included in the Management
Report.

Events after the Reporting Date

Changes in the Executive Board — Thomas Ebeling becomes new CEO. Thomas Ebeling
assumed the responsibilities of CEO at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of March 1, 2009. He was
most recently CEO of Novartis Consumer Health and a member of Novartis management. He was
appointed the new CEO at ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG early in December of 2008. Guillaume de
Posch resigned as CEO on his own initiative as of December 31, 2008. CFO Axel Salzmann filled
in as acting CEO until Thomas Ebeling took office.

Material events affecting earnings, financial position and net worth after the reporting date.
From the end of fiscal 2008 to March 10, 2009, the date when this report was released for
publication and forwarded to the Supervisory Board, no reportable events occurred that are of
particular significance for the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group or ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.
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Risk Report

As a holding company, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, both itself and through the operating interests it
holds either directly or indirectly in a broad range of business activities, is exposed to a wide variety
of risks. Because it serves as a holding company, the risks and opportunities of ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG are essentially congruent with the risks and opportunities for the corporate Group as a
whole.

4.1 Overall assessment of the Group’s risk situation

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s overall risk situation is analyzed and managed Group-wide through
the risk management system. As of the date of the preparation of this management report, the
Executive Board views the overall risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group as limited. We
currently view the deterioration of the general economic situation in Europe as our primary risk.

4.2 Risk management

Risk management system. Expansion, particularly in international markets, as well as the
complexity and dynamism of our business, intrinsically exposes the ProSiebenSat.1 Group to a
number of risk factors. Our experience in the TV advertising market, together with our international
know-how in the media sector, provides a solid foundation for making the most of growth
opportunities and for assessing risks promptly and reliably. A further requirement for handling risk
properly is clear organizational structures. Uniform guidelines ensure a methodical approach, and
are indispensable for standardized detection and Group-wide management of risks. Unambiguous
allocation of tasks and responsibilities makes it possible to take steps promptly to counteract risks
as they arise. For that reason, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has established an inclusive risk
management system for itself and its Group companies. The risk management system is tailored to
the special circumstances of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group, and is based on the principle of including
every segment and every subsidiary in the process. In simplified terms, the Group-wide risk
management system looks as follows:

e Decentralized risk managers at the various corporate units are responsible for detecting
and reporting risks. The risk managers are supported by two departments, Controlling &
Corporate Planning and Legal Affairs. The Group Risk and Compliance Officer is
responsible for regular quarterly reporting to the Executive Board, as well as any additional
reports as needed.

e The functioning and suitability of the risk management system are regularly reviewed by
the Internal Audit unit. Its review is based on the risk management manual, which
summarizes both the Company’s own principles and the requirements of law for handling
risk. Additionally, the risk management system is an integral part of the audit of the annual
financial statements. It complies with the the requirements of law.

20



Risk management process. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s risk management process follows the
coordinated steps outlined below:

e Risk identification and risk classification: Risk identification and classification is
founded on risk management workshops that are held at least once a year for each
subsidiary or division, at dates close to the planning process. The risks identified in the
workshop are allocated to defined risk categories so as to permit a logical aggregation and
crystallization of individual risks. Risk identification is consequently subject to constantly
changing conditions, in an ongoing updating process, and is incorporated in the quarterly
risk reporting process.

e Risk assessment: Risk assessment evaluates the probability of risks and their potential
impact on the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s operating and strategic business performance and
planning. Risk assessment also includes analyzing causes and interactions with other
risks. In addition to quantitative methods, some of which are based on early warning
indicators, risks are also assessed using qualitative approaches.

e Risk management and risk monitoring: Early warning indicators have been defined for
all measurable and material categories of risk. These early warning indicators primarily
cover the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s performance in terms of audience share and advertising
market share, the profitability and appeal of the program inventory, human resources
development, and the evolution of liquidity. The management in charge initiates suitable
measures to counter each identified risk that is deemed to need mitigation. These
measures are documented and monitored as a part of the reporting system. The Executive
Board discusses and adopts appropriate risk control measures, and reports to the Audit
and Finance Committee of the Supervisory Board. When new opportunities or risks arise,
or individual indicators change significantly, the Executive Board and Supervisory Board
are notified at once, irrespective of the quarterly reporting intervals.

Group-wide risk management system evolves as SBS integration proceeds. As the process
of integrating SBS advances, further measures have been taken to adapt the risk management
system to fit the Group’s international position. To support risk management, a software has been
developed to help detect risks Group-wide and monitor their development. In fiscal 2007, risk
categories were expanded, and a reporting system was introduced with six categories: External
Risks, Content, Technology Risks, Sales, Organizational and Financial Risks, and Compliance.

4.3 Opportunity management

Opportunities are potential positive deviations from planned results. Opportunities for the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group derive primarily from corporate strategy. Monitoring opportunities is just as
much a part of the Group’s management system as risk management is. For this purpose, the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group closely scrutinizes market scenarios and developments in the international
competitive environment, and also gives great attention to critical internal factors for success, such
as cost drivers and non-financial performance indicators. The principal opportunities for the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group are discussed in the outlook.
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4.4 Risk situation: Evolution of individual risks

Factors that were of material importance in the past fiscal year, or that might have adverse effects
on the Group’s earnings, financial position and net worth, are presented below with the
corresponding assessment for the individual risk categories:

Evolution of individual risks
change 2007/2008

1 -»> > -~ A >

A Increasing risk = Decreasing risk - Rizk unchanged

1. External risks

General economic risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s business operations depend to a large
degree on overall economic conditions, and especially on developments in the markets where our
advertising clients operate. A general weakening of the economy, especially in the core market in
Germany, could have a material effect on the earnings position in our core business of commercial
television, and thus on the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s business performance. At the moment we
cannot rule out the possibility that adverse repercussions from economic conditions might also
affect our own Company, directly or indirectly. We estimate economic developments expected in
the near future on pages 30 and following.

Sector risks — Advertising market. Given the current extraordinarily low visibility in the
advertising market, investigating and assessing the orders situation is an important part of risk
management. Total orders are analyzed on the basis of new bookings, and advertising revenues
for the year are extrapolated. This ongoing analysis also studies the position of competitors and
developments in the economy as a whole and the advertising industry in particular. Monthly reports
to the Executive Board compare and analyze current and projected values in comparison with the
figures from the year before.

Sector risks — TV usage. Lower TV consumption could have a material impact on our operating
performance in our core business of free TV. However, at present the Group believes that the risk
of a substantial change in the TV usage pattern is rather low. There has been no sign so far of
“cannibalization” — meaning migration of audiences to alternative media. What one finds instead is
a additive use of such media as TV and the Internet. The quality and availability of content is a
crucial success factor in the use of alternative media. In 2008 the ProSiebenSat.1 Group further
reduces its dependence on the TV market by diversifying its business activities, and at the same
time extendes the reach of its programming content and strong TV brands.
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2. Content risks

Acquisition of licensed programming. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group acquires many of its feature
films, TV films and series as licensed programming from third parties, with a strong focus on major
US studios. In addition to the general price risk, therefore, the Group is also exposed to the risk of
potential price increases due to the ongoing success of US series.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group can keep price risks relatively low because of its strong position as a
licensee. The Group’s negotiating position with major studios and independents is further
supported by stable business relationships founded on many years of cooperation and long-
standing contractual arrangements, and by the pan-European Group’s position as one of the
largest, most important licensees in the international TV market.

In-house productions and commissioned productions. In-house productions and
commissioned productions represent an important percentage of programming. The tendency
toward concentration among producers has increasingly exposed the Group to a price risk in this
regard. Additionally, because reference figures are sometimes unavailable, the prospects for the
success of in-house and commissioned productions tend to be less certain than in the case of
purchased licenses.

ProSiebenSat.1 constantly conducts programming and market research, so that it can assess
productions’ prospects for success as reliably as possible. A broad supplier base, with a list of core
suppliers as short as possible, further helps to mitigate risk potential.

Producing content is a core component of our corporate strategy. Founding the RedSeven
Entertainment production company in 2008 — a wholly-owned subsidiary of ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG — has positioned the Group even better to exploit its own or acquired programming rights, and
to develop them further on a cross-platform basis.

Programming inventory. The success of a programming policy depends on the programming
content’s appeal and profitability. An important early warning indicator in this connection is the total
return on programming inventory. As a rule, programming contracts are signed several years
ahead of the broadcast date. Programming rights are capitalized in the amount of their contracted
purchase price. To reduce inventory risk, the revenue potential of broadcasting rights under
contract undergoes regular review. In addition, to ensure that the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has the
largest possible number of attractive, successful films, as a part of risk reporting the number of
highlight films acquired by the Group is set in relation to the total number of theatrical film
highlights for the same year.

3. Technology risks

Broadcasting equipment and studio operations. A studio and broadcasting equipment failure
could cause substantial disruptions of business operations. An infrastructure that no longer meets
the current needs of the market or current security requirements could also inhibit us from
achieving our business goals. For that reason, the broadcasting process and all material
components of studio equipment at the ProSiebenSat.1 Group are protected with backup systems.

The construction of a new playout center in Munich in 2008 laid the cornerstone for the Group’s
implementation of an innovative technical platform. Entirely tapeless working procedures and a
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new infrastructure ensure technological competitiveness by making it possible to exploit all content
via all media, early and in parallel, while at the same time improving process quality

IT risks. The increasing complexity of the Group’s systems means that IT security risks may have
serious consequences for business processes. These include failures of systems, applications, or
the network, but also data integrity and data confidentiality. IT security risks are mitigated by
regular investments in hardware and software, by using firewall systems and virus scanners, and
by establishing various access authorizations and controls. The IT unit has multiple computer
centers at separate locations, which take over one another’s tasks automatically in the event of a
failure, without losing either time or data. The IT security strategy is updated regularly.

4. Sales risks

Audience share / TV ratings. Ratings of the free TV stations, and especially audience share
among the key demographic, are among the most important early warning indicators. A structural
reduction in ratings might have financial consequences for ProSiebenSat.1. But the Group
continues to view this risk as rather improbable.

Sales. Immediately following the conclusion of the penalty proceedings by the German Federal
Cartel Office in 2007, the Group’s advertising marketing company in Germany, SevenOne Media,
presented a new discount and fee model. The revised discount model was not as well received by
agencies and advertising clients as had been expected, so that it had to be revised during 2008.
Based on discussions with advertisers and on the current order levels, the Group believes there is
rather little risk that the market will remain reluctant to accept the revised model.

Convergence. The steadily growing availability of alternative media entails a risk that advertisers
might turn away from conventional television. For that reason, ProSiebenSat.1 is moving vigorously
to diversify its media services, and increasingly counts on the potential of new media in addition to
its core business in TV. One part of this strategy has been the merger of SevenOne Media (TV)
and SevenOne Interactive (Online). By combining its marketing subsidiaries for TV and online
services, ProSiebenSat.1 can respond better to the market's requirements, and can offer clients
cross-media advertising concepts.

5. Organizational and financial risks

Relocation of Sat.1. As part of a strategic reorientation, the decision was made at the end of 2008
to concentrate stations Sat.1, ProSieben, kabel eins and 9Live at the Munich Unterféhring site. The
relocation of Sat.1 (except for its central editorial department) from Berlin to Unterféhring will be
completed by mid-2009. The Group expects medium-term and long-term advantages from an
improved use of programming resources and creative potential. However, for the short term risks
are presented by logistics, human resources, and the work of integrating processes at the shared
site in Unterféhring.

IT outsourcing. In 2008 the ProSiebenSat.1 Group signed a long-term outsourcing agreement
with IBM. IBM, a leader in IT services, will take over and expand all IT business applications and
the IT and media systems of ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion. Over the next few years, it will set up a
broadcast integration center and standardize processes and business applications. The aim of

24



outsourcing IT is to position ProSiebenSat.1 more efficiently and more flexibly in the European
media and entertainment market, while at the same time cutting costs. ProSiebenSat.1 incurs risks
here, however, because of the resulting greater dependency on an external service provider and
because of the associated need to adjust processes. The transformation of existing processes and
the clear allocation of duties and responsibilities are continuously monitored by a governance
board, which additionally serves as an interface between the Group companies and IBM.

Personnel risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s success depends significantly on the abilities and
dedication of its employees. Personnel risks arise primarily in recruiting and developing staff, and
in the turnover of employees in key positions. The Group limits these risks in part by a strategic
management development program that builds on the corporate mission statement and the
management guidelines that have been derived from it. Additionally, performance-based and
results-based incentive systems give concrete form to higher-order corporate objectives, and bring
them down to the level of specific goals for segments, departments and individual employees.
These goals are pursued through goal agreement meetings, site meetings, and goal achievement
meetings.

The Group has also launched initiatives to introduce a code of conduct that will apply throughout
the corporation. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group Code of Compliance ensures that the Group’s
business activities are in line with internationally recognized standards, as well as local laws and
regulations.

Financial risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its
business operations. These risks are managed centrally as a part of financial risk management.
Apart from ensuring solvency, the aim of financial risk management is to optimize the Group’s
financial result. The principles, duties and responsibilities of financial risk management are
governed by the internal corporate financial guidelines of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group. Financial risk
management is founded on strategies that have been defined in close cooperation with the
Executive Board. These include not only the Group financial guideline, but other guidelines for
structuring the Group’s internal financing, borrowings, and requirements to be met by external
business partners for finance and treasury transactions (counterparty guidelines). Any derivative
financial instruments that may be employed serve solely to hedge existing risk positions, not for
active trading purposes.

In context of the current crisis on the international financial markets and the difficult overall
economic conditions in Europe the financial risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has
increased in general:

e Finance risk: By finance risk, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group refers to having adequate
funding available and accessible, whether through equity or through borrowings. In this
connection, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group monitors the situation on money markets and
capital markets. The availability of funds depends in part on compliance with particular
requirements known as “financial covenants.” Given the current difficult financial
environment, the financial risk situation of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group has increased, also
with regard to the adherence of financial covenants. Compliance with these ratios is
monitored on an ongoing basis, also prospective on the basis of budgets. On basis of the
current budgets, the company does not expect any violation of the
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financial covenants. Further information on financial covenants can be found in the chapter
“Borrowings”.

The Group currently has a EUR 4.2 billion syndicated facilities agreements that extends to
mid-2014/15, so that it currently has no refinancing needs. The syndicated facilities are
composed of two loans totaling EUR 3.6 billion (Term Loan B and C), as well as a
revolving credit facility with a facility amount of EUR 600.0 million, which can be drawn
upon variably for general operating purposes.

Currency risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s foreign currency risks from transactions
(transaction risks) arise primarily from the fact that it acquires a significant portion of its
programming rights from production studios in the United States. Thus the Group is
exposed to risks from fluctuations in the exchange rate between the euro and the dollar,
but also fluctuations in non-euro Group currencies against the dollar. To hedge currency
risks, the Group enters into forward exchange transactions and currency options. Further
information on hedge accounting are to be found in the notes.

There are no hedges for exchange rate changes to the euro for Group companies whose
functional currency is not the euro, but is translated to euros in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements (foreign currency translation).

Exchange rate fluctuations that result when *“non-euro” Group companies assume
borrowings denominated in euro, and the consequent impact on profits at those companies,
are likewise not hedged if these liabilities are expected to be retired with funds denominated
in Euro, rather than out of the operating (non-euro) cash flows of the companies themselves.
These are shown in the Group’s income statement under “Other Financial Expenses.”

Interest rate risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is exposed to interest rate risks through its
loan agreements. To mitigate risk, ProSiebenSat.1 has hedged about 80 percent of its
variable-interest financial liabilities through interest rate hedges. These interest rate
hedges are used to compensate for uncertain, variable-rate interest payments on
borrowings by replacing those payments with fixed-rate interest payments. Known as
“interest rate swaps,” they qualify as cash flow hedges that are covered by hedge
accounting under IAS 39.88. The remaining variable interest rate risk results not only from
the unhedged portion of the term loans, but also from any draw-downs the Group may
make on its revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2008, EUR 497.2 million had been
drawn from this facility. An interest rate risk in the sense of a change in market value is of
no relevance here, since ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s financial liabilities are reported at
cost, and thus any change in market value will have no effect on the balance sheet.

Liquidity risks: Liquidity risk — meaning the risk of being unable to meet payment
obligations because of a shortage of available cash funds — is managed through a central
cash management system. The most important early warning indicator in this connection is
the expected liquidity headroom, which is calculated on the basis of available and
projected cash, taking the seasonal nature of the business into account. The Executive
Board of the ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG assesses the liquidity of the company as good and
assumes that the liquidity headroom will suffice in the coming years as well.
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e Contingency risks: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group, as a media corporation that operates
throughout Europe in multiple relationships with international partners in the financial
industry, must rely on fully functional markets for money, capital and derivatives. However,
the international financial crisis has lent new importance to monitoring contingency risks.
To mitigate the risk of default on transactions involving financial instruments, the Group
engages in finance and treasury transactions only if the external counterparties meet the
strict credit standing requirements established in the counterparty guidelines. Furthermore,
the risk of concentration is mitigated by diversifying finance and treasury transactions
among multiple qualified counterparties.

A detailed description of hedging instruments, valuations and sensitivity analyses, as well
as other information about financial risk management, is provided in the Notes to the
Financial Statements.

6. Compliance risks

General compliance. Corporate governance risks arise from potential violations of statutory
reporting obligations and from insufficient transparency in corporate management and corporate
communications. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group limits these risks with a Group-wide compliance
structure. The program includes training employees in antitrust matters, as well as internal
oversight and sanctioning mechanisms to prevent any violations of the antitrust laws from the
outset.

Antitrust law

e Risk of third-party lawsuits: Germany's Federal Cartel Office concluded its proceedings
against SevenOne Media in 2007, in return for payment of a fine. In November 2008, RTL2
and its marketing company, El Cartel, filed suit in Disseldorf Regional Court against
SevenOne Media and the ProSiebenSat.1 broadcasting companies. The current suit seeks
a declaratory judgment and information, not specific damages; its aim instead is to
establish an obligation in principle to pay damages. There can be no assurance that
additional third parties will not attempt to bring action against SevenOne Media in the
aftermath of these proceedings. A successful suit against the ProSiebenSat.1 Group or
one of its subsidiaries might have a material impact on the Group’s financial and earnings
situation.

e Market investigation in Hungary: The general market investigation by the Hungarian
competition authorities, already mentioned in the 2007 risk report, had not been completed
yet as of the end of 2008. The investigation concentrates on three aspects: television
advertising, the sale of television programming, and purchases of film and sports rights. It
is not directed against ProSiebenSat.1 Group companies. However, the Hungarian
competition authority could expand the investigation, and thus might affect the business of
the Group’s Hungarian free TV station TV2.
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Media law / Broadcasting licenses.

e Regional windows: The Saarland Media Act requires state-wide programming windows to
be incorporated at least into the two private nationwide television channels with the
greatest technical reach, and these windows must be financed by the broadcasters of the
nationwide channels. ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG respectively Sat.1 have brought legal
action against the obligation to provide Saarland programming windows, and have
prevailed on procedural grounds. There has been no decision on the merits of the matter
so far. Saarland is expected to submit a new regulation and to maintain its demand. As the
proceedings are still pending, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is taking an active role in this
social, media-policy and legal controversy, to combat these restrictions. The financing that
would have to be provided by Sat.1 or ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG for a new regional
window is estimated at roughly EUR 5 million per year.

There is a further risk that in German states that hitherto have had no requirements for
programming windows, demands for similar arrangements might also follow. In these
discussions as well, the Company is taking an active part to counteract an expansion of
further regional TV requirements.

e Regulatory risks. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is particularly exposed to risks connected
with more stringent regulatory requirements, for example regarding advertising, forms of
advertising, broadcasting licenses and games. Any unforeseen changes in the legal and
regulatory conditions might have a material impact on individual business activities. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group actively monitors all relevant developments, and maintains constant
contact with the regulatory authorities so as to ensure that its interests are taken into
account to the best possible degree.

Distribution

For the Company'’s stations, lasting success in the advertising market depends most significantly on
high audience reaches. Apart from programming appeal, this reach depends especially on the
technical distribution of the TV stations over as many distribution channels as possible. The
ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s stations have high technical reaches. For this purpose, the Group has
signed long-term distribution and cooperation agreements with satellite operators, broadband
network operators, and, for distribution on mobile terminals, telecommunications firms.

The changeover from analog to digital broadcasting will further multiply the capacity available for
carrying the Group’s television programming and other services. Signing long-term distribution
agreements has ensured that the reach of the Group’s stations will still be assured as the transition
from the analog to the digital age advances. For that reason, the ProSiebenSat.1 Group is confident
that its stations will continue to be distributed nationwide in both analog and digital format.

Other risks.

e Tax risks: ProSiebenSat.1 Group may be exposed to an abstract income tax risk in
conjunction with a pending investigation by the Munich State Prosecutor’s Office | against
certain private individuals. Depending on the outcome of that investigation, certain past
operating expenses might be reclassified retroactively as non-deductible.
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Rights of use in new media: The ProSiebenSat.1 Group is currently in negotiations with
various copyright holders about the use of their rights on the Group’s platforms, especially
in new media (online). The negotiations primarily concern the rights of (online) use for
music held by various rights licensing companies. The fragmentation of rights of use is
making it increasingly difficult to reach consensus with all involved, and is thus impeding a
practical, quick solution to the matter. This situation could adversely affect the
development of the new media business.

Call TV Netherlands: The Netherlands public prosecutor’s office and local tax authorities
are investigating a Group subsidiary for a suspected breach of the Dutch laws on gaming.
The investigation focuses primarily on whether and to what extent call TV and similar
business operations, such as televoting, can be considered illegal gambling. Violations of
the relevant laws could be penalized with confiscation of the sales revenues generated by
the targeted business operations. The call TV programs were suspended in November
2007. The outcome of the pending proceedings cannot be foreseen reliably. Court
decisions or settlements might have material adverse effects on the Group’s financial and
earnings situation. No provision had been set aside as of the reporting date.
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Outlook

The statements made below are based on ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s operating projections for
2009 and 2010. These projections are based on the goals of the Group companies and on
assumptions about conditions in the general economy and the industry in particular, derived from
assessments by well-known economic research institutes:

Qur revised ad sales model will be accepted in the German market

The German TV advertising market will slow down in 2009; the recession will also affect
our international TV markets

In hard economic times, the advertising industry increasingly relies on time-tested media,
50 that in relative terms, the standing of TV advertising should rize

Internet advertising will also increase in the coming year, while print and radio will par-
ticularly suffer from the downswing.

5.1 Overall assessment of the future performance of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group

2009 will be a challenging year as well; as we anticipate a markets decline for TV advertising in
Europe. However, with our new advertising time sales model for 2009, we are well positioned to
face the challenges of the next few months. But to return to a highly competitive position in the TV
advertising market, we must do more than capitalize on our advantages regarding audiences in the
coming months —we must respond to the adverse economic environment with ongoing proactive
cost management and improved organizational structures. By pooling our TV operations in
Germany, we are focusing our attention on an environment that is considerably more challenging
than it was in the previous years. We will strengthen the competitive position of our family of
stations, and at the same time make our company even more efficient. Our most important task is
to systematically implement the steps we initiated early in 2008 to consequently improve efficiency.

Get future-ready »» Our most important targets for 2009

We will achieve our financial goals.

We will capitalize on our strong performance with audiences to recover shares of the Ger-
man TV advertising market, thanks to our revised marketing model.

We will improve our cost structure.
We will invest in attractive programming and optimize our content output.

We will make the most of the growth potential offered by digital developments and our
international portfolio, and strengthen our Diversification unit.

We will strategically refocus the TV group in Germany, and network our activities even
mare fully, both in Germany and in the rest of Europe.

5.2 Future economic and industry environment

The worldwide economic crisis has intensified significantly further since the US-American
investment bank Lehman Brothers filed for protection from creditors in September 2008. Obstacles
are posed not just by turbulence in the financial market and poorer loan market conditions, but by
companies’ less optimistic earnings outlooks. The International Monetary Fund (IMF) estimates that
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the world economy will grow only half a percent in 2009. With appropriate political support, a
recovery in 2010 seems possible, but all forecasts carry a very significant degree of uncertainty.
There is a constant risk of downward corrections.

e After an especially weak fourth quarter, the outlook for the Euro zone (15 countries) in
2009 is extremely guarded. At present, the IMF projects a 2.0 percent decline. The
European Commission is expecting —1.9 percent. All the European economies have been
affected by the global economic crisis, although to varying degrees. The outlook is
especially gloomy for Ireland and the Baltic states, but Germany, the United Kingdom,
France, Italy and Spain must also expect serious setbacks. Only a few countries are
expected to show a positive balance for the year — and with significant drop-offs even in
those cases. Romania and Bulgaria are among those countries. The outlook for the
development of consumer spending tends to be somewhat better.

e As an exporting country, Germany will also suffer more severely from the consequences of
the global economic crisis in 2009. In its annual economic report, the German government
projects that the worldwide economic crisis will cause gross domestic product to shrink 2.25
percent in real terms in 2009. Especially significant declines are expected among the
growth engines from the past few years — capital goods and exports. However, positive
impetus is expected from consumption — both government and private. This expectation is
based on rising government spending and higher private household income. The critical
factor for consumer spending will be how seriously the economic crisis impacts the job
market. The annual financial report currently expects a rather moderate rise in
unemployment, to 8.4 percent by the end of 2009 (2008: 7.8 percent). In all, the current
year will be one of the most difficult in the economic history of the Federal Republic.

Development of the advertising market in ProSiebenSat.1’'s main markets. The projected
performance of gross domestic product largely parallels the expected trend in the advertising
markets. For countries with vigorous economic growth, above-average growth in advertising spends
is expected — especially if the expansion is strongly driven by consumer spending. Based on
current economic forecasts, which expect Germany’'s economy to feel the impact more than
average because of the country’s strong orientation to exports, we must currently expect a negative
TV advertising market in 2009. ZenithOptimedia expects TV advertising spends in Germany to
decrease 3.5 percent in 2009. ZenithOptimedia has also lowered its projections for some of the
other markets where the ProSiebenSat.1 Group operates. However, because of the current
situation in the financial market, these projections must be considered quite uncertain.

5.3 Company outlook

Given the current turbulence in the financial markets and its unforeseeable impact on the European
economy, any projections about the TV advertising market carry unusually high levels of
uncertainty. For that reason, a multi-year forecast for major financial key figures is impossible at the
moment.

We aim to win back advertising market share in Germany in 2009 in an overall weak market to
compensate at least partly the economic slowdown. One indication that supports this expectation is
the positive outcome of our annual discussions with our advertisers which show that we once again
have a competitive marketing model. In addition, our successes with audiences, relative to the
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performance of the TV advertising market, should also have positive effects on the advertising
industry’s investments.

In the background of the difficult market environment, keeping costs as low as possible is an
important prerequisite for our profitability. For that reason, although our cost management is
already rigorous, we have adopted extensive cost cutting measures in our budgeting for 2009. All in
all, operating costs should be about EUR 100 million less than in fiscal 2008. Especially by the
setup of the German TV stations under German Free TV Holding, and by pooling German sales
operations, we expect to make more efficient use of resources and cut operating costs significantly
in fiscal 2009. Additionally, we are making every effort to derive maximum benefit from the
synergies that result from the integration of SBS. Both of these factors will have a positive effect on
recurring EBITDA. Nevertheless we cannot exclude that our earnings performance will be impacted
given the difficult economic conditions. In case of a recovery of the advertising markets, our
measures to improve efficiency should help us to increase our operative earnings (recurring
EBITDA) in 2010.

This will also be reflected in the business performance of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, which benefits
from the profits transferred from its Group companies.

Expected financial position and future investments. Following the acquisition of SBS, reducing
financial debt and lowering our leverage will be a high priority in the years to come. The reduced
dividend proposal of the Executive Board for fiscal 2008 takes account of this goal.

Despite its outstanding debt, the Group has enough leeway to implement the investments projects
required for its operative and strategic goals, and to take advantage of opportunities for acquisitions
as they present themselves.

The Group’s future focus. Amid a difficult market environment, we have begun an integration
process that has significantly strengthened our market position in Europe. The merger with SBS
has made ProSiebenSat.1 a multinational media corporation with a broadly diversified portfolio.
Now, in Germany, our largest and most important market, we are in the process of setting our
course for the future. For that reason, toward the end of 2008 we began steps to pool operations in
our German Free TV and Sales units:

e The stations Sat.1, ProSieben and kabel eins will be combined in a matrix organization and
comprehensive multi-station departments for such tasks as scheduling, production
management, controlling and communications will be establishment. By June 2009, the
stations are to be combined under a single umbrella at the company’s headquarters in
Munich, and free TV station Sat.1 is to relocate from Berlin to Munich as well. The Sat.1
central editorial department will not be moving to Munich; in tandem with N24 it will provide
the Group’s journalistic center of competence in Berlin.

e All of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s holding-company functions in Germany will be
headquartered in Munich.

e Because of the rising demand for integrated advertising campaign concepts, the sales

companies SevenOne Media GmbH (TV) and SevenOne Interactive GmbH (Online) will be
combined.
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These changes will result in staff reductions of 225 jobs in Germany. Optimizing the setup of our
companies in Germany will enable us to make more efficient, more effective use of our resources.
At the same time, we will be better able to meet the market’'s needs thanks to a closer intermeshing
of know-how and creativity. The process is to be completed by June 30, 2009 at the latest.

5.4 Opportunity report

Digital evolution poses great challenges for media companies. But for a content provider like the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group, it most of all offers substantial growth opportunities, since attractive content
is the crucial factor for success in competing for audiences:

e Opportunities from the development of the business environment and performance
opportunities. Despite the wide variety of available media, television continues to exercise
an uninterrupted attraction. The example of Germany proves that television is the most
popular leisure pursuit, and reaches nearly three-quarters of the population every day.
Viewing time among the key demographic for private television — audiences between the
ages of 14 and 49 — remained stable at a high level in 2008 compared to 2007: the figure
for both years was 178 minutes a day. And it even rose among another important target
audience: heads of households between 14 and 49 watched TV for 229 minutes a day in
2007, and 231 minutes in 2008. Viewing time even increased three minutes a day for the
Internet-friendly audience between 14 and 29 (2007: 133 minutes/day; 2008: 136
minutes/day). Accordingly, the Internet is by no means taking away from television. The two
media are not cannibalizing one another — they complement each other. Our greatest
opportunity in the German TV advertising market — the most important single region for our
revenue performance — is to capitalize on our strong audience share to restore our share of
the German TV advertising market.

e Opportunities in corporate strategy. Our most important strategic goal will remain to
strengthen our core business in free TV and to focus on attractive programming content.
Integrating SBS expanded our portfolio of brands significantly and opened up interesting
new growth opportunities for our company. As Europe’s only fully integrated family of
broadcasters, we can make optimum use of synergies in such areas as programming
development. And we can also profit from economies of scale. Economies of scale will
especially result from multi-station production of programming content. Apart from
additional opportunities for multiple uses of content, the SBS merger gives us possibilities
for broader geographic diversification.

One important factor for future competitiveness will be to position the Group for the digital
world by adapting TV concepts to people’s changing media use habits. Another will be a
balanced revenue mix — meaning an optimum level of independence from individual
economic cycles and sources of revenue. For that reason, besides focusing clearly on our
core business in commercial television, we will continue diversifying our revenue model by
using digital media to extend our TV brands and by expanding our portfolio internationally.
ProSiebenSat.1 is setting an important milestone for growth in the digital age by upgrading
N24 to become Europe’s most up-to-date news station. By building a new playout center in
Munich and setting up a shared, tapeless pool of materials, ProSiebenSat.1 is setting new
standards, while at the same time systematically making use of openings to enhance
efficiency by centralizing various processes.
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ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft, Unterféhring

Balance sheet as of December 31, 2008

Assets
12/31/2008 12/31/2007
EUR EUR EUR EUR
A. Non-current assets
I. Intangible assets
1. Licenses, trademarks and patents as well as
licenses to such assets and rights 846,957.00 7,055,196.00
2. Advances paid on intangible assets 186,248.00 1,033,205.00 947,021.84 8,002,217.84

Property, plant and equipment

1. Buildings on land owned by others

2. Other equipment, fixtures,
furniture and equipment

3. Advances paid on tangible assets
under construction

Financial assets
1. Interests in group companies

26,054,803.51

1,241,653.00

408,219.48

5,722,207,558.92

27,704,675.99

24,139,977.51
1,238,679.00

0.00

6,020,141,700.59

25,378,656.51

2. Interests in associated companies 199,839.55 541,572.01
3. Long-term investments 6,058,888.94 5,506,538.91
4. Other loans 9,900,899.97 5,738,367,187.38 9,267,676.59 6,035,457,488.10
5,767,105,068.37 6,068,838,362.45
B. Current assets
I. Inventories
1. Raw materials and supplies 34,459.30 38,135.07
2. Trade materials 1,840.05 36,299.35 8,733.55 46,868.62
Il. Receivables and other current assets
1. Trade accounts receivable 5,953,262.55 4,487,944.81

2. Receivables from group companies

3. Receivables from companies in which
equity investments are held

4. Other assets

Marketable Securities
Treasury stock

Cash, cash at banks

511,922,090.62

414,673.70
94,712,545.54

613,002,572.41

2,536,875.00

503,996,599.65

528,665,916.96

580.05
88,352,289.43

621,506,731.25

0.00

84,387,074.57

1,119,572,346.41

705,940,674.44

C. Prepaid expenses and deferred items

34,206,934.85

41,308,122.57

6,920,884,349.63

6,816,087,159.46




Liabilities and shareholders' equity

12/31/2008

12/31/2007

A. Shareholders' equity

Subscribed capital
Capital reserves

Revenue reserves
Reserve for treasury stock

Retained earnings

EUR

218,797,200.00

580,187,621.96

2,536,875.00

1,899,900,657.51

EUR

218,797,200.00

580,187,621.96

0.00

3,105,742,800.31

2,701,422,354.47

3,904,727,622.27

B. Provisions

7,123,900.00
35,698,473.83
51,549,700.00

5,194,000.00
47,026,166.18
42,067,800.00

94,372,073.83

94,287,966.18

1. Pension provisions and similar obligations
2. Tax provisions
3. Other provisions
C. Liabilities
1. Liabilities to banks
2. Deposits received
3. Trade accounts payable
4. Liabilities to group companies
5. Other liabilities

--thereof for taxes EUR 26,445,823.61
(prior year EUR 43,909,475.59 )--

--thereof for social security EUR 3,957.75
(prior year EUR 1,975.05)--

2,576,845,198.60
231,795.92
79,198,140.12
1,439,083,806.81
29,730,979.88

2,078,095,030.67
236,897.96
48,354,130.25
644,111,833.10
46,273,679.03

4,125,089,921.33

2,817,071,571.01

6,920,884,349.63

6,816,087,159.46
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ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft, Unterféhring

Income statement for the period
from January 1 to December 31, 2008

2008 2007
EUR EUR EUR EUR
1. Revenues 7,621,242.12 5,858,149.92
2. Other operating income 116,462,851.00 94,346,169.18
3. Programming expenses
a) Cost of licenses, transmission fees
and materials 23,331,427.79 25,067,185.54
b) Cost of purchased services 990,224.26 24,321,652.05 601,145.31 25,668,330.85
4. Personnel expenses
a) Wages and salaries 37,452,954.11 37,305,352.17
b) Social security contributions and expenses
for pensions and other employee benefits 4,882,997.55 42,335,951.66  4,269,889.51 41,575,241.68
--of which of respect of old-age pensions
EUR 1,435,815.01 (prior year EUR 729,567.04)--
5. Amortization and depreciation of intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment 4,835,081.32 4,110,231.71
6. Other operating expenses 115,566,151.37 88,104,729.26
7. Income from equity investments 455,607.09 0.00
--of which from subsidiaries
EUR 455,607.09 (prior year EUR 0.00)--
8. Income from profit transfer agreements 376,292,028.94 487,098,230.45
9. Income from loans of financial assets 35,732.81 55,549.43
10. Other interest and similar income 19,082,944.61 11,908,839.89
--of which from subsidiaries
EUR 9,138,586.52 (prior year EUR 5,866,670.87)--
11. Write-down of financial assets and 314,383,622.22 0.00
marketable securities
12. Expenses from loss absorption 724,666,967.66 105,913,969.99
13. Interest and similar expenses 184,521,171.01 102,783,103.35
--of which to subsidiaries
EUR 17,413,418.08 (prior year EUR 17,671,240.70)--
14. Income from ordinary business activities -890,680,190.72 231,111,332.03
15. Extraordinary income 0.00 2,851,761,044.68
16. Extraordinary expenses 0.00 2,786,938.24
17. Extraordinary result 0.00 2,848,974,106.44
18. Income taxes 42,705,096.08 126,965,034.33
19. Other taxes 20,828.00 25,934.12
20. Loss for the year (prior year profit for the year) -933,406,114.80 2,953,094,470.02
21. Profit brought forward from the prior year 2,835,843,647.31 152,648,330.29
22. Allocation to the reserve for own shares 2,536,875.00 0.00
23. Retained earnings 1,899,900,657.51 3,105,742,800.31
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ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, Unterféhring

Financial Statements as of December 31, 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements
for fiscal 2008

Basis and Methodology

The financial statements of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG were prepared in compliance with the

requirements of the German Commercial Code and the German Stock Corporation Act.
The applied accounting policies have not changed from the prior year.

In the income statement, the historically employed cost of production method has been re-

tained.

As a large corporation as defined under Sec. 267 (3) of the German Commercial Code, the

Company has prepared a management report in compliance with Sec. 289 of that Code.
Accounting Policies

Acquired intangible assets are capitalized at the acquisition cost less scheduled amortization
and, where applicable, unscheduled write-downs. The intangible assets comprise software,
intellectual property rights, and advance payments made on intangible assets. Purchased
software is amortized as a rule on a straight-line basis over three to five years. Licenses and
other intellectual property rights are amortized on a straight-line basis over ten years or over

the term of the license agreement.

Property, plant and equipment are valued at cost, less scheduled depreciation based on
wear and tear and, if necessary, unscheduled write-downs. Economic goods with acquisition
costs of up to EUR 150 are recognized in full as operating expenses in the year of acquisi-
tion. Economic goods with values between EUR 150 and EUR 1,000 have been combined
into a single item as of January 1, 2008, which will be depreciated on a straight-line basis

over five years.



Buildings on land not owned by the Company, as well as fixtures and renovations, are de-
preciated over their normal useful life or, if shorter, the term of the lease. Office furniture and
equipment is depreciated over a term of three to 20 years, depending on the item in ques-

tion.

Unscheduled write-downs on property, plant and equipment are taken if a permanent im-
pairment of value can be expected. Unscheduled write-downs of EUR 1,246 thousand (vs.

EUR 0) were taken on property, plant and equipment during the year under review.

Financial assets are reported at their acquisition cost or the lower fair value. They are meas-
ured on the basis of projections for 2009 through 2013. To determine the contribution for the
terminal value (value added from fiscal 2014 onward), sustained cash flows with a company-
specific growth rate of 1.0 to 1.5 percent are assumed. The growth rate reflects the long-term
expectations for each asset. The discounting principles are determined on the basis of com-
pany-specific costs of capital. These yield after-tax discount rates of 8.25 to 8.46 percent.

The plausibility of the calculated values is checked on the basis of sensitivity analyses.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or fair value.

In the valuation of receivables and other current assets, adequate allowances have been
made to cover known risks through individual valuation adjustments and general provisions
for doubtful debts.

Treasury stock is measured at the lower of cost or market as of the reporting date, in accor-

dance with Sec. 253 (3) Sentence 1 of the German Commercial Code.

Credit balances at banks and liabilities to banks are shown at their nominal value. Credit bal-

ances and liabilities in foreign currencies are converted at the rate as of the reporting date.

The item for expenses paid in advance pertains to amounts paid prior to the reporting date

for expenses extending for a certain time beyond that date.

Pension provisions were measured using the actuarial net present value (“Teilwert”) on the
basis of the 2005G guideline tables prepared by Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck, with an interest

rate of 6 percent.

Provisions were set aside in the amounts deemed necessary in compliance with prudent

business practices.



ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has granted stock options to certain employees. These option
commitments are met at the time of exercise with stock that the Company acquires on the
market. Options can generally be measured either with an option pricing model or at intrinsic
value. ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has chosen to measure them at intrinsic value. In this case,
an outstanding settlement amount accrues over the vesting period, since the options cannot
be exercised until their exercise date, and consideration has already been received in the
form of the employee’s work. Accordingly, at each balance sheet date a determination must
be made of what would have to be performed in the event of exercise. The payment of the
outstanding settlement amount is expressed in the intrinsic value, i.e., the trading price of the

shares on the reporting date less the exercise price of the option.

Liabilities are reported at their nominal value, or at the appropriate higher repayment value.

To hedge risks posed by changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates, ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG uses derivative financial instruments in the form of interest rate swaps, for-
ward exchange transactions (“forwards”) and currency options. Interest rate risks result from
liabilities carrying variable interest rates; foreign exchange risks are incurred primarily

through license payments denominated in U.S. dollars.

Market values for forwards and interest rate swaps are measured using the discounted cash
flow method. Market values for currency options are measured using the option pricing for-

mula of Black and Scholes.

Purchased currency options are initially capitalized as Other Assets at the amount of their

option premium, and subsequently capitalized at market value.

At the inception of a hedge, comprehensive documentation of the hedging relationship is
required, including a description of such matters as the associated risk management strategy
and objectives in undertaking the hedge. Wherever possible, the underlying transactions and
hedges are gathered and managed in what are known as “hedge books.” The effectiveness
of the hedging relationship is measured at regular intervals. If a hedging relationship is or

has become inappropriate, the hedge is cancelled.

Receivables in foreign currency are converted at the selling rate on the booking date or at
the year-end rate, if the latter is higher. Liabilities in foreign currency are converted at the

buying rate on the booking date or at the year-end rate, if the latter is lower.



Notes to the Balance Sheet

Non-current Assets

Changes in non-current assets can be found in the appended statement of changes in non-

current assets.

The intangible asset item for licenses, trademarks and patents, as well as licenses to such
assets and rights, decreased EUR 6,208 thousand, to EUR 847 thousand. The reason was
the sale of software at market value to P7S1 Applications GmbH, a subsidiary of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG.

Financial Investments

Affiliated companies are listed at the end of these Notes.

Because of lower fair values, for 2008 unscheduled write-downs of EUR 160,000 thousand
were taken on the carrying amount of the Company’s ownership interest in German Free TV
Holding GmbH, the holding company for the stations in German-language free TV opera-
tions, and EUR 140,000 thousand on the carrying amount of the ownership interest in 9Live

Fernsehen GmbH.

Receivables and Other Current Assets

Remaining term Total Total
1 year or

less more than 1 year 12/31/08 12/31/07

EUR kK EUR k EUR kK EUR k
Trade accounts receivable 5,953 0 5,953 4,488
Receivables from affiliated companies 511,922 0 511,922 528,666

Receivables from entities in which the Company holds

interests of 20% or more 415 0 415 1
Other assets 70,748 23,965 94,713 88,352
Total 589,038 23,965 613,003 621,507




Receivables from affiliated companies primarily refer to receivables under profit and loss
transfer agreements, particularly with German Free TV Holding GmbH, and loan receivables

from affiliated companies.

Aside from advance payments on the purchase of programming assets, which decreased
from EUR 50,753 thousand to EUR 42,285 thousand as of the reporting date, the other as-
sets particularly include corporate income tax credits of EUR 27,983 thousand (vs. EUR
22,096 thousand). These credits are capitalized in compliance with the Act on Tax Measures
Accompanying the Introduction of the “European Company” and Amending Further Tax
Regulations, enacted by the German Bundestag on November 9, 2006. This Act requires
corporate income tax credits to be paid out to the applicable corporation in ten equal annual
installments over a ten-year disbursement period from 2008 to 2017. The refund entitlement
arose upon calculation of the corporate income tax credit as of December 31, 2006. Since a
distribution resolution is no longer required for an entitlement to a corporate income tax re-
fund, the general provisions of Sec. 246 et seq. of the German Commercial Code on recogni-
tion of an “other current asset” apply. These provisions require the present value of the re-

fund entitlement from the 2006 tax assessment to be capitalized at December 31, 2008.

Treasury Shares

At the Shareholders’ Meeting of May 13, 2005, the shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media
AG authorized the Company for the first time to buy back its own stock. The authorization
allowed the Company to acquire its own common and/or preferred stock on or before No-
vember 12, 2006, up to a notional value of 10 percent of the Company’s share capital at the
time of the authorization. This authorization for the Company to acquire its own stock was
replaced by a new authorization at the shareholders’ meeting on July 17, 2007. The Com-
pany was authorized to acquire its own common and/or preferred stock on or before January
16, 2009, up to a total notional value of 10 percent of the Company’s share capital at the time
of the authorization.



The Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG exercised this authorization, and on
March 4, 2008, decided to buy back a total of 1,127,500 bearer shares of non-voting pre-
ferred stock on the open market. The repurchased stock is intended primarily to service stock

options under the Long Term Incentive Plan.

The buy-back was carried out in a number of segments between March 7 and April 3, 2008.
A total of 1,127,500 bearer shares were bought for a total of EUR 15,106 thousand, equiva-
lent to 0.52 percent of the share capital. Each share has a notional value of EUR 1.00 of the

share capital.

The valuation of the treasury stock at the trading price as of the reporting date yielded a
write-down of EUR 12,569 thousand, to EUR 2,537 thousand.

The authorization for the Company to acquire its own stock was replaced by a new authori-
zation at the shareholders’ meeting on June 10, 2008. The Company is authorized to acquire
its own common and/or preferred stock on or before December 9, 2009, up to a total notional
value of 10 percent of the Company’s share capital at the time of the authorization. The June
10 authorization may be exercised by the Executive Board for any legal purpose, especially

in pursuit of the objectives stated in the authorization resolution itself.

Expenses Paid in Advance

This item decreased from EUR 41,308 thousand to EUR 34,207 thousand. The principal rea-
son was the scheduled reduction of bank fees from the financing taken out for the acquisition
of the SBS Broadcasting Group, which are included in this item and are amortized over the

life of the loans.



Shareholders’ Equity

Changes in Equity in Fiscal 2008

Subscribed capital Reserve for
Common Preferred Capital treasury Distributable

stock stock reserves stock net profit Total equity

EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k

December 31, 2007 109,398.6 109,398.6 580,187.6 0.0 3,105,742.8 3,904,727.6

Dividends paid - - - - -269,899.1 -269,899.1

Loss for the year - - - - -933,406.1 -933,406.1

Allocation to reserve for 2,536.9 -2,536.9 0.0
treasury stock

December 31, 2008 109,398.6 109,398.6 580,187.6 2,536.9 1,899,900.7 2,701,422.4

Subscribed capital

At year’s end, the subscribed capital of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG was unchanged at EUR
218,797,200. This capital is divided into 109,398,600 registered shares of common stock
with no par value, and 109,398,600 nonvoting bearer shares of preferred stock with no par
value, each share representing a notional value of EUR 1.00 of the share capital. Thus, as
of December 31, 2008, the number of shares outstanding was 218,797,200, of which the
Company itself held 1,127,500.

Capital reserves
Capital reserves were unchanged at EUR 580,188 thousand. These reserves include premi-

ums from the new stock issue in fiscal 1997 and the capital increase in 2004.

Reserve for treasury stock

Under the authorization to acquire treasury stock under the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting of July 17, 2007, the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG resolved on
March 4, 2008, to buy back a total of 1,127,500 bearer shares of nonvoting preferred stock

on the market.

The buy-back was carried out in a number of segments between March 7 and April 3, 2008.

In accordance with Sec. 272 (4) of the German Commercial Code, a reserve for treasury



stock of EUR 2,537 thousand has been recognized in equity. The amount of the reserve is

the same as the amount shown for treasury stock on the assets side of the balance sheet.

Allocation of profits

Last fiscal year, under a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting of July 10, 2008, a dividend
of EUR 269,899 thousand was paid out to holders of preferred and common stock, out of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s 2007 distributable net profit of EUR 3,105,743 thousand. This
figure represents a payout of EUR 1.25 per bearer share of preferred stock, and EUR 1.23

per registered share of common stock.

In accordance with the German Stock Corporation Act, the dividend payable to shareholders
depends on the distributable net profit shown in the annual financial statements of ProSie-
benSat.1 Media AG. The Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG will propose that the
distributable net profit of EUR 1,899,901 thousand for fiscal 2008 should be allocated as fol-

lows:

Distribution of a dividend of EUR 0.02
per bearer share of preferred stock: EUR 2,165,422.00

Balance to be carried forward to the
new accounting period EUR 1,897,735,235.51

Distributable net profit EUR 1,899,900,657.51

The treasury stock held by ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is excluded from dividend distributions

in accordance with Sec. 71b of the German Stock Corporations Act.

Authorized Capital

By a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting on June 16, 2003, the Executive Board was
authorized, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, to increase the Company’s
capital stock on one or more occasions on or before June 15, 2008, by a total of not more
than EUR 97,243,200.00, by issuing new registered shares of common stock and new bearer
shares of preferred stock in return for cash contributions, in the same proportion as existed
between the two categories of stock at the time of the new issue in question. The new shares
were to carry an entitlement to participate in profits as of the beginning of the fiscal year in

which they were issued. After exercising this capital authorization in the capital increase reg-



istered on April 6, 2004, the Executive Board was authorized to increase the Company’'s
capital stock on one or more occasions on or before June 15, 2008, subject to approval by
the Supervisory Board, by a total of not more than EUR 72,932,400.00, in return for cash

contributions, by issuing new stock in accordance with the above shareholder resolution.

In order to meet the needs of the Company and the capital market flexibly in the future as
well, the Executive Board was authorized by a unanimous resolution of the shareholders’
meeting of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG on May 7, 2004, after the suspension of the former
authorized capital, to increase the Company’s share capital on one or more occasions on or
before May 6, 2009, subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, by not more than EUR
97,243,200.00, in return for contributions in cash and/or in kind, by issuing not more than
97,243,200 no-par shares of stock. The new shares will be entitled to participate in profits as
of the beginning of the fiscal year in which they are issued. This authorization also includes
the authorization to issue new preferred shares that take precedence over or have the same

priority as previously issued preferred shares in the distribution of profits or the Company’s

assets.
Provisions
12/31/08 12/31/07
EUR kK EUR k

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 7,124 5,194
Tax provisions 35,698 47,026
Interest on tax liabilities 16,336 11,729
Provisions for outstanding invoices 15,834 11,185
Provisions for severance and one-time payments 6,800 5,228
Other miscellaneous provisions 12,580 13,926
Total 94,372 94,288

Pension provisions were formed for obligations to provide future benefits for current and for-
mer members of the Executive Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and their survivors.
These obligations were measured using the biometric calculation data provided in the 2005G
guideline tables prepared by Prof. Dr. Klaus Heubeck. In calculating pension expenses,
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG takes account of the expected service cost and the accrued inter-
est on the pension obligations. The interest expense for pension obligations is reported as
part of the net interest expense. The measurement date for the present value of obligations

is December 31. Pension payments of EUR 80 thousand were made in fiscal 2008.



The tax provisions were formed primarily for corporate income tax and local business income

taxes. The potential impact of a current tax audit has been taken into account.

The provisions for interest on tax liabilities pertain to future tax payments from external tax

audits.

Because of a higher figure for services not yet billed and paid for, the provision for out-

standing invoices increased to EUR 15,834 thousand.

As part of the strategic reorganization of the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s German stations, the
Group will move out of its Berlin site. A total of EUR 4,220 thousand was allocated to provi-
sions for severance and one-time payments for the affected employees at ProSiebenSat.1

Media AG’s administrative departments in Berlin.

The largest single items among the other miscellaneous provisions were provisions for con-
tingent losses on pending forward exchange contracts (EUR 2,523 thousand), and Chamber

of Industry and Commerce contributions (EUR 1,299 thousand).

Because of the lower trading price of ProSiebenSat.1 stock, remeasurement of the provision
for the stock option plan at December 31, 2008, resulted in a write-back of the remaining

amount of the provision, equal to EUR 1,533 thousand.

Liabilities
Remaining
term
Total Total
1 year or less 1to 5years over 5years 12/31/08 12/31/07
EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k
Liabilities to banks
a) Borrowings 497,240 0 2,064,718 2,561,958 2,064,718
b) Interest liabilities 14,887 0 0 14,887 13,377
Advance payments re-
ceived 232 0 0 232 237
Trade accounts payable 79,198 0 0 79,198 48,354
Liabilities to affiliated com-
panies 1,439,084 0 0 1,439,084 644,112
Miscellaneous liabilities 29,731 0 0 29,731 46,274
Total 2,060,372 0 2,064,718 4,125,090 2,817,072




Liabilities to banks derive from the financing taken out for the acquisition of the SBS Broad-
casting Group in 2007. The transaction was financed entirely out of a new secured syndi-
cated line of credit totaling EUR 3.6 billion, furnished by a banking syndicate and institutional

investors.

The increase of EUR 497,240 thousand in liabilities to banks for borrowings, to EUR
2,561,958 thousand, resulted from draws on the revolving credit facility up to December 31,
2008.

ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has hedged some 85 percent of its variable-interest financial li-
abilities by way of a variety of interest-rate swaps. Under the loan agreement, ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG has pledged as security equity interests in various subsidiaries categorized
as significant. Additionally, various Group companies under ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG also

furnished guarantees to the lenders.

As of December 31, 2008, accrued interest liabilities of EUR 14,887 thousand (vs. EUR
13,377 thousand) were reclassified from the miscellaneous liabilities item to liabilities to

banks. The prior-year figures have been adjusted accordingly.

Trade accounts payable increased EUR 30,844 thousand, simply as a consequence of the
cutoff date for reporting, to EUR 79,198 thousand.

Liabilities to affiliated companies are primarily profit and loss transfer obligations toward
P7S1 Erste SBS Holding GmbH, loan obligations to SBS Finance B.V., of Amsterdam, and

internal offsets for services with Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH.

The largest item in miscellaneous liabilities is tax liabilities of EUR 26,446 thousand (vs. EUR
43,904 thousand). The accrued interest liabilities of EUR 13,377 thousand included under
this item in the financial statements as of December 31, 2007, were reclassified as liabilities
to banks as of December 31, 2008.



Contingent Liabilities

12/31/08 12/31/07
EUR k EUR k
Contingent liabilities from guarantees 5,885* 41,784
(amounts due to affiliated companies) (1,348) (39,516)
Liability for provision of collateral for outside liabilities 1,490,020 1,529,417

*)

Includes an appeal bond furnished by Commerzbank AG for an amount of EUR 4,537 thousand, which was

increased to EUR 6,805 thousand, effective January 1, 2009, by an agreement with HypoVereinsbank AG dated

November 18, 2008.

The liability for provision of collateral for outside liabilities pertains to guarantees and collat-

eral furnished in connection with loans to SBS Broadcasting Group companies under the

loan agreement signed in 2007.

Other Financial Obligations

Remaining term Remaining term Remaining term Total

1 year 2to 5years over 5 years
EUR k EUR k EUR k EUR k
Programming assets 358,382 1,059,419 103,092 1,520,893
(amounts due to affiliated companies) 0) 0) 0) (0)
Use fees 24,099 78,185 67,262 169,546
(amounts due to affiliated companies) 0) 0) 0) (0)
Leasing and rental commitments 19,241 66,911 98,324 184,476
(amounts due to affiliated companies) 0) 0) 0) (0)
Other liabilities 8,417 8,420 3 16,480
(amounts due to affiliated companies) 0) 0) 0) (0)
Total 410,139 1,212,935 268,681 1,891,755

Other financial obligations exist in addition to provisions, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

These derive from contractual agreements entered into before December 31, 2008, and per-

tain to payment obligations due on or after January 1, 2009. The agreements have remaining

terms of between 1 and 15 years.



Other financial obligations for programming assets pertain to license agreements that take

effect on or after January 1, 20009.

Use fees include financial obligations for satellite rental, obligations under contracts for ter-

restrial transmission facilities, and cable feed charges.

Leasing and rental commitments comprise obligations under leases for buildings and motor

vehicles, along with rent obligations under building leases.

Other liabilities essentially comprise financial obligations for memberships and for other third-

party service agreements.



Notes to the Income Statement

Revenues
2008 2007
EUR k EUR k
Other revenues 7,621 5,858

Revenues are generated for the most part in Germany and the rest of Europe, and derive

primarily from the sale of ancillary programming rights.

Because the Company functions as a holding company, no further breakdown of revenues

by business segment or geographic segment has been provided.

Other Operating Income

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Income relating to other periods 6,723 14,239
Other operating income 109,740 80,107
Total 116,463 94,346

Income relating to other periods comprises, in particular, income of EUR 6,314 thousand
from write-backs of provisions (vs. EUR 13,219 thousand for the prior year), including EUR
2,352 thousand (vs. EUR 483 thousand) from write-backs of provisions for outstanding in-
voices, EUR 1,596 thousand (vs. EUR 12 thousand) from write-backs of provisions for con-
tingent losses on derivatives, and EUR 1,533 thousand from write-backs of the provision for

the stock option plan (vs. EUR 11,820 thousand for the prior year).

Other operating income particularly includes income from services charged to other Group

companies.



Programming and Material Costs

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Licenses, transmission fees and materials 23,332 25,067
Purchased services 990 601
Total 24,322 25,668

Expenses for licenses, transmission fees and materials include transmission fee expenses of
EUR 12,814 thousand (vs. EUR 13,089 thousand) and satellite rental of EUR 8,270 thou-

sand (vs. EUR 10,372 thousand). Transmission fee expenses and satellite rent are passed

on to other companies within the Group.

Expenses for purchased services are largely expenses for intra-Group services (EUR 571

thousand, vs. EUR 39 thousand) and for services provided by third parties, in the amount of

EUR 372 thousand (vs. EUR 553 thousand).

Personnel Expenses

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Wages and salaries 37,453 37,305
Social security contributions and expenses for pensions 4,883 4,270
Total 42,336 41,575

Personnel expenses include expenses of EUR 4,220 thousand in severance payments re-

sulting from the relocation from Berlin (vs. EUR 0 thousand), as well as an allocation of EUR

1,436 thousand to pension provisions (vs. EUR 730 thousand).



Depreciation and Amortization

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Scheduled amortization of intangible assets 1,096 1,751
Scheduled depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,493 2,359
Unscheduled depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,246 0
Total 4,835 4,110

The unscheduled depreciation relates to tenant installations at the Berlin site, which the

Company will vacate in 2009.

Other Operating Expenses

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Expenses relating to other periods 1,128 8
Other operating expenses 114,438 88,097
Total 115,566 88,105

The expenses relating to other periods consist of expenses of EUR 796 thousand (vs. EUR O
thousand) for past fiscal years and losses of EUR 332 thousand (vs. EUR 8 thousand) on
disposals of property, plant and equipment resulting from inventory adjustments.

The remaining other operating expenses primarily comprise charges passed on from Group
companies (EUR 28,912 thousand, vs. EUR 21,133 thousand), legal and other consulting
costs (EUR 23,782 thousand, vs. EUR 12,077 thousand), rental and other office expenses
(EUR 19,717 thousand vs. EUR 17,819 thousand), allocations to individual write-downs on
receivables and other assets (EUR 4,127 thousand, vs. EUR 6 thousand), maintenance ex-
penses (EUR 3,961 thousand, vs. EUR 2,501 thousand), and film promotion (EUR 3,861
thousand, vs. EUR 6,620 thousand).



Financial Result

2008 2007
EUR k EUR k
Income from equity investments 456 0
Income from profit transfer agreements 376.292 487.098
Income from loans or financial assets 36 56
Other interest and similar income 19.083 11.909
Write-down of financial assets and
marketable securities -314.384 0
Expenses from loss absorption -724.667 -105.914
Interest and similar expenses -184.521 -102.783
Total -827.705 290.366

The EUR 36 thousand in income from loans of financial assets (vs. EUR 56 thousand) pri-
marily consists of interest income from fund shares held as financial assets, which underlie
future payment obligations under pension commitments to members of the Executive Board.

Expenses due to transfers of losses primarily result from the losses at P7S1 Erste SBS
Holding GmbH (EUR 556,009 thousand) and P7S1 Zweite SBS Holding GmbH (EUR
139,007 thousand). Both companies together hold all of P7S1 Broadcasting S.a r.l., of Lux-
embourg, the holding company of the SBS companies. Because of the lower fair value of the
SBS Group, unscheduled write-downs on the carrying amounts of ownership interests were
taken for 2008, amounting to EUR 556,000 thousand at P7S1 Erste SBS Holding GmbH and

EUR 139,000 thousand at P7S1 Zweite SBS Holding GmbH.



Write-down of financial assets and marketabel securities

2008 2007

EUR k EUR k
Write-down of interests in group companies 300.000 0
Write-down of interests in associated companies 342 0
Write-down of long term investments 1.473 0
Write-down of treasury shares 12.569 0
Total 314.384 0

Because of lower fair values, for 2008 unscheduled write-downs of EUR 160,000 thousand
were taken on the carrying amount of the Company’s ownership interest in German Free TV
Holding GmbH, the holding company for the stations in German-language free TV opera-
tions, and EUR 140,000 thousand on the carrying amount of the ownership interest in 9Live

Fernsehen GmbH.

Insolvency proceedings were initiated against the assets of Smart Point Media AG, of Hurth,
Germany, on June 26, 2008. ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG’s ownership interest in this company

was written off in full (EUR 342 thousand).

The fair valuation of fund shares shown among securities in noncurrent investments as of the

balance sheet date resulted in a write-down of EUR 1,473 thousand (vs. EUR 0 thousand).

In 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG acquired a total of 1,127,500 bearer shares for a total
price of EUR 15,106 thousand. The measurement of these shares at the trading price as of

the reporting date yielded a write-down of EUR 12,569 thousand.

Interest and similar expenses include interest on an allocation of EUR 274 thousand to pen-

sion provisions (vs. EUR 144 thousand).



Extraordinary result

The extraordinary result of EUR 2.849 million in 2007 resulted from the income that derived
from the contribution of the stations ProSieben Television GmbH, Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen
GmbH, Kabel 1 K1 Fernsehen GmbH and N24 Gesellschaft fir Nachrichten und Zeitgesche-
hen mbH to German Free TV Holding GmbH at fair value, with undisclosed reserves found.

No extraordinary result is reported for fiscal 2008.

Income Taxes

Income taxes decreased from EUR 126,965 thousand to EUR 42,705 thousand in fiscal

2008. The figure for income tax includes the impact of the current tax audit.



Other Information

Average Number of Employees during the Year

2008 2007
Employees 373.5 383.8
Trainees, volunteers and interns 41.8 42.3
Total 415.3 426.1

The former reporting of employee numbers in full-time equivalent positions was converted in
the financial statements as of December 31, 2008, to the actual number of persons em-

ployed. The comparable figures for the prior year have been adjusted accordingly.

Professional Fees of the Independent Auditor

The professional fees for the services of the independent auditor, KPMG, totaled EUR 1,780
thousand for fiscal 2008 (vs. EUR 2,027 thousand). Of the total, EUR 677 thousand was for
audit fees (vs. EUR 463 thousand in 2007), EUR 551 thousand was for audit-related fees
(vs. EUR 368 thousand), EUR 10 thousand was for tax consulting services (vs. EUR 51
thousand), and EUR 542 thousand was for other fees (vs. EUR 1,145 thousand).

Derivative Financial Instruments

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s operations and financing needs expose it to various financial
risks. Fluctuating interest rates and foreign exchange rates may affect the Group’s assets
and liabilities, financial position, and profit or loss. The acquisition of the SBS Group in fiscal
year 2007 has significantly altered the Corporation’s risk structure. Interest rate risks in par-
ticular have risen. Financial risks are managed and monitored centrally at ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG as a part of financial risk management. For the Group’s German-speaking regions,
the principles, duties and responsibilities of financial risk management are governed by the
Group'’s internal corporate financial guidelines. One of the primary tasks for fiscal 2008 was
to fully integrate the SBS Broadcasting Group into the ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s financial risk
management system, and to incorporate it into Group-wide regulations. The objective of fi-
nancial risk management is to cushion the adverse effects that fluctuations in financial risk

factors may have on the Company’s assets and liabilities, financial position and profit or loss.



The derivative financial instruments employed for this purpose serve solely to hedge existing
risk positions, not for speculation. Risk positions are assessed regularly, and existing risks
are quantified using sensitivity analyses. Currency risks are based on an assumed apprecia-
tion of 10 percent in the value of the U.S. dollar. The ProSiebenSat.1 Group’s interest rate
risk is calculated by increasing the relevant interest rates by one percentage point. The

ProSiebenSat.1 Group does not believe it is exposed to any material concentrations of risk.

The ProSiebenSat.1 Group signs a substantial number of its license agreements with pro-
duction studios in the United States. As a rule, the Group meets its financial obligations de-
riving from these programming rights purchases in U.S. dollars. Consequently fluctuations in
the exchange rate between the euro and the dollar may adversely affect the ProSiebenSat.1
Group'’s financial position and profit or loss. Receivables and liabilities in other foreign cur-

rencies, or for other purposes, were omitted because of their minor volume (less than 0.5%).

To hedge against fluctuations in exchange rates, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG enters into for-

ward exchange contracts (“forwards”) and currency options.

Year of maturity Nominal amount Market value

2009 2010-2013 2014 and after as of 12/31/2008 as of 12/31/2008

USD k USD k USD k USD k EUR k

Currency forwards 236,117 556,570 37,000 829,687 11,679
Currency options 9,500 29,000 0 38,500 2,106

Forwards are unconditional contractual agreements to exchange two currencies. The total
par value, exchange rate and maturity date are specified when the contract is entered into.
As of December 31, 2008, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG had forwards with a total nominal value
of USD 829.7 million in its portfolio. As of the same date, it had options for the purchase of
dollars covering a total nominal value of USD 38.5 million. As the purchaser of a currency
option, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has the right, but not the obligation, to buy U.S. dollars for
euros in return for paying an option premium. As with a forward, in a currency option the total
nominal value, exchange rate and maturity date are also laid down at the time the contract is
made. Market values for forwards are measured using the discounted cash flow method.

Market values for currency options are measured using the option pricing formula of Black



and Scholes. Differences may arise where other methods are used. Measurement was

based on market figures (mid-rates) on December 31, 2008.

Because of the crisis in the financial markets and market uncertainty, other fair values may
be realizable on the market. However, there is no intent to square positions, since the trans-

actions are for hedging purposes.

License payments on a hedged dollar-denominated license agreement, together with the
associated hedging instruments, are gathered and managed primarily in what are known as
“hedge books” if the hedging relationship qualifies as a hedge and hedge accounting can be
applied. As of December 31, 2008, there were 15 hedge books covering a total of USD 1,151
million in pending license payments. The average hedge ratio varies from one defined hedge
book to another. As a rule the hedge ratio is between 60 percent and 80 percent. A separate
hedging strategy is developed for each portfolio on the basis of current market assessments
and the overall risk position. The hedge books are constantly monitored under a system of
limits, and any applicable open positions are closed to stop potential losses or take advan-

tage of a favorable change in exchange rates.

No hedge accounting was applied for a portion of the foreign-currency liabilities in U.S. dol-
lars. In these cases, liabilities for pending license payments came to USD 105 million at De-
cember 31, 2008.

The average hedge ratio at December 31, 2008, allowing for internal limit systems, was 71

percent.

Interest rate risks

Through its financial obligations, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is exposed to an interest rate
risk. The acquisition of the SBS Broadcasting Group was financed entirely through a new
loan agreement. The loan agreement covers a number of term loans totaling EUR 1.8 billion,
with a term of seven years (Term Loan B) and loans for a total of another EUR 1.8 billion with
a term of eight years (Term Loan C). Through these variable-interest financial obligations,
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is exposed to an increased interest rate risk. For that reason,
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG has hedged 85 percent of this liability with interest-rate swaps. In
interest rate swaps, variable-rate interest payments are exchanged for fixed-rate interest
payments. Uncertain, variable-rate interest payments on the borrowings described above are

compensated and replaced with fixed-rate interest payments. Market values for interest rate



swaps are measured using the discounted cash flow method. The interest rate swaps total
EUR 2.8 billion, with an average fixed rate of 4.574 percent. The swaps have terms of 3.5

years for a total of EUR 1.2 billion and 5.5 years for a total of EUR 1.8 billion.

The remaining variable interest rate risk results not only from the unhedged portion of the
term loan, but also from any draws the Group may take on its revolving credit facility. As of
December 31, 2008, EUR 540.6 million had been drawn on this credit facility. An interest rate
risk in the sense of a change in market value is of no relevance here, since ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG’s financial liabilities are reported at cost, and thus any change in market value will

have no effect on the balance sheet.

Executive Board and Supervisory Board
The members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG

are listed at the end of these Notes.

Details of the system of compensation for members of the Executive Board and the Supervi-
sory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG are explained in the section on “The Group and Its

Environment” in the Management Report.

Compensation paid to current and former members of the Executive Board of ProSieben-
Sat.1 Media AG came to EUR 8,052 thousand in 2008 (vs. EUR 5,983 thousand in 2007).
The Board’s compensation included a variable component totaling EUR 2,834 thousand (vs.
EUR 2,765 thousand). In past fiscal years, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG set aside pension pro-
visions totaling EUR 7,124 thousand for pension commitments to members of the Executive
Board. Pension payments of EUR 80 thousand were made in fiscal 2008. Funds have been
endowed to safeguard these pension provisions. Members of the Executive Board received
EUR 0 thousand for buy-backs of stock options (vs. EUR 8,999 thousand).

The Company has not granted loans to members of the Executive Board, nor has it under-

taken suretyships or guarantees on their behalf.

A resolution by the shareholders’ meeting of August 2, 2006, released the Company from the
statutory obligation to disclose the individual compensation of Executive Board members in
the annual financial statements for a period of five years. However, this resolution of the
shareholders’ meeting poses no obstacle to the voluntary disclosure of individual Board
members’ compensation otherwise. The Executive Board and Supervisory Board have de-

cided to exercise this option of voluntary disclosure in the compensation report for 2008,



which is included in the Corporate Governance Report of the Executive Board and Supervi-
sory Board. That report therefore states figures for the compensation paid to individual mem-

bers of the Company’s Executive Board for the past fiscal year.

Expenses for the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG came to EUR 1,736 thou-
sand in the year under review (vs. EUR 1,859 thousand). The members of the Supervisory
Board receive a fixed compensation. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory
Board each receive twice the amount of this fixed base figure. Members of the Supervisory
Board’s committees are compensated with a separate meeting honorarium, payable for par-
ticipating at each committee meeting. Committee chairs receive twice the standard meeting
honorarium. The compensation of the Supervisory Board is set in the Articles of Incorpora-
tion of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

The compensation paid individually to current and former members of the Supervisory Board

is as follows:

Current Members of the Supervisory Board ‘

Compensation
Bell-Jones, Robin 118
Dyke, Greg 105
Dziarski, Stefan 56
Freise, Philipp 115
Gorenflos, Reinhard 33
Hollick, Lord Clive 190
Huth, Johannes 131
Krenz, Thomas 100
Mauser, Gotz 233
Roéttele, Christoph 18
Scheiber, Silke 56
Sloan, Harry 100
Swartjes, Adrianus Johannes 104
van Lent, Marinus Maria Petrus 100
Wiedmann, Prof. Dr. Harald 118




Former members of the Supervisory Board ‘

Compensation
Dopfner, Dr. Matthias 4
Neubiirger, Heinz-Joachim 67
Nienhaus, Christian 4
Wehr-Seiter, Katrin 84

Members of the Supervisory Board received no remuneration or other consideration for per-
sonal services, especially consulting and mediation services, during fiscal 2008. Altogether,
the current members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board held 202,500 shares of
preferred stock in ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of December 31, 2008. This is equivalent to

0.1 percent of the Company’s share capital.

Corporate Governance

On the basis of the recommendations of the Government Commission on the German Cor-
porate Governance Code and the applicable terms of law under Sec. 161 of the Stock Cor-
poration Act, in March 2008 the Executive Board and Supervisory Board issued a Declara-
tion of Compliance, which has been made permanently available to shareholders on the

Internet at www.prosiebensatl.com.

Related Party Transactions

Apart from the subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements, in the course of
its normal business operations ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG conducts transactions directly or
indirectly with affiliated unconsolidated companies and associated companies. In ordinary
business activities, all transactions with companies not included in the scope of consolidation
were conducted on prevailing market terms and conditions, such as are also customary with
third parties unrelated to the Group. All related parties that are controlled by ProSiebenSat.1
Media AG, or over which the Group may exercise a significant influence, are listed among

the shareholdings at the end of these Notes.

Effective September 1, 2007, ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG signed a services management
agreement for business services with Lavena Holding 1 GmbH, , Lavena Holding 4 GmbH
and Lavena Holding 5 GmbH jointly. The agreed compensation is consistent with the prevail-

ing market terms for comparable services. Lavena Holding 1 GmbH and Lavena Holding 4



GmbH are indirect majority shareholders of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and Lavena Holding
5 GmbH is the direct majority shareholder of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG.

During fiscal 2008, the wife of former Executive Board member Peter Christmann (Mr.
Christmann left the Board during the year) provided services to various companies in the
ProSiebenSat.1 Group for a charge of EUR 160 thousand. These were training and coaching
services for on-air personalities. As of December 31, 2008, there was no amount outstanding

for these services.

Harry Evans Sloan is a member of the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and
the Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO of Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Holdings, Inc.
(MGM). A number of license agreements were signed between MGM Holdings Inc. and
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG during the period, in the normal course of business. The agree-

ments are consistent with prevailing market terms.

Go6tz Mauser is a member of the Supervisory Board of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, and
among other positions is also a co-owner of ADT Telefonservice GmbH & Co. KG. A service
agreement exists in the normal course of business between ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and
ADT Telefonservice GmbH & Co. KG. The contract is consistent with prevailing market

terms.

There were no other reportable transactions with related parties in fiscal 2008.

Under Sec. 15a of the German Securities Trading Act and Item 6.6 of the German Corporate
Governance Code, the members of the Executive Board and Supervisory Board of ProSie-
benSat.1 Media AG are required to report securities transactions relating to ProSiebenSat.1
stock. They are furthermore required to report securities transactions by family members. In
fiscal 2008, a total of 32 transactions were reported to ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG, in which
members of the Executive Board or Supervisory Board and their family members acquired a
total of 319,000 shares of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG and sold a total of EUR 113,000 shares
of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG. In compliance with Sec. 15a of the Securities Trading Act,
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG reported each of these transactions immediately on its Web site,

www.prosiebensatl.com.



Group Affiliation

The direct parent company of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is Lavena Holding 5 GmbH, of Mu-
nich. The ultimate parent company of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG is Lavena 1 S.ar.l., of Lux-
embourg. ProSiebenSat.1 AG is included in the consolidated financial statements of Lavena

S.ar.l., of Luxembourg.

Sections 21 et seq. of the German Securities Trading Act require listed companies to provide
the public with detailed information about the makeup of their shareholder structure. These

disclosure requirements are intended to encourage transparency in securities trading.
Notices of ownership interests dated January 3, January 16, March 14, July 16, August 7,
October 10, and November 18, 2008, were published in their due turn by ProSiebenSat.1

Media AG in accordance with Sec. 26 (1) of the Securities Trading Act, and can be examined

at the Company’s Web site in the Annual Document required under Sec. 10 of that Act.

Unterféhring, March 10, 2009

The Executive Board



ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG as of December 31, 2008
List of holdings

No. . Interest Equity Net income .
Company Location Country % EUR k EUR k via No.
Affiliated companies
1 ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft Unterféhring Germany| 2,701,422 -933,406
2 9Live Fernsehen GmbH Unterfohring Germanyl 100 520 6,728 1
3 9Live International GmbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 25 -3,550 2
4 Agency Atlantic EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 33 12 157
5 Agency Vitosha EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100, 1,593 -58 157
6 Aktuelt Nyheter AS Oslo Norwayj 100 6 -2 150
7 [Amerom Television Ltd. New York USA 100) n/a n/a 103]"
8 Anonimi Radiofoniki Etairia Lampsi A.E. (Lampsi Radio Company S.A.) Athens| Greece 100! 4,770 1,098 107
9 ArtMerchandising & Media AG Unterfohring Germany]| 100 7,245 12,313 47
10 AT Fun B.V. Amsterdam| Netherlands 100 325 1,521 116
11 best webnews GmbH Cologne Germany]| 67.64 320 -144 135
12 Broadcast Norge AS Oslo| Norway]| 100 53,984 14,488 100
13 Carthage | B.V. Amsterdam Netherlands 100 -9 -26 116
14 CBO Media B.V. (formerly: Brainstation B.V.) Amsterdam) Netherlands 100 -16 2 116
15 Cutting Edge Production AS Oslo Norwayj 100, 47 0 121
16 easy 107,5 Stockholm AB Stockholm Sweden| 100 192 0 122
17 E-FM Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden| 100, 96 -21
18 EBS International N.V. Zaventem| Belgium 99.94 -70 0 103
19 Euradio i Sverige AB Stockholm Sweden| 100, 9 0 123
20 European Broadcasting System S.ar.l. Luxembourg| Luxembourg| 100! 26 0 103
21 European Radio Investments Limited London|  United Kingdom 100! 3,478 0 107
22 Evroark EOOD Sofial Bulgaria 100 21 16 157
23 Face your Brand! GmbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 25| 269 71
24 Fem Media GmbH Munich! Germany| 100 400 -1,002! 135
25 Fria Media | Blekinge AB Karlskrona Sweden| 100, 306 213 119
26 Fria Radiobolaget i Boras AB Boras Sweden| 100, 707 388 119
27 German Free TV Holding GmbH Unterfohring Germany]| 100 975,736 321,118 1
28 Hellas Radio Service Ltd. Athens| Greece 100, 17 3 103
29 ICS SBS Broadcasting S.R.L. (formerly: I.M. Radio Contract S.R.L.) Chisinau Moldova 100, -491 -191 132
30 INTERAKTIV-FICTION Miisorkészité és Filmgyartd Kft. Budapest Hungary 100, 9 -2 31
31 INTERAKTIV Televizids Misorkészitd Kit. Budapest Hungary 100, 923 255 103
32 kabel eins Fernsehen GmbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 82,359 60,900 27|
33 Kanal 5 AB Stockholm Sweden| 100 -3,890 16,262 34
34 Kanal 5 Holding AB Stockholm Sweden| 100 -177,009 65,097 104
35 Kanal 5 Limited London|  United Kingdom 100! -25 -7,061 107
36 Kiss FM DOO Belgrad Serbia 49 n/a n/a 103
37 Kommunikationsanpartsselskabet af 2/4 1990 Arthus C| Denmark 100! 35 1 84
38 |lokalisten media GmbH Munich! Germany| 90| 1,640 -772 135
39 MAGIC Internet Holding GmbH Berlin Germany)| 100 2,825 -8| 135
40 MAGIC Internet GmbH Berlin Germany)| 100 -1,796 -846 39
41 Meteos TV Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 52 3 162,
42 Miracle Sound Oy Helsinki Finland 51 103 201 58
43 Miracle Sound Oulu Oy Oulu Finland 100 140 47 42
44 Miracel Sound Tampere Oy Helsinki Finland 51 84 18 58
45 Mix Megapol.se AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100 114 0 119
46 MM MerchandisingMedia GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 45| 11,764/ 9
47 MM MerchandisingMedia Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100! 22,144 15,699 1
48 MTM Produkcié Misorgyarté és Filmforgalmazé Kft. Budapest Hungary 96.667 13 -5 103
49 MTM-SBS Televizi6 Zrt. Budapest Hungary 81.51 53,355 9,029 103
50 MyVideo Broadband S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 100 -1,568 -318 39
51 N24 Gesellschaft fiir Nachrichten und Zeitgeschehen mbH Unterféhring Germanyl 100! 2,025 13,130! 27
52 Niknet EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 21 1 157
53 [P7S1 Broadcasting S.ar.l. Luxembourg| Luxembourg| 80| n/a n/a 547
54 P7S1 Erste SBS Holding GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 1,516,394, -556,009 1
55 P7S1 Creative Productions Holding GmbH (formerly: ProSiebenSat.1
Siebte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH) Unterfohring Germany| 100 25| 629 1
56 P7S1 Zweite SBS Holding GmbH Unterfohring Germany]| 100 379,056 -139,007 1
57 Producers at work GmbH Potsdam| Germany| 67 1,627 1,377 1
58 Pro Radio Oy Helsinki Finland 100, -7,808 146 100
59 ProSiebenSat.1 Applications GmbH Unterfohring Germany}| 100 2,025 -5,709 1
60 ProSieben Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100, 21 -8 137
61 ProSieben Digital Media GmbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 6,139 3,356 1
62 ProSieben Television GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 450,486 138,298 27|
63 ProSieben (Switzerland) AG Kiisnacht] Switzerland 100 78| 6 139
64 ProSiebenSat.1 Erste Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 25| -2, 1
65 ProSiebenSat.1 Achte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH Unterfohring Germany| 100 26| -13 1
66 ProSiebenSat.1 Neunte Verwaltungsgesellschaft mbH (future name: Maz &
More GmbH) Unterfohring Germanyl 100 25 -1 51
67 ProSiebenSat.1 Berlin Produktion GmbH (still in the formation process at
12/31/2008) Berlin Germanyl 100 25 0 68
68 ProSiebenSat.1 Produktion GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 8,978 -23,926/ 1
69 ProSiebenSat.1 Welt GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 -340! -80 1
70 PS Event GmbH Cologne| Germany| 67, 613] 484 71
71 PSH Entertainment GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 2,925 759 1
72 Puls 4 TV GmbH Vienna Austria 100 18 0 137
73 Puls 4 TV GmbH & Co. KG Vienna Austria 100 2,604 -6,563] 137
74 Radio Nova A/S (formerly: Radio 2 A/S) Copenhagen Denmark| 80 3,849 -2,859 102
75 Radio City AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100 227 -52 122
76 Radio Daltid SBS AB Stockholm) Sweden| 51 195 191 119
77 Radio Express EAD Sofia Bulgaria 100 -1,449 48 5




. Interest Equity Net income .
Company Location Country % EUR k EUR k via No.
78 Radio HIT FM Melodicum AB Vaxjo| Sweden| 100 403 231 119
79 Radio Match AB Jonkdping Sweden| 100 733 645 119
80 Radiostasjonen Radio Norge AS (formerly: TV2 Saturn AS) Oslo Norwayj 100 1,849 -5,431 121
81 Radio Stella AB Helsingborg Sweden| 100 482 291 119
82 Radio Veselina EAD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 249 150 103
83 Radio Zita Radiohonikes Epichiriseis Anonimi Etairia Salonika Greece 100! 31 -113 93
84 Radioreklame A/S Arhus C. Denmark| 95.2 -1,935 -660 120
85 Radio VLR A/S Taastrup Denmark| 100 96 8 120
86 RedSeven Entertainment GmbH Unterféhring Germany) 100 25 633 55
87 Reklamradio-FMK AB Kalmar Sweden| 100 821 624 119
88 RIS Vinyl Skane AB Stockholm| Sweden| 100 8 0 123
89 Ritmo Plovdiv EOOD Plovdiv Bulgaria 100 0 6 157
90 Rockklassiker Sverige AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100 96 -21 88
91 Romanian Broadcasting Corporation Limited London| United Kingdom 100! -15,883 -2 107
92 Salonika Radio Investments Holding S.A. Luxembourg| Luxembourg| 100! 270 -849 103
93 Salonika Radio Investments S.ar.l. Luxembourg| Luxembourg| 100! 286 -733 92
94 Sat.1 Bayern GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 10,241 392 151
95 Sat.1 Grundstiicksverwaltungs GmbH & Co. KG Unterféhring Germanyl 100 1,211 -817 98
96 Sat.1 Norddeutschland GmbH Hannoverl Germany)| 100 25 348 98
97 SAT.1 Privatrundfunk und -programmgesellschaft m.b.H Vienna Austria 51 8,209 7,952 98
98 Sat.1 Satelliten Fernsehen GmbH Berlin Germany| 100 443,537 110,541 27
99 Sat.1 Switzerland AG Zirich Switzerland 50 4,575 3,237 98,
100 [SBS Belgium N.V. Zaventem Belgium 99.97 -4,569 -5,295 103
101 [SBS Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 668,100 50,304 116
102 _ [SBS Broadcast Danmark A/S Skovlunde Denmark| 100 -16,697 3,730 100
103 [SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 1,402,455 254,628 106
104 [SBS Broadcasting Europe B.V. the Netherlands svensk Filial Stockholm| Sweden| 100! 356,545 -102,617 103
105 |SBS Broadcasting Holding | B.V. Amsterdam) Netherlands 100 828,902 -12,334 53
106 [SBS Broadcasting Holding Il B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 997,383 -14,768 105
107 __ [SBS Broadcasting (UK) Limited London| United Kingdom 100! 79,462 6,376 103
108  [SBS Broadcasting Networks Limited London| United Kingdom 100! 14,272 -8,490 107
109 [SBS Broadcasting (Sweden) AB Stockholm| Sweden| 100 9,387 -481 103
110 [SBS Danish Television Limited London| United Kingdom 100! n/a n/a 107]"
111 [SBS European Pay TV Services S.ar.l. Luxembourg| Luxembourg| 100 n/a n/a 103["
112 [SBS Finance B.V. Amsterdam) Netherlands 100 821,016 40,148 103
113 [SBS Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 -1,147 -107 58
114 |SBS Interactive AB (under Liquidation) Stockholm| Sweden| 100 n/a n/a 104
115 |SBS Magyarorszagi Befektetési Kft. Budapest Hungary 98.34 57 -16 103
116 [SBS Nederland B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 440,743 -10,816 103
117 |SBS Productions B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 144 6 101
118  |SBS Publishing & Licensing B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 291 1,450 101
119  [SBS Radio AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100 8,714 -2,428 123
120 [SBS Radio A/S Copenhagen Denmark| 80, -19,904 -4,444 102
121 [SBS Radio Norge AS Oslo| Norwayj 77 9,163 1,572 100
122 [SBS Radio Sweden AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100 1,862 3 123
123 |SBS Radio Sweden Holding AB Stockholm) Sweden| 100! 54,186 -37 104
124  |SBS Records Aps Copenhagen Denmark| 100 -19 -14 120
125 |SBS Services B.V. Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100 1,375 -216 116
126 [SBS Services (UK) Ltd. London|  United Kingdom 100| n/a n/a 103"
127 _[SBS TV A/S Skovlunde Denmark| 100 -22,425 9,025 102
128 [Scandinavian Broadcasting System (Jersey) Ltd. Jersey| Channel Islands 100! -8,653 -224 101
129 [S.C. Canet Radio SRL Bucharest Romania 20, -817 112 132
130 __[S.C. Media Group Services International S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 95 -6,136 -4,700 132
131 [S.C. Prime Time Productions S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 99 74 101 132
132 [S.C. SBS Broadcasting Media S.R.L. Bucharest Romania 84.38 12,173 9,784 21
133 [SevenOne Brands GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 5,168 19,547 1
134 [SevenOne Interactive GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 44 106 133
135 _[SevenOne Intermedia GmbH Unterfohring Germany)| 100 50,854 -7,516 61
136 [SevenOne International GmbH Unterfohring Germany)| 100 125 4,761 1
137 __[SevenOne Media Austria GmbH Vienna Austria 100 12,166 11,342 133
138  |SevenOne Media GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 5,772 -86 133
139 [SevenOne Media (Switzerland) AG Kiisnacht| Switzerland 100 8,957 7,645 133
140 [SevenPictures Film GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 2,268 1,064 1
141 [SevenSenses GmbH Unterféhring Germany| 100 25 2,184 1
142 [Seven Scores Musikverlag GmbH Unterféhring Germanyl 100 26 546 1
143  [solute GmbH Karlsruhe| Germanyl 74.8] 254 691 135
144 _ |Starwatch Music GmbH Unterféhring Germany)| 100 29 3,570 47|
145 [Stichting Administratiekantoor Melida (under Liquidation) Amsterdam)| Netherlands 100! n/a n/a 53"
146 |Svensk Radiopartner Radio City AB Karlstad Sweden| 100 668 549 119
147 |Teledirekt Vermarktungsgesellschaft fiir Fernsehempfang mbH Unterfohring Germanyl 100! 92 -4 1
148  [Turun Ensitorppa Oy Helsinki Finland 100 70 -1 58
149 |TV5 Finland Oy Helsinki Finland 100 -9,227 -4,118 58
150 [TVNorge AS Oslo Norway| 100 13,146 13,029 12
151 [tv-weiB-blau Rundfunkprogrammanbieter GmbH Unterféhring Germanyl 100! 1,027 -153! 98
152 |V8 Broadcasting B.V. Amsterdam) Netherlands 100 15,026 30,027 101
153 [Veronica Broadcasting VOF Amsterdam)| Netherlands 99 n/a n/a 152["
154 [Veronica Litho B.V. Hilversum Netherlands 100 240 910 101
155 [Veronica Uitgeverij B.V. Hilversum Netherlands 100 678 14,293 101
156  [Vinyl AB Stockholm Sweden| 100 775 -186 123
157 |Vitosha FM EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 1,952 0 103
158 |VT4 Limited London| United Kingdom 100| n/a n/a 103"
159  [VT4 Marketing & Sales N.V. Zaventem) Belgium 99.96 -731 -47 158
160 [VT4 Network N.V. Zaventem) Belgium 99.2 -606 -43 158
161 |wer-weiss-was GmbH Hamburg Germany| 74.8 5,690 -6,166 135
162 |wetter.com AG Singen Germany)| 73 1,613 440 135
163 |Wetter Fernsehen - Meteos GmbH Singen Germany| 100 413 1,086 41




. Interest Equity Net income .
Company Location Country % EUR k EUR k via No.

Affiliated companies, not consolidated
164 |Anadolu Televizyon Ve Radyo Yayincilik Ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi Istanbul Turkey| 98| n/a n/a 125]"
165 _|Balkans Media Investments EOOD Sofia Bulgaria 100 3 0 157
166  |maxdome Verwaltungs GmbH Unterfohring Germanyl 100 29 5 141
167 _ [Merchandising Prag spo. s r o. Prague| Czech Republic| 100 n/a n/a 47|

Associated companies -at equity-
168  |Autoplenum GmbH Munich Germany 25.1 711 -1,206 135
169 [Big Brother AB Stockholm Sweden| 50 43 -1 104
170 _ [Big Brother Kommanditbolag Stockholm Sweden| 49| 124 0 33
171 |IP Multimedia (Switzerland) AG Kisnacht Switzerland 23] 10,517 8,392 1392
172 |maxdome GmbH & Co. KG Unterfohring Germanyl 50 1,057 -3,251 141
173 |[LOVESEARCH DP AB Stockholm| Sweden| 95.09 32 16 33
174 |Osterjéns Reklamradio AB Visby Sweden| 40| 0 0 119
175 Poolside Reise GmbH Munich! Germany| 40 879 -1,807 135
176 _[Privatfernsehen in Bayern Verwaltungs-GmbH Munich! Germany| 49.9 62 5 1517
177 _ |Privatfernsehen in Bayern GmbH & Co. KG Munich! Germany} 49.9 248 40 1517
178 [Radiobokningen i Vastmanland Handelsbolag Vasteras Sweden| 20 0 0 119
179 [Radio Silkeborg af 1997 A/S Silkeborg Denmark| 34 7 -124 84
180 [TV 10B.V. Amsterdam| Netherlands 100 1,353 105 180
181 |TV10 Holdings LLC Wilmington USA| 50| n/a n/a 1017
182 [Veronical/Jetix Text VOF Amsterdam) Netherlands 50 n/a n/a 1527
183 VG Media Gesellschaft zur Verwertung der Urheber- und

Leistungsschutzrechte von Medienunternehmen mbH Berlin Germany| 50| 378 0 1

Other equity interests
184 |AFK Aus- und Fortbildungs GmbH fiir elektronische Medien Munich! Germany| 12 n/a n/a 117
185 _ [Berliner Pool TV Produktionsgesellschaft mbH Berlin Germany} 50 135 58 517
186  |Deutscher Fernsehpreis GmbH Cologne Germany| 25| n/a n/a 1"
187 |ZeniMax Media Inc. Rockville USA| 8.03 n/a n/a 1037

Explanations to the footnotes
1) Not applicable; immaterial investments
2) Disclosures for fiscal year 2008




Members of the Executive Board

CEO since March 1, 2009
Management department: Group Content,
Human Resources and Corporate

CEO until December 31,2008

Management department: Group Content Production and
Acquisitions, Corporate, Human Resources

CFO since June 11, 2008
Member of the Executive Board since May 1, 2008

Management department: Group Controlling, Finance /
Investor Relations, Legal Affairs, Regulatory Affairs, Administration

CFO until June 10, 2008
Member of the Executive Board until June 10, 2008
Management department: Group Controlling, Finance / Investor Rela-
tions, Legal Affairs, Human Resources, Regulatory Affairs, Administra-
tion
Mandate:

Siltronic AG (Member of the Supervisory Board until April 2008)

Member of the Executive Board since June 17, 2008
Management department: German Free TV

Member of the Executive Board until June 30, 2008
Management department: Sales & Marketing

Member of the Executive Board since August 1, 2006
Management department: New Media & Diversification, Transaction TV,
Business Development

Member of the Executive Board since September 1, 2008
Management department: Sales & Marketing

[e{e]0)
Member of the Executive Board since July 1, 2007

Management department: Group Operations, International Free TV,
International Pay TV, Radio, Print

Members of the Supervisory Board

Chairman (since March 2007)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Partner)

Vice-Chairman
(since October 2008, Member of the Supervisory Board since March
2007)

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner and Head of Europe)
Mandate:

A.T.U. Auto-Teile Unger Holding GmbH, Germany (non-executive)

Rally Lux Holding One S.a.r.l, Luxembourg (executive)

Rally Lux Holding Two S.a.r.l, Luxembourg (executive)

KION Holding 1 GmbH, Germany (non-executive)

KKR & Co. Limited, UK (executive)

KKR & Co. SAS, France (executive)

NXP BV, Netherlands (non-executive)

(Vice-Chairman from March 2007 until September 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner)
Mandate:

Diageo PLC (non-executive)

Honeywell Inc. (non-executive)

The Nielsen Co. (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Permira Advisors LLP, London (Investment Advisor)

Mandate:
ALL3Media Holdings Ltd., UK (non-executive)

(from December 2001 until January 2008)
Axel Springer AG (CEO)
Mandate:
Dpa Deutsche Presse Agentur GmbH (non-executive)
Leipziger Verlags- und Druckereigesellschaft mbH & Co. KG
(non-executive)
B.Z. Ullstein GmbH (non-executive)
Axel Springer Digital TV GmbH (non-executive)
Time Warner Inc. (non-executive)
Brilliant 310 GmbH (executive)

(since May 2004)
Company Director
Mandate:
World Film Collective (non-executive)
UK Film Council (non-executive)
Brentford FC (Lionel Road) Limited (non-executive)
Brentfort Football Club (non-executive)
Ducks Walk Management Company Ltd. (non-executive)
Sunshine Holdings & Ltd. (non-executive)
Powder Creek Limited (non-executive)
DGCC Limited (non-executive)
Vine Leisure Ltd. (non-executive)
Vine Development Limited (non-executive)

(since June 2008)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH
(Private Equity Professional)



(since March 2007)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Director)
Mandate:
Demag Holdings S.a.r.I (non-executive)
A.T.U GmbH (non-executive)
DSD GmbH (non-executive)

(since September 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Partner)

Mandate:
A.T.U GmbH & Co. KG (non-executive)
Pages Jaunes SA (non-executive)
DSD GmbH (non-executive)
Van Gansewinkel BV (non-executive)
Blacksmith SA (non-executive)
Demag Holdings S.a.r.l (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Partner)

(from July 2007 until September 2008)

Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Private Equity Professional)

(from May 2004 until January 2008)
WAZ Mediengruppe (CEO)
Mandate:

WAZ Mediengruppe (executive)

(since July 2007)
Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (President)
Mandate:

Telegraaf Media International B.V. (executive)

(since November 2008)

Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Portfolio Director)

(since June 2008)
Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Ltd. (Director)

Mandate:
Torkett SA (non-executive)

KKR International Flooring 1 S.a.r.I (non-executive)
KKR International Flooring 2 S.a.r.l (non-executive)

A.T.U GmbH (non-executive)
KION Group GmbH (non-executive)
KION Holding 1 GmbH (non-executive)

(since March 2007)

MGM Holdings Inc. (Chairman of the Board and CEO)

Mandate:
MGM Holdings Inc. (executive)
ZeniMax Media Inc. (non-executive)

(since July 2007)
Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (CEO)
Mandate:

Telegraaf Media Groep N.V. (executive)

(from July 2007 until November 2008)
Permira Beteiligungsberatung GmbH (Principal)

Mandate:
Hugo Boss AG (non-executive)

(since March 2007)
Gleiss Lutz Hootz Hirsch Partnergesellschaft von Rechtsanwaélten und
Steuerberatern (Auditor/Attorney)

Mandate:
Berenberg Bank (non-executive)
Wincor Nixdorf AG (non-executive)
Praktiker Baumadrkte (non-executive)
Prime Office AG (non-executive)
Merz GmbH & Co. KG (non-executive)



ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft, Unterfohring

Development of non-current assets in the fiscal year 2008

Acquisition and production costs

1/1/2008 Additions Reclassifications  Disposals 12/31/2008
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
. Intangible assets
1. Licenses, trademarks and patents as
well as licenses to such assets
and rights 20,455,941.69 528,187.27 473,681.60 15,361,604.31 6,096,206.25
2. Advances paid on
intangible assets 947,021.84 507,803.00 -473,681.60 794,895.24 186,248.00
21,402,963.53 1,035,990.27 0.00 16,156,499.55 6,282,454.25
Il.  Property, plant and equipment
1. Buildings on land owned by others 61,632,420.79 5,679,755.51 0.00 891,567.22 66,420,609.08
2. Other equipment, fixtures,
furniture and equipment 8,096,230.36 319,449.94 0.00 118,877.98 8,296,802.32
3. Advances paid on tangible
assets under construction 0.00 408,219.48 0.00 0.00 408,219.48
69,728,651.15 6,407,424.93 0.00 1,010,445.20 75,125,630.88
Ill. Financial assets
1. Interests in group companies 6,020,141,700.59 2,092,166.51 0.00 26,308.18 6,022,207,558.92
2. Interests in associated companies 3,181,739.66 255.65 0.00 2,562,134.75 619,860.56
3. Long-term investments 5,506,538.91 2,025,421.62 0.00 0.00 7,531,960.53
4. Other loans 9,267,676.59 636,423.38 0.00 3,200.00 9,900,899.97
6,038,097,655.75 4,754,267.16 0.00 2,591,642.93 6,040,260,279.98
6,129,229,270.43 12,197,682.36 0.00 19,758,587.68 6,121,668,365.11




Amortization, depreciation and write-downs

Carrying amounts

1/1/2008 Additions Disposals 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2007
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
13,400,745.69  1,096,050.87  9,247,547.31  5,249,249.25 846,957.00 7,055,196.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 186,248.00 947,021.84
13,400,745.69  1,096,050.87  9,247,547.31  5,249,249.25 1,033,205.00 8,002,217.84
37,492,443.28  3,435,712.51 562,350.22 40,365,805.57 26,054,803.51 24,139,977.51
6,857,551.36 303,317.94 105,719.98  7,055,149.32 1,241,653.00 1,238,679.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 408,219.48 0.00
44,349,994.64  3,739,030.45 668,070.20 47,420,954.89 27,704,675.99 25,378,656.51
0.00 300,000,000.00 0.00 300,000,000.00 5,722,207,558.92 6,020,141,700.59
2,640,167.65 341,987.11  2,562,133.75 420,021.01 199,839.55 541,572.01
0.00 1,473,071.59 0.00 1,473,071.59 6,058,888.94 5,506,538.91
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,900,899.97 9,267,676.59
2,640,167.65 301,815,058.70 _ 2,562,133.75 301,893,092.60 5,738,367,187.38 6,035,457,488.10

60,390,907.98

306,650,140.02

12,477,751.26 354,563,296.74

5,767,105,068.37

6,068,838,362.45
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Responsibility Statement of the Executive Board

To the best of our knowledge, and in accordance with the applicable reporting principles, the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company, and the management report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Company, together with a description of the principal opportunities and
risks associated with the expected development of the Company.

Unterféhring, March 10, 2009
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Thomas Ebeling (CEO ) Axel Salzmann (CFO)

Patrick Tillieux (COO ) Andreas Bartl (German Free TV)
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Dr. Marcus Englert (New Media) Klaus-Peter Schul z (Sales)
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Auditor’s Report

We have granted the unqualified auditor’ s report as follows:
LAuditor’s report

We have audited the annual financia statements, comprising the balance sheet, the income statement and
the notes to the financial statements, together with the bookkeeping system and the management report of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media Aktiengesellschaft, Unterfohring, for the fiscal year from January 1 to December 31,
2008. The maintenance of the books and records and the preparation of the annual financial statements and
the management report in accordance with German commerciad law are the responsibility of the
Company’s executive board. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial statements,
together with the bookkeeping system, and the management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the annua financial statements in accordance with § 317 HGB
(Handel sgesetzbuch; German Commercial Code) and German generally accepted standards for the audit of
financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer in Deutschland (IDW). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially affecting the
presentation of the net assets, financia position and results of operations in the annual financial statements
in accordance with German principles of proper accounting and in the management report are detected with
reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the
Company and expectations as to possible misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit
procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control system and the evidence supporting
the disclosures in the books and records, the annual financial statements and the management report are
examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the annual financial statements and management report. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.



In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the annual financial statements comply with the lega
requirements and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of
the Company in accordance with German principles of proper accounting. The management report is
consistent with the annual financial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the Company’s
position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development.”

Munich, March 13, 2009

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesel | schaft

(formerly:

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesell schaft
Aktiengesdll schaft
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesel | schaft)

[original German version signed by:]

K ozikowski Papenberg
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]





